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Loans to clients
(KB Group, gross loans, CZK billion)*

2022 784.9

2023 827.7

CZK 827.7 billion +5.5%

* Excluding Other amounts due from customers, but including debt
securities issued by KB corporate clients.

Client deposits
(KB Group, CZK billion)*

2022 916.8

2023 1,006.2

CZK 1,006.2 billion +9.7%

* Excluding repo operations with clients.

Net profit attributable to KB’s equity holders
(KB Group, CZK billion)

2022 17

!

CZK 15.6 billion -11.4%

Number of standalone Bank clients

2022 1,652,000

2023 1,664,000

1,664,000 clients +0.7%




ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT

2023

Komercéni banka, a.s



| Survey of Results 2019-2023

According to IFRS Accounting Standards

2022
Consolidated data (CZK million) restated?
Financial results
Net operating income 36,199 38,632 31,346 29,664 32,573
of which Net interest income 25,595 28,632 21,795 21,360 23,591
of which Net fees and commissions 6,414 6,121 5,711 5,210 5,983
of which Net profit on financial operations 3,832 3,666 3,630 2,884 2,804
Total operating expenses (17,321) (16,014) (15,099) (14,995) (14,932)
Profit attributable to the Group’s equity holders 15,612 17,622 12,727 8,156 14,901
Earnings per share (CZK) 82.67 93.31 67.39 43.19 78.90
Balance sheet
Total assets 1,516,302 1,305,304 1,244,353 1,167,131 1,077,334
Loans and advances to customers, net 833,542 781,463 724,587 679,956 647,259
Amounts due to customers 1,127,227 950,693 956,929 906,217 821,507
Total shareholders’ equity? 125,058 121,444 123,509 113,816 105,540
Ratios (%)*
Return on average equity (ROAE) 12.67 14.39 10.73 7.44 14.50
Return on average assets (ROAA) 1.11 1.38 1.06 0.73 1.39
Net interest margin 1.94 2.42 1.93 2.03 2.35
Cost/income ratio 47.85 41.45 48.17 50.55 45.84
Capital
Capital adequacy (%) 18.78 19.45 21.31 22.34 19.72
Tier 1 ratio (%) 17.68 18.86 20.87 21.73 19.14
Tier 1 99,718 98,616 101,072 97,906 84,062
Tier 2 6,154 3,122 2,136 2,784 2,546
Total regulatory capital 105,872 101,738 103,209 100,690 86,608
Total risk-weighted assets 563,886 522,975 484,372 450,628 439,237
Number of shares issued 190,049,260 190,049,260 190,049,260 190,049,260 190,049,260
Number of outstanding shares 188,855,900 188,855,900 188,855,900 188,855,900 188,855,900
Other data
Number of employees, average 7,551 7,503 7,687 8,061 8,167
Notes

" Restated to reflect Komercni pojistovna's transition to the IFRS 17.

2 Excluding Non-controlling interest.

3 According to the Komer&ni banka methodology.

Definitions of the Alternative Performance Measures mentioned in this annual financial report are provided in the respective section herein.

Credit ratings (as of end of February 2024)" Short-term Long-term
Standard & Poor’s A-1 A
Moody’s Prime-1 Al
Fitch F1 A

KB was assigned a credit rating by rating agencies registered under Regulation of the European Parliament and Council Regulation (EC) No. 462/2013. KB has considered
appointment of rating agencies in accordance with Article 8d of this Regulation and decided not to appoint a rating agency whose market share is smaller than 10%.



Separate data (CZK million)
Financial results

Net operating income 33,187 36,627 28,996 26,288 30,599
of which Net interest income 22,798 25,947 19,100 18,611 20,550
of which Net fees and commissions 5,530 5,277 4,924 4,536 5,313
of which Net profit on financial operations 3,816 3,654 3,629 2,878 2,802
Total operating expenses (15,773) (14,355) (18,581) (13,573) (13,428)
Net profit 14,574 17,572 12,353 6,929 14,816
Balance sheet

Total assets 1,439,074 1,228,892 1,169,147 1,093,508 1,011,519
Loans and advances to customers, net 714,319 668,201 622,178 589,741 567,805
Amounts due to customers 1,076,443 896,663 899,654 849,029 762,157
Total shareholders’ equity 115,103 112,584 115,418 105,196 98,218
Ratios (%)

Return on average equity (ROAE) 12.80 15.41 11.20 6.81 15.52
Return on average assets (ROAA) 1.09 1.47 1.09 0.66 1.47
Net interest margin 1.85 2.37 1.83 1.91 2.20
Cost/income ratio 47.53 39.19 46.84 51.63 43.88
Capital

Capital adequacy (%) 19.61 20.75 23.02 23.82 21.10
Tier 1 ratio (%) 18.42 20.12 22.50 23.13 20.46
Tier 1 94,005 95,443 97,182 93,360 80,982
Tier 2 6,064 3,004 2,236 2,775 2,546
Total regulatory capital 100,069 98,447 99,419 96,135 83,528
Total risk-weighted assets 510,313 474,477 431,973 403,622 395,828
Other data

Number of employees, average 6,499 6,553 6,736 7,104 7,210
Number of points of sale? 213 219 243 243 343
Number of clients (thousands) 1,664 1,652 1,625 1,641 1,664
Number of ATMs 796 850 860 809 796
Notes

" According to the Komeréni banka methodology.
2 Including one branch in Slovakia.
Definitions of the Alternative Performance Measures mentioned in this annual financial report are provided in the respective section herein.

Further information

Detailed financial and operational information about
Komeréni banka Group is available in other publications

on KB’s website for shareholders and investors
www.kb.cz/investors. Additional information on corporate
social responsibility and ethics at KB is available in the
‘About KB’ section at https://www.kb.cz/en/about-bank.
Information about KB’s products and services is accessible
from the homepage www.kb.cz/en.

This document contains a number of forward-looking
statements relating to the targets and strategies of

Komeréni banka Group. These statements are based
on numerous assumptions, both general and specific.

As a result, there is a risk that these projections will not be
fulfilled. Forward-looking statements are valid only as of the
date they are made, and it should not be assumed that they
will be revised or updated in the light of new information

or future events. Readers are therefore advised not to rely
on this information more than is justified, as the Group’s
future results are liable to be affected by a number of
factors and may therefore differ from current estimates.

Readers are advised to take into account factors of
uncertainty and risk when basing their investment decisions
on information provided in this document.

Contacts

Komercéni banka, a.s.

Na Prikopé 33, 114 07 Prague 1
Telephone: (+420) 485 262 800
Email: mojebanka@kb.cz
Internet: www.kb.cz

Contact for shareholders and investors:
Investor Relations
Telephone: (+420) 955 532 155,
955 532 156,
955 532 734
Internet: www.kb.cz/investors
E-mail: investor_relations@kb.cz


http://www.kb.cz/investors
http://www.kb.cz/en
http://www.kb.cz
http://www.kb.cz/investors
https://www.kb.cz/en/about-bank
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| Profile of Komercni banka Group

Profile of KB

In addition to this Annual Financial Report, Komeréni banka
Group is issuing the KB Group Sustainability Report 2023,
covering environmental and social sustainability and additional
non-financial topics. The Sustainability Report is available at
www.kb.cz/en/non-financial-reporting.

The full legal names of KB Group companies mentioned in
simplified form throughout this annual financial report are listed in
the section “Komeréni banka Group”.

Komercni banka (Group) profile 8

5]
Komeréni banka, a.s. (hereinafter also “KB” or the “Bank”) is services, such as pension savings and building society schemes, §
the parent company of KB Group (hereinafter also the “Group”) leasing, factoring, consumer lending, insurance, and fintech I
and a member of the Société Générale international financial services. These are accessible through KB’s branch network, its @

group. KB ranks among the leading banking institutions in the
Czech Republic, as well as in Central and Eastern Europe. It
is a universal bank providing a wide range of services in retalil,

direct banking channels, the subsidiaries’ own sales networks,
or networks of the business partners. The Bank also provides
services in the Slovak Republic through its branch focused on

corporate, and investment banking. Member companies of serving corporate clients as well as through selected subsidiaries.
Komeréni banka Group provide additional specialised financial

(CZK billion) 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 g
KB Group 827.7 784.9 1,006.2 916.8 é
KB (including KB Slovakia) 708.4 672.4 954.9 862.6 §
- Individuals 306.3 296.6 337.9 327.8 s
- Businesses and other 402.0 375.8 617.1 534.7 °

- Small businesses 40.2 40.1 238.6 230.6

- Medium corporates and municipalities 126.4 125.9 244.5 196.2

- Top corporates and other (including KB Slovakia) 235.4 209.8 134.0 108.0

Modra pyramida 92.5 85.3 52.3 56.0
ESSOX (including PSA FINANCE) 20.8 18.4 0.1 0.1 ;_‘g
Factoring KB 10.0 10.1 0.8 1.0 §
SGEF 34.2 315 n.a. n.a. 2
BASTION 1.9 2.0 na. na. s
Consolidation and other adjustments (40.1) (34.8) (2.0 2.8) §
IFRS numbers entering into consolidation, excluding Other amounts due from customers, but including debt securities issued by KB corporate clients. é
" IFRS numbers entering into consolidation, excluding repo operations with clients. 3

Risk management

| Profile of KB
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Identification details and
scope of business activities

Komeréni banka, a.s., entered in the Commercial Register
maintained with the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B,
File No. 1360

Date of registration:
5 March 1992

Registered office:
Prague 1, Na Pfikopé 33, building identification number 969,
postal code 114 07

Identification number:
45317054

Legal entity identifier (LEI):
[YKCAVNFR8QGFO0HV840

Legal form:
Public limited company

Business activities:
I.  The Bank shall carry on business pursuant to

Act No. 21/1992 Coll., the Banking Act, as amended.

The business activities of the Bank shall include:
acceptance of deposits from the public;
granting of loans;
investing in securities on the Bank’s own account;
financial leasing;
making and receiving payments and administration of
a clearing system;

f) issuing of payment instruments, such as payment cards
and traveller’s cheques;

g) provision of guarantees;

h) issuing of letters of credit;

i) provision of collection services;

j) provision of investment services including:

e main investment services of reception and transmission,
on behalf of investors, of orders in relation to investment
instruments,
main investment services of execution of orders on
behalf of investors in relation to investment instruments,
main investment services of dealing in investment
instruments for the Bank’s own account in relation to
investment instruments,
main investment services of managing portfolios of
investments in accordance with mandates given by
investors on a discriminatory, client-by-client basis
where such portfolios include one or more investment
instruments,
main investment services of underwriting in respect of
issues of investment instruments and/or the placing of
such issues in relation to investment instruments,
ancillary services of safekeeping and administration in
relation to investment instruments,
ancillary services of safe custody,
ancillary services of granting credits or loans to an
investor for the purpose of allowing the investor to carry
out a transaction in one or more investment instruments
wherein the firm granting the credit or loan is involved in
the transaction in relation to the investment instrument,

cL

oo

ancillary services of advice to undertakings on capital
structure, industrial strategy and related matters, and
advice and service relating to mergers and the purchase
of undertakings,
ancillary services of services related to underwriting in
relation to investment instruments,
ancillary services of investment advice concerning
investment instruments in relation to investment
instruments, and

¢ ancillary services of foreign-exchange service where

these are connected with the provision of investment
services;

k) dealing on the Bank’s own account or on the client’s

account in foreign currencies and gold;
I) financial brokerage;
m) foreign exchange operations
(purchase of foreign currency);
provision of depository services;
provision of banking information;
renting of safe-deposit boxes;
issuing of mortgage bonds; and
activities directly related to those mentioned in
paragraphs a) — q).

o=

saz

Il. Furthermore, the business activities comprise activities
carried out for another as long as these activities relate
to the operation of the Bank and to the operation of other
banks controlled by it, of saving and credit unions,
investment companies, insurance and reinsurance
companies, financial institutions, and businesses which
provide ancillary banking services in the scope specified
below:

a) accounting consultancy activities, book-keeping,
tax record-keeping;

b) intermediating of trades and services;

c) advisory and consulting activities, preparation of
expert studies and reports;

d) administration and maintenance of real property;

e) organisation of specialised courses, training, and
other educational programmes, including teaching;

f) provision of software, advisory in information
technologies, data processing, hosting and relating
activities, and web portals; and

g) administration and organisational services.

Registered capital:
CZK 19,004,926,000; of which paid up: 100%

Method of the Company’s establishment:

In accordance with the privatisation project of the state financial
institution Komeréni banka, with its registered office at Prague,
Na ptikopech 28, approved by resolutions of the Government

of the Czechoslovak Federative Republic No. 1 of 9 January

1992 and No. 109 of 20 February 1992, the National Property
Fund of the Czech Republic, as the sole founder, established

the public limited company Komeréni banka, a.s., based on

a Deed of Incorporation of 3 March 1992 under Section 172 of the
Commercial Code.

Foreign branch:

Name: Komeréni banka, a.s., pobocka zahrani¢nej banky
Registered office: Bratislava, HodZovo namestie 1A, postal
code 811 06, Slovak Republic

Komer¢ni banka, a.s. | Annual Financial Report 2023



Financial and ESG ratings

On 19 October 2023, S&P Global Ratings affirmed KB’s rating at
ICR A/Stable/A-1 and RCR A+/A-1.

On 12 October 2023, Fitch Rating affirmed Long Term Issuer
Default Rating (IDR) at ‘A’ with a Stable Outlook and Viability
Rating at ‘a’.

On 6 November 2023, Moody’s Rating affirmed Long Term
Deposit rating at ‘At1’.

Komeréni banka is included in the FTSE4Good index of
companies that demonstrate good sustainability practices. KB
defended its rating of 3.7 points (out of a maximum of 5) in 2023.

KB also maintained its AA rating in the MSCI ESG rating, which
assesses companies’ management of financially relevant ESG
risks and opportunities. The AA rating is reserved for businesses
that are leaders in their industries.

KB scored 51 points in the annual S&P Global Corporate
Sustainability Assessment, making it one of the world’s leading
banks in sustainability measures.

Main economic activity (CZ NACE):
64190 - Other monetary intermediation
Other economic activities (CZ NACE):

63 - Information service activities

74 - Other professional, scientific, and technical activities

461 - Wholesale on a fee or contract basis

649 - Other financial service activities, except insurance and
pension funding

702 - Management consultancy activities

711 - Architectural and engineering activities and related

technical consultancy

66190 - Other activities auxiliary to financial services, except
insurance and pension funding

68320 - Management of real estate on a fee or contract basis

69200 - Accounting, bookkeeping, and auditing activities; tax
consultancy

Institutional Sector (ESA 2010)

12203 - Deposit-taking corporations, except the central bank,
under foreign control

| Profile of KB

Selected awards received in 2023

January 2023 Global Finance magazine:
- Komeréni banka — The Best Foreign Exchange

Provider Bank 2023 in the Czech Republic

MasterCard Awards 2023 in the Czech Republic:

- Komeréni banka - for building a new generation
of banking and card system in the Technology
Innovation category

- Komeréni banka - for an innovative approach in
the field of esports and organization of a unique
tournament in the game League of Legends Prague
Champs in the Unique Issuing Project Award category

- Monika Truchlikovd KB Payment Method Tribe
manager — for her significant support of innovation
and active role in building the next generation of
banking in the Issuing Payments Leader category

February 2023

Hospodéarské noviny survey Top Women in the Czech

Republic 2022:

- Komeréni banka board member Jitka Haubova - 2nd
place in the category TOP manager of Czechia 2022

Visa Awards 2022:

- Komer¢ni banka — #1 sustainable bank for the
photovoltaic power plant and the Sustainable e-shop
project

French-Czech Chamber of Commerce:

- Komeréni banka — awarded in the Corporate Social
Responsibility category for an innovative ATM sharing
project

May 2023

June 2023 Ministry of Finance — the most important corporate

income tax payers for 2022 in the Czech Republic:

- Komeréni banka - ranking among the top 20 most
important payers

EcoVadis Sustainability Rating:

SGEF Czech Republic & Slovakia - Silver Sustainability

Label

Zlata koruna (Golden Crown) contest:

- KB Loan for sustainable technologies — Green Crown

- KB Profi Auto — Silver Crown in the SME Leasing
category

- KB Mortgage - Bronze Crown in the Mortgage category

- ESSOX Staggered payment — Golden Crown in the
Non-bank Loans category

July 2023

Global Finance magazine:
- Komeréni banka — The Best Sub-Custodian Bank in
the Czech Republic in 2023

Casopis Euromoney:

- Komeréni banka — 1st place among banks in the field
of cash management within the Czech Repubilic,
receiving the title of Euromoney Best Service

WOETb 228 Mastercard Bank of the Year 2023:

- Komeréni banka - 1st place in the Bank of the Year

- Komeréni banka - 1st place in the Corporate Bank of
the Year

- Komeréni banka - 1st place in the Bank without
barriers

- Komeréni banka — 2nd place in the Private Bank of
the Year

- Komeréni banka — 2nd place in the Responsible Bank
of the Year

- Lemonero -2nd place in the FinTech of the Year

Visa Best Insurance Company 2023 of Hospodarské

noviny:

- KB Pojistovna - 1st place in the Best Life Insurance
Company category

- KB Pajistovna — 2nd place in the category Client-
friendly life insurance company

October 2023

11]
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Business for Society:
- Komeréni banka — TOP responsible large company
and TOP responsible company in reporting

National award of the Czech Republic from the Ministry

of Industry and Development:

- Komeréni banka — 2nd place for social responsibility
and sustainable development

Société Générale Group

Komeréni banka has been an important part of Société Générale
Group’s international retail banking since October 2001. Société
Générale is a top tier European Bank with 117,000 employees
serving 25 million clients in more than 60 countries across the
world. For almost 160 years, Société Générale has been assisting
in the growth of our economies by offering a broad range of
value-added financial and consulting solutions to our corporate,
institutional, and individual clients.

Société Générale’s most fundamental goal is sustainable value
creation for all of our stakeholders, and these goals are served

by our enduring and reliable client relationships, cutting-edge
expertise, distinctive innovation, ESG skills, and industry-leading
franchises. These traits are all ingrained in our DNA. The Group is
built on three complementary core businesses:

¢ French Retail Banking with leading retail bank SG and
insurance franchise, premium private banking services, and
the leading digital BoursoBank;

¢ [International Retail Banking, Insurance, and Financial
Services, comprising well-established universal banks (in the
Czech Republic, Romania, and several African countries), and
ALD / LeasePlan, a global player in sustainable mobility;

¢ Global Banking and Investor Solutions, a top tier wholesale
bank offering tailored-made solutions with distinctive global
leadership in Equity Derivatives, Structured Finance, and ESG.

Société Générale aims to take the lead in promoting sustainability
in general and the environmental transition in particular. The DJSI
(Europe), FTSE4Good (Global and Europe), Bloomberg Gender-
Equality Index, Refinitiv Diversity and Inclusion Index, Euronext
Vigeo (Europe and Eurozone), STOXX Global ESG Leaders
indexes, and the MSCI Low Carbon Leaders Index (World and
Europe) are the main socially responsible investment indices in
which the Group is included.

History of Komer¢ni banka

Komercéni banka was established in 1990 as a state institution,
and in 1992 it was transformed into a joint-stock company.
KB’s shares have been listed on the Prague Stock Exchange
since its inception in 1993, as well as within the RM-SYSTEM
Czech Stock Exchange.

In 2001, the state’s 60% holding in Komeréni banka was
purchased by Société Générale. Following privatisation,

KB began significantly to develop its activities for individual
customers and entrepreneurs while continuing to build on its
traditionally strong position in the enterprises and municipalities
market.

The development of the Bank was based not only on organic
growth but also on optimising the Bank’s and Group’s presence
on the market in the form of acquisitions. Therefore, in 2004,

a short-lived subsidiary of KB and SG, FRANFINANCE
CONSUMER CREDIT, was merged with ESSOX and focused on
consumer finance. In 2005, Komeréni banka sold 100% of its
stake in the asset management company Investi¢ni kapitalova
spole¢nost KB, a.s. to SG Asset Management and a 51% stake
in Komeréni pojistovna to SOGECAP S.A., whereby it retained

a 49% minority interest. In 2006, it completed the acquisition of
Modra pyramida by buying the remaining 60% stake, through
which the Bank gained full control over the third-largest building
savings bank in the Czech Republic. Another significant step

in extending the offer to clients was the acquisition of a 50.1%
share in SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o., the leading
provider of asset-backed financing in the Czech Republic, in
May 2011. Through a branch, SGEF also is active in Slovakia.

In 2016, KB established a business alliance for credit and debit
card acceptance whereby it transferred a share of its Cataps
subsidiary to Worldline SA/NV. In July 2016, then, ESSOX’s
subsidiary completed takeover of a 100% stake in PSA FINANCE
CESKA REPUBLIKA, s.r.0. and PSA FINANCE SLOVAKIA, s.r.o.

In 2019, KB established a fully owned subsidiary, KB
SmartSolutions s.r.o., as a platform facilitating introduction of
new services to the clients. This subsidiary has acquired several
stakes in start-up fintech companies. In 2020, KB established
Bankovni identita, a.s., a joint venture with Ceska spofritelna
and Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, for providing electronic
identification and electronic signature services based upon the
digital identities of bank clients.

Komeréni banka has been operating in Slovakia since 1995,
originally in the form of a subsidiary. Komeréni banka Bratislava
successfully implemented changes connected with the adoption
of the euro (EUR) on 1 January 2009. Since 1 January 2011, it has
operated as a foreign branch of the Bank.

In 2018, the Bank launched a transformation programme, KB
Change, which comprised, among other things, simplification
of the management and distribution structures and switching
of important central functions to agile working methodology.
Komeréni banka followed upon full implementation of the
transformation steps from that plan by announcing in 2020 a
further KB2025 strategic programme, which will assure KB’s
leading position in the new era of digital banking.

Komer¢ni banka, a.s. | Annual Financial Report 2023



In April 2023, KB launched "the New Era of Banking”. After

more than two years of work on a total technological and
business transformation, KB introduced to the market a new
customer proposition and new KB+ banking applications for
clients, all based on the completely new banking and analytical
infrastructure. In accordance with the agile approach, the KB+
app initially included only a simple set of basic products, which
will be gradually enhanced. At the same time, onboarding of new
clients and transfer of (retail) clients from the legacy system to the
new banking proposition was launched.

Profile of KB

Corporate social responsibility Corporate governance Strategy and results

Risk management
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Major events of 2023

January

Komeré&ni banka became the Official Partner of Czech Para
Hockey, thereby complementing the main partnership it has had
since 2021 with the ice hockey extra league. KB is also the main
partner of the national hockey team.

February

Three MasterCard Awards were presented to Komeréni banka for
projects in the fields of payments, digitalisation, and innovation.
In the category Technology Innovation, KB was recognised for
building a new generation of banking and card systems. A Unique
Issuing Project Award was won for an innovative approach

to e-sports and support of the gaming community. Monika
Truchlikova, tribe leader from Payment Methods, received a
personal award in the category Issuing Payments Leader of the
Year.

March

Jitka Haubova, member of Komeréni banka’s Board of Directors
responsible for operations, was ranked second within the
Manager category in the Top Women of the Czech Republic
survey.

April

The General Meeting held on 20 April 2023 approved the
reported financial statements for 2022 and the proposal for
distribution of profit, including dividend payment in the amount
of CZK 11.5 billion. It also approved the consolidated financial
statements for 2022 and the Remuneration Report for 2022.
The General Meeting elected Ms Marie Doucet and Ms Petra
Wendelova as members of the Supervisory Board. Ms Wendelova
was elected, too, as a member of the Audit Committee. The
General Meeting also decided to appoint Deloitte Audit s.r.o. to
perform the statutory audit for 2023.

The building of the new digital bank had reached such advanced
level as to allow introducing the “New Era of Banking Written by
KB” onto the Czech market, onboarding of new clients to the new
platform, and the start of a gradual migration of clients from the
old system.

Part of the OneGroup project to integrate certain subsidiaries into
the Bank’s internal structure is the incorporating of Factoring KB.
Moving to outsource its factoring activities to KB, all employees
of Factoring KB were transferred to Komeréni banka on 1 Apiril
2028.

Komeréni banka signed a referral agreement with BNP Paribas
Personal Finance SA (BNPP PF) on re-contracting of selected
deposit customers of the Czech BNPP PF franchise operating
under the Hello bank! brand. The referral agreement does not
concern credit products offered by Hello bank!

May

KB was awarded the title #1 Sustainable Bank in the 2022 VISA
Awards. It was recognised especially for its project supporting
sustainable e-shops and for photovoltaic installations on the roof
of its headquarters in Prague-Stodllky.

At the awards ceremony of the French-Czech Chamber of
Commerce, KB took home an award in the Corporate Social
Responsibility category. The jury praised its activities in the field
of sustainability, especially the innovative ATM sharing project.

June

As in previous years, KB was again recognised by the Ministry
of Finance as being among the Top 20 income taxpayers in the
Czech Republic for 2022.

Jan Juchelka, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of Komer¢ni banka, was elected by the
member banks as President of the Czech Banking Association.
The CBA represents the banking industry vis-a-vis the public,
government agencies, and international bodies. Furthermore, it
supports financial education, crime prevention, sustainability, and
digitalisation of financial and public services. During his 3-year
mandate, Mr Juchelka aims to promote further dialogue between
the state, regulatory authorities, and the private sector while
focusing especially on digitalisation, innovations, sustainability,
and investments directed to supporting the Czech Republic’s
long-term prosperity.

Komer¢éni banka set up a new fully owned subsidiary, KB
Poradenstvi, s.r.o. The firm was established in relation to the
intended development of KB Group’s distribution model based
on the network of Modra pyramida’s financial advisors. It will
become an integral part of KB Group’s distribution network so
that, within the New Era of KB, clients will have the full range of
KB Group products and services across all distribution channels,
including digital platforms.

As part of the OneGroup program, KB Group is concentrating
complete know-how and expertise in the field of housing finance
into Modra pyramida, including the transfer of KB specialists

to MPSS. Within the KB Group, Modra pyramida will provide
complete processing of mortgage loans as well as product
development for all housing products, including mortgages.

KB Smart Solutions, a full owned subsidiary of Komeréni banka,
increased to 28.256% from 24.989% its stake in MonkeyData
s.r.o. MonkeyData fully owns a subsidiary, Lemonero, s.r.o., which
provides financing to e-shops utilising an Al-powered scoring
model.

July

SGEF Czech Republic & Slovakia was awarded a silver

rating from EcoVadis, a provider of business sustainability
assessments. The international rating confirms that SGEF follows
the principles of sustainability and successfully fulfils its global
vision and ambition to be a worldwide partner for integrated
equipment solutions creating a sustainable and positive impact
on the planet.

August

Komeréni banka introduced the Mortgage for Sustainable
Housing, a mortgage loan with an advantageous interest rate
tailored for financing energy-efficient real estate.

September
KB Smart Solutions further increased its stake in MonkeyData
s.r.o. to 33.171% from 28.256%.
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October

As part of the OneMortgage Factory project, Komeréni banka
and Modra pyramida deployed new joint systems in pilot
operation to handle the entire process of providing a mortgage
— from verifying the client’s creditworthiness, through real estate
valuation and mortgage approval, to drawing of the mortgage,
settling the monthly repayment instalments, and resolving
mortgages in default.

Komeréni banka introduced further innovations in its New

Era of Banking for disadvantaged clients with various types

of handicaps. The new KB+ application is accessible also to
people with visual impairments. To enable reading, it offers
font enlargement and a high-contrast mode. In co-operation
with Mastercard, KB introduced a new card design standard
for visually impaired clients. Its Touch Card, with unique tactile
notches, lets cardholders identify their cards by touch.

Twenty-five years have passed since the establishment of Nadace
Komeréni banka. During that time, the foundation has supported
almost 1,600 projects and distributed more than CZK 250 million.
Since inception, it has been dedicated to supporting health,
social, and environmental projects while actively assisting in the
development of civil society and a sustainable future. Through the
past quarter century, the foundation has participated in improving
quality of life for families and individuals.

The Czech National Bank decided to discontinue paying interest
with effect from 5 October 2023 on required minimum reserves
held by banks at the CNB. Until that time, the required minimum
reserves had earned the central bank’s announced two-week
repo rate.

November

Komeréni banka was one of the initiators in launching the
Payment per Contact service into the Czech banking market.
The service allows one to send money without knowing the
counterparty’s bank account number.

In a vote of economists, analysts, and banking experts, Komer¢ni
banka was named winner in the 22nd year of the prestigious
MasterCard Bank of the Year survey. KB thus repeated its
success from the previous year. In addition to the main prize,

it also won first place for Corporate Bank of the Year and Bank
without Barriers, as well as second place for Private Bank of the
Year and Sustainable Bank of the Year.

In the VISA Best Insurance Company 2023 awards, Komer&ni
pojistovna held onto its title, once again being named Best Life
Insurer 2023.

KB defended the previous year’s award from the Business

for Society platform in the category TOP Responsible Large
Company and TOP Responsible Company in reporting within the
field of sustainability. Furthermore, KB won the National Award of
the Czech Republic for social responsibility.

December

The Czech National Bank kept rates unchanged for almost all of
2023 due to concerns about persistent inflationary pressures.
The first 25 bps cut was made only in December. The base repo
rate thus fell to 6.75% after being stuck at 7% for a year and a
half.

| Profile of KB
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‘ Strategy and Results

The following chapter summarises KB Group’s strategy and
describes how Komeréni banka Group looks after its customers,
how it organises its business activities, and what it has done

in 2023 to further improve its customer experience and

market position. It also describes the evolution of the market
environment, summarises the business and financial results,
including a comparison with the targets set for 2023, and
provides an outlook for 2024.

The KB Group Sustainability Report 2023 provides a detailed

description of the Group’s activities to meet its environmental and
social objectives and commitments.

Purpose of Komerc¢ni banka

Building together with our clients a better and sustainable future
through responsible and innovative financial solutions.

Mission

Be a leader in the new era of banking for 2 million active clients.

Strategic pillars

Growth, helpfulness, responsibility.

Principles of activity

The principles of Komeréni banka’s activities constitute a part of
KB’s governance. KB shall respect legal regulations, inclusive of
international conventions to which it adheres. In its operations,

KB shall respect, among others, the following general principles:

e KB’s activities shall be conducted with respect for
fundamental human rights and the rights of workers. No
discrimination of any kind with regard to employees, job
seekers, customers, business partners, or suppliers shall be
permitted.

e KB shall respect intellectual property rights, and special
emphasis shall be placed upon the honouring of software
product licences.

e KB shall respect the rules of economic competition
in its activities and, especially, in its contacts with the
representatives and employees of other banks and financial
institutions.

e KB shall comply with the rules for disclosure of information
to the shareholders, investors in financial markets, and
the general public. KB shall publish the information
regarding its current situation and expected development
in a timely manner, in an accessible form, sufficiently, and
proportionally.

e KB shall be active in performing its duties in fighting
corruption, money laundering, and the financing of terrorism.

e KB shall respect the privacy of its customers, business
partners, and employees. Therefore, it shall request and
use only such information about its customers, business
partners, and employees as is needed to serve these, to
enhance the quality of KB'’s services, to manage KB’s human
resources, and to comply with the obligations specified by
legal regulations.

e KB applies recognised and proven principles and procedures
of corporate governance (so-called recognised standards)
that it has chosen as well as policies that the controlling
company, Société Générale, requires to be applied in its
subsidiaries. On a standalone basis, KB applies the Code of
Corporate Governance that is based upon principles of the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(OECD)" and the Guidelines on internal governance of credit
institutions issued by the European Banking Authority (EBA
Guidelines).

" https://www.mfcr.cz/cs/o-ministerstvu/odborne-studie-a-vyzkumy/2019/kodex-
spravy-a-rizeni-spolecnosti-cr-201-34812
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e KB shall co-operate with the Czech National Bank and other
regulatory bodies responsible for supervising KB’s activities.
It shall provide correct, complete, current, and transparent
information about its activities.

e KB supports the principle of social responsibility. It shall seek
to minimise the impact of its activities on the environment
and use natural resources and energy in a conservative
manner. KB is governed by international conventions to
which it has acceded or which were acceded to by the SG
Group.

e KB shall maintain political neutrality. It shall not back any
political party or political movement through donations or
any other kind of support.

e KB continuously strives for long-term creation of value for its
shareholders.

Moreover, KB respects a range of principles relating to specific
areas, including principles regarding business conduct,
dealing with clients, the management and control system, and
remuneration.

| Strategy and results

Environmental, social, and governance (ESG)
principles

Komeréni banka and its subsidiaries act responsibly in their
relationships with clients, employees, shareholders, and other
stakeholders and partners. KB perceives that such behaviour
is in accordance with the interests and expectations of the
main stakeholders, as well as with applicable regulations.
Responsibility is the basis of every partnership, and it is also
a precondition for long-term successful business.

KB Group's environmental, social, and governance (ESG)
strategy" is based on a materiality assessment that identifies the
ESG factors most important to the Group’s stakeholders, as well
as for the Group’s growth and risk outlook. KB’s ESG strategy

is fully aligned with the purpose, mission, and overall strategy

of KB as formulated in the KB2025 plan. The implementation of
changes in the ESG area is closely co-ordinated with Société
Générale and takes place within the SG group’s “ESG by Design”
programme.

KB Group has been gradually applying a holistic approach to
ESG regulations and embedding further ESG impacts into its
core operations and policies. KB Group is gradually increasing its
ability to collect, measure, and disclose ESG data.

KB develops responsible business in economic, environmental,
and societal areas through a variety of activities at all levels and
as an integral aspect of the entire organisation. KB Group has
very little to no appetite to develop business with the following
sectors: political parties, economic sectors that are prohibited
under the CSR policy, or any activities likely to create compliance
or reputational risks.

Detailed non-financial information on Komeréni banka’s
environmental, social, and governance activities and results is
provided in KB Group Sustainability Report 2023,2 which will

be issued along with this annual financial report. In accordance
with Sec. 32g (7) of the Act 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting, KB

is not disclosing certain non-financial information provided by
Société Générale as a consolidating entity.® The Group has been
preparing for meeting disclosure obligations according to the
EU’s Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD).

Information on Komeréni banka’s activities in the areas of
respect for human rights and social and employment relations
is provided in the Employee Relationships chapter of this annual
financial report. Information on improving clients’ satisfaction
and introducing service improvements and innovations is
provided in the following text of this chapter. Information about
fighting against corruption and bribery is presented in the Risk
Management chapter of this annual financial report.

" https://www.kb.cz/en/about-the-bank/everything-about-kb/we-do-business-br-
sustainably

2 https://www.kb.cz/en/about-bank/we-do-business-sustainably/sustainability-
report-archive

3 https://www.societegenerale.com/en/publications-documents
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Sustainable development

KB’s strategic ambition is to be a leader in sustainable banking
on the Czech financial market and within the SG Group, as well
as to be perceived as a green bank in the Czech Republic.

Komeréni banka is aware of the influence that its activities have on
the surroundings wherein it operates, and it considers responsible
behaviour to be important. Therefore, it adopts adequate
measures that on the one hand should eliminate negative
influences on the environment and on the other contribute to

its protection and improvement. KB monitors the impact of its
activities on the environment and identifies those areas upon
which it needs to focus. Komeréni banka then adopts measures
directed towards effectively reducing its environmental impact.

Corporate culture

KB’s strategic vision in managing human resources is to build
professional relationships with employees based upon trust,
respect, mutual communication, equal opportunities, and the offer
of interesting professional and career growth. KB strives to create
an inspiring and supportive environment where people want

to work, succeed, and become ambassadors of the KB brand.
Mutual co-operation among employees is then based upon four
basic values or principles of behaviour: team spirit, innovation,
commitment, and responsibility. Together, these form the basis of
the corporate culture upon which KB is building its future.

Corporate governance

Komeréni banka acceded to and upholds all the principal
standards of the Code of Corporate Governance of the Czech
Republic (2018)" issued by the Institute of Administrative Bodies
on the basis of international standards of corporate governance,
in particular the G20/OECD Principles of Corporate Governance
from 2015. Komeréni banka’s Board of Directors applies and
develops the aforementioned principles of corporate governance
in a spirit of transparency, accountability, and with a view to the
long term, and it translates these best practices into its internal
procedures and regulations.

Code of conduct

Only by taking an ethical approach to doing business and
providing financial services can Komer¢ni banka hope to
maintain and even strengthen its market position over the long
term. A fundamental prerequisite to successfully developing the
company consists in professional conduct and behaviour on the
part of its employees, as exemplified in particular by fostering
and preserving direct and open relationships with clients and by
fortifying mutual trust. Komer¢ni banka expects all its employees
to be fully aware of and committed to their obligation to act in
accordance with the ethical standards set forth in its Code of
Ethics and to endeavour always to adhere to those standards.

Tax policy

Komeréni banka ensures that all KB Group companies fully
respect the tax rules of all countries wherein the Group operates.
Within its tax policy, Komeréni banka complies with all applicable
reporting obligations. Komeréni banka does not encourage or
promote tax evasion for itself or its clients and refrains from
operations whose main purpose is tax-motivated unless this is
consistent with the intention of the law.

" https://www.mfcr.cz/cs/o-ministerstvu/odborne-studie-a-vyzkumy/2019/kodex-
spravy-a-rizeni-spolecnosti-cr-201-34812

Komeréni banka strictly respects correct tax procedures and
maintains open and transparent relations with tax authorities
while guarding its good reputation. KB adheres to the SG Group
Tax Code of Conduct,? and all of KB’s employees are obliged to
comply with this Code. Tax policy is internally supervised by the
Internal Audit arm. External oversight in relation to Czech tax law
is performed by the Specialised Tax Office.

2 https://www.kb.cz/getmedia/7632c13e-f17b-4383-a0b7-05c84489cbca/tax_code
of_conduct_of_societe_generale_group_uk.pdf
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KB2025 strategic plan

On 5 November 2020, Komeréni banka presented its KB2025
plan updating strategic directions and addressing the emerging
challenges and opportunities for creating a strong, client-focused
bank.” Together with its clients, the Bank aims to build a better
and sustainable future through responsible and innovative
financial solutions. KB aspires to be a leader in a new era of
banking for 2 million active clients.

The strategy builds upon the pillars of helpfulness, growth, and
responsibility, and with specific objectives established in nine
programme areas.

KB is building a new digital bank founded on new technological
and process infrastructure, introducing new services and new
partners, and supported by smart innovations.

The new digital KB is rebalancing its organisation towards fully
digital sales and services. As a data-driven company, KB will
maximise the business value extracted from data in the digital
world even as it assures the privacy of its clients’ data. The Bank
is developing a new advisory model supported by data analytics.

To evolve its agile, adaptive, and effective organisation, the
Bank is implementing DevOps (develop—operate) practices as
well as the Smart Office concept of workplace organisation.
Both methodologies are expected also to support employee
engagement at high levels.

The Group’s position on the housing finance market is being
reinforced by building up a single mortgage factory delivering
solutions for clients of both KB and Modra pyramida.

KB is striving to reinforce its market leadership position in
services for corporate clients. It aims to protect KB’s already
best-in-market level of client satisfaction in corporate and
investment banking by focusing on speed, predictability, and
efficiency of corporate customer journeys.

With digitisation and automation incorporating artificial
intelligence and data science components as well as advanced
fraud prevention, KB’s risk management is directed to identifying
emerging risks and containing risk losses in the new world of
digital banking and within a volatile environment. As part of

its risk management framework, KB has been developing its
environmental and social risk management system, including
climate vulnerability assessment of clients, and it is building a
data collection and analytical infrastructure for indicators related
to clients’ ESG factors.

The overall productivity increase; centralisation of support
functions, services, and premises across KB Group; as well as
branch network and sourcing optimisation will enable the Group
to reaffirm its leading position in operational efficiency within the
CEE region.

Komeréni banka is positioning itself as a green bank and a
sustainability leader in the Czech financial market and within
Société Générale Group.

' Komeréni banka's Consolidated Annual Report 2020, pages 10 and following.
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Operational targets
The KB2025 strategic plan’s operational targets, which are
formulated for the standalone bank, have been affirmed.

KB aims to increase the level of client satisfaction as measured
by Net Promoter Score (NPS) in the retail clients and small

and medium-sized enterprises segments while stabilising that
satisfaction at the already very high level (above 50 points) within
the large corporations segment.

Based upon organic growth, the clients’ seamless omnichannel
experience should help the Bank to achieve its target of
1,850,000 clients by 2025.

The upgraded working and management methods are leading

to employee empowerment and effective teamwork across the
entity. KB is maintaining the Smart Office concept of hybrid work
from office and home, developing the Mojevitalita programme
promoting and supporting healthy life styles, and offering medical
assistance as well as legal and life counselling for all colleagues.
Effective leadership should help to achieve further gains in
employee engagement levels as measured by a proprietary
blended index to the level of 83 points from the already strong 78
points recorded in 2019.

Optimisation of operations through digitalisation, branch
reduction and switching to cashless banking, automation of
middle- and back-office and support functions, and deploying
robotics means that the standalone bank’s full operations and
services will be handled by approximately 5,500 employees. This
compares with 7,210 employees in the Bank as of 31 December
2019.

KB believes that pursuing sustainability in business and
operations generates long-term benefits in delivering new
business and value for shareholders as well as in complying
with future Czech and European regulations. As measures of its
maturity in the environmental, social, and governance areas, KB
has selected two globally recognised indices: the FTSE4Good
index of sustainably managed companies, with a target to exceed
the level of 4 points; and MSCI ESG, with a target rating at the
‘AA’ level that is reserved for companies leading their respective
industries in managing the most significant ESG risks and
opportunities.

Financial targets

Financial targets have been set on a KB Group basis, and
management is striving to reach these targets despite several
headwinds unforeseen at the time of setting these goals in 2020.

For 2025, the cost-to-income ratio is targeted to approach

40%. Based upon organic growth, the Group’s revenues should
accelerate mainly in 2025. By that time, KB’s new digital bank will
be fully operational for retail clients, a boost will come through
digital sales and an advisory model supported by data analytics,
and new revenue sources will be coming online.

Operating expenditures in 2025 will be at a level similar to

that in 2023 and will reflect ongoing efficiency measures, a
lower number of employees, as well as a smaller expected
regulatory charge in 2025 for the Resolution Fund. Savings from
decommissioning old components of the banking infrastructure
should begin to accrue mainly from 2026.
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The potential for increase in the Group’s net profitability has been
severely limited, however, by imposition of the so-called “windfall
tax” at an incremental 60% rate. Thus, any profits exceeding a
defined threshold would be taxed at a 79% rate (81% from 2024)
that is the sum of the 19% (21% from 2024) statutory rate plus the
“windfall tax” rate.

With a view to reinforcing the scale of KB’s existing business

and thus optimising efficiency and competitiveness, KB’s
management remains ready to consider enhancing its
performance with non-organic growth elements. Nevertheless,
visibility regarding potential accretive acquisition opportunities is
limited at the time of releasing this report. The minimum ambition
for the number of bank clients inclusive of the non-organic growth
component has been set at 2,000,000.

The Group will grow the volume of risk-weighted assets at a pace
that is optimal from the perspective of creating shareholder value.
The volume and structure of regulatory capital will be further
optimised, even as it will at all times safely and assuredly meet
the applicable and expected regulatory requirements.

Assuming all those factors as described above, KB Group targets
ROE to come in around 15% for 2025.

Key risks to these targets include significant worsening of the
geopolitical situation (in particular, escalation of the war in
Ukraine), deterioration in the macroeconomic development,
unexpected increase in regulatory requirements and bank levies,
and adverse competitive dynamics.

Komeréni banka, a.s.
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‘ Market environment

Economic and monetary environment in 2023

The Czech economy’s performance remained subdued during
2023. Gross domestic product fell by 0.4% through the year,
failing even to return to its pre-pandemic level. Quite the contrary,
it fell even further behind, lagging that level by 1.4% in the fourth
quarter. The main drag on the economy last year was household
consumption, which suffered considerably as the result of deep
decline in real wages to a level last seen at the end of 2017. Thus,
low-income households faced budget constraints in 2023 even as
high-income households increased their precautionary savings
or shifted funds towards savings products with longer maturities
or riskier investment instruments in order to achieve higher
returns and offset inflationary losses. The real level of consumer
spending was thus in line with that from the turn of 2016 to 2017.

On the other hand, foreign demand had a positive impact

on economic development. This reflected a fading of the
subcontracting problem, as automotive manufacturers in
particular were able to complete work-in-progress goods and
support foreign trade by exporting them. This, then, was reflected
in lower inventory build-up. At the same time, weak domestic
demand also contributed to weak inventory build-up due to
entrepreneurs’ low expectations. The development of gross value
added benefited in particular from that of manufacturing and

of information and communication activities in 2023. The trade,
transport, accommodation, and food services group of activities
had a negative impact.”

Inflation and monetary policy

Inflation slowed rapidly during the year. Although it was still
averaging 16.4% in the first quarter, price increases had fallen to
just 7.6% by the final quarter. In particular, core inflation slowed
considerably, declining from an average of nearly 12% in the
first quarter to 3.9% in the fourth quarter. This development was
due not only to a higher comparison base but also to strongly
subdued domestic demand. Month-on-month annualised core
inflation was thus already close to the central bank’s 2% target.
Headline inflation in 2023 mainly reflected price increases in

the housing, food, and non-alcoholic beverages segments.

By contrast, price developments in the transport segment
contributed most to decline in the general price level.?

The central bank kept rates unchanged for almost all of 2023
due to concerns about persistent inflationary pressures. The first
25 bps cut was implemented only in December. The base repo
rate thus fell to 6.75% after being stuck at 7% for a year and a

" https://www.czso.cz/csu/czso/ari/gdp-resources-and-uses-4th-quarter-of-2023
2 https://www.czso.cz/csu/czso/ari/consumer-price-indices-inflation-december-2023
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half. The rate-cut decision was unanimous, with all seven board
members voting in favour of the 25 bps move.?

Real economy

Average nominal wages rose by 6.3% year on year in 2023’s
fourth quarter after recording 7.1% growth in the third quarter.
Tensions in the labour market, combined with the still sound
financial situation among firms, contributed to the continued rise
in nominal wages within the business sector. In the non-business
sphere, the year-on-year dynamics continued to be influenced
by, among other things, the increase in salaries of security forces
(e.g. police and fire protection) employees from the beginning of
2023. Real wages were down by 1.2% from the fourth quarter

of 2022 (after 0.8% in third quarter). Overall, however, average
real wages in 2023 were broadly in line with those from the end
of 2017. The recovery in real wages was therefore very modest,
reaching —-2.9% in 2023, reflecting the continued marked slowing
in household consumption.?

Retail sales for the whole of last year showed a decline of 4.1%
in real terms. Food sales fell by 5.3%, while non-food sales were
down by 5.2%. In contrast, consumers spent 4.9% more on fuel.
Sales and repair of motor vehicles were up by 4.2%, with sales
of motor vehicles (including spare parts) climbing by 4.7% and
motor vehicle repair by 2.3%.%

Industrial production was 0.4% lower year over year in 2023,
with decline in the other non-metallic mineral products and basic
metals, metallurgy, and foundry sectors contributing significantly
to this result. Compared to 2022, electricity generation also
decreased. The overall decline was not offset by recovery in the
production of motor vehicles and other transport equipment. The
value of new industrial orders also fell year on year, by 1.7%.9

The unemployment rate remained at low levels during 2023.
According to the general unemployment rate (ILO), the
unemployment rate stayed below 3%, while the proportion of
unemployed continued under 4% (as reported by the Ministry
of Labour and Social Affairs). The number of job vacancies
decreased modestly, with one job open for every unemployed
person. Compared to other EU countries, the Czech Republic
continued to have the lowest unemployment rates of all.”

3 https://www.cnb.cz/en/monetary-policy/bank-board-decisions/CNB-Board-
decisions-1703174400000/?tab=statement

4 https://www.czso.cz/csu/czso/ari/average-wages-4-quarter-of-2023
9 https://www.czso.cz/csu/czso/ari/retail-trade-december-2023

9 https://www.czso.cz/csu/czso/ari/industry-december-2023

" https://www.mpsv.cz/mesicni (only in Czech)
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Crown exchange rate development

In an environment of narrowing interest rate differentials,
emerging market currencies did not fare well last year. The
crown’s exchange rate peaked in April at CZK 23.3 to the
euro. The Czech currency has been weakening since that time
and closed the year at CZK 24.7 to the euro. In global foreign
exchange markets, on the other hand, the US dollar continued
to strengthen its position, reflecting the surprising resilience
of the US economy. In addition to global influences, the CNB’s
announcement at its August meeting that it was ending the
intervention regime that had been supporting the domestic
currency contributed to the weakening of the crown. Weaker data
from the Czech economy in general and, in our estimation, the
crown’s persistent overvaluation relative to fundamentals also
impacted adversely on the currency.”

Fiscal and tax policy

The state budget closed 2023 with a deficit of CZK 288.5 billion.
This deficit was CZK 71.9 billion smaller year on year and

CZK 6.5 billion better than the approved target of CZK 295 billion.
Spending in 2023 increased by CZK 217.8 billion (+11%) year on
year, mainly driven by a rise in the most important social benefits
category (by CZK 100.1 billion), especially reflecting an increase
in pensions (by CZK 97.1 billion). The pension insurance system
itself reached a record deficit of CZK 73 billion (after ending 2022
CZK 21 billion in deficit). Compensation to households and firms
for high energy prices, greater investments, more expensive
servicing of the national debt, increased outlays for salaries of
primary and secondary school employees, as well as higher
payments for state insurers also contributed to the year-on-year
increase in spending. Total revenues since the beginning of the
year were CZK 289.7 billion higher year on year and by 17.8% in
relative terms. The main contributors to the increase in revenues
were extraordinary taxes in the form of windfall tax and the

levy on excess revenues of electricity producers, EU funds (the
National Recovery Plan), social and health insurance premiums,
corporate tax, and the dividend from CEZ. On the other hand,
collection of the second most important revenue item by weight,
VAT, with its full-year increase of only 5.8%, reflected the decline
in household consumption due to the fall in real wages and the
persistently high savings rate. The 33.1% year-on-year gain in
corporate tax collections (excluding the windfall tax), which
exceeded the full-year target by a significant 28.3%, confirmed
the solid profitability of firms.?

Banking market development

Total bank lending across the market as a whole (apart from

repo operations) grew by a 6.9%% annual rate through the end

of 2023. Loans to individuals in December increased by 5.0%
year on year. Consumer loans expanded by 7.9% annually, while
housing lending resumed its upward trajectory and in December
we saw 4.2% growth year over year, as falling real estate prices
renewed client interest in new mortgage loans to a certain extent.
The volume of lending to corporations and other businesses
expanded by 8.9%.

" https://www.cnb.cz/en/financial-markets/foreign-exchange-market/central-bank-
exchange-rate-fixing/central-bank-exchange-rate-fixing/

2 https://www.mfcr.cz/cs/ministerstvo/media/tiskove-zpravy/2024/pokladni-pIneni-
sr-54299 (only in Czech)

9 Source of data on banking market developments: ARAD statistics of the CNB,
https://www.cnb.cz/arad/#/en/home

In December the total of deposits in Czech banks was higher

by 14.4%% from the year earlier. Deposits from households had
increased by 6.9%, whilst market deposits from businesses had
risen year on year by 23.8%. In comparison to December of the
year earlier, the volumes in savings accounts had climbed by 21.6%
and those in term deposits by 55.1%. Meanwhile, current account
volumes were down by —3.4%.

4 Source of data on banking market developments: ARAD statistics of the CNB,
https://www.cnb.cz/arad/#/en/home
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Financial markets developments

Global stock market performance

Recently, there seems to have been a regular alternation in stock
markets performance between positive and negative years. Last
year, 2023, equity indices closed near record highs.

Among those elements most strongly impacting stock markets
and beyond were a robustness of the global economy, which did
not fall into the predicted recession; a modest impact from high
interest rates on demand for financing because many companies
had sufficient funds or preferred just to let their savings earn the
higher interest rates; better corporate results, especially in the
USA; and a wave of smaller bank failures in the USA causing
negative sentiment to spill over into Europe’s banking sector.
Then, too, excitement over artificial intelligence influenced the
markets positively. In Europe, meanwhile, the negative effects of
high energy prices reverberated across the continent.

European equities, as measured by the STOXX Europe 600 index,
closed out 2023 stronger by +12.7% year on year (at 479.0 points,
15.4% in CZK terms), just below the index’s all-time high of 494.4
points from January 2022.

Arguably the world’s most followed stock index, the S&P 500,
rose by +24.2% last year (to 4,769.8 points, by 22.9% in CZK
terms). Again, this is just below its all-time high of January 2022
(4,796.6 points). Similarly, the Dow Jones Industrial Average
finished 2023 stronger by 13.7% (at 37,689.5 points, +12.5% in
CZK terms), marking another record high. The technology-heavy
NASDAQ index added 43.4% in 2023 (reaching 15,011.4 points,
+41.9% in CZK terms).

The MSCI ACWI Global Index, which includes equities from 47
developed and emerging markets, rose by 20.1% in USD terms
(to 727.0 points, +18.8% in CZK terms) in 2023.

The stock index of European banks (the STOXX Europe 600
Banks) gained 20.3% (by 169.0 points, +23.4% in CZK terms).
Despite the sluggish economy, European bank shares were
supported by resilient asset quality, higher interest rates in the
euro zone, and solid capital generation. The STOXX Eastern
European Bank 300 index rose by 50.7% (by 53.7 points,
54.5% in CZK terms), erasing the losses recorded in 2022 when
international investors’ risk aversion in relation to European
emerging markets had brought the index down.

Prague stock exchanges development

The main index of the Prague Stock Exchange, the PX, rose by
+17.7% (to 1,414.0 points) last year. Total performance, inclusive
of dividends, was as high as +28.3% during the year. The index
closed only a few points below the year’s high of 1,421.4 points
touched on 1 March 2023. It thus made up for 2022’s decline

of —=15.7%, which had been due in part to Russia’s launch of
aggression towards Ukraine and the resulting sharp rise in energy
prices and inflation. The Prague Stock Exchange fell in only four
months last year, rising in all other months.

With two exceptions, all major stocks traded on the Prague Stock
Exchange saw their share prices rise. The best performing stock
of the year was Erste Group. With a strong finish to the year, it
outperformed the previous leader, CEZ, and for the year as a
whole Erste rose by +25.8%. CEZ had rocketed in the first four

| Strategy and results

months of the year, boosted by visions of restructuring. This, of
course, had a positive effect on the entire PX index. CEZ gained
+24.5% for the year. Moneta was also up by more than one-
fifth, adding +23.2%, thanks in part to very good results and
several increases in its full-year guidance. Just below the 20%
level was the insurer VIG, which gained +19.7%. Kofola posted
decent growth of +13.1% on strong results. It has been acquiring
breweries and other traditional drinks brands and, like Moneta, it
is likely to beat full-year guidance. Komeréni banka shares gained
10.6% last year. At the very end of the year 2023, Gevorkyan
moved from the Prague Stock Exchange’s Start Market to the
Prime Market. For the whole year, it provided investors +16.5%
appreciation (+12.8% in December alone).

In 2023, only Philip Morris CR (-6.6%) and Colt CZ (-3.8%)
declined slightly.

The economy was a high interest rate environment during

2023. This may have caused investors to choose assets safer
than stocks but still promising strong appreciation in such an
environment. Moreover, financing for active stock trading is
expensive in a high interest rate environment. These may be
reasons why total trading volume on the Prague Stock Exchange
fell by 25.7% year on year to CZK 123.5 billion. Liquidity
decreased for all major securities. Trading in bank stocks fell by
more than 30% (KB -32.7%, Erste —46.6%, Moneta —30.4%).
Trading volume in insurance company VIG was also down
(-33.4%), as was that in shares of Colt (-24.1%) Philip Morris CR
(-15.8%), and Kofola (-13.7%). The smallest decline in traded
volume was for CEZ shares, which saw a decline of “only” -7.5%.

None of the companies trading on the PSE were delisted in 2023.

Performance of KB share

KB share price development

The KB shares closed out trading in 2023 at a price of CZK 724.5,
up by 10.6% from the previous year’s ending price. As of

31 December 2023, Komeréni banka’s market capitalisation
stood at CZK 136.8 billion (EUR 5.5 billion), ranking KB third

by capitalisation among those titles listed on the PSE’s Prime
Market.

KB’s share price had opened 2023 at CZK 657.5 and was

initially supported by growth momentum continuing from late
2022. The stock reached its first peak of 2023 on 8 March,
whereupon uncertainty in the US banking sector cause by several
bankruptcies spilled over into Europe and European banking
shares also lost value. When the financial markets realised that
the problem was limited to just some US banks, KB’s share price
quickly corrected back upward and then reached its 2023 high

of CZK 762.5 on April 24. With the ex-dividend date (end of April),
the share price moved back to its early-2023 levels (the 2023 low
was reached on May 19 at CZK 652.5), where it remained through
the autumn despite the general strengthening in the summer
months. KB’s share price began to strengthen again in early
November and continued to do so during December, closing the
year at CZK 724.5 overall. This was 10.6% higher year on year
from the end of 2022.

Profile of KB

0
o
3
0
2
)
i=
[
>
)
2
©
o
S
(7]

Corporate governance

Corporate social responsibility

Risk management



Return for shareholders

Komeréni banka’s dividend policy aims to ensure appropriate
remuneration of shareholders for their investments while also
maintaining solid and safe capital adequacy and with a view to
potential growth opportunities and currently applicable as well
as anticipated regulatory requirements. This general principle

of KB’s dividend policy could not be followed fully during
2020-2021, however, due to restrictions on dividend payments
and share buybacks that the regulator imposed as one of its
measures responding to the uncertainty and crisis caused by the
Covid-19 pandemic. Since these restrictions were generally lifted
in 2022, KB has been able to return to its long-term strategic
policy of paying out 60-70% of profit as dividends. The dividend
is paid once a year after the regular shareholders meeting in

spring.

Hence, the Annual General Meeting in April 2023 approved
distribution of a dividend from 2022 net profit of CZK 11.5 billion,
which was CZK 60.42 per share before taxation. This distribution
brought the dividend payout ratio to 65%.

The corresponding total gross dividend yield based on 2022’s
closing share price was therefore 9.2%. The total return

from holding KB shares in 2023 was thus 19.3%, assuming
reinvestment of the net dividend on the payment day.

Komeréni banka, a.s.

| Annual Financial Report 2023



‘ Business model and performance

Business model and client service
organisation

Business model

Komeréni banka is the parent company and main component of
KB Group. Its subsidiaries contribute with their know-how and
capacities in specific areas of the financial markets. The Group
enhances its offer for the clients in co-operation with external
services providers, either in commercial partnerships or by
acquiring ownership participations.

Komeréni banka Group is active on the financial market in
Czechia. Through its branch as well as via activities of some
subsidiaries, it also is present in Slovakia.

KB is a universal bank with a multi-channel distribution model. Its
business model is founded upon building long-term relationships
with customers and offering relevant solutions for situations
occurring during clients’ lives. The business strategy focuses on
reinforcing or achieving market-leading customer satisfaction
status in the target client segments. KB differentiates itself in the
market by best-in-class advisory, a relevant and comprehensive
product offer leveraging the global scale of the Komer¢ni banka
and Société Générale groups, and a highly effective model of
servicing clients.

The services provided by subsidiaries include housing loans and
building savings (Modra pyramida), pension savings (Penzijni
spole¢nost KB), consumer financing (ESSOX), life and property
insurance (Komeréni pojistovna), financing of equipment and
technologies (SGEF), and factoring (Factoring KB). Another
Komeréni banka subsidiary, KB Smart Solutions, administers
the Group’s participations in several companies mainly from the
fintech sector, such as upvest, Roger, Finbricks, ENVIROS, and
MonkeyData.

KB is organised into arms, tribes, and separate independent
departments. The managers of these units report directly to
the Chairman or another member of the Board of Directors.

In the cases of tribes, either they report to a member of top
management or these units may be directly managed by a
member of the Board of Directors. Allocation of responsibilities
among the individual members of the Board of Directors is
stipulated by a decision of the Board.

Those units focused on ensuring the operations of the Bank form
its operational (Run) perimeter. Units established for the purpose
of developing the Bank, its products and services constitute a
change (Agile) perimeter.

Tribes are cross-functional teams working in accordance with

the agile@KB methodology. They are dedicated to development
of new client or internal solutions. The tribes are structured in
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such a way that they cover holistic, end-to-end views of specific
customer journeys or segment needs rather than focusing

on specific features of individual products. Following initial
implementation of the agile@KB method, people responsible

for business implementation and IT development work together
within the tribes. In the next phase, KB is developing the
BizDevOps concept, wherein employees in charge of operations
for specific IT applications are also included into the tribes
alongside their selling and IT development colleagues.

Principles of business activities and dealing with clients
Business activities of KB Group companies shall be carried

out in a transparent, fair, and disciplined manner in compliance
with best market practice and be performed within the global
framework of Société Générale Group operating rules.

KB shall not participate in transactions which might lead to
the breach of any legal regulation or international agreements.
KB does not, however, rule out any transaction a priori for
geographical or sector reasons if the related risks are duly
assessed and managed.

Clients come first. Client relations management is conducted in
accordance with the know-your-customer principle and takes
into account all aspects of a relationship so that the client’s
needs will be met under optimal service and cost conditions
and at an appropriate professional level in order to promote the
client’s loyalty and trust in the Bank while respecting the client’s
legitimate interests.

The level of a client’s knowledge and experience with the
products and risks associated with a provided product is taken
into account in providing advice.

Client and operating segmentation

KB Group is developing a system for detailed segmentation of
customer relationships. The clients of the Bank are served by the
following arms:

e Retail Banking (the arm serves individual clients inclusive of
high-net-worth individuals [in Private Banking], entrepreneurs,
and small businesses with the indicative criterion being annual
revenues up to CZK 60 million);

e Corporate and Municipal Banking (for clients with annual
revenues approximately between CZK 60 million and
CZK 1.5 billion and further clients according to the volume
of their business with KB, as well as public institutions and
municipalities of more than 4,000 inhabitants);

e Global Banking (covering clients with an annual turnover
greater than CZK 1.5 billion and other clients according to the
volume of their business with KB, as well as selected financial
institutions).
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A set of additional thresholds and sub-segments within these
segments is elaborated. The Corporate and Municipal Banking
and Global Banking arms are part of Corporate and Investment
Banking.

Retail Banking is an operating segment of Komeréni banka
Group that includes the provision of such products and services
to individuals, small businesses, and entrepreneurs as current
and savings accounts, term deposits, building savings, pension
insurance, overdrafts, credit card loans, personal loans and
mortgages, as well as private banking services.

Besides the services to individual and small business clients

of Komeréni banka, the Retail Banking operating segment
comprises Modra pyramida, Penzijni spole¢nost KB, ESSOX,
and Komeréni pojistovna, as well as some activities of SGEF and
Factoring KB.

Retail banking services are provided through direct banking
channels, including contact centres; within a network of
branches, including the remote branch; via distribution networks
of other members of KB Group; or through partnerships with
third-party independent sales agents.

Corporate and Investment Banking is an organisational part of
Komeréni banka that includes provision to corporate customers
(with turnover exceeding CZK 60 million), various types of public
institutions, the non-profit sector, and public institutions of

such products and services as current and savings accounts,
term deposits, operating or investment loans, other types of
loans, specialised foreign trade or investment banking services,
cash circulation services, as well as other specialised services
provided by KB itself or in co-operation with other partners or
Société Générale.

The Corporate Banking segment in KB Group includes most
activities of SGEF and Factoring KB.

Corporate banking services are provided by teams of relationship
managers and specialised experts in Corporate Centres, via
distribution networks of other members of KB Group, or through
direct banking channels.

Distribution and client service model

KB is developing a multi-channel distribution model. Subsidiaries
sell their services through the distribution network of Komeréni
banka, and some also have their own networks. Digital banking
is an integral part of the multi-channel distribution model, and
the Bank aims to reinforce its leadership position on the Czech
market in digital banking.

KB perceives its competitive advantage on the banking market
as consisting in the value of partnerships with clients; the

ability of its banking advisors to provide high-quality advisory;

a wide range of relevant and advantageous financial products;
proximity to clients via the branch network and advanced, secure
direct banking; and its ability to provide services efficiently in
accordance with clients’ needs and preferences.

The service model in KB’s retail banking is focused on assisting
clients by providing them with professional advisory, preferably at
appointments agreed with the client in advance. In creating their
recommendations to clients, the relationship managers refer to an

analysis of each client’s needs based upon the Bank’s data about
that client. This enables the relationship managers to propose a
solution most convenient for each client’s circumstances. Rapid
service spots have been created in branches for addressing basic
service requests, and the relationship managers assist clients so
that they are able to execute simple transactions and administer
their services by themselves in their mobile banking application
or internet banking.

The network of branches remains a pillar of KB’s omnichannel
strategy. Therefore, the Bank is progressively reconstructing its
branches in a new design concept that is convenient for advisory
and efficient servicing of clients’ various financial needs. Experts
in the areas of investments, financing, and debt resolution are
available remotely to assist the relationship managers.

In KB Premium Centres, senior bankers provide individualised
services to discerning clients based on KB's Top Offer." It
includes a premium current account with prestigious payment
cards, exclusive investment opportunities, and more favourable
interest rates.

Private Banking? consists in a specific service model within Retail
Banking. Komer&ni banka offers comprehensive Private Banking
services to clients with financial assets exceeding CZK 30 million
at its branches in Prague, Brno, and Ostrava. Clients with

assets up to CZK 30 million have access to selected Private
Banking products in co-operation with KB Premium service. The
services provided include mainly portfolio management under
mandates, a wide range of investment instruments, complete
banking services, real estate and lombard loans to finance the
private projects as well as needs of clients, investments in funds
for qualified investors (real estate funds and private equity),
investments in corporate bonds, assistance in selling companies,
trust fund services, and other instruments for intergenerational
planning.

KB Poradenstvi is a new channel for servicing individual clients
built upon the agent distribution network of Modra pyramida. KB
Group clients have thus gained access to more contact points
and to mobile bankers capable of providing banking services in
the New KB Era.

KB Business Centres are key elements in servicing small
business clients. Their expertise and specialisation enable the
Business Centres to provide quality advisory and individual
solutions meeting clients’ needs.

Servicing of corporate clients is specific, as it is based principally
on in-person dealings with relationship managers and seeking
individual solutions for client needs. The service model in
corporate banking reflects clients’ potential as well as their actual
needs for financial services in order to create optimum value

for the clients while allocating KB’s resources effectively. The
relationships with economically interconnected clients are usually
managed by the Bank at the level of the whole group.

" https://www.kb.cz/en/kb-premium/top-offer-account

2 https://www.kb.cz/en/private-banking
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In addition to the full range of banking products and services, the
Bank provides large corporate clients also with highly specialised
services, especially in the areas of investment banking, as well as
export, structured, and syndicated financing. At the same time, it
brings solutions for transactions unique on the banking market,
including the primary issue of bonds, M&A consulting, and real
estate services. The offer is complemented by the services of
subsidiaries and associated companies providing leasing or
factoring services.

Membership in a truly global banking group is a significant
competitive advantage for KB in this segment, especially in
the areas of foreign trade financing, cross-border payments,
international cash pooling structures, and investment banking,
as the Bank is able to provide corporate clients access to the
services of all major global financial centres through SG.

Komeréni banka'’s sole foreign branch is in Slovakia. It operates
on the basis of a single banking licence issued by the CNB.

The branch is a trusted financial partner for top corporations in
Slovakia, as well as for those corporate clients of the KB and SG
groups operating there.

KB’s own distribution network is further complemented by the
subsidiaries’ distribution capacities (especially those of Modra
pyramida) and, in the cases of selected products, also by
business partners’ networks. Services and products of other
KB Group companies are available within their own distribution
networks, in the KB branch network and digital channels, and
potentially through the business partners.

| Strategy and results

Client satisfaction, consumer protection

Satisfaction of clients is a priority for all of KB Group’s member
companies. Clients’ loyalty and trust are crucial prerequisites for
long-term success and resilience of the Group. Feedback from
customers enables the Group to develop and offer relevant and
competitive products and services.

Development, helpfulness, and responsibility are the three
values characterising the KB brand. Komeréni banka aims to
be perceived on the market as a bank which, by its helpfulness,
responsibility, and commitment to sustainability and progress,
contributes meaningfully to the personal and entrepreneurial
development of its clients.

Protecting clients and especially consumers

KB Group companies rigorously abide by all rules established
for protection of clients, including the regulations for consumer
protection and prohibition of certain clauses in consumer
contracts.

The procedures applied by KB Group companies to uphold
applicable regulatory and internal rules are described mainly in
the Risk management / Compliance risk chapter of this annual
financial report.

The client comes first for the Group. In managing client
relationships, the know-your-customer principle is applied and
all aspects of the relationship are taken into account in order
to satisfy clients’ needs according to the optimal service and
cost conditions and at a professional level. That way, clients’
loyalty and trust in the Bank and Group are promoted and their
legitimate interests respected.

When advising clients, the Group considers each client’s
knowledge and experience with the respective products, as well
as with the associated risks.

The Group provides its financial services with professional care
and refrains from engaging in unfair business practices.

In providing its services, the Group does not discriminate

against consumers. Generally in this context, discrimination

is understood to mean intentional or negligent differentiation,
exclusion, limitation, or favouring of a client based on a
discriminatory cause, unless it is objectively justified as pursuit of
a legitimate goal and using reasonable and necessary means.

KB Group companies inform consumers about prices of the
services provided or they appropriately disclose the information
about the prices of services.

When negotiating remotely about contracts on provision of
financial services, the Group follows applicable regulations,
including the Civil Code. In particular, it provides the consumer
with the stipulated set of information in due time ahead of closing
the contract or before the consumer submits a binding bid. It also
respects the right of the consumer to withdraw from the contract.

The Group companies abide by additional rules under special

laws when providing specific financial services, such as the acts
on payment systems, on consumer loans, on capital market
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undertakings, insurance, the circulation of bank notes and coins,
and on pension savings.

Komeréni banka, of course, develops measures protecting the
clients that go far beyond the regulatory requirements.

Ascertaining clients’ satisfaction

All staff members at KB Group strive to enhance satisfaction

of clients. Client satisfaction is investigated, measured, and
evaluated at KB by the Customer Experience team, connected
via ambassadors throughout the head office, contact centre, and
distribution networks.

Trends in the numbers of clients and sales volumes for individual
products and services are a natural source of information about
development in client satisfaction.

In order to learn in depth about clients’ expectations and
preferences, however, KB Group companies survey their clients
on a regular basis, test user experience when developing new
products in all client segments, monitor the individual phases of
customer journeys, and adjust their offers accordingly.

The Group also measures clients’ satisfaction following
introduction of new products to the market. If a customer is not
fully happy, a client support specialist will call the client back
and explain the new product once again, perhaps adjust the
products, or even suggest different, more advantageous ones.
The feedback thus obtained is then shared with development
teams so that they can fine-tune every detail. After purchase

of a product, KB asks the clients whether they obtained what
they should have and in due time, whether they understand the
products, or if they will need assistance with a setup.

KB Group’s most widely used method for measuring clients’
loyalty is the Net Promoter Score (NPS). The NPS methodology
compares the number of respondents who would recommend

a specific service or a provider to their friends or family (termed
“promoters”) with the number of those who would not do so
(so-called “detractors”).” NPS thus achieves positive values if
the number of promoters exceeds the number of detractors. The
measurement provides a consistent time series describing the
development in clients’ perceptions towards a certain service,
product, distribution channel or method of communication,
brand, or company. Moreover, the surveys provide an immense
volume of very valuable comments about what clients appreciate
and what they would prefer be done differently.

In retail banking, standalone KB acquired in this manner more
than 150,000 feedback responses during 2023. The results
confirmed a generally improving trend of satisfaction in retail as
well as corporate segments.

" https://www.bain.com/consulting-services/customer-strategy-and-marketing/
customer-loyalty/

Customer care specialists of KB Group companies strive

to find solutions to the clients’ queries, explain reasons for
particular situations, and propose measures to improve the client
experience.

Development of advisory and products related to ESG and
energy savings is one of the areas of improvement implemented
in 2023 in accordance with feedback received from (business)
clients.

Based on feedback from clients, SGEF has amended its claims
resolution process, including to reflect the results within the
company.

The results of measurement in 2023 confirmed how important for
clients is the security and stability of their bank. Komeréni banka
ranks among the strongest banks in this regard. Once again, the
Group’s relationship managers were receiving high marks from
the retail as well as corporate clients.

Many clients have been with the Group for a long time. They
appreciate how their needs are recognised, an active offer of
relevant solutions, and useful information. Many business clients
report even stronger ties with the Bank and Group, as proper
recommendations and market expertise had contributed to the
development and growth of their enterprises.

KB very attentively monitored development following introduction
of the new client proposition and KB+ internet and mobile
banking applications in the New Era. Satisfaction is measured
shortly after a client downloads the app and then again after 1
and 6 months. Clients mainly appreciated services controlled fully
online, simple design of the apps, savings on envelopes, and the
KB Key authorisation tool integrated into mobile banking. Clients
who switched from the old systems also appreciated support
from the contact centre and relationship managers, if needed.
Their level of satisfaction then grew with the longer time they
were using the new apps.

Clients’ perceptions are influenced by the features of the services
being evaluated but also by developments in the surrounding
environment. In 2022, clients were responding in the context

of the Russian agression towards Ukraine and high inflation.
Russian agression towards Ukraine and later also conflict in the
Middle East were among the main factors affecting consumer
confidence in 2023, together with still-high inflation and a
decline in real wages. The clients were also expressing concerns
regarding the affordability of housing in the big cities, changes
related to the government’s budget consolidation package,
including adjustments to the building savings and pension
savings systems. Clients’ expectations also were influenced by
high market interest rates.

Corporate clients, moreover, felt stagnation of the economy
and subdued consumer demand. Smaller businesses reported
inability to pass on higher input costs through the prices of their
own production. Although larger companies were better able

to preserve their margins, they often needed to look for new
markets to replace those lost due to geopolitical tensions. Their
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business confidence was also influenced by gradual restoration
of supply chains and doubts about the outlook for the automotive
industry.

Results of client satisfaction measurement in 2023

Clients NPS 2023

Individuals 40
Small businesses 30
Medium companies 48
Municipalities 73
Large firms 38
International companies 86
KB Slovakia 84
Modra pyramida 27
ESSOX 48
Komeréni pojistovna 40
SGEF 83

| Strategy and results

Complaints management, ombudsman

Komeréni banka has established a complaints resolution
mechanism that is in accordance with regulatory requirements
and industry standards. Complaints resolution is conducted
pursuant to the Claim Settlement Rules of KB, which are available
to clients both in branches and online via KB’s web page.”

There are three levels of complaints resolution in KB: at the
branch, by the customer experience team, and via the Group
Ombudsman.

An independent ombudsman resolves claims of KB Group’s
clients in Czechia and Slovakia. The ombudsman’s activities are
governed and defined by the Ombudsman’s Charter. A client

can contact the ombudsman in case of dissatisfaction with the
resolution of a complaints or claim in the second instance (in the
case of KB clients, this is in the Quality and Customer Experience
Department). Although the ombudsman’s decision is not legally
binding on either party, within the conciliation procedure, the
companies of Komeréni banka Group undertake to respect it.

Since 5 January 2022, the post of KB Group’s ombudsperson
has been held by Prof. JUDr. Marie Karfikova, CSc. She is an
expert in financial, tax, and insurance law, a long-time attorney,
and a lecturer and head of the Department of Financial Law and
Financial Science at the Faculty of Law of the Charles University
in Prague.

Internal policy sets forth the obligation of the complaints
resolution administrator to inform compliance, operational risk, or
data protection officers in case of a complaint that is related to
their respective areas. An annual report on complaints resolution
is provided to the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board.

All client complaints are regularly reported as part of the Group
reporting system, as well as to the Compliance Committee. The
Compliance Department evaluates at least once in three years
whether the complaints resolution process is in accordance with
the internal as well as regulatory rules.

" https://www.kb.cz/en/fag-and-support/relationships-with-customers/complaints-
and-claims
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Business performance

Development of client numbers

Number of clients 31 December 2023 31 December 2022

KB Group's clients 2,199,000 2,240,000
Komeréni banka 1,664,000 1,652,000
- individual clients 1,422,000 1,408,000
- clients of New Era of KB 121,000 n.a.
— internet banking clients 1,564,000 1,515,000
— mobile banking clients 1,283,000 1,145,000
Modra pyramida 429,000 461,000
KB Penzijni spolecnost 474,000 505,000
ESSOX (incl. PSA FINANCE) 117,000 132,000

Komeréni banka ranks among the three largest banks in the
Czech Republic as measured by the volume of loans provided,
total assets, and many other indicators."

KB newly acquired nearly 84,000 clients in the segment of
individual clients during 2023, less by 4% in comparison with
the previous year when the growth was boosted by new clients
who had come from Ukraine and also some former clients of
Sberbank CZ. That brought the total number of individual clients
to 1,422,000. The Bank also maintains a leading position in the
segment for children and young people, with more than 293,000
child and student accounts plus additional young people with
standard accounts.

KB onboarded more than 13,000 new small business clients in
2023, fewer by 9% year on year. The number of clients in this
segment decreased by 1% to 229,000.

In 2023, KB maintained its leading position in the segment

of medium-sized corporations, with approximately 43% of
enterprises in this segment using its services.? Komerc¢ni banka
remains one of the two largest banks in public sector financing,
where an increasing trend can be seen. KB now serves 54% of
clients in this sector.® The number of corporate and municipal
banking clients rose by 4% year on year to 11,400, which

was due also to growth among companies that previously

had been served within the network for small businesses and
entrepreneurs.

Komeréni banka maintains a strong position in servicing large
companies with turnover exceeding CZK 1.5 billion. The number
of clients in the large corporate segment again increased slightly
in 2023. KB’s clients include about 50% of large companies in
Czechia with turnover exceeding CZK 1.5 billion.?

A decrease in the number of clients of Modra pyramida and KB
Penzijni spole¢nosti was in accordance with market trends, as it
was influenced by clients’ switching to savings and investment
products that respond faster to higher in interest rates and by
changes in regulation of building and pension savings systems.

" Source: Statements of individual Czech banks.

2 Sources: The Business Register of the Czech Statistical Office, KB'’s client database.
9 Sources: The Business Register of the Czech Statistical Office, KB’s client database.
4 Sources: The Business Register of the Czech Statistical Office, KB’s client database.

Support for clients and access to financial services

Help to clients in financial distress

KB Group regularly offers assistance to its clients in difficulties,
and it is always helping to find appropriate solutions for those
clients who actively seek to resolve their situations.

The options for resolving issues with repayments are presented
in dedicated sections of the web presentations of individual KB
Group companies.? An online assistant is available 24/7 to direct
clients to the most appropriate methods. The Bank alerts clients
in arrears by text message and e-mail at no charge and well

in advance of sending a reminder of a pending penalty or fee.
Teams of debt resolution advisors are reachable by telephone
or e-mail, and they also join meetings between relationship
managers and clients either remotely or at the branches. Clients
may ask for postponement or reduction of instalments even via
KB’s web.®

Komeréni banka and Nadace Komeréni Banky (KB foundation)
are partners of Poradna pfi financni tisni, o.p.s.,” a not-for-profit
organisation providing effective advisory to people in financial
distress, at risk of or in insolvency, or under distraint order. It also
helps with filing debt relief applications. Furthermore, it aims to
influence consumers positively so that they have deeper financial
and legal knowledge regarding the taking on of debt, can borrow
in a prudent manner, and take a responsible and active approach
to resolving their potential insolvency.

Clients of failed Sberbank CZ

On behalf of the Deposit Insurance Fund of the Czech Republic,
Komeréni banka has been paying out compensation to clients
of Sberbank CZ, a bank that failed in 2022 following the Russian
invasion of Ukraine. As of 31 December 2023, KB had paid

out CZK 25.5 billion to 88,590 of the failed bank’s entitled
depositors. This amount represented 98% of the total volume

of compensations to be paid, according to the Financial Market
Guarantee System. KB will continue paying compensation to the
former clients of Sberbank CZ until 10 March 2025.

Support for entrepreneurs and businesses affected by
the war in Ukraine

Since April 2023, Komer&ni banka has been involved in
supporting entrepreneurs and small and medium-sized
enterprises whose business has been limited as a result of the
war in Ukraine. Under the EGAP Plus programme, exporters
with over 100 employees could obtain a guarantee from the
Export Guarantee and Insurance Corporation, Inc. Within this
programme, Komer¢ni banka supported seven exporters with
loans totalling almost CZK 500 million.

Support of businesses, municipalities, and projects with
positive social impact

Komeréni banka Group has long been involved in programmes
to support projects and enterprises making positive impacts on
society and the environment.

9 For KB, at www.kb.cz/splaceni, for Modra pyramida,
www.modrapyramida.cz/podpora/potize-se-splacenim, and for ESSOX,
www.essox.cz/odklad-splatek/odklad.

9 https://www.kb.cz/cs/obcane/pujcky/odlozeni-splatek
" https://www.financnitisen.cz/
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In 2023, Komer&ni banka entered into guarantee agreements with selected programmes by Ministry of the Environment and

with the European Investment Fund (EIF) relating to the European Ministry of Regional Development.

Union’s InvestEU programmes. Together with the EIF, Komeréni

banka provided soft loans to more than 1,600 entrepreneurs in KB’s Nastartujte se (Start up!) grant programme for recently

2023, totalling approximately CZK 1.4 billion. launched businesses has been around for 11 years already. KB o
and others of the programme’s partners have disbursed more 5

The Microfinance programme, which supports micro- than CZK 1 million in prizes to participants.” %

entrepreneurs with up to 10 employees, is the most widely used a

programme. It focuses on sustainable employment and social
inclusion by supporting entrepreneurship and income-generating
activities.

KB’s other new advantageous programmes for corporate clients
include:

e EuroGreen - a soft loan with an EIF guarantee for solar
energy projects, storage, and manufacturing of renewable
energy products, as well as for energy-saving commercial
building renovations. Also eligible are investments related to
the production of energy-saving products or the reduction of
climate vulnerability in agriculture;
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e EuroEdu - for the training of employees; and

e EuroSocial for social enterprises.

SGEF, too, was bringing to its clients benefits from the
programmes of European and national institutions:

e EIF — The European Investment Fund provided SGEF with a
guarantee for new lending in the amount of EUR 15 million
for small and medium enterprises in Czechia and Slovakia.
This co-operation within the Invest EU programme supports
EU investment priorities for 2021-2027. The new guarantee is
dedicated for innovations and digitalisation of SMEs with up to
500 employees. Around 130 businesses from both countries
are expected to benefit from the option. The agreement was
signed in July 2023.

e EIB - The European Investment Bank signed a loan contract
with SGEF in June 2023 for EUR 200 million on financing of
Czech and Slovak businesses with a discounted interest rate.
A majority of the funds is dedicated for SMEs and mid-cap
companies. At least one-fifth of the total amount will finance
projects related to sustainability.

¢ National Development Bank (Narodni rozvojova banka, or NRB)
— With support from NRB through its Expansion and Energy
savings programmes, SGEF grants advantageous loans to
small and medium-sized enterprises. That means a client may
finance a part of its project with an interest-free loan from NRB
and with a possibility for deferred instalments.

e Support and Guarantee Agricultural and Forestry Fund
(Podpurny a garanéni rolnicky a lesnicky fond, or PGRLF)

— SGEF provides to its clients concessionary/subsidised
financing of agricultural machinery. Moreover, clients have
been benefitting already for 12 years from the Agrocredit
Premium loan with subsidised interest.

e State Agricultural Intervention Fund (SZIF), Ministry of Industry
and Trade, Ministry of Environment, and Ministry of Regional
development - Clients can combine financing from SGEF
with SZIF’s Rural Development Programme and majority of
programmes by Ministry of Industry and Trade and further

Corporate social responsibility Corporate governance

Risk management
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Business network and payment tools

Distribution network 31 December 2023 31 December 2022

KB branches (C2) 212 218
Modra pyramida points of sale 199 198
SGEF branches 9 9
ESSOX group - points of sale” 1,924 1,987
ATMs 796 850
of which: deposit taking 510 521

contactless 688 645

" Number of partners with valid contracts.

Cards and wallets 31 December 2023 31 December 2022

KB Payment cards - active 1,715,000 1,667,000
- debit cards 1,499,000 1,473,000
- credit cards 215,000 194,000
ESSOX credit cards — active 33,000 51,000
Number of cards virtualised into

payment apps 671,000 497,000
KB Key — number of clients with

active authentication app 1,194,000 1,089,000

The importance of digital channels for sales of financial products
and services further increased.

In the segment of individual clients, the share of products sold
through digital channels reached 28% of total sales. Some 68%
of clients were actively using digital channels. Approximately 14%
of the new clients selected a fully digital way of onboarding to the
Bank. KB also opened 28% of current accounts and granted 42%
of consumer loans (by number) in a fully digital process. ESSOX
granted 60% of its consumer loans (by number) fully digitally.

In the business segment, 96% of clients were using actively
digital channels during 2023.

At the end of 2023, KB was operating 212 branches in the Czech
Republic and had 1 branch for servicing corporate clients in
Slovakia. The Bank continued to optimise its branch network
during 2023 with a view to shifting the handling of clients’ routine
banking transactions to online tools. During 2023, the Bank
moved 6 branches to new premises and closed 7 branches. At 95
branches, cash services are provided only through ATMs or by
accepting deposits in sealed envelopes.

The KB2025 plan also includes reconstruction of bank branches
in a new design that supports assisted customer service and
remote consulting. The Bank had remodelled 17 branches by the
end of 2023, including 10 during 2023.

In October 2023, an internal network of Komeréni banka Group
advisors was launched under the KB Poradenstvi brand. It was
established on the basis of the Modra pyramida distribution
network. KB Group clients thus gained more contact points and
new availability of mobile bankers capable of providing banking
services in the New KB Era. As of 31 December 2023, the KB
Poradenstvi network comprised 232 retail branches.

Since April, KB has introduced a new type of service for individual
clients: KB remote banking. Clients are comprehensively serviced
remotely, including through consultative video calls, by a team of
professional bankers. By the end of the year, 29,000 clients were
using this form of service.

Within the KB distribution network, there is a structure of service
points adapted to the specific needs of individual types of clients.

Demanding individual clients are taken care of by specialised
banking advisors at 20 KB Premium Centres. A specific model

of servicing individual clients within retail banking is KB Private
Banking for high net worth clients with financial assets of more
than CZK 30 million. Private Banking has branches in Prague,
Brno, Ostrava, Hradec Kralové, and Pilsen. For clients with assets
up to CZK 30 million, selected Private Banking products are
available in co-operation with KB Premium.

A key service element in the segment of entrepreneurs and small
businesses consists in Corporate Centres, which, thanks to the
concentration there of expertise and specialisation, bring quality
advice and individual solutions to meet clients’ needs.

Clients in the Corporate and Municipal Banking segment are
provided with integrated financial solutions by 17 sales teams
across the Czech Republic, including 1 team specialising in
public sector clients.

Large corporate clients and economically connected groups

in the Global Banking segment are served by 3 sales teams,
including 1 team dedicated to serving financial institutions and
international companies. Komeréni banka’s Corporate and
Investment Banking also includes a branch in Slovakia focused
on large corporates and international companies.

Since June 2022, KB customers have been able to use MONETA
Money Bank machines for their withdrawals under the same
conditions as for the Bank’s own ATMs. From February 2023,
UniCredit Bank and Air Bank also joined this co-operation.

This initiative has increased the availability of ATMs even in

less frequented locations and at the same time reduced the
environmental burden and costs associated with servicing and
operating the ATM networks of all participating banks. The joint
network comprised in total 1,947 ATMs as of 31 December 2023,
making it the largest in the Czech Republic. KB has also agreed
with the partner banks to share the deposit function of ATMs from
2024.
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Loans, deposits and client assets under management

Loans to customers

Loans to clients - gross loans

(CZK billion)" 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
KB Group 827.7 784.9
KB - total loan portfolio 708.4 672.4
— Loans to individuals 306.3 296.6

- Volume of KB’s mortgages 276.4 268.7

— Volume of KB’s consumer and

other loans 29.9 27.9

— Loans to small businesses 40.2 40.1
— Loans to medium corporates and

municipalities 126.4 125.9
— Loans to top corporates and

other loans? 235.4 209.8
Modra pyramida - total loan
portfolio 92.5 85.3
ESSOX - total loan portfolio
(including PSA FINANCE) 20.8 18.4
Factoring KB - total loan portfolio 10.0 10.1
SGEF - total loan portfolio 34.2 31.5
BASTION - total loan portfolio 1.9 2.0
Consolidation and other
adjustments (40.1) (34.8)

" Excluding ‘Other amounts due from customers’ and repo operations, but including
debt securities issued by KB corporate clients.
2 Including loans provided by KB Slovakia.

Total gross volume of lending to clients rose by 5.5% year on
year to CZK 827.7 billion".

In lending to individuals, the overall volume of housing loans

grew by 4.2% from the year earlier. Within this total, the portfolio
of mortgages to individuals expanded by 2.9% to CZK 276.4
billion. Modra pyramida’s loan portfolio developed even faster,

by 8.5% to CZK 92.5 billion. At CZK 36.3 billion, sales of housing
loans in 2023 were lower by (5.8%) in comparison with 2022.
Nevertheless, these sales had been recovering since March. The
volume of KB Group’s consumer lending (provided by the Bank
and ESSOX Group in the Czech Republic and Slovakia) was up by
6.9%, at CZK 37.2 billion.

The total volume of loans to businesses and other lending
provided by KB Group was greater by 6.4% year on year, at CZK
421.6 billion. Lending to small businesses expanded by 1.6%

to CZK 47.5 billion. The overall CZK volume of credit granted by
KB to medium-sized, large corporate, and other clients in the
Czech Republic and Slovakia climbed by 6.9% year on year to
CZK 339.9 billion. At CZK 34.2 billion, the total credit and leasing
amounts outstanding at SGEF were up by 8.7% year over year.

" Including debt securities issued by KB’s corporate clients. There were no reverse
repo operations with clients to report as of 31 December 2023 or 31 December
2022.
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Deposits and client assets under management

Amounts due to customers and as-
sets under management (CZK billion) 31 December 2023 31 December 2022

KB Group deposits” 1,006.2 916.8
KB deposits 954.9 862.6
— individuals 337.9 327.8
— small business 238.6 230.6
— MEM corporates 244.5 196.2
— top corporates and other

deposits? 134.0 108.0
Modra pyramida - building savings 52.3 56.0
ESSOX 0.1 0.1
Factoring KB 0.8 1.0
Consolidation and other
adjustments (2.0 (2.8)
Non-bank assets under
management 251.3 216.6
Assets under management in
mutual funds® 1314 98.3
Clients' assets managed by KB
Penzijni spole€nost 741 73.0
KP life insurance technical
reserves? 45.7 45.3

" Excluding repo operations with clients.

2 Including deposits in KB Slovakia.

3 Assets of KB Group clients managed by third party asset managers.
4 Komercni pojistovna is consolidated by the equity method.

The volume of standard client deposits within KB Group
increased by 9.7% year on year to CZK 1,006.2 billion.? Year-
on-year growth was faster in deposits from corporate clients.
During 2023, clients were often investing their savings in mutual
funds and they also were switching their deposits from current
accounts to term and savings accounts.

Deposits at Komeréni banka from individual clients improved by
3.1% from the year earlier to CZK 337.9 billion. The deposit book
at Modra pyramida diminished by (6.5%) to CZK 52.3 billion.

Total deposits from businesses and other corporations were up
by 15.6% to CZK 608.4 billion.

The volumes in mutual funds held by KB Group clients grew by
33.7% to CZK 131.4 billion. Client assets managed by KB Penzijni
spolec¢nost were 1.5% greater, at CZK 74.1 billion. Technical
reserves in life insurance at Komeréni pojiStovna were up by 1.0%
year on year, at CZK 45.7 billion.

The Group’s liquidity as measured by the ratio of net loans to
deposits (excluding repo operations with clients but including
debt securities held by KB and issued by the Bank’s clients)
stood at 82.8%. The Group’s liquidity coverage ratio ended the
year at 149%, well above the regulatory limit of 100%.

2 Excluding volatile repo operations with clients. The total volume of ‘Amounts due to
customers’ increased by 18.6% year on year to CZK 1,127.2 billion.

Profile of KB
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Investment banking

In 2023, KB Investment Banking achieved very strong financial
results, increased the number of active clients, and expanded the
range of client products.

Trading achieved a very solid result despite fewer opportunities
due to CNB’s limited activity in the market and market conditions
that were less favourable for clients in the area of FX hedging.

Sales delivered its best result ever. In particular, interest rate
hedging results and strong client activity in the money market
exceeded expectations.

In the small and medium-sized enterprises segment, performance
was driven again by clients’ sizeable use of digital trading
platforms for foreign exchange transactions and term deposits in
combination with the Bank’s focus on products with higher added
value. The number of clients using the KB eTrading” platform
continued to grow also in 2023, but, due to more uncertainty in
the economy, the per-client traded volumes were slightly below
the extraordinary levels of 2022.

Activity in the large corporate clients segment reflected the more
difficult economic environment in a lower number of capital
market transactions during 2023 and less activity in currency
hedging operations. On the other hand, the numbers of money
market deals improved markedly. KB Investment Banking traded
its first sustainability-related derivative in 2023.

Results in the financial institutions segment were supported by
strong activity in money markets and interest rate activity, as well
as in the market for bonds and repo operations.

" https://www.kb.cz/en/other/our-applications/applications/kb-etrading

Payment operations

Komeréni banka (Bank only) 2023

Year-on-year

2022 change
Number of payment cards in
circulation 1,715,000 1,667,000 2.9%
— debit cards 1,499,000 1,473,000 1.8%
- credit cards 215,000 194,000 10.8%
Volume of payments using KB
cards (CZKm) 218,000 199,000 9.5%
Number of payments using KB
cards 322,614,000 282,704,000 14.1%
Volume of cash withdrawals
(CZKm) 205,000 215,000 (4.7%)
—-via ATM 144,000 144,000 0.0%
—via non-ATM 61,000 71,000 (14.1%)
Volume of cash deposits
(CZKm) 223,000 233,000 (4.3%)
—-via ATM 109,000 106,000 2.8%
—via non-ATM 114,000 127,000 (10.2%)
Number of cash withdrawals 20,941,000 21,276,000 (1.6%)
—-via ATM 20,469,000 20,720,000 (1.2%)
—via non-ATM 472,000 556,000 (15.1%)
Number of cash deposits 4,951,000 4,809,000 3.0%
—-via ATM 3,902,000 3,601,000 8.4%
- via non-ATM 1,049,000 1,208,000 (13.2%)

Cash payment operations

The Bank continued to automate and modernise cash payments,
not only in the area of ATMs but also as part of launching a new
digital entity of Komeréni banka’s known as “New Era of Banking
by KB”, which introduced digital authorisation procedures for
serving its clients in the branch network. The goals are not only
to implement digital tools that are technologically modern and
expected by clients, but also to reduce the environmental burden,
especially from the consumption of paper, thus corresponding to
KB’s ambitions from the viewpoint of sustainable development.

From February 2023, two more banks — Air Bank and UniCredit
Bank - joined the co-operation between KB and MONETA Money
Bank in the area of sharing ATMs. Thanks to this, clients of

these banks can withdraw cash from almost 2,000 ATMs under
conditions set and guaranteed by their own banks, which usually
means free of charge.

This co-operation made it possible to move duplicate ATMs (such
as those standing next to one another at shopping centres) to
places where heretofore there have been no ATMs. Since the
start of this co-operation in June 2022, more than 80 ATMs have
been relocated, mainly to smaller municipalities. At the same
time, this has enabled Komeréni banka to optimise the number
of its ATMs throughout 2023 to the current 796, of which 510

are deposit ATMs. Intensive preparations are now underway for
the four alliance banks to participate in deposit-sharing through
their more than 900 ATMs. This will allow clients to deposit CZK
banknotes into their accounts during 2024.

Komer¢ni banka, a.s. | Annual Financial Report 2023


https://www.kb.cz/en/other/our-applications/applications/kb-etrading

Last year, the average size of a deposit made through a KB ATM
was around CZK 28,000. The number of deposit transactions
rose year on year by roughly more than a quarter of a million to
3.9 million transactions. KB again saw a slight increase during
2023 compared to the previous year in cash operations made
through ATMs to 59% in volume terms and 94% in the number of
all KB client cash operations (withdrawals + deposits).

At the end of the year, KB was operating 212 branches in the
Czech Repubilic, including 115 branches with cash and currency
exchange services and 70 non-cash branches authorised

to accept cash deposits in closed packages. KB continued
successfully to provide exchange services.

Non-cash payment operations

The Bank recorded another significant year-on-year rise last year
in the number of payments. Domestic payments grew by 4.8%
(4.5% for outgoing payments, 5.1% for incoming payments). A
significant period of growth in foreign payments (cross-border
and SEPA) has come to an end. SEPA payments, which make

up 87% of the total number of foreign payments, stagnated
(declining by a slight 0.2%). Cross-border payments grew by an
average of 2.0% year on year (outgoing payments by 1.1% and
incoming payments by 3.0%.)

During the 2nd quarter of last year, KB gradually started
processing domestic interbank payments in the form of instant
payments, where all payments due on the date of entry are
processed by default as instant payments. This significantly
expanded and stabilised the share of instant payments in the
total number of domestic outgoing interbank payments - via
mobile banking (Mobilni banka) to 80% and via internet banking
(MojeBanka) to 50%. Meanwhile, the share of incoming instant
payments in the total of domestic incoming interbank payments
grew by 4 percentage points to 27.6%.

In 2023, Komeréni banka was actively providing PSD2 services
through 43 licensed entities. These third-party providers
consisted of 28 payment institutions (fintech companies) and 15
banks. KB handled more than 101.8 million requests sent via the
PSD2 API interface from client payment accounts during 2023,
and it processed payments with a total value exceeding CZK 581
million, representing year-on-year growth of almost 416%. In the
business API area of batch payments initiation via API, Komer&ni
banka processed payments valued at CZK 4.6 billion in 2023.

Komeréni banka continued to transform payment systems and
centralise payment processing into the Payment Hub application
from Valantic. Communication with Czech Post during the
processing of SIPO direct debit mandates was successfully
redirected to the Payment Hub. Processes for managing direct
debit mandates (including SIPO direct debit mandates) and
processing of direct debit requests and collections (including
SIPO payments) for the new digital bank were completed. The
Payment Hub also processes SEPA and cross-border payments
for the new digital bank. All types of payment orders are gradually
being migrated through the Payment Hub as part of migrating
clients to the new digital bank, and this migration will continue in
the years ahead. In 2024, KB expects to upgrade the processing
of SEPA payments according to the new SEPA Rulebook, and

it will prepare to process incoming SEPA instant payments for

| Strategy and results

its branch of a foreign bank in Slovakia in accordance with the
requirements of European regulation.

In line with SWIFT’s plan to change the payment format from

MT to 1ISO20022, KB started during 2023 to send cross-border
payments and interbank transfers in the new MX format. The new
format makes it possible to transfer better structured data, in
larger amounts, and with better options for automatic processing
and compliance checks.

As part of the KB2025 transformation, the Bank launched the
KB+ application in April 2023. KB+ is a new digital bank built
upon the latest technologies and a fully digital client approach. In
addition to the previously implemented basic payment products
(domestic payment, standing order, SEPA payment, and cross-
border payment), which Komeréni banka had already tested in
pilot operation with employees, KB has successfully launched
such additional services as the management of direct debit
mandates and processing of direct debit requests and collections
and SIPO mandates. The Bank’s innovative products introduced
in 2023 include, for example, money exchange within a multi-
currency account and a single smart form for entering as many as
5 types of payments. As the number of clients transferred to the
new digital bank increases, so does the number of transactions.
In 2023, KB processed 1 million outgoing and the same number
of incoming payments for clients of the new digital bank.

In November 2023, Komeréni banka launched a joint project of
Czech banks and the Czech National Bank for a service known
as “Payment per Contact”. The service enables the clients of
participating banks to send payments to a beneficiary’s mobile
phone number instead of having to know the beneficiary’s
account number directly. This significantly simplifies the
submitting of payments. By the end of 2023, more than 60,000
of Komeréni banka’s clients had registered for the “Payment per
Contact” service.

Payment cards

Also in 2023, the trend of overall growth in the number and
volume of card transactions continued. The number of
transactions increased by 14% year on year, the volume by 9%.
In the past year, KB recorded larger increases at brick-and-
mortar establishments, by 19% in number and 11% in volume.
The vast majority of these transactions were made contactlessly,
thus confirming that the Czech Republic is among the top three
countries in the world in terms of making contactless transactions
with payment cards. The average amount of a card transaction
again diminished slightly (by approximately 4%), but, on the other
hand, this average grew by almost 18% for payments on the
Internet.

The number continues to grow of clients using smartphones

and watches to pay. The shares in the number and volume,
respectively, of transactions carried out in this manner were 39%
and 32%. Apple Pay still has the largest share of these payments,
at 53%, while Google Pay’s share is 43%.

In 2023, the Bank again ensured the smooth processing of all
card transactions, as it had in previous years and after successful
migration of the card system in 2022.
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At the end of 2023, KB offered its clients another exclusive

card design with an e-sport theme from the League of Legends
game, thus building on the successful activities in this area from
previous years. At the same time, the Bank also offered clients
other unique card designs prepared together with partners of
Komeréni banka and reflecting current trends, including to involve
artificial intelligence in the creation of selected designs.

Specifically for clients with visual impairments, Komeréni banka
was the first bank in the Czech Republic to offer a new card
design standard. Known as the Touch Card, it features unique
tactile notches so that clients can identify their cards by feel.

Under the KB SmartPay brand, KB continues to co-operate
successfully in a business alliance with Worldline in the field of
payment card acceptance. With a portfolio of more than 40,000
clients, we are the largest acceptance provider on the Czech
market.

In the Czech Republic Pays by Card project, KB SmartPay
continues to provide the longest free period on the market. The
terminal, including the PayPhone mobile terminal or the Gopay
payment gateway, is provided free of charge for 12 months. This
helped KB during 2023 to expand its network of acquirers by
more than 3,000 new business locations.

The numbers and volumes of transactions occurring within this
alliance grew again in 2023, this time by approximately 5%.

Trade finance

The growth trend of the previous period continued during 2023
for bank guarantee sales. Both the number and volume of new
guarantees recorded double-digit expansion. All segments
showed growth, with the large corporate segment expanding the
most.

The documentary payments segment remained stable year

on year, mainly due to an increase in the number and volume

of letters of credit issued. As for exports, the influence of the
geopolitical situation persisted, with the Russian market gradually
being replaced especially by markets of the Middle and Far

East, Maghreb countries, and selected countries of sub-Saharan
Africa.

The level of digitalisation in trade finance has been high for a
long time. For import letters of credit, the share of electronically
submitted applications is close to 100%, and for bank
guarantees it is almost 80%. Further investments in improving
the Trade & Finance OnLine application have contributed to
client satisfaction. In line with feedback from Komeréni banka’s
clients, a new fees module was made available to them in 2023.
It provides users with more-detailed information and better
communication with their accounting systems

Cash management

In cash management, persistently high interest rates continued
to stimulate demand to earn returns on momentarily idle funds.
Public sector clients, in particular, have intensively demanded
structures that allow for the concentration of group cash flow
and maximum possible interest earnings. Notional cash pooling

involving subordinated organisations was the most sought-after
product.

On the part of multinational corporations or their domestic
subsidiaries, we saw increased demand for international payment
systems linked to SWIFT and for host-to-host solutions with
direct link to individual clients’ enterprise resource planning
systems.
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Development of services and processes in
2023

New Era of Banking - New Digital Bank

KB Group continued in making substantial investments and
changes in pursuing its strategic KB2025 plan. The most
significant milestone, reached in April 2023, was introduction of
the “New Era of Banking” client proposition, which was enabled by
building the New Digital Bank and many related activities across
the whole KB Group.

KB’s New Digital Bank (NDB) is a programme for building a
new banking infrastructure and complete overhaul of banking
processes. It was started in 2020 as a part of the KB2025
transformation strategy.

The NDB encompasses the construction of a flexible, modular
infrastructure including the core banking platform, card
management system, payment hub, and customer management.

On this basis, KB will introduce new, simple digital products
and customer relationship management around a single source
of information across all channels and systems and supported
by elements of artificial intelligence. The uniform sources of
operational, business, and financial data will enable highly
efficient reporting and analytics.

At the same time, KB is building a new omnichannel front-end
system for clients and relationship managers, employing a
mobile-first approach. Personal contact with clients and the
branch network remain pillars of the service model focused on
providing professional advisory to customers.

The New Digital Bank allows for continuous 24/7 real-time
processing of transactions, analytics, and lead generation. The
innovation cycle has been shortened considerably by a capability
for daily releases of software updates.

The New Era of Banking will serve more effectively the needs
of the clients as well as of the Bank, inclusive of its regulatory
obligations, reporting, and customer relationship management.

With launch of the NDB, Komeréni banka aims to increase client
satisfaction as measured by the Net Promotor Score together with
customer numbers and average revenues per user. The share of
sales via digital channels should exceed 50%. Communication
with clients will be completely paperless and productivity of
relationship managers will improve.

Once individual components of the NDB reach sufficient maturity,
KB will begin decommissioning certain parts of the original
banking infrastructure. This will lead to significant savings in
operating expenses.

At the beginning of 2021, Komeréni banka had selected Temenos
Transacta as its future core banking platform. Syncordis will
deliver and implement the system. In accordance with the agile
development method, the NDB is being built in pre-defined
increments.

| Strategy and results

The client proposition developed within the NDB programme was
launched into the market under the name “New Era of Banking” in
April 2023. It also includes the new KB+ online banking, which
initially included — in line with the agile development methodology
- only basic products and functions. Functional services included
new client introduction to the Bank, current account, savings
account, investments, overdrafts, direct debit, SEPA payments,
and standing orders.

From April, KB started onboarding new individual retail banking
customers into the new KB+ app environment built on the new
digital banking infrastructure, as well as gradually migrating
customers from the existing offering. At the end of 2023, 121,000
customers were being served in the New Era. AlImost half of new
clients used the fully digital route to enter the New Era.

In this New Era of Banking, KB has, for the time being,
redesigned its offer for the retail segment, launching a range of
exciting options for its customers.

Four tariffs are available to the clients. The tariffs make it easy
for clients to choose the combination of banking services they
need and pay only for what they use frequently. KB offers the
Start tariff including transactions free of charge. Clients can
have multiple accounts including multi-currency or even multiple
payment cards in a single tariff.

As of the end of 2023, the New Era offer included the following
parameters:

e Multi-currency account, meaning one account number but up
to 15 currencies. Multi-currency accounts are included in the
Standard, Comfort, and Exclusive tariffs.

e Account creation and cancellation simply online in the KB+
app.

e (Clients can choose their own account number when setting up
an account, name the account, and even use emoticons.

e Payments have a default payment setting of “as soon as
possible”, i.e. they are processed immediately (on the
conditions that payment is to an account at a bank accepting
immediate payments and the payment amount does not
exceed CZK 400,000). The money is credited within seconds
and without any fee.

e KB is among the first banks in its market allowing clients to
make payments to a contact instead of an account number.
Only the recipient’s phone number is needed to enter
the payment. This Payment per Contact works between
participating banks, so the payer and payee need not be
clients of the same bank.

e For savings, KB offers up to 10 savings envelopes that clients
can name or mark with emoticons according to their savings
goals.

* Money can be moved between accounts, and even savings
envelopes, using a drag and drop function. Clients simply click
and drag.

e (Clients may create a special envelope, termed the “Iron
Reserve”, for unexpected expenses. The KB+ app will advise
clients on the basis of their incomes and expenses how much
should be in the reserve envelope or they can decide that
themselves.

e Using a QR code, clients can pay quickly and easily, avoiding
retyping and potential errors.
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e Thanks to the Free2Spend function, the client can see how
much money is currently available after deducting planned and
future payments.

e By categorising income and expenses by individual areas,
the client gets an overview of, for example, food, housing, or
holiday expenses or of expenses that are tax deductible.

e Client payments are monitored and in the event of a suspicious
or unusual transaction on the account or card, KB immediately
calls the client and resolves the situation.

e KB monitors clients for the due date of standing orders and
direct debits and sends notifications if it registers insufficient
funds in the account to carry them out.

e KB monitors on behalf of the client duplicate payments and
incorrectly entered payment symbols and confirms with the
client whether he or she wishes to make such payment.

e Avirtual card for Google Pay, Apple Pay, Garmin Pay, and
Fitbit Pay is available in a matter of moments.

* The PIN for the card can be displayed in the KB+ app or in
online banking on the detail page for the specific card and the
client can start using the card immediately.

e The client can unlock a card at any time when needing to pay,
then lock it again when not using it. Both can do done in a few
seconds in the KB+ app or online banking.

¢ |n addition to the standard payment card design, it is also
possible to choose from a range of other designs with various
themes, including partner themes such as Hockey, Zoo, Rock
for People, Gaming, and others.

e KB provides “Touch Cards” for the blind with unique tactile
notches cut into them, making it easier for visually impaired
clients to use the cards.

e KB’s payment card help line is available 24 hours a day,

365 days a year, with “live” bankers, ensuring personal
communication and immediate assistance in the event of card
loss or theft while the card is blocked against misuse.

e KB provides clients with assistance in selecting an appropriate
investment simply by answering a few questions online in the
KB+ app or online banking or in person at a branch.

¢ Using the upvest platform, clients can invest, starting from
CZK 5,000, into promising real estate development projects
with attractive returns.

e KB offers investment funds that take sustainability into
account and enable investments into disruptive technologies,
hydrogen as a source of clean energy, water resources, and
other areas.

e With MojePojisténi property insurance, the client is assured
that one’s property is never underinsured. MojePojisténi
insurance reimburses the value of new products and even
finances the cost of temporary replacement housing.

e MojePojisténi insurance also includes liability insurance that
covers damages caused by clients, family members, and pets.

* Mojedistota risk life insurance includes the possibility of free
telephone consultation with a doctor and, in case of long-term
illness, pays a benefit for the entire period of illness already
retroactively from day 1.

e Thanks to the “Shared ATMs” initiative, clients of Komercéni
banka, MONETA Money Bank, Air Bank, and UniCredit Bank
can withdraw cash from shared ATM networks under the same
conditions as from their own banks’ ATMs.

e KB has the widest network of deposit ATMs in Czechia.

e KB is the only bank in the market with drive-up ATMs that
allow one to deposit or withdraw money directly through the
car window.

¢ Using the “Favourite Withdrawal” function will speed up cash
withdrawals from an ATM. The function can be preset in the
ATM menu or save the last transaction. After that, a quick
withdrawal can be made with just a few touches.

¢ Inthe “New Era”, the Bank communicates paperlessly with
clients, who will find all their contracts and documents in the
KB+ banking app.

* As a protection against vishing, a client can easily make sure
one is on the phone with a KB banker. During the call, the
client can ask the banker to send a push notification to the
KB+ app.

e KB'’s bank identity serves as a digital ID card and a source
of personal data that can be used to prove one’s identity in
the digital environment. In addition to its use with the Bank, it
can be used for logging in to commercial services or public
administration portals.

e Komeréni banka payment cards are made of 100% recycled
material.

¢ |n KB+ internet and mobile banking, clients can easily support
selected Nadace KB projects.

Among the important milestones reached during 2023 in
developing the “New Era” were, for example, the arranging of
building savings, supplementary pension savings, consumer
loans, or overdrafts right in the KB+ app, as well as new card
designs.

In 2024, the Bank will enrich the retail offering for the KB+ app
with, for example, child and student propositions and tailored
product solutions such as Extra Services, e-brokerage, and
others.

Completely new in 2024 will be the “New Era for Entrepreneurs”
offer.

KB is gradually shifting development capabilities during 2024

to the corporate part of NDB. The optimal solution paths in
individual product areas (the so-called winning propositions) are
defined on the basis of client needs research and subsequent
testing.

One Mortgage Factory

Modra pyramida continued to fulfil its ambition to become a one-
stop shop for housing finance within the Komeréni banka Group.
All of the Group’s housing-related products, including mortgages,
will be managed by Modra pyramida for Komeréni banka Group
from one place in order to simplify processes while increasing
efficiency and speed. As part of this initiative, 260 employees of
Komeréni banka’s mortgage centres and other support units were
transferred to Modra pyramida on 1 June 2023.

As part of the transformation of Modra pyramida and KB Group, a
technological change involves a new end-to-end process for the
origination and administration of KB Group’s housing loans. The
New Era of mortgages simultaneously unifies the environment for
users from Modra pyramida, Komeréni banka, and co-operating
third parties, bringing a whole new level of convenience and
increasing the efficiency and speed of transaction processing.

The New Era in mortgages was launched on 19 October 2023. lts
first phase was mainly a technical deployment of Starbuild and
NOBY systems and all related applications. This was followed

by pilot testing of the entire mortgage origination process from
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the very beginning (i.e. verifying the client’s creditworthiness,
property valuation, and deal approval) through to drawing down
the mortgage, making the monthly payment, and simulating the
mortgage situation after maturity. Before the year’s end Modra
pyramida had implemented several actual deals in the new
process.

OneGroup

A part of the Operational Efficiency pillar of the KB2025
programme is the OneGroup initiative, which aims to leverage
resources and sKills, create synergies, and fully exploit the
strengths of individual companies across the Group.

The ways of increasing efficiency in the OneGroup activity will
mainly include one marketing communication under the KB
brand, harmonisation of the IT environment, simplification of

the product portfolio, offering unified solutions, expansion and
sharing of the distribution network, unified co-operation with third
parties, and deepening of expertise.

In practice, this may involve the concentration of certain Group
activities into one location. In the first phase of this process, the
outsourced activities are performed by the original employees of
the subsidiaries who have been transferred to KB.

All this improves the clarity of the offer for clients and the
customer experience.

As part of the OneGroup activity in 2023, the Group has:

¢ |Integrated since April the activities of KB Factoring into KB
so that factoring services become part of the offering for all
Group clients,

e Created a single hub to co-ordinate collaboration with external
partners across the KB Group, and

e QOpened a network of KB Poradenstvi points from former
MPSS branches. The rebranding to KB colours will run
until mid-2024. This has expanded the retail network where
customers will be served in the “New Era” mode.

From February 2024, Modra pyramida’s finance functions are
outsourced to KB’s Strategy and Finance division. In 2024,
the Group will also outsource certain activities of KB Penzijni
spole¢nost to the Bank.

Fintec ecosystem and other complementary services

In order to attract new sources of revenue, KB is building an
ecosystem of complementary financial services through a
combination of internal development, co-operation with start-
ups and established providers, as well as by acquiring stakes in
fintech companies through its wholly owned KB SmartSolutions
platform.

As of 31 December 2023, KB SmartSolutions held full ownership
in KB Advisory, s.r.o., ENVIROS, s.r.o., Finbrics, s.r.0., as well as
My Smart Living, s.r.o. in liquidation. It held a 96% stake in upvest
s.r.o. It had minority stakes in the companies Platebni instituce
Roger a.s. and MonkeyData s.r.o.

| Strategy and results

The companies upvest and ENVIROS were undergoing extensive
organisational changes during 2023 in connection with the
acquisition of KB’s majority stakes in these companies in 2022.

KB SmartSolutions increased its stake in MonkeyData s.r.o,
operator of the Lemonero digital platform for B2B e-commerce
financing based on advanced data analytics and artificial
intelligence. It did so in two steps, first in June to 28.256% from
an initial 24.989% and then in September to 33.171%.

Development of services for clients at subsidiaries and
affiliates

Subsidiaries implemented changes to enhance synergies within
the Group, share expertise, simplify, and improve customer
access to services. They have developed a number of new
products and services in-house that are typically available to all
KB Group clients.

Modra pyramida has newly offered the Loan for Sustainable
Housing, which complements the building society’s loan offer to
support Modra pyramida’s new mission in relation to financing
energy savings for Czech households.

Together with KB, Modra pyramida has also prepared and offers
a Mortgage for Sustainable Housing. Clients who provide proof of
an A or B energy label will receive a 0.1% discount on the interest
rate and will not be charged a fee for the mortgage loan and risk
assessment of the collateral.

ESSOX has innovated its online payment product Staggered
Payment with an increased maximum financial volume. In
addition to e-shops, the payment gateway Comgate has also
started to offer Staggered Payment.

Penzijni spole¢nost KB made it possible to arrange a pension
savings contract in the KB+ app, including to broaden the
possibility to arrange new contracts also for non-KB customers.
It also unveiled its new website with a “New Era” design that
includes useful calculators for clients.

Komer¢ni pojist’ovna launched its new MojeCestovani short-
term travel insurance ahead of the summer season. It is available
in three variants — Mini, Komplet and Excelent — with higher
coverage limits (for medical expenses up to CZK 250 million, for
liability up to CZK 20 million), a greater range of insured risks,
and extended assistance services. A unique feature is insurance
covering risky sports, whereby each of those insured can choose
whether they want to insure for these sports and for which day.
This fully online product has been developed in-house on a new
digital innovation platform (JAVA), in an agile manner, and entirely
on API services.

In May 2023, Komer¢ni pojistovna took over Mutumutu’s life
insurance business. Mutumutu insurance had been launched
in 2018 as an exclusive product for Mutumutu Ltd, a tied agent.
Now Komeréni pojistovna is fully responsible for its distribution,
administration, client care, and marketing communication.

The year 2023 was also dedicated to the adaptation of
procedures for the “New Era” at KB poji$t’ovna, so that clients
and bankers enjoy complete convenience in taking out and
managing insurance. After intensive preparation during 2023,
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the company launched a new product, “Extra sluzba Bezpeg¢i”
(Extra Safety Service), in January 2024. It provides clients with
assistance in the event of misuse of cards or internet banking, as
well as loss or theft of personal belongings. It also assists with
payment of fees.

SGEF has prepared a financing offer with an undefined residual
value. For clients, this means an option for a simple lease with
no obligation to buy the financed item. It has also modified the
leasing products from a VAT perspective to respect the EU
interpretation and prepared an instalment sale under the supply
of goods regime in view of the VAT adjustment.

SGEF also has offered preferential refinancing terms for
investments meeting ESG criteria. In addition, it integrated digital
signatures based on bank identity and introduced a new Client
Portal.

New products and services

GELIOERPOPE B | oan for Sustainable Housing — Modra pyramida —
advantageous financing of energy savings by Czech

households.

Digital signature — SGEF — unique solution for digital
signatures in a B2B2B environment, which uses the
bank identity Bank iD bank and allows combining
different documents for different signatories from
multiple entities.

‘New Era of Banking written by KB’ — KB Group - tha
Bank introduced an offer for individual customers,
founded on the new digital banking infrastructure and
new online and mobile banking applications.

Mortgage for Sustainable Housing — Modra pyramida
and Komeréni banka — a mortgage loan with a
discounted interest rate tailored for financing energy-
efficient real estate.

Interactive Calculator — KB Penzijni spole¢nost

— enables calculation of total savings on pension
savings in the design of New Era of Banking by

setting individual savings parameters, such as the
length of savings, the amount of own contribution, the
employer's contribution, setting an investment strategy
and modeling the development on financial markets.

October 2023 Touch Card — Komeréni banka — new card design
standard for visually impaired clients with unique cut-

outs.

DOE @228 Deferred Payment and Installment Sale — ESSOX -

launched through payment gateway Comgate.

Payment per Contact — KB in cooperation with other
Czech banks — allows to send payment to a contact on
the mobile phone without remembering the recipient's
account number.

PELE L2288 MojeCestovani — KB Pojistovna — short-term travel
insurance with higher payment limits, assistance
services and extended risk coverage, including risky

sports.

Change in the building savings regulation

The first half of 2023 was marked by high uncertainty as to
whether building savings would remain among the state-
supported housing products. Modification of the building
savings scheme was one of the components in the government’s
proposed public finance consolidation package.

Signing of a Memorandum of Co-operation on the Energy
Transformation of Czech Households between the Association of
Czech Building Savings Banks and the Ministry of Finance and
Ministry of the Environment in June was of crucial importance
for the sector’s future. This gave a new dimension to building
savings, where, in one place, the client will receive, in addition to
advantageous financing from building savings banks, also advice
and assistance with the processing of subsidies from selected
subsidy programmes.

As part of the building savings sector, Modra pyramida remains
a reliable partner for its clients in the area of housing and with
an expanded scope of activity focused on reducing the energy
consumption of Czech households.

The agreement with the state was reflected into the approved
amendment to the Building Savings Act. The main changes that
regulate and expand the possibilities of building societies are as
follow:

¢ Building societies can carry out activities other than those
licensed (subsidy consultancy).

¢ The interpretation of special purpose is expanded, meaning
that building savings banks are newly allowed to finance the
implementation of sustainable housing measures that are not
strictly linked to real estate.

¢ Building societies can also receive funding sources from the
state and EU and issue bonds with maturity out to 20 years.

e State support for building savings is reduced to CZK 1,000 per
client per year.

Financial services and products focused on
sustainability

KB Group’s ambition is to be a leader in sustainability in
the Czech financial market, as well as to be perceived as a
sustainability leader in the Czech Repubilic.

Detailed information on the development of products and
services that meet the above objectives is provided in the
Sustainability Report,” which the Group publishes together with
this Annual Financial Report.

As detailed in the Sustainability Report, the Group strives

for sustainability in all its activities: in its own operations and
relations with employees, in advisory and financial services
provided to clients, and in its relations with the communities
in which KB Group companies operate through the likes of
sponsorship, volunteering, charity, and tax payments. In doing

" https://www.kb.cz/en/about-bank/we-do-business-sustainably/sustainability-
report-archive
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so, the Group follows and implements its ESG strategy that takes
into account results of the materiality analysis."

Thus, KB Group takes sustainability into account in the
development and offering of all its products. At the same time,
it creates financial products and services having to promote
sustainability as one of the main reasons for their existence.

Brand support by sponsorship

The KB logo graced the players of the Czech national team
engaged in the struggle for bronze medals at the World Junior
Ice Hockey Championship in Gothenburg, Sweden. KB naturally
supports sports and is visible there, most notably as the main
partner of the Czech ice hockey Extraliga and the Czech national
ice hockey team from 2021. For fans, KB even has payment card
designs with ice hockey themes.

Nor has the Bank avoided the growing e-sport phenomenon.
Following the success of its first edition of cards for players and
fans, it together with Mastercard introduced in 2023 a limited
edition of cards with official designs from the popular online
video game League of Legends. In addition to the original visuals,
players also received with the card a valuable award of 6,250

RP points, which is a virtual currency that can be used to buy
various in-game accessories as well as popular skins for their
champions.

KB of course supports and partners with a number of important
institutions and projects, including the National Gallery in Prague,
zoos in Prague and Ostrava, PKF — Prague Philharmonia, the
Rock for People music festival, and the French Film Festival. In
addition to presenting its brand together with these institutions,
KB also offers unique payment card designs based upon these
partnerships.

| Strategy and results
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| Financial performance

Financial results and development of financial
position

KB Group reported consolidated and audited net profit
attributable to the Group’s equity holders for 2023 reached
CZK 15,612 million, which was down by (11.4%) in comparison
with the prior year. The decline in reported net profit was due
to the decrease in revenues along with the growth of operating
costs. Cost of risk remained at a very low level.

Income statement

Komeréni banka Group’s revenues (net operating income)
reached CZK 36,199 million, down by (6.3%) compared to the
full year 2022. Net interest income declined due to higher costs
of deposits, lower average spreads on lending products, and
cancelled remuneration of mandatory reserve deposits with

the CNB from October 2023, which effects were not offset by
expanding volumes. Net fee and commission income was up
slightly on a broad-based positive trend, driven particularly

by clients’ larger investments in mutual funds and greater
contribution from life insurance, private banking, and guarantees.
Net profit on financial operations was up modestly, reaching an
excellent result despite the context of a sluggish economy that is
affecting hedging and trading activity of corporate clients.

Net interest income was down by (10.6%), at CZK 25,595 million.
The volume of loans expanded, but the average lending spreads
narrowed. Switching of deposit volumes from current accounts
to savings and term deposits, together with higher rates paid

on deposit products, led to significantly higher average costs of
deposits. KB also had to bear additional costs of loans it must
take to meet the new regulatory requirement for a minimum level
of eligible liabilities (MREL). The decision of the Czech National
Bank to stop remuneration of banks’ mandatory deposits with
the central bank has weighed on interest income since the fourth
quarter. The contribution to net interest income from investment
banking was stable year on year. Net interest margin for 2023,
computed as the ratio of net interest income to interest-earning
assets reported on the balance sheet, reached 1.9%. That
compares to 2.4% a year earlier.

Net fee and commission income grew by 4.8% to

CZK 6,414 million. Fees from cross-selling contributed the largest
part of this growth, with better income from mutual funds and
insurance products. Transaction fees improved moderately,

as clients’ transaction activity was greater, especially in card
payments but also in other non-cash payments. Deposit product
fees were up slightly, as the base from the previous year had
been influenced by a humanitarian allowance for war refugees
from Ukraine. Income from loan services was higher, mainly

due to expanded consumer lending. There was an improvement
also in net fee income from services in private banking, loan
syndications, and guarantees.

Net profit on financial operations increased by 4.5% year

on year to CZK 3,832 million. This excellent result was driven

by client activity in currency and interest rate hedging and
trading. Small and medium-sized corporate clients continued
to appreciate tailored hedging strategies, and particularly
those based on currency options. Gains from foreign exchange
payments were lower year on year, reflecting transaction
activity of clients and their cost optimisation, as well as spreads
adjustments. The result also included gain of CZK 294 million
from sales of bonds reported on the banking book.

Dividend and other income was up by 68.1% to CZK 358 million.
This line item primarily comprises other income from banking
products, ancillary services, and property rental.

Operating expenses rose by 8.2% to CZK 17,321 million.
Reflecting a combined rise in average salaries and 0.7%
increase in the average number of employees to 7,551, personnel
expenses grew by 7.8% to CZK 8,335 million" General and
administrative expenses (not including contributions to the
regulatory funds) were up by 8.4%, at CZK 4,301 million. Growth
in this category was driven by marketing, IT support and real
estate, as well as costs related to the transformation and overall
inflation. The full-year charge to the regulatory funds (Deposit
Insurance Fund, Resolution Fund) was stable year on year, at
CZK 1,292 million, because the CNB reduced the Czech banks’
aggregate contribution to the Resolution Fund in 2023 but the
levy for the Deposit Insurance Fund was increased following

the previous year’s failure of Sberbank CZ. Depreciation,
amortisation, and impairment of operating assets grew by
12.2% to CZK 3,393 million, driven by higher charges reflecting
investments in pursuit of KB’s digitalisation strategy.

The sum of profit before allowances for loan losses, provisions
for other risk, profit on subsidiaries, and income tax (operating
profit) was down by (16.5%), at CZK 18,878 million.

Cost of risk (impairment losses, provisions for loans, and

net result from loans transferred and written off) reached

CZK 14 million compared to CZK 1,181 million a year earlier. The
level of new defaults remained relatively low across all client
segments. The Group achieved successful recoveries relating

to several exposures in the corporate client segment, but this
contribution was offset by creation of provisions for individual
exposures with weakened credit profile in the corporate segment.
Net provisioning in retail segments remained low, although the
Group observed a moderate increase in default intensity for

the consumer and small business portfolios. The cost of risk in
relative terms and as measured against the average volume of the

" Recalculated to a full-time equivalent number.
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lending portfolio during the full year 2023 came to 0 basis points.
That compares with 15 basis points for 2022.

Income from shares in associated undertakings (i.e. Komeréni
pojistovna) was up by 52.8% year on year, at CZK 330 million,
influenced by interest rate developments, creation and utilisation
of the insurance reserves, and implementation of the IFRS 17
accounting standard” at Komeréni pojistovna.

Net profit on subsidiaries and associates was CZK 0,
compared to CZK 73 million a year earlier, when it had included a
gain from revaluation of a stake in a subsidiary.

Net profits (losses) on other assets reached a negative

CZK (87) million. In the previous year, net profit on other assets
had been CZK 111 million. This line comprises mainly result from
sales of buildings, disposals and impairment of intangible assets
(software), and related costs.

Income tax was lower by (17.8%), at CZK 3,288 million.

Current tax per country (2023)

(CZK million) Slovakia

(branch of KB and
SGEF*, ESSOX FINANCE) (BASTION

Czechia Belgium

=

Net operating income 35,465 726 8
Profit before income tax 18,611 488 7
Current tax 3,298 155 2
State support 0 0 0

" SGEF activities in Slovakia.

KB Group’s consolidated net profit for the year 2023 reached
CZK 15,819 million, which was down by (11.3%) in comparison
with the year earlier. Of this total, CZK 207 million was profit
attributable to the non-controlling owners of minority stakes in
KB’s subsidiaries (down by (4.6%) year on year.

Reported net profit attributable to the Group’s equity holders
totalled CZK 15,612 million, which is (11.4%) less year on year.

Other comprehensive income reached CZK (638) million.

This derived mainly from revaluation of some cash flow hedging
positions and debt securities. Consolidated comprehensive
income for the full year 2023 totalled CZK 15,181 million, of which
CZK 210 million was attributable to owners of non-controlling
stakes.

Statement of financial position

Assets

As of 31 December 2023, KB Group’s total assets had grown by
16.2% year to date to CZK 1,516.3 billion.

Cash and current balances with central banks were down by
(9.6%), at CZK 12.8 billion. Financial assets held for trading
at fair value through profit or loss (trading securities and
derivatives) decreased by (15.4%) to CZK 48.5 billion. The fair

" IFRS Accounting standards as adopted by the European Union (hereafter only
“IFRS”)
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value of hedging financial derivatives declined by (60.2%) to
CZK 8.6 billion.

Year to date, there was a (44.4%) drop in financial assets

at fair value through other comprehensive income totalling

CZK 16.8 billion. This item consisted mainly of debt securities
issued by government institutions. In 2023, the Group decided
to divest part of its Hold to Collect and Sale portfolio in order to
improve stability and predictability of the capital adequacy ratio
over time.

Financial assets at amortised cost grew by 21.1% to

CZK 1,397.4 billion. The largest portion of this consisted of (net)
loans and advances to customers, which increased year to date
by 6.7% to CZK 833.5 billion. A 98.1% share in the gross amount
of client loans was classified in Stage 1 or Stage 2 (performing
loans) while 1.9% of the loans were classified in Stage 3 (non-
performing loans). The volume of loss allowances created for
amounts due from customers came to CZK 12.1 billion. Loans
and advances to banks climbed by 76.4% to CZK 411.6 billion.
The majority of this item consists in reverse repos with the central
bank. The value held in debt securities was up by 9.3% and
reached CZK 152.2 billion at the end of December 2023.

Revaluation differences on portfolio hedge items totalled

CZK (0.8) billion, lower by (68.0%). Current and deferred tax
assets stood at CZK 0.9 billion. Prepayments, accrued income,
and other assets, which include receivables from securities
trading and settlement balances, increased overall by 8.3% to
CZK 6.3 billion.

Assets held for sale climbed by 798.0% to CZK 0.8 billion. In
September 2023, the Group reclassified assets in subsidiary VN
42, s.r.o., valued at CZK 929 million, as ‘Assets held for sale’ due
to expected sale of this company.

Influenced by Komeréni pojistovna’s net profit in 2023,
investments in associates rose by 14.9%, to CZK 3.0 billion,
compared to the 2022 year-end restated value of CZK 2.7 billion
(restatement was due to Komeréni pojistovna’s transition to the
IFRS 17 Accounting Standards).

The net book value of tangible assets decreased by (8.3%)

to CZK 8.0 billion. Intangible assets grew by 12.9% to reach
CZK 10.2 billion. Goodwill, which primarily derives from the
acquisitions of Modra pyramida, SGEF, and ESSOX, remained
unchanged at CZK 3.8 billion.

Liabilities
Total liabilities were 17.6% higher in comparison to the end of
2022 and stood at CZK 1,388.0 billion.

Financial liabilities held for trading at fair value through profit or
loss decreased by (10.1%) to CZK 60.2 billion. As of 31 December
2023 and 2022, this portfolio only included liabilities arising from
short sales of securities and negative fair values of financial
derivative instruments held for trading

Negative fair value of hedging financial derivatives decreased by
(44.9%) to CZK 31.2 billion.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost went up by 18.8% to

CZK 1,247.8 billion. Amounts due to customers comprise the
largest proportion of this sum, and these climbed by 18.6%

to CZK 1,127.2 billion. This total included CZK 121.0 billion of
liabilities from repo operations with clients and CZK 7.1 billion of
other payables to customers. Amounts due to banks increased
through 2023 by 24.1% to CZK 105.7 billion.

Revaluation differences on portfolios hedge items were

CZK (34.9) billion. Current and deferred tax liabilities ended at
CZK 1.0 billion, down by (61.4%). Accruals and other liabilities,
which include payables from securities trading and settlement
balances, grew by 2.9% to CZK 17.3 billion.

The provisions balance was (25.8%) lower, at CZK 0.9 billion.
Provisions for other credit commitments are held to cover credit
risks associated with credit commitments issued. The provisions
for contracted commitments principally comprise those for
ongoing contracted contingent commitments, legal disputes,
self-insurance, and the retirement benefits plan.

Subordinated and senior non-preferred debt, at CZK 64.6 billion,
was up by 66.8% year to date, as KB continued to subscribe new
loans during 2023 to meet regulatory minimum requirements for
own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL).

Equity

Total equity rose year to date by 2.9% to CZK 128.3 billion,
whereas the positive contribution from the net profit generated
during the year was offset by the volume of the annual dividend
paid in May. Values of retained earnings as well as income from
share of associated undertakings were restated as of the end
of 2022 as a result of Komercéni pojistovna’s adopting the IFRS
17 Accounting Standards. The value of non-controlling interests
reached CZK 3.2 billion. As of 31 December 2023, KB held in
treasury 1,193,360 of its own shares constituting 0.63% of the
registered capital.

Komeréni banka, a.s.
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| Fulfilment of targets for 2023 and outlook for 2024

Fulfilment of business and financial targets set
for 2023

Developments within Czechia’s economic environment during
2023 were marked by high levels of inflation and economic
uncertainty. A major drop in real wages has eroded purchasing
power of households. This has been further compounded by an
increase in aggregate savings among cautious consumers. Low
confidence among businesses put a brake on their investment
activity, and they were even able to finance their capital outlays
from the gross operating surplus generated from resilient profit
margins and improved yields on savings. The economy grew
more slowly than initially expected and competition on the
banking market intensified further, particularly for deposits.

KB Group achieved solid business results

Growth in KB Group’s overall loan portfolio reached the level
assumed in the published outlook. Outstanding volume of
housing loans grew by more than 4%. Sales of housing loans

in the full year were still below the level recorded in 2022, but
they had been recovering visibly since March 2023. Consumer
lending expanded relatively faster, in line with guidance from the
beginning of the year. Also, lending to corporate clients matched
the mid-single-digit growth ambition set for 2023. Growth in the
overall volume of clients’ assets under management was strong,
mainly thanks to dynamic growth of investments in mutual funds.

Financial performance slightly lower than planned
Instead of the planned flattish development, the consolidated
revenues for 2023 declined by 6% year on year. The main
negative difference came from net interest income and net
profit from financial operations, while net fees and commissions
increased at the expected mid-single-digit rate. Net interest
income was affected by a more substantial increase in overall
interest paid on deposits, as well as the decision of the CNB to
stop paying interest on banks’ mandatory reserve deposits. The
level of net profit achieved from financial operations, although
still excellent, was lower than assumed, mainly due to a smaller
interest rate differential between the Czech crown and euro and
weaker investment lending and related hedging.

The Group reported total operating expenditures in line with

the initial guidance (upper mid-single-digit growth), as it was
able to offset the impact of still double-digit inflation and
investments into digital transformation by further optimisation of
its operations.

Cost of risk finished below the budgeted level, as the Group
was able to release some provisions upon successful recovery
of several exposures in the corporate segment and it recorded
only limited inflows of loans to the defaulted category, albeit
with slightly increasing defaults in consumer lending and

small business exposures. KB also created a larger volume of
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provisions for an exposure to a non-defaulted corporate client
with weakened credit profile. The overlay reserve for risks related
to the high inflation remained almost unchanged.

KB achieved in 2023 a healthy level of profitability. The Group
also maintained its robust capital adequacy — even when
adjusting for the proposed dividend payment — and strong
liquidity.

Expected development in 2024 and main risks
to that development

Note: This outlook was first presented on 8 February 2024 as part
of the presentation of the results of Komeréni banka for 2023.

Given the high level of uncertainty and risks related to projecting
future business results, investors should exercise caution and
judgement before making their investment decisions while
considering these forward-looking estimates and targets.

After contracting slightly during 2023, according to the Czech
Statistical Office,” the Czech economy is expected to grow
marginally in 2024.

Weak domestic demand was the main reason for the Czech
economy’s feeble performance in the past year. Households had
seen their purchasing power eroded by high inflation and have
cut back on spending as a result.

Nevertheless, the labour market remains tight and corporate
profitability resilient. Higher nominal wage growth should
therefore continue in 2024 and contribute to a resumption of real
wage growth in the context of a rapid decline in inflation. On the
other hand, tight monetary policy, fiscal consolidation efforts

of the Czech government, and sluggish performance of some
trading partners, Germany in particular, are likely to weigh on the
domestic economy in 2024.

Inflation is expected to decline rapidly, and its average rate during
the year should already fit into the Czech National Bank’s 1-3%
tolerance band. In December 2023, the central bank commenced
its policy rate cutting cycle with a decrease in the two-week repo
rate by 25 basis points to 6.75%. Reflecting a sharp weakening in
inflation dynamics across the CEE region, the CNB’s repo rate will
probably be cut sharply through 2024, reaching around 4% at the
year’s end.

" https://www.czso.cz/csu/czso/gdp_national_accounts_ekon
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The Czech Parliament adopted in 2023 a set of measures aimed
at reducing the state budget deficit in 2024 and thereafter. Those
elements of the fiscal consolidation package having significant
impact on the Group include an increase in the corporate income
taxation rate to 21% from 19% and lowering of limits for tax-
exempt employee benefits and meal vouchers. Moreover, the
package decreases the limit for application of the upper 23%
personal income tax rate and increases mandatory sickness
insurance paid by employees by 0.6% (of the gross salary).
Additional measures include changes in the rates of value-added
tax, increases in excise taxes and real estate property taxes,
cancellation of certain tax exemptions, and higher minimum taxes
for entrepreneurs.

As part of the fiscal consolidation package, state support

of building savings was reduced to 5% of the amount saved
by a client in a year. Building societies are, on the other

hand, becoming platforms for financing, advisory, as well as
administration and drawing of subsidies in the area of energy
savings in housing, based on a memorandum? signed in June
2023 by the ministries of finance and environment and the
Association of Czech Buildings Savings Banks.

The Slovak Parliament approved in December 2023 a new levy to
be imposed on banks in Slovakia, with a rate for 2024 at 30% of
accounting pre-tax profit.

In December 2022, the Parliament approved a bill introducing

a new tax impacting several banks, including Komeréni banka.
This so-called “windfall tax” will be applied to profits of selected
banks generated in the years 2023, 2024, and 2025. The windfall
tax rate of 60% is constructed as a surcharge on top of the
standard 19% tax rate, which means that the effective tax rate
for the “windfall” part of the profit is 79%. Windfall is defined as
a difference between the income tax base (profit before tax) of
the respective year and the average profit before tax in the four
years 2018-2021, increased by 20%. The windfall tax is imposed
on (standalone) banks with net interest income that had exceeded
CZK 6 billion in 2021. Within KB Group, it applies to standalone
Komeréni banka. Given the income tax base of standalone KB in
2018, 2019, 2020, and 2021, the windfall tax base comes to CZK
15.8 billion. According to the projections for the financial results
detailed below, the new tax’s impact in 2024, if any, should be
limited.

According to the joint decision of the College of Supervisors of
the Société Générale Group (where the Czech National Bank
participates as a local regulator), effective from 1 January 2024,
Komeréni banka is required to maintain a capital ratio on a sub-
consolidated basis at the minimum level of 10.6% (Total SREP
Capital Ratio), representing a decrease by 30 basis points in
comparison with the ratio required previously.

Moreover, credit institutions in the Czech Republic are
simultaneously subject to the combined capital requirements,
which are additive to the TSCR requirement set in the
aforementioned joint decision. As of 1 January 2024, KB is
required to maintain a combined capital buffer comprising the
capital conservation buffer at 2.5%, the O-SlI capital buffer at
2.0%, and the countercyclical buffer determined by competent

" https://www.stavebnisporitelny.cz/I/memorandum-o-spolupraci-mf-mzp-acss/

authorities for exposures in a particular country (at 2.0% in the
Czech Republic as from 1 October 2023).

Thus, Komeréni banka’s overall capital requirement as of

1 January 2024 stands at approximately 17.1% in relation to the
volume of risk-weighted assets. The minimum Common Equity
Tier 1 capital ratio is at approximately 12.46% and the minimum
Tier 1 capital ratio at about 14.45% in relation to the volume of
risk-weighted assets. Komeréni banka will continue to apply
prudent assumptions about the future development of regulatory
capital requirements in its capital planning.

As of 1 January 2024, KB has also met the regulatory
requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL) from
the EU’s banks recovery and resolution directive, at 21.2% of the
consolidated total risk exposure and 5.91% of the consolidated
total exposure. The MREL requirement is defined as the sum of
the amount of loss absorption and recapitalisation. In addition to
the MREL, expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted assets,
the Group must also fulfil the combined capital buffer.

Pursuing the so-called “single point of entry” resolution strategy,
KB may continue in 2024 to fulfil its MREL requirements by taking
on senior non-preferred loans from Société Générale S.A., if such
a need ensues from the developing volumes of risk exposures
and regulatory requirements.

The banking market for loans in 2024 is expected to expand at a
mid-single-digit pace, thus accelerating marginally in comparison
with the previous year. Both corporate and retail lending

should grow similarly. Credit activity in the economy should be
driven by easing of domestic and foreign monetary policy and
strengthening domestic economic growth. On the contrary, a
high level of households’ and firms’ own funds is likely to limit
financing needs.

The outstanding volume of housing loans should grow also at a
mid-single-digit pace and slightly faster than in 2023. That growth
should be supported by relative improvement in affordability

of housing, lower interest costs, reduced value-added tax on
construction works, as well as relaxed prudential limits imposed
by the CNB. Offer of longer fixed-term mortgages could be
limited due to refinancing concerns not fully alleviated by an
amendment to the Consumer Credit Act.

Consumer lending should reach a high-single-digit pace. The
expected recovery in household consumption will be mainly
supported by households’ solid savings and continued high
aggregate savings, but it is not likely to be accompanied by a
large surge in borrowing.

The corporate loan book should grow at a mid-single-digit pace,
as the willingness of businesses to invest will be underpinned

by the gradual easing of monetary conditions and increase in
aggregate demand. Nevertheless, large liquidity buffers will allow
them to finance less capital-intensive investments from their own
funds. Euro-denominated loans are likely to maintain their relative
interest rate advantage this year, albeit to a lesser extent, given
the expected earlier and faster rate cutting by the CNB compared
to that of the ECB. The outlook for growth in corporate lending

is also pushed down by the low GDP growth estimate as well as
the unfavourable outlook for industry, which accounts for a large
share of domestic credit demand.
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Growth in the volume of deposits on the market may slow

to mid-single digits in total. A slowing in household deposits
growth would be consistent with expected recovery in consumer
spending and, as interest rates fall, the outflow to non-bank
solutions in search of higher returns could intensify. The
slowdown in business deposits could reflect stronger investment
activity by corporations.

Komeréni banka will continue implementing the changes

in accordance with its KB 2025 programme that had

been announced in November 2020. A cornerstone of the
transformation programme consists in building a new digital
banking infrastructure that includes a new core banking system,
the KB+ mobile application, internet banking, a card management
system, and analytical tools allowing an upgraded client
proposition.

In 2023, KB commenced onboarding of new clients to the new
platform and a gradual migration of clients from the legacy
system. The migration that has begun in the Individuals segment
will be followed in 2024 by that for entrepreneurs and later also
by the corporate clients segment. The advancements in building
the new digital bank for clients in retail segments will enable KB
during 2024 to progressively refocus its development capacities
on services and systems in the new digital bank for corporate
clients.

In this context, KB management expects that the Group’s loan
portfolio will record a mid-single-digit growth rate for 2024.

The volume of housing loans outstanding should accelerate its
growth to upper mid-single-digit pace, supported by recovery
on the market and improved efficiency of the sales and internal
process from deploying the Group’s single mortgage production
centre. Consumer lending will expand at a high-single-digit pace
thanks to improvements in the offer and the sales process, along
with the expected rebound in households’ consumption. The
corporate loan book should grow at a mid-single-digit pace.

Total deposit balances are expected to expand at a mid-single-
digit pace, similar to that of total lending. Deposits of clients in
retail segments should grow somewhat faster than do volumes
from corporate clients.

The volume of clients’ assets in mutual funds should expand at
double-digit pace, while assets in pensions funds will expand
by low-single digits and volume of technical reserves in life
insurance will probably decline.

Following a correction in 2023, KB Group’s total net operating
income (revenues) for 2024 should return to growth by a low- to
mid-single-digit figure. Net interest income will probably improve
slightly, combining a modest volume growth with modestly
smaller average interest margins. Net fees and commissions
should improve by low-single digits, driven mainly again by
growth of the volumes in mutual funds. The net profit on financial
operations will likely grow somewhat faster, fuelled by foreign
currency transactions, hedging of financial risks for clients, and
expansion of services for smaller corporations.

As ever, operating expenses remain under tight control. The
figure for the full year 2024 will rise at a low-single-digit pace,
thus more slowly than will revenues. The Group will continue
its transformation, which consists in developing the new digital

| Strategy and results

infrastructure, overall simplification, and optimisation as to the
composition and numbers of employees and premises in use.

Personnel expenses will be higher by a mid-single-digit
percentage rate. The management has agreed with the trade
unions on raising wages by an average 4.5% from April 2024 on
a constant staff basis, and a further 0.3% increase is dedicated
towards eliminating the equal-pay gap.

Depreciation and amortisation charges will be growing at a
low-double-digit pace, reflecting investments in the digital
transformation. Regulatory levies for the Resolution and Deposit
insurance funds will be decided by the CNB later in the year, but,
according to an announcement of the regulator from the autumn
of 2023,V the contribution to the Resolution Fund for 2024 should
decrease significantly year over year due to a slower modelled
growth of deposits in the banking system and the expected rate
of return on the assets of the Fund. Other administrative costs will
reach the same or even lower amount compared to 2023, thanks
to the ongoing optimisation of operations.

Cost of risk will be influenced by several factors. On the one
hand, there will be continuing low unemployment and decreasing
interest rates. On the other, the economy will still be growing
below its potential and there remains considerable uncertainty
regarding the external environment and impacts from geopolitical
tensions and the necessary global energy transition. In such
context, cost of risk is expected to increase in comparison with
the low levels recorded in 2023. Nevertheless, reflecting the
resilient credit profile of KB’s asset portfolio, the cost of risk in
2024 is not expected to exceed the estimated normalised level of
20-30 bps across the full business cycle.

The key risks to the expectations described above comprise
further escalation of the geopolitical conflicts, in particular

the war in Ukraine, and its economic repercussions, including
disruptions to trade, fuel supplies, and transport connections.
Generally, the open Czech economy would be sensitive to a
worsening external economic environment, as well as to abrupt
changes to relevant exchange and interest rates or to monetary
or fiscal policies.

Management expects that KB’s operations will generate sufficient
profit in 2024 to cover the Group’s capital needs ensuing from

its growing volume of assets as well as to pay out dividends.
Considering the current state of affairs, KB’s management
intends for 2024 to propose distributing as dividends 100% of
attributable consolidated net profit earned in the year.

" https://www.cnb.cz/en/resolution/contributions-to-resolution-financing-
arrangement/determination-of-annual-contributions/
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| Komercéni banka Group

As of 31 December 2023, Komeréni banka had 12 subsidiaries,
where KB had majority shareholdings, and 1 associate where

it held minority interest, Komeréni pojistovna (49% share). In
addition to these ownership interests, KB held strategic interests
of 20% or less in the following companies: (i) Czech Banking
Credit Bureau, a.s. (20%), (ii) Worldline Czech Repubilic, s.r.o.
(1%), and (iii) Bankovni identita, a.s. (17%).

Again in 2023, the Group continued in deepening co-operation
among individual companies in both business and operational
areas. As part of increasing operational efficiency, selected
activities of subsidiaries were transferred to the Bank during the
year. A significant modification of the Group’s operating model is
the centralisation of mortgage processing from the entire Group
into Modra pyramida stavebni spofitelna, a.s.

In June 2023, KB Poradenstvi, s.r.0., a new fully owned subsidiary
of Komeréni banka a.s., was founded. In September 2023, the
equity participation in the company VN42 s.r.0. was reclassified

to the category held for sale. In December 2023, the Bank
increased equity capital in Modra pyramida stavebni spofitelna,
a.s. by CZK 1.1 billion as a financial contribution to other capital
funds.

The Bank further strengthened business co-operation with start-
up and fintech companies through KB SmartSolutions and its
subsidiaries.

In June 2023, KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o0. increased its stake from
24.989% to 33.171% in MonkeyData s.r.o. (which fully owns start-
up Lemonero s.r.o.). In November 2023, the company My Smart
Living, s.r.o. entered into liquidation.

Information on values and changes in equity investments is
provided in the Separate Financial Statements according to IFRS,
Note 24 ‘Investments in subsidiaries and associates’.

Summary of the results of major companies in Komercéni banka Group

Group
Holding
(%)*

CZK million, IFRS
Domestic participations

Total assets

Shareholders’ equity Net profit

Consolidation

2022 2023 2022 2022 method

Modra pyramida stavebni spofitelna, a.s. 100.00 107,983 101,687 8,032 6,641 290 458 Full
Komeréni pojistovna, a.s. 49.00 51,982 49,879 5,040 1,786 668 302 Equity
KB Penzijni spole¢nost, a.s. 100.00 2,386 2,344 1,796 1,766 341 317 Full
SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o. 50.10 35,760 33,825 3,300 3,242 381 323 Full
ESSOX s.r.o. 50.93 18,826 17,432 3,206 3,288 30 114 Full
Factoring KB, a.s. 100.00 10,894 11,051 1,983 1,777 191 117 Full
Protos, uzavreny investi¢ni fond, a.s. 100.00 6,476 6,391 6,475 6,390 77 74 Full
KB Real Estate, s.r.o. 100.00 816 839 532 524 22 13 Full
VN 42, s.r.0. 100.00 1,576 1,548 1,474 1,455 19 (29) Full
STD2, s.r.o. 100.00 518 525 250 233 17 14 Full
KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o. 100.00 535 483 527 478 18 (12) Full
KB Poradenstvi, s.r.o. 100.00 1 - 1 - 0 - Full
Foreign participations

BASTION EUROPEAN INVESTMENT S.A. 99.98 2,436 2,553 505 522 6 1 Full
ESSOX FINANCE, s.r.o.

(100% subsidiary of ESSOX s.r.o.) 50.93 2,748 1,865 273 261 5 1 Full

* KB direct and indirect holding.
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KB Group companies conduct their business in the Czech Republic, except for ESSOX FINANCE, which operates in the Slovak Repubilic;
and SGEF which operates in both of these countries; BASTION, which is financing an EU project in Belgium; and ENVIROS, which
operates in the UK, Slovakia, and Serbia. Komer¢ni banka is also active in Slovakia through a branch. Detailed information on the
activities of KB Group companies is provided in the following text of this chapter.

Basic information on Komercni banka Group’s major companies

= KB

Komerc¢ni banka, a.s.,
pobocka zahrani¢nej banky

In Slovakia, Komeréni banka serves
corporate clients through its branch,
Komeréni banka, a.s., poboc¢ka zahrani¢nej
banky (KB SK). KB’s branch in the Slovak
Republic serves large and medium-sized
enterprises with turnover of EUR 40 million
or more. The position of KB SK in its market
niche is a strong one, underpinned by
know-how of the parent KB and utilising
the synergies of the KB and SG groups

to provide its clients with comprehensive
financial solutions. KB SK offers standard
banking services, including cash
management, direct banking, payment
cards, financing, and investment banking
products, as well as trade finance solutions.

Financial summary"

(IFRS, CZK 31 Dec 31 Dec
thousand) 2023 2022
Total assets 32,658,144 31,550,457
Shareholder’s equity 102,967 70,558

Loans to clients
(gross)

Volume of deposits

23,702,706 23,721,310
5,073,574 2,996,811

Net operating income 551,405 519,465
Tax (117,338) (86,091)
Net profit 301,571 387,078
Average number

of FTEs 43 42
Number of points

of sale

State support 0 0
Contact:

Komeréni banka, a.s., pobocka
zahrani¢nej banky,

HodZovo namestie 1A

P. 0. BOX 137

811 06 Bratislava

ID: 47231564

Phone: +421 259 277 328, 329
Fax: +421 252 961 959
E-mail: kb@kb.sk

" The Branch has euro as functional currency. Since the
Branch is included in separate financial statements of
the Bank, the table above is in CZK.

| Strategy and results

2 Modra pyramida

Modra pyramida stavebni
sporitelna, a.s.

Modréa pyramida is a fully owned
subsidiary of KB. This second-largest
building savings bank in Czechia as
measured by loan volume has a 26%
market share.? Main products offered
include state-subsidised savings
accounts, bridging loans, and building
savings loans. With its 500 advisors and
199 points of sale, Modra pyramida’s
distribution network provides products of
KB Group. In 2023, the Bank centralised
processing of mortgages from the entire
Group into Modra pyramida. As part of
this centralisation, among other things, the
Bank’s employees were also transferred to
Modréa pyramida

Financial summary

(IFRS*, CZK 31 Dec 31 Dec
thousand) 2023 2022
Total assets 107,982,577 101,686,518
Shareholder’s

equity 8,031,732 6,640,964
Loans to clients

(gross) 94,094,116 86,844,053
Volume of

deposits 52,295,919 55,923,987
Net operating

income 1,365,669 1,185,208
Tax (75,306) (72,279)
Net profit 289,993 433,502
Average number

of FTEs 495 340
Number of points

of sale 199 198
State support 0 0

* Not audited.

Contact:

Modra pyramida stavebni spofitelna, a.s.
Bélehradska 128, ¢&. p. 222

120 21 Prague 2

ID: 60192852

Phone: +420 210 220 230

E-mail: info@modrapyramida.cz
Internet: www.modrapyramida.cz

2 Source: comparison of internal data with reporting of
other building societies and CNB ARAD statistics at
http://www.cnb.cz/arad/#/en/display_link/single__
SUCM100172XXX101101_

KB

Penzijni spole¢nost
KB Penzijni spole¢nost, a.s.

A fully owned subsidiary of Komeré&ni
banka, KB Penzijni spole¢nost’s core
business is to collect contributions and
manage them in pension funds pursuant
to the Supplementary Pension Savings Act
and as supplementary pension insurance
in the Transformed Fund.

By number of participants, this pension
company has a 12% share in the
supplementary pension savings market
(3rd pillar) and an 11% share in the pension
insurance market (Transformed Fund).?

Financial summary

(CAS*, CZK 31 Dec 31 Dec
thousand) 2023 2022
Assets under

management™* 75,956,935 74,427,656
of which 0 0
in Transformed Fund 53,673,745 58,923,164
Shareholder's equity 1,517,774 1,487,429
Net operating income 576,735 527,934
Tax (82,583) (73,758)
Net profit 340,510 310,296
Average number

of FTEs 52 49
State support 0 0

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.
** Total volume on client accounts.

Contact:

KB Penzijni spole¢nost, a.s.
nameésti Junkovych 2772/1
155 00 Prague 5 - StodUlky
ID: 61860018

Phone: +420 955 525 999
E-mail: kbps@kbps.cz
Internet: www.kbps.cz

9 Source: Association of Pension Funds
of the Czech Republic, data as of 31 December 2023,
https://www.apscr.cz/ctvrtletni-vysledky-2023/
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SOCIETE GENERALE

Equipment Finance

SG Equipment Finance Czech
Republic s.r.o.

SGEF is owned by Komeréni banka (50.1%)
and SGEF SA (49.9%). Through KB and

its own network of seven branches in the
Czech Republic and two in Slovakia, this
company provides financing of equipment,
agricultural and forestry technology,
vehicles for transportation of goods and
passengers, high-technology, real estate,
and special projects by leasing and
lending.

SGEF has an 11% market share in the
non-bank financing market in the Czech
Republic as measured by the financed
amount (excluding consumer loans).”

Financial summary

B ESSOX

ESSOX s.r.o.

Owned by Komeréni banka (50.93%) and SG
FINANCIAL SERVICES HOLDING (49.07%),
ESSOX is a non-bank provider of consumer
loans and financial leasing for consumers
and performs activities of payment
institutions within the scope of payment
services under a licence from CNB.

ESSOX provides its services through the
Peugeot, Citroén, DS, Hyundai and Kia
brands. ESSOX has an 18% market share in
consumer lending provided to households
by companies associated in the Czech
Leasing and Finance Association.? Main
products include financing of consumer
goods and automobiles, general purpose
loans, and revolving credit (credit cards).

Financial summary

ESSOX

Finance

ESSOX FINANCE s.r.o.

ESSOX FINANCE (formerly PSA FINANCE
SLOVAKIA, s.r.0.), a fully owned subsidiary
of ESSOX, provides its services through
the Peugeot and Citroén brands. Financial
and insurance services include financial
leasing, consumer credit, accident
insurance for motor vehicles, liability
insurance for motor vehicles, loss
insurance, and operational leasing (the last
of which is outsourced). The company also
provides inventory financing to authorised
dealers selling new Peugeot and Citroén
cars.

Financial summary

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
(CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023 2022 (CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023 (SAS*, EUR thousand) 2023 2022
Total assets 37,712,264 36,019,027 Total assets 18,659,266 17,267,023 Total assets 111,416 77,476
Shareholders’ equity 3,328,714 3,639,979 Shareholders’ equity 3,065,219 3,147,497 Shareholder’s equity 10,885 10,574
Volume of new Amounts due from Amounts due from
financing 16,109,967 14,693,252 clients (gross) 18,052,329 16,509,738 clients (gross) 106,649 75,620
Net operating income 285,375 328,641 Net operating income 657,827 705,571 Net operating income 3,884 3,489
Tax (81,978) (111,618) Tax (50,533) (28,379) Tax (105) (134)
Net profit 16,165 399,834 Net profit 30,332 113,756 Net profit 311 117
Average number Average number Average number
of FTEs 141 142 of FTEs 312 337 of FTEs 36 35
State support 0 0 State support 0 0 State support 0 0

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o.
namésti Junkovych 2772/1,

155 00 Prague 5 - Stodulky

ID: 61061344
Phone: +420 955 526 700
E-mail: info@sgef.cz

Internet: https://equipmentfinance.
societegenerale.cz/

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

ESSOX s.r.o.

F. A. Gerstnera 52

370 01 Ceské Budgjovice

ID: 26764652

Phone: +420 389 010 422
E-mail: essox@essox.cz
Internet: www.essox.cz

" The numerator is the amount of financing
provided: CZK 29.8 bil. and the source for the
marekt data in denominator is Czech Leasing
and Finance Association, data as of 31 December
2023, https://www.clfa.cz/data/dokumenty/1805-
rok2023produktykomodity.xIsx

2 The numerator is loans to consumers in Czechia:
CZK 6.6 bil. and the source for the marekt
data in denominator is Czech Leasing and
Finance Association, data as of 31 December
2023, https://www.clfa.cz/data/dokumenty/1805-
rok2023produktykomodity.xIsx

Komeréni banka, a.s.

* SAS: Slovak Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

ESSOX FINANCE, s.r.o.
Karadzi¢ova 16

821 08 Bratislava, Slovakia

ID: 35846968

Phone: +421 249 229 650
Internet: http://www.essoxfin.sk
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KB

Factoring

Factoring KB, a.s.

Factoring KB is a fully owned subsidiary
of Komeréni banka and is the second-
largest factoring company in the Czech
Republic. It has a 25% share on the Czech
factoring market according to the volume
of receivables transferred.”

Through its own and KB’s networks, the
company provides the following products:
domestic factoring, export factoring,
import factoring, modified factoring, and
receivables management.

In integrating selected subsidiaries into the
Bank’s internal structures, all employees of
Factoring KB were moved as from 1 April
2023 to KB. Since that date, Factoring
KB’s activities are fully outsourced from
Komeréni banka, a.s.

Financial summary

31 Dec 31 Dec
(CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023 2022
Total assets 19,527,057 19,586,304
Shareholder’s equity 1,983,217 1,777,662

Factoring turnover

Amounts due from
clients (gross)

72,461,497 76,131,576

18,662,325 18,692,241

Net operating income 302,036 237,050
Tax (33,065) (26,261)
Net profit 191,650 116,940
Average number

of FTEs 11 41
State support 0 0

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

Factoring KB, a.s.

nameésti Junkovych 2772/1
155 00 Prague 5 - Stodulky
ID: 25148290

Phone: +420 955 526 904
E-mail: info@factoringkb.cz
Internet: www.factoringkb.cz

" Source: Czech Leasing and Finance Association, data
as of 31 December 2023, https://www.clfa.cz/data/
dokumenty/1814-statistika-afs-cr-1-12-2023-1form.
xlsx

Strategy and results

KB

Pojistovna

Komercni pojistovna a.s.

The shareholders of Komeréni pojistovna
are SOGECAP (51%) and Komer&ni banka
(49%). This insurance company has

a 3% share in the life insurance market
(according to the methodology of the
Czech Insurers Association, measured by
premiums written).?

Main products include: savings life
insurance, risk life insurance, capital life
insurance, investment life insurance,
accident insurance, payment card
insurance, travel insurance, travel
insurance for payment cards, risk life
insurance for credit cards, risk life
insurance for consumer loans, and non-life
insurance for residential real estate and
households.

Financial summary

31 Dec
(CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023

Total assets 50,278,806 47,770,348
Shareholders’ equity 3,637,924 1,788,174

Technical reserves

(gross) 46,825,112 46,274,677
Gross premium

written 6,161,854 6,924,930
Tax (20,080) (85,236)
Net profit 472,599 358,617
Average number

of FTEs 265 248
State support 0 0

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

Komer¢éni pojistovna a.s.

namésti Junkovych 2772/1, Stodllky,
155 00 Prague 5 - StodUlky

ID: 63998017

Phone: +420 800 106 610

E-mail: servis@komercpoj.cz
Internet: www.kb-pojistovna.cz/

2 Source: Czech Insurance Association, data as of 31
December 2023, https://www.cap.cz/en/statistics/
insurance-market-development

BASTION EUROPEAN
INVESTMENTS S.A.

The ownership share of Komeréni banka
a.s. in BASTION was 99.98% as of 31
December 2023. BASTION is a special
purpose vehicle, based in Belgium,
intended for financing a long-term
transaction of the European Union. Given
the long-term profile of this transaction,
BASTION was financed by both a long-
term loan and KB’s own capital. This
transaction helps to diversify the KB
portfolio by adding a financial asset with
a very low-risk profile.

Financial summary

31 Dec 31 Dec
(IFRS*, EUR thousand) 2023 2022
Total assets 98,523 105,914
Shareholders’ equity 20,190 21,587
Loans to clients
(gross) 78,098 84,272
Volume of deposits 0 0
Net operating income 343 90
Tax (78) (17)
Net profit 233 52
Average number
of FTEs 0 0
State support 0 0

* Not audited.

Contact:

BASTION EUROPEAN INVESTMENTS S.A.

Rue des Colonies 11

1000 Brussels

Belgium

ID: BE 0877.881.474

E-mail: operations@bastion-ei.be
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VN 42 s.r.o.

VN 42 s.r.o. was fully owned by Komeréni
banka as of 31 December 2023.

VN 42 s.r.0. was established in 2013 to
provide administration and maintenance
for real property and real estate services.
In 2013, KB placed into this company its
headquarters at Wenceslas Square 42,
which VN 42 s.r.o. subsequently leased to
Komeréni banka.

In September 2023, VN42 s.r.o0. reclassified

its owned real estate into the category
held for sale.

Financial summary

KB Real Estate s.r.o.

KB Real Estate s.r.o was fully owned by
Komeréni banka as of 31 December 2023.

KB Real Estate s.r.o. was established

in 2011 to provide administration and
maintenance of real property and real
estate services. In 2012, KB Real Estate
acquired the office building in Stoddlky,
which was subsequently leased to KB.

Financial summary

STD2 s.r.o.

STD2 s.r.0. was fully owned by Komer&ni
banka as of 31 December 2023.

The company STD2 s.r.o. (originally
named Office Center Stodulky a.s.) was
purchased in 2017 and owns the office
building in Stodulky, whose construction
was completed in 2018. The company
STD2 s.r.o. rents office space to KB.

Financial summary

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec m 31 Dec 31 Dec
(CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023 2022 (CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023 (CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023 2022
Total assets 1,535,535 1,532,358 Total assets 815,646 838,149 Total assets 519,956 526,933
Shareholder’s equity 1,440,751 1,455,133 Shareholder’s equity 532,371 523,791 Shareholder’s equity 250,249 233,110
Net operating income 155,786 140,503 Net operating income 69,548 68,358 Net operating income 42,754 40,714
Tax (16,885) (9,732) Tax (2,130) (3,072) Tax (3,599) (3,342)
Net profit (14,381) (29,108) Net profit 21,677 13,097 Net profit 17,139 14,240
Average number Average number Average number of
of FTEs 0 0 of FTEs 0 0 FTEs 0 0
State support 0 0 State support 0 0 State support 0 0

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

VN 42 s.r.o.

Vaclavské namésti 796/42,
Prague 1, 110 00 Nové Mésto
ID: 02022818

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

KB Real Estate s.r.o.
Vaclavské namésti 796/42,
Prague 1, 110 00 Nové Mésto
ID: 24794015

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

STD2 s.r.o.

Vaclavské namésti 796/42,
Prague 1, 110 00 Nové Mésto
ID: 27629317

Komer¢ni banka, a.s. | Annual Financial Report 2023



Protos, uzavreny investicni fond a.s.

Komeréni banka’s ownership share in
Protos as of 31 December 2023 was
83.65% and that of Factoring KB was
16.35%.

Protos, uzavreny investi¢ni fond a.s.

(a closed-end investment fund) was
established in 2007 as a fund for
qualified investors. The company invests
predominantly in primary issues of
government bonds and other receivables
issued or guaranteed by governments

of European Union member states. The
company’s long-term intention is to
provide a regular and consistent dividend
that accords with the accrued revenues
and costs in the company’s accounts.
For this reason, the company prefers to
minimise purchases and sales into and
from the asset portfolio in such a way that
trading gains and losses do not create
additional dividend volatility.

Financial summary

31 Dec 31 Dec
(CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023 2022

SMART
SOLUTIONS

= KB

KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o.

As of 31 December 2023, Komercéni banka
fully owned KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o.
(KBSS).

On 7 January 2019, KB SmartSolutions,
s.r.o. was established to facilitate the
preparation of some new KB Group
services. The company focuses on
supporting the financing and development
of external start-up companies, but it

also provides support to and for internal
innovative solutions.

Financial summary

31 Dec
(CAS*, CZK thousand) 2023

Total assets 6,479,896 6,394,683 Total assets 543,059 490,502
Shareholders’ equity 6,475,243 6,390,185 Shareholder’s equity 534,293 485,357
Net operating income 82,657 79,594 Net operating income 45,156 12,171
Tax (4,074) (3,920) Tax (4,373) 0
Net profit 77,413 74,494 Net profit 18,286 (7,020)
Average number Average number

of FTEs 0 0 of FTEs 6 6
State support 0 0 State support 0 0

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

Protos, uzavreny investi¢ni fond a.s.
Rohanské nabrezi 693/10,

Prague 8, 186 00 Karlin

ID: 27919871

| Strategy and results

* CAS: Czech Accounting Standards, not audited.

Contact:

KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o.
Vaclavské namésti 796/42,
Prague 1, 110 00 Nové Mésto

ID: 02021161

Phone: +420 605 204 618
Internet: https:/www.kbsmart.cz/

My Smart Living, s.r.o. v likvidaci

KB SmartSolutions fully owned My Smart
Living, s.r.o. v likvidaci as of 31 December
2023.

In 2020, it had been decided to
discontinue further financing of the Cincink
real estate portal, which is operated by My
Smart Living, s.r.o. The Bank will use the
experience which it has gained within its
Housing tribe.

On 1 November 2023, the company
entered liquidation.

Contact:

My Smart Living, s.r.o. v likvidaci
Vaclavské namésti 796/42,
Prague 1, 110 00 Nové Mésto
ID: 07763166

KB Advisory, s. r. o.

KB SmartSolutions fully owned the
company KB Advisory as of 31 December
2023.

KB Advisory, s. r. 0. was established on
16 September 2019 as a consultancy for
small and medium-sized enterprises and
municipalities.

Contact:

KB Advisory, s. r. 0.
Vaclavské namésti 796/42,
Prague 1, 110 00 Nové Mésto
ID: 08510032

upvest s.r.o.

KB SmartSolutions owned a 96.0% share
in upvest s.r.o. as of 31 December 2023.

KB SmartSolutions first invested in
upvest, s.r.o. in July 2020. Upvest s.r.o.
is a fintech company that provides real
estate crowdfunding investments in the
form of participation in debt financing of
development projects. Upvest s.r.o. is a
100% owner of two subsidiaries: upvest

Profile of KB

0
=
3
0
[
=
e
i=
©
>
o
[
-
©
i
=
(2]

Corporate governance

Corporate social responsibility

Risk management


https://www.kbsmart.cz/

equity Il s.r.o., Upvest JV Equity s.r.o. At
the end of December 2023, the assets of
the companies upvest equity s.r.o., upvest
equity | s.r.o., upvest equity Ill s.r.o. and
upvest equity IV s.r.o. were transferred by
merger to the successor company upvest
s.r.o.

Contact:

upvest s.r.o.

JindfiSska 937/16, Nové Mésto,
110 00 Prague 1

ID: 05835526

Phone: +420 773 633 925
E-mail: info@upvest.cz
Internet: www.upvest.cz

MonkeyData s.r.o.

KB SmartSolutions owned a 33.171%
share in MonkeyData s.r.o. as of 31
December 2023.

KB SmartSolutions invested in
MonkeyData s.r.o. in October 2020.
MonkeyData fully owns a subsidiary,
Lemonero, s.r.0., which provides financing
to e-shops utilising an Al-powered scoring
model.

Contact:

MonkeyData s.r.o.

Nameésti Junkovych 2772/1, Stodulky
155 00 Praha 5

ID: 02731452

E-mail: support@monkeydata.com
Internet: www.monkeydata.com

Contact:

Lemonero s.r.o.

Nameésti Junkovych 2772/1, Stodulky
155 00 Praha 5

ID: 08795860

Phone: +420 732 560 130

E-mail: info@lemonero.cz

Internet: www.lemonero.cz

Platebni instituce Roger a.s.

KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o. owned a 24.83%
share in Platebni instituce Roger a.s. as of
31 December 2023.

KB SmartSolutions invested in Platebni
instituce Roger a.s. in December 2020.
Platebni instituce Roger fully owns two
subsidiaries: (i) Invoice Financing s.r.o.,
and (ii) Roger Finance s.r.o. Platebni
instituce Roger connects investors with
companies which seek fast financing of
their long due date receivables. It also
provides a supply chain financing platform
for large customers.

Contact:

Platebni instituce Roger a.s.
Merhautova 327/1

613 00 Brno — Cerna Pole
ID: 01729462

Phone: +420 545 217 434
E-mail: info@roger.cz
Internet: www.roger.cz

ENVIROS s.r.o.

KB SmartSolutions invested in ENVIROS
s.r.0. in July 2022 and acquired 100% of
its shares. In addition to ENVIROS, s.r.o.
(C2), the ENVIROS Group also includes
ENVIROS, s.r.o. (SK), ENVIROS d.o.o.

in Beograd, and ENVIROS GLOBAL
LIMITED. ENVIROS is a leading energy,
environmental, and management
consultancy. It operates mainly in the
Czech Republic, but also in Slovakia and
provides its services internationally.

Contact:

ENVIROS, s.r.o.,

Dykova 53/10

101 00 Prague 10 — Vinohrady
ID: 61503240

Phone: +420 284 007 498
E-mail: enviros@enviros.cz
Internet: www.enviros.cz

KB Poradenstvi, s.r.o.

Komeréni banka established fully owned
subsidiary KB Poradenstvi, s.r.o., which
was incorporated on 27 June 2023 by
registration in the Commercial Register.

KB Poradenstvi, s.r.0. was established in
connection with the intended development
of the KB Group’s distribution model.

The company’s registered business is
provision of consumer credits, insurance
and reinsurance, supplementary pension
savings and investment intermediary
activities.

KB Poradenstvi, s.r.o. has a share capital
of CZK 100,000 and has become part

of the regulatory consolidation unit of
Komeréni banka (i.e. KB Group).

Contact:

KB Poradenstvi, s.r.o.
nameésti Junkovych 2772/1
155 00 Praha 5 - Stodulky
ICO: 19438702

Bankovni identita, a.s.

Komeréni banka owned a 17% share in
Bankovni identita, a.s. as of 31 December
2023.

Established on 15 September 2020, the
goal of Bankovni identita, a.s. was to make
the use of client banking identification
available to other online service providers
in the Czech Republic. The company was
established by the three largest Czech
banks, namely Ceska spotitelna, CSOB,
and Komer¢ni banka.

Contact:

Bankovni identita, a.s.
Smrckova 2485/4,

180 00 Prague 8 - Liben
ID: 09513817

E-mail: info@bankid.cz
Internet: www.bankid.cz

Komer¢ni banka, a.s. | Annual Financial Report 2023


http://www.upvest.cz
http://www.monkeydata.com
http://www.lemonero.cz
http://www.roger.cz
http://www.enviros.cz
http://www.bankid.cz

| Corporate governance statement

The Bank, as an issuer of shares admitted to trading on a
European regulated market, is obliged, pursuant to Act No.
256/2004 Coll., on Capital Market Undertakings, as amended,
to prepare an annual financial report including also a corporate
governance statement pursuant to Section 118 (4) and (5) of this
Act, which contains information on the corporate governance.

Information on governance codes and on corporate
governance

Komeréni banka acceded to and upholds all the principal
standards of the Corporate Governance Code of the Czech
Republic (2018) issued by the Czech Institute of Directors on
the basis of international standards of corporate governance

(in particular, G20 / OECD Principles of Corporate Governance
from 2015). Its full text in Czech is available at https://www.mfcr.
cz/cs/o-ministerstvu/odborne-studie-a-vyzkumy/2019/kodex-
spravy-a-rizeni-spolecnosti-cr-201-34812 (hereinafter referred to
as the “Code”).

Komeréni banka’s Board of Directors applies and develops the
aforementioned principles of corporate governance in a spirit of
transparency, accountability, and long-term prospects, and it
translates these best practices into its internal procedures and
regulations.

Compliance with the Code is maintained through the Bank’s
open approach to disclosing information on material matters
of the Bank, in particular concerning its financial position,
dividend policy, performance, ownership, sustainable business
operations and corporate policy in the areas of climate change
and corporate governance. The financial reports provide

a true and fair view of the Bank’s accounting and financial
position. Shareholders are informed of the date, location, and
agenda of the General Meeting, the proposals of the individual
resolutions and their rationale, including information on the
proposal for paying out the share in profit and the method of
this payment at least 30 days before the General Meeting.
Shareholders are informed of their rights relating to their
participation in the General Meeting, including a description of
how to participate in the General Meeting, whether in person or
on the basis of a power of attorney, and have at their disposal
in advance materials concerning the agenda of the General
Meeting. The notice of the General Meeting also explains the
rules and voting procedures governing the General Meeting.
Shareholders are able to vote on motions for resolutions before
the General Meeting is held via an electronic platform for remote
communication and to take “per rollam” decisions in lieu of the
General Meeting. All this information is available on the Bank’s

website and in the press, and press releases are issued regularly.

Furthermore, the Code is fulfilled by the chosen management
system. The Bank has a two-tier management system that
entails a separation of the executive and control functions.

| Corporate governance

The Board of Directors performs all key functions of the Bank’s
management. Operational management is divided among the
individual members of the Board, and each member of the Board
has competence over a certain area of the Bank’s activities
(functional division). The Board of Directors nevertheless decides
collectively at its meetings, which are held regularly at two-week
intervals. Under the Bank’s Articles of Association, members

of the Board are subject to rules and regulations over conflicts
of interest even stricter than as defined by Act No. 90/2012 Coll.,
the Companies and Co-operatives Act, as amended. They are
obliged to inform the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
of any existing or even potential conflicts of interest relating to
functions they perform in any other legal entity and are obliged
to abstain from voting on all matters concerning the Bank’s
relationship to any such legal entity. The Bank’s governance and
management system provides members of the Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board with timely and relevant information
important for the performance of their functions. The Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board apply proper and effective
procedures relating to their conduct while keeping and retaining
records of the decisions taken.

The Supervisory Board is a control body supervising the activities
of the Board of Directors and of the entire Bank. Three of the
Supervisory Board’s nine members are independent (Petr Dvorak,
Petra Wendelova, and Marie Doucet) and three are employee
representatives. All independent members of the Supervisory
Board meet the independence criteria according to the General
Guidelines for Assessment of Suitability EBA/GL/2021/06. The
Supervisory Board is to establish Audit, Risk, Nominations, and
Remuneration committees. Members of the Audit Committee are
elected by the General Meeting. The majority of members of the
Audit Committee, including the Chairperson, are independent
and professionally qualified. The Audit Committee plays an
important role in supervising the Bank’s proper management,
the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, the
auditor’s conduct of the mandatory audit, effectiveness of the
risk management systems (together with the Risk Committee),
and mechanisms of internal management and control. The Risk
Committee monitors the Bank’s approach to risk, its strategy in
the risk area, accepted levels of risk, and risk management. The
Nominations Committee considers the suitability of the members
of the Bank’s bodies, the composition of these bodies, and
compliance with ethical principles and rules within the Bank. The
Remuneration Committee prepares proposals for remuneration
decisions for the Supervisory Board, including those affecting
risk and risk management.

The Board of Directors and Supervisory Board co-ordinate with
one another the main strategies and changes in the management
direction of the Bank. The Board of Directors shall periodically
provide the Supervisory Board with information on the state of
implementing these changes and all relevant facts concerning
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the Bank and the companies under its control. Members of the
Supervisory Board and members of the Board of Directors may
not hold more than the number of positions permitted by the
Banking Act. These requirements were satisfied also in 2023.

There were no fundamental changes during 2023 that would
adversely influence the aforementioned standards for the Bank’s
corporate governance. Komeréni banka will continue to respect
the principles of corporate governance, inasmuch as these

best correspond to the Bank’s business model as well as to the
interests of the Bank and its shareholders and employees.

Internal control and approach to risks in the process of
accounting and preparing financial statements

The Bank uses a number of tools in several areas to ensure true
and accurate presentation of facts in the accounting and proper
compilation of financial statements. These begin with tools for
proper recording of individual transactions, include various
controls, and finally involve preparing the statements and their
control.

The tools used for proper recording of transactions, events,
trades, and the like in the accounting include, in particular, the
selection of appropriate systems (applications) for their recording
and processing, thorough testing during their implementation,
maximum automation of all repetitive processes, and managing
of access rights to individual systems. Setting up systems,
processes, and controls is always formally governed by the
Bank’s internal regulations.

Compliance of those accounting methods employed with IFRS
Accounting Standards in particular is ensured by an independent
department that regularly monitors developments in these
standards and other regulatory rules, analyses effects ensuing
therefrom, and implements the standards in co-operation with
relevant departments. For more information on the rules used,
see Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 3 —
“Principal accounting policies” and Note 43 - “Risk management
and financial instruments”.

The Bank utilises a system of defining responsibilities for
individual ledger accounts (the “ownership system”) under which
a particular employee authorised to transact with the account
and an employee responsible for account analysis are assigned
to each account of the general ledger. The control over account
analysis includes, in particular, the duty to specify at any time the
account balance and to monitor its balance and movements, as
well as responsibility for documentary stock taking of accounts.
The control over account analysis also involves the reconciliation
of data in supporting systems relating to the data in the general
ledger at specified regular intervals.

The area of control tools may be divided into two parts: control
as to the accuracy of input data and follow-up control over the
consistency and integrity of the functioning and accounting of
the individual systems. Control over the accuracy of input data
is performed especially in the Retail Banking, Corporate and
Municipal Banking, and Transaction and Payment Services arms
within the First Level Control system, which constitutes the basis
of the Bank’s internal control system. The First Level Control
system establishes the control activities of the management
employees so that there occurs oversight over operational risks
arising from the activities of the relevant departments; monitoring

of the quality, effectiveness, and reliability of the established
work procedures; verification of the employees’ compliance with
the applicable regulations and procedures; and determination of
corrective measures in cases when deficiencies are identified.

Follow-up control is carried out in particular by the Accounting
and Reporting Department, which especially checks the data
in the accounting by means of analytical procedures. The main
analytical procedures include checking data consistency as of
the current date with the development in the past, consistency
between financial and non-financial data (numbers of
transactions, trades, etc.), and consistency between the changes
in the balance sheet and income statement. The changes in the
development of individual items of the financial statements or
directly in the general ledger accounts are regularly analysed,
and these changes are subsequently reconciled to the changes
in trades, prices for services provided, and market data, or to
changes attributable to one-off items.

An automated system is used to process most financial
statements. In most cases, detailed data from source systems
is used for their creation and this data are reconciled with the
general ledger while at the same time the accuracy of the data in
the general ledger is checked.

The effectiveness of internal controls is evaluated by an
independent Second Level Control system that examines design
and operating effectiveness of both First Level Controls and
operational controls. Key risk indicators (such as the number of
manually processed transactions or the number and volume of
various reconciliation gaps) are also regularly followed up and
evaluated. Their values within the Bank have long been held to
levels indicating a very low risk. The internal control system in
the financial reporting area is also regularly evaluated by Internal
Audit.

Diversity policy

The Bank applies a policy of diversity. As a signatory to the
Diversity Charter, it is committed to the principles of diversity,
flexibility, and inclusion. The Supervisory Board endeavours
within the scope of its competence to ensure that the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board consist of persons meeting
appropriate professional, time-related, and other requirements for
the performance of their duties, that both bodies are balanced in
terms of professional competence and experience, and that the
composition of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board
as a whole is diverse by taking into account the requirements of
the Bank for the specifics of its business. For this purpose, the
Nominations Committee of the Supervisory Board of Komeréni
banka has adopted the Principles of Suitability for the Supervisory
Board and the Board of Directors. These principles reflect the
tenets of corporate governance, EBA guidelines for assessing
suitability of senior management and key management personnel,
requirements of the Companies and Co-operatives Act, the
Banking Act, CNB Decree No. 163/2014 Coll., and Stock Exchange
Standards.

The Bank has also implemented tools to assess the collective and
individual suitability of the members of both bodies. In nominating
candidates for open positions on the Supervisory Board and
Board of Directors, the Nominations Committee follows the
stated principles and instructions and assesses first the balance
of professional competence and experience and the diversity of
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the Supervisory Board’s and Board of Directors’ composition as
a whole.

Diversity is assessed in terms of experience, education,
qualifications, profession, social position, gender, nationality,

and age and is an integral part of the Bank’s strategy. We
consider this diversity one of the Bank’s decisive achievements
in the market, and it helps in building relationships with clients
and partners. Furthermore, the assessment covers the profile

of the current members of the Supervisory Board and Board

of Directors and their specific knowledge, the candidate’s
professional competence, experience, professional achievements,
understanding of the Bank’s activities and its main risks on

the candidate’s side and, last but not least, his or her moral

profile and integrity. The age of a candidate for membership

of the Supervisory Board should not exceed 70 years and a
member of the Supervisory Board should not be a member of
the supervisory board of the same company for more than 12
years. These limits are taken into account in nominating those
candidates submitted to the General Meeting. The Nominations
Committee also considers the target representation of the less-
represented gender according to the accepted principles and the
candidate’s time availability considering the time requirements

of the obligations connected with performing the membership
function. In nominating candidates, if candidate profiles are

equal, the less-represented sex will be preferred. The Bank

takes diversity into account when selecting new members in
accordance with EBA/GL/2021/06. According to the accepted
principles of suitability, the composition of the Supervisory Board
should take into account experience, education, nationality,
cultural environment and age. The Supervisory Board has
complied with the stated requirement for the inclusion of 40%

of the under-represented gender and currently four of the

nine Supervisory Board members are women, thus providing
44.4% representation by the under-represented gender. When
nominating candidates, preference will be given to the under-
represented gender in a case of candidates having equal profiles.
Candidates undergo assessment and evaluation as to their fulfilling
the trustworthiness, knowledge, experience, management, and
independence requirements and respond to questions prepared
for evaluating their suitability for the Bank’s bodies. They submit

a professional CV, an extract from the criminal record, and
references. Once a year, the Nominations Committee evaluates
the trustworthiness, professional competence, and experience of
the individual members of the Supervisory Board and the Board
of Directors and of the two bodies as a whole and submits reports
on this evaluation to the Supervisory Board. These evaluations
form the basis for seeking candidates for open positions and for
ensuring that the two Boards as a whole as well as their members
individually are suitably professional, have sufficient time, and
meet other requirements for performing their activities. In terms of
diversity, the members of the two bodies differ with regard to, for
example, their age, gender, geographical origin, education, and
professional experience, thus allowing for various views within
the Bank’s bodies and meeting the requirements of the EBA
Guidelines.

Based upon the Companies and Co-operatives Act, one-third
of the Supervisory Board’s members consist of employees’
representatives, thus ensuring the proper and effective
exercise of the Bank’s employees’ rights to elect one-third

of the Supervisory Board members and the possibility to

be elected as a Supervisory Board member. Following the

| Corporate governance

election of employee representatives the following employee
representatives were elected for a new term of office with effect
from 15 January 2023: Miroslav Hajek, Ondfej Kudrna, and

Sylva Kynychova. Three members of the Supervisory Board,
Petr Dvorak, Petra Wendelova and, since 21 April 2023, Marie
Doucet, are independent. These members are independent
experts in the financial sector and meet the requirements set by
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and thus
may be considered independent financial experts. Independent
members of the Audit Committee sign an affidavit confirming
their independence. The Bank’s assessment of independence is
based on the profile of independent members of the Supervisory
Board set out in Commission Recommendation 2005/162/EC of
15 February 2005, in particular in Annex |l. EBA’s requirements
for independence of the members of the Supervisory Board are
implemented in the Bank. The Nominations Committee ensures
that all members of the Supervisory Board are able to make their
own objective and independent judgements and decisions when
selecting and regularly evaluating candidates.
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Shares, Shareholders, and the General
Meeting

Komeréni banka'’s registered capital totals CZK 19,004,926,000
and is divided into 190,049,260 ordinary bearer shares, each with
a nominal value of CZK 100, issued as an uncertificated security,
and admitted to trading on the European regulated market.

All the Bank’s shares carry the same rights, have no special rights
attached to them, and constitute 100% of the registered capital.
Transferability of the shares is unlimited.

The shares of Komeréni banka, a. s., do not have restricted
voting rights. The exercise of voting rights may be restricted
only for reasons specified by law. Komeréni banka, a. s., does
not exercise the voting rights attached to its own shares held in
treasury.

Komeréni banka, a. s., is not aware of any agreements between
shareholders that would result in hindering the transferability of
shares or voting rights. Further information on the rights vested

in the shares and their transferability is provided in the section
Securities and debt instruments issued or in Note 35 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements according to IFRS Accounting
Standards.

Information on the structure of the Bank’s equity is also
presented in the Statement of Financial Position and in Note
35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements according to IFRS
Accounting Standards.

Information on direct and indirect voting rights

Major shareholders of Komeréni banka owning more

than 1% of the registered capital as of 31 December 2023
(per the extract from the issuers register taken from the Central
Securities Depository)

Shareholder Proportion of registered capital

Société Générale S.A. 60.353%
Chase Nominees Limited 2.616%
CLEARSTREAM BANKING, s.a. 1.567%
NORTRUST NOMINEES LIMITED 1.425%
Other shareholders 34.039%

Société Générale S.A. provides information on its shareholders'
structure in its Universal Registration Document as well as in its
web presentation”.

" Data as of 31 December 2022 are available at https://investors.societegenerale.
com/en/financial-and-extra-financial-information/share/shareholder-structure

Shareholder structure of Komeréni banka

as of 31 December 2023

(per the extract from the issuers register taken from the Central
Securities Depository)

Number of Proportion Proportion

sharehold- in number of of registered

ers shareholders capital

Number of shareholders 73,478 100% 100%

of which: legal entities 849 1.16% 82.81%

private individuals 72,629 98.84% 17.19%

Legal entities 849 1.16% 82.81%
from the Czech

of which: Republic 400 0.55% 2.96%

from other countries 449 0.61% 79.85%

Private individuals 72,629 98.84% 17.19%
from the Czech

of which: Republic 67,449 91.79% 14.87%

from other countries 5,180 7.05% 2.32%

The Bank has no requirements for ownership of the Bank’s
shares by members of the Board of Directors.

The General Meeting is the supreme body of the Bank. The
Annual General Meeting is held at least once per year, and in no
case later than 4 months from the last day of each accounting
period. A quorum of the General Meeting shall be constituted if
the attending shareholders hold shares the total nominal value
of which exceeds 30% of the Bank’s registered capital and are
entitled to vote. The quorum is confirmed at the time of opening
the General Meeting and always before each vote. The General
Meeting shall approve resolutions by a majority of votes of the
attending shareholders unless legal regulations or the Articles
of Association require a qualified majority of votes. The General
Meeting’s order of business is governed by the agenda stated

in the notice of the General Meeting, which contains proposed
resolutions and their justification and further information about
the conditions of shareholders’ participation and exercise of
shareholder rights. At least 30 days prior to the General Meeting,
the General Meeting shall be convened by means of a public
notice calling the General Meeting, which shall be posted on the
Bank’s website www.kb.cz and published in the Mlada Fronta
DNES daily newspaper. All documents relating to corporate
governance are published on the Bank’s website. Issues not
included in the proposed agenda for the General Meeting are
decided upon only with the attendance and consent of all the
Bank’s shareholders. The General Meeting shall be opened by

a member of the Board of Directors authorised for this purpose
by the Board of Directors or a person designated by the Board of
Directors. He or she shall also conduct the General Meeting until
a Chairperson of the General Meeting is elected.

Unless otherwise stipulated by law or the Articles of Association,
all persons registered in the list of attending shareholders and
present at the General Meeting at the time of calling a vote are
entitled to vote. The sequence of voting corresponds to the order
on the General Meeting’s agenda. The casting of votes shall be
carried out using an electronic voting system. Each CZK 100 of
nominal share value represents one vote. Any proposal presented
by the Board of Directors shall be voted upon first. Should such
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proposal of the Board of Directors be accepted by the required
majority, other proposals or counter-proposals to this point shall
not be voted upon. Other proposals or counter-proposals shall be
voted upon in the sequence in which they have been presented.
Should such a proposal or counter-proposal be approved in

a vote by the General Meeting, other proposals or counter-
proposals shall not be voted upon.

The Articles of Association allow the possibility of electronic
correspondent voting before the general meeting if the Bank’s
Board of Directors so decides and while thus voting under the
conditions specified in the notice of the General Meeting and
the possibility of taking a resolution in lieu of holding a General
Meeting.

The General Meeting has within its powers to:

a) decide upon changes to the Articles of Association, with the
exception of a change in consequence of an increase in the
registered capital by the authorised Board of Directors or
a change made on the basis of other legal circumstances;

b) decide upon a change in the amount of the registered
capital, except that, unless it is reduced to cover a loss, the
registered capital may be reduced only upon prior approval
of the Czech National Bank;

c) elect and remove two-thirds of members of the Supervisory
Board; elect and remove members of the Audit Committee;

d) decide upon the possibility of setting off a monetary claim
towards the Bank against a claim to be used for payment of
the issue price, including the draft of the relevant contract
for set-off;

e) decide upon a conversion of par value shares into no-par
value shares or the conversion of no-par value shares into
par value shares, or on the splitting of shares into multiple
shares or merging multiple shares into one share;

f)  decide to issue convertible or priority bonds of the Bank;

g) decide to modify the rights attached to individual classes
of the shares;

h) approve the annual financial statements, extraordinary
financial statements, consolidated financial statements,
and, as established by law, interim financial statements;

i)  decide upon distribution of profit or other funds of the Bank
or coverage of a loss;

i) approve the service contracts with the members of the
Supervisory Board and of the Audit Committee;

k) decide on transformation of the Bank, unless the act
regulating transformations of companies and co-operatives
establishes otherwise, provided that prior consent of the
Czech National Bank has been given where so required by
law;

I)  decide to wind up the Bank with the prior consent of the
Czech National Bank;

m) approve the final report on progress of liquidation and
proposal for use of the liquidation balance of the Bank’s
assets;

n) decide to file for admitting the participation securities of
the Bank to trading in the European regulated market or
for excluding these securities from trading in the European
regulated market;

0) approve the transfer or pledging of a business or such part
of assets and liabilities entailing a substantial change to the
real business activities of the Bank;

p) charge the Board of Directors to decide upon an increase in
the registered capital under the conditions specified by law;

| Corporate governance

q) decide to acquire the Bank’s shares into treasury in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies
and Co-operatives Act;

r)  decide upon elimination or restriction of the pre-emptive
right to acquire convertible or priority bonds, elimination
or restriction of the pre-emptive right to subscribe for
new shares in accordance with the Companies and Co-
operatives Act;

s) approve the acquisition or disposal of assets, when the law
SO requires;

t)  decide upon appointment of the auditor to make the
statutory audit or to verify other documents if such
appointment is required by legal regulations;

u) convey principles and instructions to the Board of Directors
of the Bank (with the exception of instructions regarding the
business management of the Bank unless provided to the
Board of Directors upon its request); and approve principles
and convey instructions to the Supervisory Board (with the
exception of instructions regarding the statutory duty to
check the competence of the Board of Directors);

v)  provide its consent regarding a contract for settlement of
a loss caused by a breach of the duty of due care on the
part of a member of a body of the Bank;

w) decide upon suspending the performance of the duties of a
member of the Bank’s elected body in the event of a conflict
of interests pursuant to the Companies and Co-operatives
Act, or prohibit a member of the Bank’s elected body from
entering into a contract not in the interest of the Bank or with
a person or entity who is influential or controlling and/or with
a person or entity who is controlled by the same controlling
person or entity that is not in the interest of the Bank. This
does not apply if the relevant person or entity with whom the
Bank should conclude a contract is a person managing the
Bank or another person or entity forming a group with the
Bank;

x)  decide that the amount of variable remuneration for
persons whose work activities have a material impact on
the risk profile of the Bank may be higher than the fixed
remuneration component but not more than twice the fixed
component of the remuneration;

y) approve the remuneration policy and report on remuneration
of the members of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board;

Z) approve material transactions with related parties in cases
where required by Act No. 256/2004 Coll. on Capital Market
Undertakings, as amended; and

za) decide on other issues which according to the generally
binding legal regulation or the Articles of Association are
entrusted to the competence of the General Meeting.

The results and information from the General Meeting are

available on Komeréni banka’s website www.kb.cz.

Principle resolutions of Komercni banka’s General
Meeting held in 2023

The General Meeting convened on 20 March 2023 took place on
20 April 2023 and approved the annual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements of Komeréni banka for the year
2022.

The General Meeting approved distribution of the profit of
Komeréni banka, a.s., for the year 2022 in the amount of
CZK 17,571,697,925.55 as follows:
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Share in the profit to be distributed among shareholders obliged to report to the Czech National Bank its intention to make
(dividends) CZK 11,482,776,289.20 changes in the Articles of Association relating to those particulars
Retained earnings CZK 6,088,921,636.35 which must be stated in the Articles of Association based on

a requirement set forth by law.
The amount of the dividend per share is CZK 60.42 before
taxation.

Furthermore, the General Meeting approved the Remuneration
Report, and appointed the company Deloitte Audit s.r.0., having
its registered office at Italska 2581/67, Vinohrady, 120 00 Prague
2, Company ID No. 49620592, as the external auditor of Komeréni
banka for 2023 and the company Deloitte Audit s.r.0. having

its registered office at Digital Park Il, Einsteinova 23, Bratislava
851 01, Company ID No. 31343414, as the auditor of KB’s foreign
registered branch in Slovakia.

The Bank has entered into no significant contracts which take
effect, are altered, or terminate if the person or entity in control
of the issuer changes as a consequence of a takeover bid. The
Bank has entered into no contract with a member of its Board of
Directors or any employee stipulating an obligation for the Bank
to perform in the event that such person would cease to serve as
a member of the Board of Directors or cease to be employed in
connection with a takeover bid. The Bank has not established any
programmes enabling the members of the Board of Directors and
employees of the Bank to acquire the Bank’s securities, options
on these securities, or other rights thereto.

Information about special rules on the revision of the
Bank’s Articles of Association

According to the Bank’s Articles of Association, decisions on
amendments to the Articles of Association are within the powers
of the General Meeting. Proposed resolutions for amendments
to the Articles of Association and their justification are either
provided in the notice of the General Meeting or the notice
contains a brief and concise description and justification.

The complete draft amendment to the Articles of Association

is published together with the notice on the Bank’s website.
Proposed changes in the Articles of Association are available for
shareholders’ inspection at no charge at the Bank’s headquarters
for the period established for convening of the General Meeting.
The Bank shall notify its shareholders of these rights in the notice
of the General Meeting.

If a shareholder wishes to raise counter-proposals to the
proposed changes to the Articles of Association at the General
Meeting, the shareholder is obliged to deliver the written wording
of such proposal or counter-proposal to the Bank no later than
five business days prior to the day of the General Meeting. The
Board of Directors shall notify its shareholders of the wording of
the counter-proposal along with its viewpoint with regard to it in
the manner specified for the convening of the General Meeting.

Decisions on changes in the Articles of Association are made
by the General Meeting and carried by two-thirds of the votes
of the attending shareholders upon a proposal of the Board
of Directors, of the Supervisory Board, or of one or more
shareholders in accordance with the Companies and Co-
operatives Act and the Articles of Association. Decisions on
changes in the Articles of Association must be recorded by
notarial deed containing the approved text of the wording of
changes in the Articles of Association. Komer&ni banka is

@ Komeréni banka, a.s.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the governing body managing the
Bank’s activities. It is charged with business management,
including to ensure the proper keeping of the Bank’s accounting
records, integrity of the accounting and financial reporting
system, reliability of financial and operating control, as well

as smooth conduct of activities and the Bank’s operations on

the financial market in compliance with the object and plan

of its activities. The Board ensures consistent and effective
implementation of the risk management, compliance, and
internal audit functions. It further ensures the creation of

a comprehensive and adequate management and control system,
its compliance with legal regulations, and is responsible for its
continuous functioning and effectiveness. During the year, the
Board of Directors completes various educational programmes
and trainings, for example in the areas of risk management,
sustainability, anti-money laundering and preventing the financing
of terrorism, international sanctions and ethics, and creating an
inclusive working environment, including compliance with the
Code of Conduct. The Board of Directors is also using these
means to continuously expand its own expertise.

The Board of Directors ensures establishment and maintenance
of the management and control system so as to ensure the
adequacy of information and communication in conducting the
Bank’s operations.

The Board of Directors shall decide upon all matters concerning
the Bank unless assigned to the competence of the General
Meeting, the Supervisory Board, or the Audit Committee by law
or by the Articles of Association. The Board of Directors consists
of six members, natural persons, who satisfy the conditions
established in legal regulations for serving as a member of the
Bank’s Board of Directors and who are elected for 4-year terms
by an absolute majority of all Supervisory Board members

at the recommendation of the Nominations Committee. The
Nominations Committee ensures the trustworthiness, adequate
professional qualifications, and experience of the members of
the Board of Directors, and that the expertise of the members
of the Board encompasses the requirements demanded of the
Board of Directors as a whole for managing the Bank’s activities.
The professional qualifications, trustworthiness, and experience
of the members of the Bank’s Board of Directors are assessed
by the Czech National Bank. The six-member Board of Directors
currently consists of experts with many years of experience in
various areas of the financial sector both in the Czech Republic
and abroad. The Board of Directors is gender diverse and
includes citizens of three countries.

In accordance with the requirement of the Czech National Bank,
Komeréni banka declares that the below members of the Board
of Directors of Komeréni banka have not in the past 5 years
been convicted of any criminal offence and that no charges,
accusations, or other sanctions have been brought against
them by any regulatory body. No bankruptcy, receivership, or
liquidation has been declared in relation to the stated persons
during the past 5 years.

In relation to his or her work in the Bank, no person with
executive power has any conflict of interests between the duties
of a person with executive power in the Bank and that person’s
private interests or other duties. Didier Colin has concluded an
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employment contract with Société Générale S.A., and he was
delegated to serve as a director of the Bank.

Method of acting in legal matters on the Bank’s behalf

The Board of Directors, shall act on behalf of the Bank in all
matters, either by all members of the Board of Directors jointly or
by any two members jointly.

Composition of the Board of Directors in 2023

Jan Juchelka

Chairman of the Board of Directors

(since 3 August 2017 previously a member of the Board of
Directors since 1 July 2006,

re-elected on 2 July 2010, membership terminated as of
31 July 2012, re-elected on 4 August 2021)

Didier Colin

Member of the Board of Directors

(since 1 October 2017 previously a member of the Board of
Directors since 9 October 2004, re-elected on 10 October 2008,
membership terminated as of 31 December 2010, re-elected on
2 October 2021)

David Formanek
Member of the Board of Directors
(since 1 August 2018, re-elected on 2 August 2022)

Jitka Haubova
Member of the Board of Directors
(since 4 June 2020)

Miroslav Hirsl
Member of the Board of Directors
(since 1 August 2018, re-elected on 2 August 2022)

Margus Simson

Member of the Board of Directors

(since 14 January 2019, re-elected with effect from 15 January
2023)

Jan Juchelka

A graduate of the Silesian University in Opava, he worked in
the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic from 1995,
and during 2002 to 2005 he was Chairman of its Executive
Committee. From 1999 to 2006, he was a member of the
Supervisory Board of Komeréni banka. He joined Komeréni
banka in 20086, first as head of Prague’s Corporate Banking
Business Division and later that year he became a member of the
Board of Directors responsible for managing Top Corporations
and Investment Banking. From 2012, he worked in the Société
Générale headquarters in Corporate and Investment Banking
as Managing Director, Head of Coverage with responsibility for
corporate clients in the Central and Eastern European Region,
Middle East, and Africa. He also worked as Senior Banker for the
Central and Eastern European Region. KB’s Board of Directors
elected Mr Juchelka as Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of Komeréni banka with effect from 3
August 2017. Jan Juchelka is President of the Czech Banking
Association, a member of CCEF (Conseiller du Commerce
Exterieur de la France), Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Modréa pyramida, and, since January 2022, also Chairman of
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the Management Board of the Nadace KB foundation. In 2020,
he was also a member of the National Economic Council of the
Government (NERV).

Didier Colin

A graduate in finance from Dauphine University in Paris and

also City University of New York (MBA), he has many years’
experience within Société Générale Group, where he started
working during the early 1990s in the Inspection arm. In 2000, he
was promoted to Deputy Country Manager and subsequently to
Country Manager for Canada. From this position, he moved into
Komeréni banka in 2004 as Member of the Board of Directors
responsible for Risk Management. In 2011, he became Director
for the European Region; as part of this function, he supervised
Société Générale’s activities in the Central and Eastern European
Region. From 2013, he was deputy to the CEO of BRD Romania
responsible for managing the bank’s risk management. With
effect from 1 October 2017, he was elected by the Supervisory
Board as a member of the Board of Directors of Komeréni banka
in charge of Risk Management. He also holds the position of
Chief Compliance Officer.

David Formanek

A graduate of the University of Economics in Prague in the field
of foreign trade economics. From 1993 to 2001, he worked within
the branch of Deutsche Bank AG in Prague. Between 2001 and
2014, he worked at Komer¢ni banka, first as Deputy Director and
subsequently as Director of the Prague Business Division, then
as Deputy Director for Human Resources and Executive Director
for Human Resources. Between 2014 and 2018, he worked as
CEO and Chairman of the Board of Directors of Modra pyramida.
Since August 2018, he has been a member of the Board of
Directors of Komeréni banka, responsible for corporate and
investment banking.

Jitka Haubova

She graduated from the University of Economics in Prague,
majoring in finance, studied at Galilee College in Israel, obtained
a Certificate of Structural Funds Specialist from the European
Commission, and is a certified international auditor for quality
processes as well as a certified Python programmer. At the
beginning of her career, she joined the government agency
CzechTrade, where she also held the position of CEO. For
several years she co-owned a family cafe. Jitka Haubova joined
KB in 2006 in the Trade Finance Department. Since 2012, she
has held various managerial roles in Corporate and Municipal
Banking, which she managed for 4 years. Since 2020, she has
been a member of the Board of Directors, responsible for the
Bank’s operations and innovation, i.e. for the management

of client accounts and authorisations, the legal department,
transaction processing, payments and support services. She

is also responsible for the sustainability agenda and its co-
ordination within KB. She chairs the Supervisory Board of KB’s
charity Nadace KB. She is regularly ranked among the best
managers in the Czech Republic by the Economia publishing
house and among the most influential women in FinTech by
Forbes and Vogue. She has also been a finalist in the Manager of
the Year competition for public service organised by the Czech
Management Association and has been listed among the Faces
of Sustainability by Cover Story. Since January 1, 2023, she has
been President of the International Chamber of Commerce in the
Czech Republic.

Miroslav Hirsl

A graduate from the University of Economics in Prague with

a focus on foreign trade and banking and postgraduate studies
at the Graduate School of Banking in Boulder, Colorado, United
States of America. From 1996 to 2006, he worked in various
positions within Komeréni banka, first at a branch and a regional
branch in Hradec Kralové, then at a regional branch and at
headquarters in Prague. From 2006 to 2014, he worked for
Modra pyramida, first as a director for business synergy, then

as a member of the Board of Directors, Deputy Chief Executive
Officer, Executive Director of Sales and Marketing, and finally as
Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors, First Deputy CEO,
and Executive Director of Sales and Marketing. Between 2014 and
2018, he served as CEO and member of the Board of Directors
of Société Générale Montenegro Bank, a.d. in Montenegro. Since
August 2018, he has been a member of the Board of Directors of
Komeréni banka, responsible for retail banking.

Margus Simson

An economics graduate of Tallinn University of Technology
Estonia. From 2000 to 2006, he worked as a director of the

Web Environment Department at SEB. From 2006 to 2009, he
was Director of Electronic Channels at Swedbank. From 2009

to 2013, he held various IT positions within Eesti Energia, the
largest energy producer and supplier in Estonia. In 2014, he was
Deputy Director of the Estonian Information Systems Authority
Riigi infoslisteem Amet. From 2009 to 2017, he worked as a digital
strategy expert and CEO at Ziraff, the largest digital services
company in Estonia. From 2017 to 2019, he held the position of
CDO and Digitalisation Director at Luminor Bank. Effective from 14
January 2019, he was elected a member of the Board of Directors
of Komeréni banka by the Supervisory Board with responsibility
for information technology.
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Concurrent membership of Board of Directors members in
the bodies of other legal entities

Members Position

Jan JUCHELKA

Company

Chairman of the
Supervisory Board

Modra pyramida
stavebni spofitelna
Chairman of the
Management Board

Nadace Komer¢ni banky

Ceska bankovni
asociace (Czech Banking
Association)

Aliance pro bezemisni
budoucnost (Alliance for
an Emission-Free Future)

CCEF (Conseiller du
Commerce Exterieur de
la France)

President

President "

Member

David FORMANEK Member of the
Supervisory Board

Member of the
Supervisory Board

Member of the
Supervisory Board

ALD Automotive

SG Equipment Finance
Czech Republic

ALD Automotive Slovakia

Jitka HAUBOVA Member of the

Supervisory Board

Modra pyramida
stavebni spofitelna

Chairwoman of the
Supervisory Board

Chairwoman

Nadace Komer&ni banky

International Chamber of
Commerce in the Czech
Republic (ICC Czech
Republic)

Miroslav HIRSL Chairman of the

Supervisory Board

Chairman of the
Supervisory Board
Member of the
Supervisory Board

Member of the
Supervisory Board

KB Penzijni spole¢nost
ESSOX

KB SmartSolutions
Komeréni pojistovna

Chairman of the
Supervisory Board

ESSOX FINANCE,
Slovakia

Margus SIMSON Member of the Bankovni identita

Supervisory Board
Chairman of the
Supervisory Board

Teeme Ara Sihtasutus,
Estonia

" Since 9 November 2023.

Activity report of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors meets at its regular, periodic meetings,
usually once every two weeks. Meetings are convened and
presided over by the Chairman of the Board of Directors or, in his
or her absence, by a member of the Board of Directors authorised
to do so by the Board of Directors. Should it not be possible to
hold a Board of Directors’ meeting, a decision may be adopted by
voting remotely in accordance with the Articles of Association.

In 2023, the Board of Directors met at 21 regular meetings and
2 extraordinary meetings. In lieu of holding a physical meeting,
the Board of Directors voted remotely 8 times in accordance
with the Bank’s Articles of Association. The average attendance
at Board meetings was 95.65% and the average participation in
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remote voting was 91.67%. Meetings lasted an average of 1 hour
10 minutes. The Board of Directors is able to pass a resolution

if an absolute majority of the members of the Board of Directors
attend the meeting. Resolutions of the Board of Directors shall
be adopted by an absolute majority of those members of the
Board of Directors present, with the exception that election of
the Chairman of the Board of Directors must be by an absolute
majority of all members of the Board of Directors.

Members Position Attendance*
Jan JUCHELKA Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer 97%
Didier COLIN Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director, CRO &
CCO 90%

David FORMANEK Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Corporate
and Investment Banking 94%

Jitka HAUBOVA Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director and Chief

Operations Officer 94%

Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Retail
Banking 94%

Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director and Chief
Digital Officer 100%

Secretary: Petra LONGINOVA

Average attendance at all meetings and remote voting
combined: 95%

Average meeting length 1 hour 10 minutes

Miroslav HIRSL

Margus SIMSON

* Average attendance at all meetings and remote voting combined.

In 2023, the Board of Directors examined KB Group’s annual
financial results for 2022, the consolidated and unconsolidated
financial statements of the Bank as of 31 December 2022,

and the notes thereon prepared in accordance with IFRS.

These statements were submitted to the Supervisory Board

for review and then to the General Meeting for approval. The
Board of Directors discussed and subsequently submitted to

the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board its proposal for
distribution of the 2022 profit, which had been discussed with the
CNB. The General Meeting approved that proposal, as well.

The Board of Directors also discussed other proposals to be
dealt with by the General Meeting, in particular the report on
relations among related entities, the proposal for the appointment
of an external auditor, and other matters falling within the
competence of the General Meeting. It also approved the Bank’s
annual financial report for 2022 and the Bank’s semi-annual
report for 2023. It was also presented a contract with the external
auditor and documents relating to the provision of non-audit
services.

The Board of Directors regularly discussed the quarterly results of
KB Group. It continuously dealt with assessing the Bank’s capital
adequacy and also approved the Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP), which is submitted to the Czech
National Bank on the basis of CNB Decree No. 163/2014 Coll.,

on the performance of activities of banks, credit unions and
investment firms, as amended. In this context, it also approved
the ICAAP 2023 Semi-Annual Report, which was also submitted
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to the CNB. The Board of Directors approved the dividend policy
for 2023 and submitted the proposal for distribution of the 2022
profit to the Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board, the CNB,
and the General Meeting.

In addition, reports on the market situation, the development

of structural risks for each quarter of the year, and KB Group’s
budget for 2023 were discussed. As part of its activity, the Board
of Directors also regularly reviewed the risks in the area of risk
management, it discussed reports on the development of market
or capital risks and on the development of lending in the capital
markets. It also approved lending powers and discussed and
approved selected transactions within the scope of its powers. In
the IT area, the Board approved the Cyber Security Strategy for
2023 to 2025 and, last but not least, it received a report on client
complaints received and also dealt with reports on significant
litigations.

During 2023, the Board of Directors optimised the functioning
of its committees, with three new committees being launched
and two existing committees being transferred to the perimeter
of the Chief Risk Officer. Certain responsibilities of the Board of
Directors were subsequently delegated to the newly established
committees, particularly in the areas of risk management,
compliance, and human resources.

Part of the compliance risk agenda was delegated to a
Board-level Compliance Committee. The Board discussed

the conclusions of this Committee, including its assessment

of conflicts of interest, the annual MiFID report, as well as its
reports on the system against money laundering and financing

of terrorism and on implementing the Code of Conduct.
Furthermore, the Board of Directors discussed new regulations
that impact the Bank and must be applied, including their
expected evolution in the next period. The Board of Directors also
updated the list of employees identified as having work activities
with material impact on the Bank’s risk profile. In 2023, the Board
of Directors also addressed the issue of recovery procedures

in accordance with Directive 2014/59/EU, in its current wording,
and Act 374/2015 Coll., as subsequently amended, and in this
context, to meet regulatory requirements, it agreed to increase
the Bank’s Tier 2 capital through a subordinated loan from
Société Générale.

In the area of internal audit, the Board of Directors discussed

a number of documents. It discussed reports on the status of
corrective actions in each period of 2023 and was regularly
informed of all internal audit actions and of the management

of corrective actions. These actions’ proper implementation

was given the utmost attention. The Board also considered

the results of the risk mapping exercise, which served as the
basis for preparing the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2024 and
the Strategic Plan for 2025-2028 and for their approval by the
Board of Directors. This plan was then submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Supervisory Board. Discussed, too, were the
measures (and the status of their implementation) taken on the
basis of findings contained in the Constructive Service Letter,
which was prepared and submitted to the Board of Directors by
the external auditor Deloitte Audit s.r.o. The Board of Directors
assessed the overall functionality and effectiveness of the Bank’s
management and control system, concluding that the system is
functional and effective, albeit with some areas for improvement.
The Board of Directors also continued to consider the strategic

direction of the Bank in the period ahead and took further steps
as part of the ongoing KB 2025 strategy.

The Board of Directors discussed all matters falling within its
scope of powers as the sole shareholder in exercising the powers
of the General Meeting in KB Group’s subsidiaries, such as
approval of the financial statements, election and remuneration
of members of their bodies, and appointment of the auditor. It
also actively participated in decision-making activities within legal
entities where the Bank does not hold 100% of the voting rights.
The Board of Directors discussed increasing the Bank’s stakes

in some companies, agreed to increase the equity of Modra
pyramida stavebni spofitelna, a.s., and further agreed to deepen
co-operation with other banks in a shared ATM network.

As part of the search for a more efficient operating model

for KB Group, the Board of Directors discussed with certain
subsidiaries the possibility of taking over selected activities and
discussed more efficient use of synergies within the KB Group. In
several areas, agendas and staff were transferred. Similarly, the
Board of Directors decided on several organisational changes to
ensure that the structure of the various units corresponds to the
needs of the Bank. At the same time, it was kept informed of the
status of collective bargaining and entered into two amendments
to the collective agreement with the trade union.

Last but not least, the Board of Directors closely monitored and
discussed impacts of the still ongoing Russian aggression in
Ukraine and the impacts of the energy crisis on the economy, and
it was informed of repayments to the clients of Sberbank CZ, a.s.
(under liquidation). At the same time, it was informed about issues
discussed within the Czech Banking Association and current
developments in the field of regulation and legal standards.

Committees established by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors establishes specialised committees to
which it delegates authority for making decisions in the various
activity areas assigned to them. It authorises them to co-ordinate
selected activities and to exchange information and opinions. The
Board of Directors approves the charters of these committees,
while their members are appointed by the CEO. These
committees include the following:

Strategy and Executive Committee of the Board of
Directors (SEC)

The Committee defines, decides, and monitors the Bank’s
business strategy and business activities, including pricing
within business segments, except for Investment Banking.
The Committee also decides on the Bank’s transformation
and future direction; expresses its opinions on the content of
changes, their compliance with the Bank’s strategy, and their
interdependencies; and approves the amounts of financial
and non-financial resources required for their implementation,
including subsequent regular monitoring. Decisions are taken
by the chairperson in accordance with the consensus of all
participants.
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Members Position Attendance*
Jan JUCHELKA Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer 100%
Didier COLIN Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director, CRO &
CCO 90%

David FORMANEK Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Corporate
and Investment Banking 100%

Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director and Chief
Operations Officer 95%

Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Retail
Banking 100%

Member of the Board, Senior
Executive Director and Chief Digital

Jitka HAUBOVA

Miroslav HIRSL

Margus SIMSON

Officer 100%
Hana KOVAROVA  Executive Director, Brand Strategy

and Communication 86%
Ctirad LOLEK Executive Director, Human Resources 90%

Jiri SPERL Executive Director, Strategy and

Finance 90%
Michal VYTISKA Strategic Business Development

Manager 90%
Secretary of the Committee: Petra LONGINOVA
Average attendance at all meetings: 94%

Average meeting length 3 hours

* Average attendance at meetings.

Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO)

The Assets and Liabilities Committee makes and proposes
decisions regarding asset and liability management in the Bank.
Each member of the Committee has one vote. If a consensus is
not reached, the Committee acts based upon a simple majority of
those members present.

Members Position Attendance*
Jiti SPERL Executive Director, Strategy and

Finance 100%
Marek DOTLACIL ~ ALM Manager 100%
Tomas FUCHS Manager of Treasury 100%
Tomas Executive Director, Investment
HOCHMEISTER Banking 80%
Tomas KROUTIL ~ Manager of Market and Structural

Risks 73%
Dalimil ] Head of Trading
VYSKOVSKY 90%
Milan ZIARAN COO Risk Management 60%
Secretary of the Committee: Marek DOTLACIL
Average attendance at all meetings: 86%

Average meeting length 2 hours

* Average attendance at meetings.
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Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)
As of 1 July 2023, this is no longer a committee of the Board of
Directors but a committee under the Chief Risk Officer.

Investment Banking New Product Committee (IB NPC)

The Investment Banking New Product Committee makes and
proposes decisions on new investment banking products,
depository services, custody, and investment products for
private banking in accordance with its charter. Its activities
include assessing the risks related to new or significantly altered
products, establishing the conditions for launching products, and
monitoring that these conditions are fulfilled. A consensus of all
members is sought. If a consensus is not reached, the decision is
made by the CEO.

Attendance*

Members Position

Didier COLIN Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, CRO &

CCO 100%

David FORMANEK Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Corporate

and Investment Banking 100%
Alan Johan COQ Chief Operating Officer — Investment

Banking / Chapter Lead of Product

Owners — Markets Technology Tribe 100%
Ida BALUSKOVA  Manager of Accounting and

Reporting 100%
Jiti CABRADA Manager of Credit Risk Assessment 100%
Tomas DOLEZAL  Manager of Compliance 100%
Jakub DOSTALEK  Manager of Tax 100%
Marek DOTLACIL ~ Manager of ALM 100%
Tomas FUCHS Manager of Treasury 100%
Tomas HORA Head of Legal — Investment Products 100%
Roch POLETTI Management Accounting Manager 100%
Tomas KROUTIL ~ Manager of Market and Structural

Risks 100%
Dusan ; Operational Risk Manager
PAMETICKY 100%
Ivana OPOVA Head of Steering and Quality 100%
Secretary of the Committee: Hana KUCEROVA
Average attendance at all meetings: 100%

Average meeting length 1 hour

* Average attendance at meetings.
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Corporate and Retail Banking New Product Committee
(CRB NPC)

The Corporate and Retail Banking New Product Committee
makes and proposes decisions on new products other than
investment banking products in accordance with its charter.

Its activities include assessing the risks related to new or
significantly altered products, establishing the conditions for
launching products, and monitoring that these conditions are
met. A consensus of all members is sought. If a consensus is not
reached, the decision is made by the Chief Executive Officer.

Members Position Attendance*
Didier COLIN Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director, CRO &

CCO 100%
Jitka HAUBOVA Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director and Chief

Operations Officer 100%
Martin BERDYCH  Legal Services Manager 100%
Lukas FRIDRICH Retail Segment Tribe leader 100%
Tomas CHOUTKA Head of Regulatory Compliance 100%
Thomas Management Accounting Manager
JARSAILLON to
07/2023 100%
Jiff OBRUCA Enterprise Architect 100%
Ivana OPOVA Head of Steering and Quality 100%
Dusan ] Operational Risk Manager
PAMETICKY 100%
Pavel POLAK Head of Security Center of Expertise,

CISO 100%
Roch POLETTI Management Accounting Manager
from 08/2023 100%
Jan SEIFERT Fraud Prevention and Detection

Manager 100%
Blanka . Corporate Segment Tribe leader
SVOBODOVA 100%
Petr SNAJDR Data Engineer 100%
Petr TROJEK Supervision and Measurement

Manager 100%
Marek VOSATKA Executive Director, Retail Banking 100%
Secretary of the Committee: Marcela KRALOVA
Average attendance at all meetings: 100%

Average meeting length 1 hour

* Average attendance at meetings.

Operational Risk Committee (ORC)
As of 1 July 2023, this is no longer a committee of the Board of
Directors but a committee under the Chief Risk Officer.

Compliance Committee (ComCo)

The Compliance Committee reviews normative procedures
related to compliance risks, as well as proposals and
recommendations falling within the compliance risk area. The
Committee discusses current compliance risks, legal and
regulatory changes (inclusive of future legislation), including with
respect to their operational and business implications, as well
as material failures in internal processes, non-compliance with
regulations, and the results of supervisory findings. Decisions are
taken by the Committee’s chair based upon the consensus of all
participants. The Committee became a standing committee of
the Board of Directors on 4 September 2023.

Members Position Attendance*
Jan JUCHELKA Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer 100%
Didier COLIN Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director, CRO &

CCO 100%
David FORMANEK Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director, Corporate

and Investment Banking 100%
Jitka HAUBOVA Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director and Chief

Operations Officer 100%
Miroslav HIRSL Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director, Retail

Banking 100%
Margus SIMSON Member of the Board, Senior

Executive Director and Chief Digital

Officer 100%
Alexandra SG CPL representative
MAZIERES 100%
Vincent SG CPL representative
SOULIGNAC 100%
Secretary of the Committee: Toma$ DOLEZAL
Average attendance at all meetings: 100%

Average meeting length 0.5 hours

* Average attendance at meetings.

Enterprise Risk Committee (ERC)

The Enterprise Risk Committee ensures the management and
reporting of key transversal processes for the management of
financial and non-financial risks within KB Group. The Committee
considers, amongst other things, the business risk strategy and
the Bank’s risk appetite documents — the Risk Appetite Statement
and the Risk Appetite Framework. Decisions are taken by the
Committee’s chair based upon the consensus of all participants.
The Committee was established as of 31 March 2023.
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Members Position Attendance*
Jan JUCHELKA Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer 100%
Didier COLIN Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director, CRO &
CCO 100%

David FORMANEK Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Corporate
and Investment Banking 100%

Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director and Chief
Operations Officer 100%

Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Retail
Banking 100%

Member of the Board, Senior
Executive Director and Chief Digital

Jitka HAUBOVA

Miroslav HIRSL

Margus SIMSON

Officer 100%
Philippe BRUN SG RISQ representative 25%
Secretary of the Committee: Milan ZIARAN
Average attendance at all meetings: 89%

Average meeting length 0.5 hours

* Average attendance at meetings.

Human Resources Committee of KB Group (HRCO)

The Human Resources Committee of KB Group ensures the
management and reporting of key transversal processes for the
area of human resources within KB Group. Decisions are taken by
the Committee’s chair based upon consensus of all participants.
The Committee was established as of 19 June 2023.

Members Position Attendance*
Jan JUCHELKA Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chief Executive Officer 100%
Didier COLIN Member of the Board of Directors,

Senior Executive Director, CRO &
CCO 100%

David FORMANEK Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Corporate
and Investment Banking 100%

Jitka HAUBOVA Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director and Chief

Operations Officer 100%

Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director, Retail
Banking 100%

Member of the Board of Directors,
Senior Executive Director and Chief

Miroslav HIRSL

Margus SIMSON

Digital Officer 100%
Hana KOVAROVA  Executive Director, Brand Strategy

and Communication 100%
Ctirad LOLEK Executive Director, Human Resources 100%
Jiti SPERL Executive Director, Strategy and

Finance 100%
Michal VYTISKA Strategic Business Development

Manager 100%
Secretary of the Committee: Veronika BENDOVA
Average attendance at all meetings: 100%

Average meeting length 1.25 hour

* Average attendance at meetings.
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Information about special rules for the election and
removal of members of the Board of Directors

Members of Komeréni banka’s Board of Directors are elected
by the Supervisory Board upon nomination by its Nominations
Committee. A nominee must receive an absolute majority of
votes of all Supervisory Board members. Members of the Board
of Directors are elected to terms of 4 years. Only persons
fulfilling the conditions for serving as a member of a Board of
Directors as specified by the Civil Code, Companies and Co-
operatives Act, and Banking Act may become members of

the Board of Directors. The Nominations Committee ensures
the trustworthiness, adequate professional qualifications,

and experience of the members of the Board of Directors.

The Nominations Committee also assesses the balance

of competences and experience as well as diversity in the
Board’s overall composition. The professional qualifications,
trustworthiness, and experience of the members of the Board of
Directors are assessed by the Czech National Bank.

A member of the Board of Directors may be removed at any time
during the 4-year term without giving a reason. The Supervisory

Board can decide at any time to remove a member of the Board

of Directors. Such decision is carried if approved by an absolute
majority of all of its members. The Supervisory Board’s decision
is based on a proposal from the Nominations Committee.

Information about special competences of
he Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Komer¢ni banka is the governing
body that decides upon all matters concerning the Bank with
the exception of those matters falling within the powers of the
General Meeting or of the Supervisory Board.

It is within the Board of Directors’ exclusive

competences to:

a) convene the General Meeting and implement its resolutions;

b) submit to the General Meeting for its approval the annual,
extraordinary, and consolidated financial statements or the
interim financial statements if the law requires its approval by
the supreme body, as well as a proposal for the distribution
of profit (which must be available to the shareholders for
inspection at least 30 days prior to the date of the General
Meeting) and other own resources, including a proposal for
coverage of a loss;

c) submit to the General Meeting proposals for amendments
to and changes of the Articles of Association as well as
proposals for increasing or decreasing the Bank’s registered
capital;

d) submit to the General Meeting the annual report;

e) decide upon granting and revoking special business power
of attorney;

f)  decide upon the appointment, removal, and remuneration of
selected managers of the Bank;

g) approve acts in connection with the realisation of security
instruments for the Bank’s claims whose price exceeded
CZK 100,000,000 as of the date of a claim’s origin if the
presumed realisation price thereof is lower than 50% of the
security instrument’s price ascertained upon entering into
the loan agreement;

h)  submit to the Supervisory Board for its information quarterly
and half-yearly financial statements;
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za)

zb)
ZC)

decide upon acts which are beyond the scope of the Bank’s
usual business relationships;

define and periodically evaluate the Bank’s overall strategy,
including the setting of the principles and targets for its
fulfilment and ensuring the continued and effective operation
of the internal control system;

approve the Bank’s annual plans and budgets;

enter into a contract with an auditor for performing the
statutory audit or, as the case may be, for the provision of
additional services;

inform the Supervisory Board of the General Meeting date
no later than within the period specified by the Companies
and Co-operatives Act for the General Meeting to be
convened;

decide upon the issue of bonds of the Bank with the
exception of decisions on the issue of bonds for which the
decision of the General Meeting is required by law;

decide upon an increase in the registered capital if so
authorised by the General Meeting;

enter into collective agreements;

decide upon providing loans or securing debts to persons or
entities having a special relationship to the Bank pursuant to
the Banking Act;

approve the charter and subject of the risk management
functions, compliance functions, and internal audit
functions, as well as the strategic and periodic plan of
internal audit;

decide about paying out a share in profit and other own
resources based upon fulfilment of conditions established
by generally binding legal regulations;

approve and regularly evaluate the security principles of
the Bank, including the security principles for information
systems;

decide upon establishing other funds and the rules
governing the creation and usage thereof;

prepare the report on relations among related entities
pursuant to the Companies and Co-operatives Act;

approve and regularly evaluate the Bank’s organisational
structure so that it is functional and efficient, including
segregation of duties and preventing potential conflicts of
interest;

approve the principles of the personnel and remuneration
policy;

evaluate the overall functioning and effectiveness of the
management and control system at least once annually;
approve and regularly evaluate the risk management
strategy, the strategy relating to the capital and to capital
ratios, the strategy for the information and communication
system’s development, and the strategy for human
resources management;

approve and regularly evaluate the principles of the internal
control system, including principles aiming to prevent the
occurrence of any possible conflict of interest and principles
related to compliance and internal audit and security
policies;

discuss the audit report with the auditor;

after discussing with the trade unions operating in the Bank,
to approve the Bank’s voting rules governing the manner
and rules for the election and dismissal of members of the
Supervisory Board elected by employees of the Bank; and

zd)

declare and organise elections and dismissal of members
of the Supervisory Board elected by employees of the Bank
and inform the Supervisory Board of the results of these
elections.

In addition to the aforementioned, the Board of Directors
shall in particular:

manage the activities of the Bank and conduct its business
affairs;

ensure proper conduct of the Bank’s accounting, including
the proper administrative and accounting processes;
exercise employer’s rights;

exercise rights in respect to the Bank’s property interests
flowing from the Bank’s ownership holdings;

approve the acquisition or disposal of the Bank’s fixed
assets exceeding CZK 30,000,000 in value as a single case
or as a total of related cases; and

approve the business continuity plan.

The Board of Directors was not instructed to make a decision
on increasing the registered capital. Based on the consent of
the General Meeting held on 20 April 2022, Komer¢ni banka was
authorised to acquire its ordinary shares into treasury.
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Organisational chart of Komeréni banka
(as of 31 December 2023)
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Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is the supervisory authority of the Bank.
It oversees exercise of the Board of Directors’ powers, the Bank’s
activities, and the effectiveness and efficiency of the Bank’s
management and control system as a whole. The Supervisory
Board consists of nine members, who are individuals meeting
the statutory requirements for becoming a member of the

Bank’s Supervisory Board. Two-thirds of the Supervisory Board
members are elected and removed by the General Meeting,
one-third of the Supervisory Board members are elected and
removed by the Bank’s employees. A member of the Supervisory
Board’s term of office is 4 years. A member of the Supervisory
Board elected by the General Meeting may be removed by the
General Meeting at any time during the 4-year term of office. A
proposal for the election or removal of individual Supervisory
Board members is submitted to the General Meeting by the
Nominations Committee, which assesses the qualifications
based on the required profile of requirements for a Supervisory
Board member. The Supervisory Board must be composed of
members who have in-depth expertise in the areas of banking,
financial services, and financial markets, including the domestic
market and key global markets; knowledge of the Bank’s relevant
clients and market expectations, risk management (financial

and non-financial risk management and control, capital and
liquidity management, risk management strategy), accounting
and auditing of financial statements; knowledge of environmental,
social and governance (ESG) aspects, as well as corporate and
social responsibility (CSR), including reporting, tax, internal audit,
anti-money laundering and prevention of terrorist financing,
strategic planning, digitalisation, IT systems and IT security;

as well as knowledge of the regulatory framework and legal
regulations, in particular those relevant to the Bank.

In accordance with Czech National Bank requirements, Komeréni
banka declares that the members of its Supervisory Board stated
below have not in the past 5 years been convicted of any criminal
offence and that no charges, accusations, or other sanctions
have been filed against them by any regulatory authority. No
bankruptcy, receivership, or liquidation was declared in relation to
these individuals in the past 5 years.

Composition of the Supervisory Board

Delphine Garcin-Meunier (from 2024)
Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board since 1 February 2024
(appointed as a substitute member from 1 February 2024)

Petra Wendelova

Vice-Chair of the Supervisory Board since 3 May 2021
Independent member of the Supervisory Board

(elected from 25 April 2019 and re-elected from 26 April 2023)

Cécile Camilli

Member of the Supervisory Board (member until 21 April 2023;
appointed as a substitute member from 15 January 2019; elected
from 25 April 2019)

Marie Doucet

Independent member of the Supervisory Board
(elected from 21 April 2023)

Petr Dvorak
Independent member of the Supervisory Board
(elected from 2 June 2017, re-elected from 3 June 2021)

Alvaro Huete Gomez
Member of the Supervisory Board
(elected from 3 May 2021)

Miroslav Hajek
Member of the Supervisory Board, employee representative
(elected from 15 January 2023)

Ondfej Kudrna
Member of the Supervisory Board, employee representative
(elected from 14 January 2019, re-elected from 15 January 2023)

Sylva Kynychova
Member of the Supervisory Board, employee representative
(elected from 14 January 2019, re-elected from 15 January 2023)

Vojtéch Smajer
Member of the Supervisory Board, employee representative
(member until 14 January 2023)

Jarmila Sparova
Member of the Supervisory Board
(elected from 21 April 2021)

Giovanni Luca Soma

Chairman of the Supervisory Board since 3 May 2021 (Chairman
and member until 30 January 2024

(elected from 1 May 2013 and re-elected from 2 May 2017 and
from 3 May 2021)

Delphine Garcin-Meunier

Delphine Garcin-Meunier holds a Master’s degree in International
Finance from HEC and a DEA in Econometrics from the University
of Paris 1 Panthéon-Sorbonne. She began her career in 2000
at ABN Amro Rothschild in the Equity Capital Markets teams.
In 2001, she joined the Equity Capital Markets department of
Société Générale Corporate and Investment Banking (SG CIB)
where for 13 years she was in charge of the origination and
execution of primary issues on the equity and equity-linked
markets for a portfolio of large companies. In 2014, she joined
the Strategy Department within the Finance and Development
division, with a particular focus on French Retail Banking,
Transaction Banking activities, the relationship model of the
corporate & investment banking business, securities services
and asset management. In 2017, she became Head of Financial
Communication and Investor Relations for the SG Group and
notably prepared the presentation of the “Transform to Grow”
strategic plan to the financial markets. She was previously
Head of Group Strategy from November 2020, and is Head of
Mobility and International Retail Banking & Financial Services
and a member of the Group Executive Committee, having been
appointed in 24 May 2023.

Petra Wendelova

She graduated from the University of Economics in Prague,
where she earned the title Ing. in economic statistics and a CSc.
in economic sciences. From 1984 to 1990, she worked as an
internal candidate and assistant professor at the Department of
Statistics of the University of Economics in Prague. From 1990
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to 1992, she was a member of the Board of Directors and Vice
President of HC&C (privatisation fund administration). From 1992
to 1994, she worked as a member of the Board of Directors

and President of HBS, a. s. (securities dealer, member of the
Prague Stock Exchange). From 1995 to 2000, she served as Vice
President of the multinational investment bank Credit Suisse First
Boston, where she also dealt with the area of risk management.
From 1996 to 2001, she was a member of the Prague Stock
Exchange Chamber. From 2001 to 2005, she was a member of
the Supervisory Board of the Prague Stock Exchange. From 2002
to 2005, she worked as a member of the Supervisory Board of
UNIVYC (Central Securities Depository). Between 2000 and 2014,
she was a partner at Ernst & Young (Ernst & Young s.r.0., EY
Valuations s.r.o., expert institute), as well as managing director of
the expert institute and a leading partner in the area of mergers
and acquisitions. She is currently a member of the Supervisory
Board of the multinational company LINET Group SE.

Cécile Camilli

A graduate of Paris IX-Dauphine, where she earned a bachelor’s
degree in business management, and City University of New
York, where she earned an MA in business administration in
finance. From 1998 to 1999, she worked for the Bondholder
Communication Group in New York. Since 1999, she has held
various positions within Société Générale (Global Banking &
Investor Solutions). Between 1999 and 2001, she worked as an
associate banker for a group of European and Asian companies
in New York. Between 2002 and 2004, she served as Vice
President of Loan Sales in Paris. From 2005 to 2007, she worked
as Head of the Credit Syndicate for Central and Eastern Europe,
the Middle East and Africa (CEEMEA) in Paris. From 2007 to
2010, she was Head of Loan Sales for Corporate and Structured
Finance in London. Between 2010 and 2013, she was Director of
Debt Capital Markets for CEEMEA in London. From 2013 to 2019,
she was Managing Director and Head of Debt Capital Markets for
CEEMEA in London / Paris.

Marie Doucet

A graduate in accounting, between 1980 and 1990, she occupied
a succession of positions in audit and accounting firms (notably
auditor at Ernst & Young and director of the auditing department
of Groupe Alpha). In 1991, she started her career at Société
Générale Group in the Financial Markets department in Paris.
She has held various positions within the Group: From 1993 to
1999, she worked as Back Office manager, moving on to deputy
director within the securities division of the Société Générale
Group, Nantes-Paris. In 2000, she became Chief Financial Officer
of Hubsys, London. During 2001 and 2002, she worked at the
Finance Department of Komeréni banka, Prague. Between 2002
and 2004, she served as Deputy Chief Financial Officer for the
International Retail Banking division of Société Générale Group.
From 2005 to 2008, she served as Chief Financial Officer of the
ECS Group - at the time, a subsidiary of Société Générale Group.
Between 2008 and 2013, she served as Director of Accounting
Affairs, Société Générale Group (Paris). Her last position,
between 2013 and 2017, was Director of Human Resources and
Head of Nantes regional office, which hosts Société Générale
Securities Services. In 2019, she retired, and since 2021 she has
been an Independent Director of Société Générale Luxembourg.

| Corporate governance

Petr Dvorak

A graduate of the University of Economics in Prague (VSE),
where he completed his PhD in 2003 and was named associate
professor of finance in 2005. He has been active at VSE
throughout his entire professional career, in 1984-1990 within the
Finance and Credit Department, and from 1990 to the present
within the Banking and Insurance Department, which he headed
during 1994-1998. During 2006-2014, he was also Dean of the
Faculty of Finance and Accounting, and, since 2014, he was Vice
Rector for Academic Affairs. On 8 November 2021, the Academic
Senate elected Mr Dvorak Rector of VSE with effect from 1 April
2022. He is a member of several scientific and editorial boards
and an author of numerous publications.

Miroslav Hajek

A graduate of the University of Western Bohemia in Pilsen with
a major in law and legal science. His university studies were
preceded by studies at the Business Academy in Marianské
Lazné, where he specialised in economics and accounting,

and a 5-year employment with British American Tobacco. After
completing his master’s degree in 2009, he spent 4 years as

a trainee enforcement agent at the Prague—East Enforcement
Agent’s Office, where he gained practical legal and managerial
experience. Since 2013, he has been working at Komeréni banka
as a lawyer; his work includes representing the Bank in various
types of court proceedings (such as trial, insolvency, criminal,
and probate proceedings), providing legal support to the Bank’s
employees and, last but not least, managing an entrusted
portfolio of defaulting clients.

Alvaro Huete Gomez

A graduate from Colegio Universitario de Estudios Financieros
(CUNEF) with a bachelor’s degree in economics and from
Instituto de Estudios Superiores de la Empresa (IESE) with a
master’s degree in business administration. From 1987 to 1994,
he worked for Banco de Progreso — Banco Urquijo. From 1994
to 1996, he held the position of Director of Investment Banking
for Iberia at Nomura Espafa. Subsequently, in 1996 and 1997, he
served as Director of the Corporate Finance Group at Nomura

in London. In 1997, he joined Société Générale. From 1997 to
2006, he worked for Société Générale Corporate and Investment
Banking in Madrid, first as Director of Structured Finance, then
as Head of Corporate Banking for Iberia and Co-Head of Debt
Capital Markets and Structured Finance. From 2007 to 2019, he
worked for Société Générale Corporate and Investment Banking
in London, first as Deputy Global Head for Debt Syndicates, then
as Co-Head of Global Syndicate, and finally as Global Head of
Debt Syndicates. In 2015, he was appointed Deputy Global Head
of Global Financing and in 2019 he moved to Paris after being
appointed Deputy Global Head of Global Banking and Advisory.
He has been a member of SG’s Group Management Committee
since 2016.

Ondfej Kudrna

A graduate of the SOVA Lobkovice Business Academy, branch

of economics and accounting. After graduating from secondary
school and completing military service, he joined Komeréni
banka in 2000 as a processing specialist, then a trader, and bank
advisor for Small Business. In these positions, he learned all
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activities and skills in the area of communication with customers
and products of Komeréni banka. In May 2006, he accepted

the offer to be manager of the Roztoky branch, where he was
responsible for the training and development of new colleagues,
including the promotion of a new business location. In May

2007, he accepted another challenge and became manager of
the Neratovice branch, where he is responsible for development
of subordinates, business and financial results of the entrusted
team, and compliance with the procedures of the cash and sales
department. He currently holds the position in Komeréni banka
of Branch Manager. He has been a member of the Trade Union of
Komeréni banka since joining KB.

Sylva Kynychova

A graduate of the Banking Institute College of Banking,

majoring in Banking Management and MBA studies at Edu
Effective Business School, USA. She joined KB in 1990 at the
Wenceslas Square branch, where she worked in various sales
and managerial positions. In 2004, she moved to KB head office,
where she dealt with both project and operational-administrative
activities in the area of product and service implementation into
banking systems. Since 2012, she has held senior positions

in TPS - Operations Services, where she first specialised in

KBI (core banking system), and since 2015 also in support

of payments and prevention of payment fraud. Since April

2018, she has been involved in the administration of products
and systems and in the agenda of mortgage bond coverage,
currently the Enterprise Service Tribe. She has been a member
of the trade union since joining KB, and since April 2018 she

has been partially released from her employment duties to

serve as chairwoman of the Trade Union KB Union Committee,
chairwoman of the basic trade union CKB Prague, and a member
and vice-chair of the Trade Union of Financial and Insurance
Workers. Since February 2019, she has been a member of the
Supervisory Board of the Branch Health Insurance Company for
employees of banks, insurance companies, and the construction
industry.

Vojtéch Smajer

A graduate of the Faculty of Law and the Faculty of Economics
and Administration of Masaryk University in Brno (majoring in
Finance). Before joining Komeréni banka, he worked in sales
positions at Sberbank CZ, a.s. and in BNP Paribas Personal
Finance, S.A. Since 2015, he has been working at Komeréni
banka, first as an investment specialist and since August 2018
as a bank advisor for very wealthy clientele at a branch in Brno.
Since 2018, he is also chairman of the basic organisation Brno-
venkov and a member of the group for collective bargaining with
the employer. Since June 2022, he has been Chairman of the
Société Générale European Works Council.

Jarmila Sparova

A graduate of the University of Economics in Prague, with a
CEMS Master from the Community of European Management
Schools and a Master in Public Administration from the Ecole
Nationale d’Administration in France. During 2002-2004, she
worked as CEO Office Manager and Secretary of the Board of
Directors of Komeréni banka within the Société Générale Group
in Prague. From 2004 to 2008, she worked as a project manager
for business development at the Société Générale Group’s
international banking headquarters in Paris. During 2008, she
worked as director of the integration project within the Human
Resources Department of Société Générale (Paris, Moscow). In
2009, she served as Deputy Director of Corporate Banking and
Director of Retail Banking at Société Générale France, Business
Distribution Networks, Paris-Bercy. During 2010-2012, she
worked as the Corporate Banking Director of Société Générale
Cameroon (Douala, Cameroon) and from 2013 to 2017 as Deputy
General Manager and Corporate Banking Director of Société
Générale French Antilles / Guyana. In 2017, she became CEO of
SG Equipment Finance lberia, EFC, S.A., in Spain and in 2020
Executive Director for the Western Europe Hub. In 2022, she was
reappointed as a member of the SGEF Executive Committee and
became a member of the SG Leasing Board. In 2023, she was
elected Head of SGEF ltaly.

Giovanni Luca Soma

An MBA graduate of the University of Turin, Italy, and a graduate
of LUISS University with a degree in business economics, he also
holds qualifications to work as a certified auditor and certified
public accountant. From 1984 to 1989, he was the manager

of Arthur Young Consulting in Rome, ltaly. From 1989 to 1994,

he worked with Deloitte & Touche Consulting in Milan, Italy.
During 1994-1997, he served as Sales and International Services
Director of Hyperion Software Inc. Between 1997 and 1998,

he served as managing director of GE Capital Insurance and
subsequently, during 1998-1999, as Corporate Sales Director

for Italy in GE Capital. From 1999 to 2000, he served as CEO

of Dial ltalia (Barclays Group). During 2000-2005, he served

as CEO of ALD Automotive Italy; 2005-2007 as Chairman of
ANIASA, the ltalian Association of Automotive Leasing and
Services Providers; 2006-2008 as Group Regional Director and
Deputy CEO of ALD International Paris; and 2008-2011 as CEO
of ALD International Paris in France. In these positions he also
gained knowledge in the field of risk management. Between
December 2012 and September 2013, he was Deputy Head of the
International Retail Banking Department and became a member
of the Group Management Committee of Société Générale. He
served as CEO of SG Consumer Finance, France (from 2010)

and Deputy Head of IBFS, International Banking and Financial
Services (from December 2012). From October 2017 until October
2023, he was manager of the Europe Business Division within SG
International Retail Banking.
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Concurrent membership of members of
the Supervisory Board in bodies of other legal entities

Members Position

Delphine GARCIN- Member of the
MEUNIER (since 1 Supervisory Board

Company
SG Algeria, Algeria

February 2024)
Member of the Board of ALD, France
Directors
Member of the Board of Sogecap, France
Directors
Member of the Board of  BRD - G,ROl,JPI,E
Directors SOCIETE GENERALE
SA, Romania
Giovanni Luca Chairman of the Board of BRD - G,ROL,JPIIE
SOMA Directors " SOCIETE GENERALE
SA, Romania
Chairman of the Board of COMPAGNIE
Directors GENERALE
DE LOCATION
D'EQUIPEMENTS CGL,
Italy
Chairman ? and a FIDITALIA S.P.A, ltaly
member of the Board of
Directors
Chairman of the Hanseatic Bank GmbH &
Supervisory Board Co KG, Germany
Member of the Board of ALD AUTOMOTIVE
Directors ITALIA, Italy
Petra ’ Member of the LINET Group SE, the
WENDELOVA Supervisory Board Netherlands

Member of the
Supervisory Board

Member of the Board of
Directors

Nadace Narodni galerie
v Praze

Spolek historie Suchdola

Marie DOUCET Member of the Board of

Directors

Société Générale
Luxembourg,
Luxembourg

Petr DVORAK Chairman of the Audit

Committee

Modra pyramida
stavebni spofitelna

Jarmila SPUROVA Managing Director

Member of the Board of
Directors

Chairwoman of the
Board of Directors

SG EQUIPMENT
FINANCE IBERIA, E.F.C,
S.A.U, Spain

SG LEASING SPA, Italy

SG EQUIPMENT
FINANCE ITALY S.P.A.,
Italy

Sylva ] Member of the
KYNYCHOVA Supervisory Board

Oborova zdravotni
pojistovna zaméstnancd
bank, pojistoven a
stavebnictvi

" Until 7 December 2023.
2 Chairman until 15 December 2023.
3 Since 28 April 2023.

Activity report of the Supervisory Board

Regular meetings of the Supervisory Board shall be held once
per calendar quarter and with the possibility of remote voting.
A quorum of the Supervisory Board shall be constituted if at
least five members of the Supervisory Board are present at the

| Corporate governance

meeting. Resolutions of the Supervisory Board are adopted by an
absolute majority of all its members.

In 2023, the Supervisory Board held five regular meetings and one
remote vote in lieu of a physical meeting in accordance with the
Bank’s Articles of Association.

Members Attendance*

Giovanni Luca SOMA 100%
Petra WENDELOVA 100%
Cécilie CAMILLI " 33%
Marie DOUCET 2 100%
Petr DVORAK 100%
Miroslav HAJEK 9 100%
Alvaro HUETE GOMEZ 67%
Ondrej KUDRNA 100%
Sylva KYNYCHOVA 100%
Vojtéch SMAJER n/a
Jarmila SPUROVA 83%
Average attendance at all meetings

and remote voting combined: 91%

* Average attendance at all meetings and remote voting combined.
" Until 21 April 2023.

2 Since 21 April 2023.

3 Since 15 January 2023.

4 Until 14 January 2023.

The Supervisory Board examined the Bank’s financial statements
as of 31 December 2022 (annual and consolidated), which

had been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and recommended that the General
Meeting approve both sets of financial statements as proposed
by the Bank’s Board of Directors. The Supervisory Board also
examined the Board of Directors’ proposal for the distribution
of net profit for the financial year 2022 and recommended that
the General Meeting approve that proposal. Furthermore, the
Supervisory Board checked the Report on Relations among
Related Entities for 2022, drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of Section 82 et seq. of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., the
Companies and Co-operatives Act, as amended. On the basis
of the presented documents, the Supervisory Board stated

that during the accounting period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 the Bank did not suffer any harm resulting from
any contracts, agreements, other legal acts made or adopted
by the Bank or from any influence otherwise exerted by Société
Générale. At the same time, based on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board agreed to submit the
nomination of Deloitte Audit s.r.o. as the Bank’s external auditor
for 2023 to the General Meeting for approval.

In 2023, the Supervisory Board was kept informed of the Bank’s
activities and was provided with regular reports and analyses. In
particular, the Supervisory Board evaluated the functionality and
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control system, concluding
that the internal control system is functional and effective,

albeit with some areas where there is room for improvement. It
also considered the 2022 Annual Assessment Report on KB’s
system aimed at countering money laundering and the financing
of terrorism. KB Group’s budget for 2023 was submitted to

the Supervisory Board for discussion. The Supervisory Board
discussed the remuneration of the members of the Board of
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Directors and decided on the amount of the bonus, the payment
of which is subject to the deferred bonus principles (scheme). The
Supervisory Board set the performance criteria for the members
of the Board of Directors for 2023 and approved the proposal

for the remuneration of the Executive Audit Director. Also,

the Supervisory Board was informed of salaries development

and conclusions of the assessment of the implementation of
remuneration principles in the Bank.

It also dealt with the annual analysis of the resolution of all
complaints sent to the Bank and its ombudsman and other
correspondence addressed to the Supervisory Board. The
Supervisory Board was regularly informed by the Chairman of the
Bank’s Board of Directors of all steps taken as part of KB’s 2025
strategy.

The Supervisory Board reviewed KB Group’s Risk Appetite
Statement, Framework, and KB Business Strategy, together
expressing the level of risk appetite, and was informed about
analysis of the evolving economic situation.

The Supervisory Board regularly discussed the Bank’s quarterly
financial results and its position in the market with regard to

the evolving macroeconomic environment. It also discussed
internal audit actions and their results in each period of the year
as well as the internal audit plan for 2024 and the strategic plan
for 2025-2028. It considered the internal audit strategy and the
internal audit quality assurance and improvement programme.

It also examined the Bank’s obligations in respect of material
transactions with related parties, noting that the Bank complies
with the European Parliament and Council (EU) Directive on Long-
Term Shareholder Engagement and only enters into transactions
that are in the ordinary course of business. In the course of its
work, the Supervisory Board relied on the opinions of its Audit,
Risk, Remuneration, and Nominations committees and was
informed of the matters discussed by them.

In April 2023, the Supervisory Board was strengthened with

an additional independent member. The Supervisory Board
subsequently increased the number of members on its
Remuneration Committee and Nominations Committee from four to
five and adjusted the composition of these committees so that they
are composed of a majority of independent members, following the
model of the Audit Committee. The change in the composition of
these committees did not affect the representation of employees
through their elected members of the Supervisory Board.

Supervisory Board’s committees

The Supervisory Board has established within its competences
the Audit Committee, the Risk Committee, the Nominations
Committee, and the Remuneration Committee as its advisory and
initiative bodies. Committees of the Supervisory Board provide
the Supervisory Board with regular reports on their activities

and, within the areas entrusted to their jurisdiction, submit to

the Supervisory Board recommendations directed to preparing
resolutions for adoption by the Supervisory Board.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is a committee of the Supervisory Board
and was established in accordance with Act No. 93/2009 Coll.,

on Auditors, as amended. Its powers are stipulated by that Act
and the charter of the committee.

The Audit Committee consists of three individual members who
meet the requirements for performing duties of a member of an
audit committee set forth by legal regulations and by the charter
of the committee. Audit Committee members shall be appointed
by the General Meeting from the members of the Supervisory
Board for terms of 4 years. The majority of the members of the
Audit Committee, including its Chairperson, are independent and
professionally qualified under criteria established by the SEC.
These two Audit Committee members qualify as independent
financial experts.

Composition of the Audit Committee

Petra Wendelova
Chairperson and independent member of the Audit Committee
(since 25 April 2019)

Giovanni Luca Soma

Vice-Chairman of the Audit Committee

(from 3 May 2016, to 30 January 2024), member of the Audit
Committee (since 25 April 2013 until 30 January 2024)

Petr Dvorak
Independent member of the Audit Committee
(since 26 April 2018)

The Audit Committee meets as a rule once per quarter but

at least four times in a calendar year. A quorum of the Audit
Committee shall be constituted if a simple majority of all Audit
Committee members attend the meeting. Decisions on all matters
discussed by the Audit Committee must receive an absolute
majority of all votes to be carried. If the votes are equal,

the chairperson shall cast the deciding vote. The person in
question shall not vote in the proceedings with respect to the
election and removal of the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson of
the Audit Committee.

In 2023, the Audit Committee held seven regular meetings and
once voted remotely in lieu of holding a meeting in accordance
with the Bank’s Articles of Association. The Committee
performed its monitoring activities and worked closely within the
Bank, especially with Internal Audit, Strategy and Finance, Risk
Management, and Compliance departments, and also with the
external auditor, which kept it informed about the ongoing audit
of the Bank.

The Committee discussed the annual financial results of KB
Group for 2022, the consolidated and unconsolidated financial
statements of KB as of 31 December 2022, and the notes thereto
prepared in accordance with IFRS, as well as the proposed
distribution of profit for 2022. It was also presented with a
supplementary audit report prepared by Deloitte Audit s.r.o.,

and in this context the Committee monitored the integrity of the
financial information. Furthermore, it evaluated the independence
of the external auditor and recommended that the Supervisory
Board submit to the General Meeting for approval the proposal
for the Bank’s external auditor for 2023, namely Deloitte

Audit s.r.o. KB Group’s budget for 2023 was presented to the
Committee for discussion. The Committee also regularly dealt
with internal audit reports on the status of corrective actions

and was kept informed of all internal audit actions taken during
each period of the year. The Committee discussed, too, the
Constructive Service Letter prepared by the external auditor,
Deloitte Audit s.r.o. It monitored the external audit process and
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was informed of the external audit plan for preparation of the
2022 financial statements. It also was involved in evaluating

the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor.

The Committee was presented the external audit contract with
Deloitte Audit s.r.o. In addition, the Committee discussed in detail
the risk mapping, the annual internal audit plan for 2024, and the
strategic plan for 2025-2028. On an ongoing basis, the Audit
Committee discussed at its meetings KB Group’s financial results
for each quarter. Attention was also given to the capital adequacy
of the Bank and KB Group. In this context, the Committee
discussed the Bank’s capital management policy, particularly
with regard to regulatory capital adequacy requirements, and the
dividend policy in relation to the 2022 earnings. The Committee
was regularly informed of the functioning of the Bank’s internal
control system and of the development of all related risks that

it assessed. Last but not least, the Committee considered the
Bank’s tax policy with regard to the windfall tax. The Committee
discussed the report on its activities for 2022, which it submitted
to the Public Audit Oversight Board.

During 2023, the Audit Committee agreed on the procedure for
selection of a new external auditor for 2024 and subsequent
years and, based on the outcome of the selection process,
recommended that the Supervisory Board propose to the
General Meeting the selection of KPMG Ceska republika, s.r.0. as
the Bank’s external auditor.

Members Attendance*

Petra WENDELOVA 100%
Giovanni Luca SOMA 88%
Petr DVORAK 100%
Average attendance at all meetings

and remote voting combined: 96%

* Average attendance at all meetings and remote voting combined.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee has three members, one of whom is
independent. The independent member also holds the post

of Chair of the Committee. The Committee meets according

to need, but at least twice per year. A quorum is constituted if

a simple majority of all members of the Committee is present

at the meeting. Resolutions shall be adopted by agreement of

an absolute majority of all its members. Consensus should be
reached in the event of disagreement by the independent member
of the Committee.

Composition of the Risk Committee

Petra Wendelova

Chairperson of the Risk Committee (since 18 September 2019)
Independent member of the Risk Committee (since 25 April 2019)
with expertise in the area of risk

Alvaro Huete Gomez
Member of the Risk Committee (since 3 May 2021)

Giovanni Luca Soma

Member of the Risk Committee
(since 25 September 2014, until 30 January 2024)

| Corporate governance

The Committee held three regular meetings in 2023 and once
voted remotely in lieu of holding a meeting in accordance with the
Committee’s charter. The Committee discusses all issues of the
Bank’s risk management system and its efficiency, including the
Bank’s credit risk profile and remuneration principles. It considers
the acceptable risk appetite and the Bank’s strategy in the risk
area.

Members Attendance*

Petra WENDELOVA 75%
Alvaro HUETE GOMEZ 50%
Giovanni Luca SOMA 100%
Average attendance at all meetings

and remote voting combined: 75%

* Average attendance at all meetings and remote voting combined.

Remuneration Committee

Until 20 April 2023 the Remuneration Committee had had four
members, one of whom was independent and one whom was
an employee representative. With effect from 21 April 2023, the
number of members has been increased to 5 and the number
of independent members has been increased to 3. The number
of employee representatives has remained unchanged, and the
position of Chairperson continues to be held by an independent
member of the committee. The Committee meets according to
need, usually at least twice per year. A quorum is constituted if
a simple majority of all members of the Committee is present
at the meeting. Resolutions shall be adopted by agreement

of an absolute majority of all its members. Consensus should
be reached in the event of disagreement by the independent
member of the Committee.

Composition of the Remuneration Committee

Petr Dvoirak

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee (since 24 April 2019)
Independent member of the Remuneration Committee

(since 15 March 2019, re-elected since 3 June 2021)

Marie Doucet
Independent member of the Remuneration Committee
(since 21 April 2023)

Alvaro Huete Gomez
Member of the Remuneration Committee
(since 3 May 2021, until 21 April 2023)

Sylva Kynychova

Member of the Remuneration Committee, employee
representative (since 15 March 2019, until 14 January 2023, and
then since 18 January 2023)

Giovanni Luca Soma
Member of the Remuneration Committee
(since 25 September 2014, until 30 January 2024)

Petra Wendelova
Independent member of the Remuneration Committee
(since 21 April 2023)
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In 2023, the Committee held two regular meetings and once
voted remotely in lieu of holding a meeting in accordance with
the Committee’s charter.

The Remuneration Committee approved the Remuneration
Report and agreed to submit it to the General Meeting.
Furthermore, it approved the 2023 remuneration principles,

the setting of KPIs for members of KB’s Board of Directors,

the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors
and of the Executive Director of Internal Audit, and it made
recommendations to the Supervisory Board within the scope
of its powers. The Committee was informed of developments in
remuneration, including deferred bonuses, and of the results of
collective bargaining and of the conclusions of the evaluation
of the implementation of the remuneration principles within the
Bank.

Members Attendance*

Petr DVORAK 100%
Marie DOUCET " 100%
Alvaro HUETE GOMEZ ? 0%
Sylva KYNYCHOVA 2 100%
Giovanni Luca SOMA 100%
Petra WENDELOVA 4 100%
Average attendance at all meetings

and remote voting combined: 88%

* Average attendance at all meetings and remote voting combined.
" Since 21 April 21 2023.

2 Until 21 April 21 2023.

3 Until 14 January 2023 and since 18 January 2023.

4 Since 21 April 2023.

Nominations Committee

Until 20 April 2023, the Nominations Committee had four
members, one of whom was independent and one of whom

was an employee representative; with effect from 21 April

2023, the number of members rose to five and the number

of independent members increased to three. The number of
employee representatives remained unchanged and the post of
Chairman continues to be held by an independent member of the
Committee. The committee meets according to need, but usually
twice per year. As part of its powers, the Committee assesses
the suitability of the members of the Board of Directors and of
the Supervisory Board in terms of their credibility, professional
competence and experience, and also assesses the collective
suitability of the members of the Board of Directors and of the
Supervisory Board in terms of their contribution to the functioning
of these bodies as a whole. As part of the assessment, the
Committee takes into account fulfiiment of the principles
stemming from the Code of Ethics and the Code of Conduct.

A quorum is constituted if a simple majority of all members of
the committee is present at the meeting. Resolutions shall be
adopted by agreement of an absolute majority of all its members.
Consensus should be reached in the event of disagreement by
the independent member of the Committee.

Composition of the Nominations Committee

Petr Dvorak

Chairman of the Nominations Committee (since 24 April 2019)
Independent member of the Nominations Committee (since 15
March 2019)

Marie Doucet
Independent member of the Nominations Committee
(since 21 April 2023)

Miroslav Hajek
Independent member of the Nominations Committee, employee
representative (since 18 January 2023)

Alvaro Huete Gomez
Member of the Nominations Committee
(from 3 May 2021 to 21 April 2023)

Sylva Kynychova
Member of the Nominations Committee, employee representative
(from 15 March 2019 to 14 January 2023)

Giovanni Luca Soma
Member of the Nominations Committee
(from 25 September 2014 to 30 January 2024)

Petra Wendelova
Independent member of the Nominations Committee
(since 21 April 2023)

In 2023, the Committee held one regular meeting and once voted
remotely in lieu of holding a meeting in accordance with the
committee’s charter.

The Nominations Committee recommended that the
Supervisory Board make changes to the composition of

some of its committees, so that the majority of members of
these committees would be independent, and evaluated the
suitability of candidates for these committees. The Committee
also discussed a report on compliance with the Bank’s Code
of Conduct and formalised the requirements imposed on
persons holding the positions of Chief Operating Officer, Chief
Risk Officer and Chief Compliance Officer, their scope and key
competences.

Members Attendance*

Petr DVORAK 100%
Marie DOUCET " n/a

Miroslav HAJEK 2 100%
Alvaro HUETE GOMEZ ¥ 50%
Sylva KYNYCHOVA 4 n/a
Giovanni Luca SOMA 100%
Petra WENDELOVA 9 n/a
Average attendance at all meetings

and remote voting combined: 88%

* Average attendance at all meetings and remote voting combined.
" Since 21 April 2023.

2 Since 18 January 2023.

9 Until 21 April 2023.

4 Until 14 January 2023.

9 Since 21 April 2023.
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| Employee relationships

Key data on KB Group employees

Age structure of employees (KB Group, Czechia, year end (%))

Key data on Komeréni banka’s employees

Age structure of employees (Bank, Czechia, year end (%))

<30 15 16 16 <30 17 17 16
31-40 23 23 24 31-40 23 23 24
41-50 33 35 35 41-50 32 34 34
51+ 29 26 25 51+ 29 27 26
Employees by type of employment (%) Employees by type of employment (%)
- Full-time 94 93 93 - Full-time 93 93 93
- Part-time 6 7 7 - Part-time 7 7 7
Employees by contract type (%) Employees by contract type (%)
— Permanent employment 90 83 84 — Permanent employment 89 83 84
— Other employment 10 17 16 — Other employment 11 17 16
Employees’ qualifications (%) Employees’ qualifications (%)
- University 49 51 50 - University 48 51 50
— Secondary school 49 46 48 — Secondary school 49 47 48
— Other education 3 3 2 — Other education 3 2 2
Proportions of men and women in KB Group(%) Proportions of men and women in KB (%)
- Men 40 39 38 - Men 40 39 38
- Women 60 61 62 - Women 60 61 62
Share of women in management positions (%) Share of women in management positions (%)
- In all management positions 46 44 - - In all management positions 47 44 44
- In top management positions — In top management positions

(maximum two levels below Board) 27 27 - (maximum two levels below Board) 27 27 27
Number of employees on maternal and Number of employees on maternal and
parental leave 635 715 789 parental leave 555 625 676
Number of employees with disabilities 136 152 163 Number of employees with disabilities 123 136 147
lliness rate (%) 2.3 2.6 - lliness rate (%) 2.5 2.7 3.0
Employee turnover rate (%) Employee turnover rate (%)
- total 16.2 18.2 - — total 17.3 18.6 16.7
- voluntary’ 6.9 9.8 - - voluntary’ 7.0 9.7 8.8
- involuntary? 3 3.1 - — involuntary? 3.3 3.3 3.9
— directed® 5 3.9 - — directed® 5.4 4.1 2.6
- natural* 14 1.4 - - natural* 1.4 14 1.4

Note: Due to rounding, some totals may not correspond with the sum of the separate
figures.

' Employee termination.

2 KB termination.

3 For example, fixed-term contract expiration, switches within KB group.

4 For example, retirement, health issues, or death of employee.

| Employee relationships

Note: Due to rounding, some totals may not correspond with the sum of the separate
figures.

" Employee termination.

2 KB termination.

3 For example, fixed-term contract expiration, switches within KB group.

4 For example, retirement, health issues, or death of employee.
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Number of employees

Average recalculated number of employees 2023 m

KB Group 7,551 7,503 7,687
Komeréni banka 6,499 6,553 6,736
- of which in Slovakia 43 42 42
- of which in Czech Republic 6,456 6,511 6,694
- of which at headquarters 4,073 4,021 4,044
- of which in distribution network 2,383 2,490 2,650

HR vision, corporate culture and values

KB’s strategic vision in managing human resources is to build
professional relationships with employees based on trust,
respect, mutual communication, equal opportunities, and the
offer of interesting professional and career growth. KB strives to
create an inspiring and supportive environment where people will
feel good at work, succeed, and naturally become ambassadors
of the Komeréni banka brand. Mutual co-operation among
employees is then based on four basic values or principles of
behaviour, which are team spirit, innovation, commitment, and
responsibility. Together, these form the basis of the corporate
culture upon which KB is building its future. Values are also
integral to KB’s mission, which expresses the meaning of the
Bank’s existence and how it wants to be perceived on the market.

Team spirit
KB’s clients want a bank that will be their responsible,

trustworthy, and modern partner. The Bank’s employees meet
their clients’ needs as a team prioritising a helpful approach and
expertise. KB is focused on long-term relationships with clients.

It is important for everyone at KB to work as a team, express their
opinions openly, listen to other viewpoints, appreciate mutual
benefits, and experience individual successes and setbacks
together.

Innovation

Innovation is an integral part of the Bank’s DNA, and
technological innovation and co-operation with start-up
companies have been priorities in recent years. The goal is to
improve the customer experience and continuously offer the
best customer solutions. That is why employees are changing
their ways of working and bringing in non-traditional approaches,
encouraging the sharing of ideas while learning from their
successes and failures.

Commitment

KB employees are committed to pursuing clients’ satisfaction.
They seek the best solutions for clients and nurture relationships
with them based on trust and mutual respect. The clients’
success means their own success, bringing them a sense of
pride in their profession and strengthening their relationship with
the Group.

Responsibility
Our bankers contribute to the economic, social, and

environmentally sustainable development of the two countries
and economies where Komeréni banka operates. They take a
responsible approach to the implementation of client visions
and projects, act in accordance with the long-term interests

of investors, and at the same time pay attention to risk in all its
aspects while complying with the rules of the profession and the
Code of Ethics. They consider not only the result to be important
but also the way in which that result was achieved.

Fair treatment of employees

Legal framework for doing business

KB Group companies are subject to the standard employment
regulations applicable in the Czech Republic as a member state
of the European Union. Certain specific regulations, such as in
relation to employee education and remuneration, are imposed
by the Czech National Bank as regulatory body for the financial
services industry. KB also accedes to certain rules of Société
Générale and international standards. Compliance with all
applicable regulations is subject to regular or random checks,
and failure to uphold these standards can be sanctioned in
accordance with the applicable regulations.

Komeréni banka upholds the Czech Republic’s laws and
regulations, including binding regulations of the European Union
as well as all international agreements ratified by the Czech
Republic that are a part of the Czech Republic’s legal order.
These include, in particular, the conventions of the International
Labour Organisation. In case of overlap into international
employment, it follows in particular Regulation (EC) No 593/2008
of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 June 2008 on
the law applicable to contractual obligations (Rome I). Komeréni
banka respects and supports the protection of human rights, with
emphasis on the protection of children’s rights and supporting
the employment of parents with young children.

Work safety and working conditions

To the full extent of its legal obligations, KB Group ensures

its employees’ occupational safety as well as health and fire
protection against possible risks that would endanger their

lives and health when performing their work. The Bank provides

its employees with sufficient and adequate information and
instructions on safety standards and on providing first aid. The
Bank also ensures respect for the prohibition of smoking and
consumption of alcoholic beverages in the workplace. Managers at
all levels are responsible for the employer’s obligations in this area
being honoured. These tasks are an equal and integral part of their
work obligations.

Individual KB Group subsidiaries provide mandatory work-related
medical services through a supplier company. They also provide
regular employee training in safety, health, and fire protection
standards and regularly organise checks and employee training
in these areas while documenting and recording the results. All
subsidiaries have identified the health risks associated with each
job position and have assigned employees to the first or second
category of work conditions classification.

Selected workplaces are inspected by an independent body in
the Bank, namely the Union of Banking and Insurance Workers.
These inspections include an assessment of the ergonomic
provision of workplaces and an assessment of the quality of
working and hygiene conditions in the workplace. An official
record reporting conclusions of the inspection along with written
recommendations is made from each inspection. In the past
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5 years the trade union has found no major shortcomings that
could not be remedied within a short time.

While modernising the environment in its workplaces, KB Group
respects both safety and health requirements. It aims also to
improve the social environment and effectively introduce state-of-
the-art technologies.

KB subsidiaries stipulate working hours, breaks for food and
rest, overtime work, and other mandatory requirements in the
Collective Agreement and the Rules of Procedure, and, where
the trade union operates, also in the Collective Bargaining
Agreement. All parameters are in accordance with Czech

law. Compliance with all duties is supervised by managers of
the individual teams. In order to make better use of working
hours and to balance work with employees’ personal needs,
the employer allows flexible working hours to be applied in
departments where operating conditions allow. In companies with
trade union representation, regular or flexible working hours are
properly discussed. Furthermore, if operating conditions allow,
employees can voluntarily take advantage of the opportunity to
work from home.

Overtime work can be required only in exceptional cases, if there
are serious operational reasons for doing so, always in agreement
with the employee, in compliance with applicable regulations,

and if properly documented. KB Group’s management receives

a regular report on overtime work and the entire process is duly
inspected.

In accordance with applicable laws, and with the Labour Code in
particular, the employer has stipulated internal rules of work as
well as procedures and sanctions in the case of their violation.
For certain professions, there are additional or more detailed
rules prescribed in specific internal regulations, particularly in
the Code of Ethics and the Rules of Procedure. The aggregate of
legal rules and internal regulations provides a framework for their
possible enforcement and, in cases of breaches of employees’
obligations as ensue from labour relations law, a process for their
resolution and recording.

Right to information and to social negotiation

The right of KB Group employees to social bargaining is

fully enabled. In KB and MPSS, it is exercised by a trade
union. Managers of KB and MPSS are in regular contact with
representatives of the trade union, and collective bargaining
takes place every year.

In accordance with the Labour Code and the Collective
Agreement, KB allows all employees to be unionised. In 2023,
there were 29 basic units of the Trade Union Organisation

in Komeréni banka and one in Modra Pyramida. Relations
between a trade union and an employer are governed, inter
alia, by the Charter of Fundamental Rights and Freedoms,

the Citizens’ Associations Act, the Collective Bargaining Act,
and International Labour Organisation conventions (the Trade
Union Freedom Convention, the Trade Union and Collective
Bargaining Convention, the Convention on Human Rights and
Freedoms). In addition, the right to freedom of association and
collective bargaining was supported by the parent company
Société Générale with the signing of the Global Agreement on
Fundamental Rights between SG and UNI Global Union in 2015,
subsequently updated in 2019 and 2023.

| Employee relationships

The right to information is guaranteed to all employees, and in KB
and Modra Pyramida is based on the Collective Agreement. That
agreement has been concluded for the period 2022-2025. The
results of negotiations between KB and the trade union are fully
available to all employees, including the full text of the Collective
Agreement. The benefits of the Collective Agreement are valid for
all employees of all respective KB Group companies, including
those not organised into unions. In companies where there are no
unions, similar advantages and benefits are addressed by internal
regulations.

Information designated for employees is shared openly by the
Group in numerous and various ways. For each employee, the
main source of information is his or her superior. Another source of
information consists in the intranet pages of individual companies.
KB has a separate Employee section on its intranet site dedicated
to providing relevant employment-related information. Furthermore,
employees can call the My HR telephone line, submit inquiries by
e-mail, or contact HR Business Partners and consultants. Chatbot
KUBA answers questions from employees who have joined the
Bank just recently.

Employee satisfaction and well-being

Employee care is one of the highest priorities of human resources
management and KB’s top management.

Employee satisfaction survey

The Bank regularly reviews the opinions, satisfaction, and
engagement of employees and takes follow-up action. KB
monitors employee engagement in the form of an Employee
Barometer, which is announced throughout the Société Générale
Group and is carried out by an independent research agency. The
barometer examines 5 categories of indicators covering the areas
of guiding change, efficient environment, social and economic
responsibility, talent development, and well-being

Komeréni banka’s own Puls survey focuses on corporate culture,
learning about overall satisfaction, motivation, level of personal
fulfilment, opinion on teamwork and co-operation across teams,
and work efficiency, as well as work flexibility and the Smart
Office concept.

In 2023, the Employee Barometer was conducted at the level of
the entire SG group, and a KB Puls survey was conducted at the
level of the Bank. Employees had opportunity to comment on

all those topics mentioned above and generally evaluated their
current mood and atmosphere in the company. They again had
opportunity to comment on the SG Group’s responsible and
sustainable approach to issues of diversity and inclusion.

The engagement score in the SG Barometer group-wide survey
showed that the overall level of motivation has been stable over
the last 4 years and remains high, at 70%. Employees particularly
praised the teamwork and atmosphere at the Bank, with 93% and
96%, respectively, being satisfied with the collaboration with their
supervisor and colleagues, and 92% appreciated the opportunity
to express their opinions openly. Ninety-one per cent of
employees consider the Bank to be responsible and ethical in its
activities and 80% are proud to be part of the Société Générale
Group. These are long-term stable results. Most employees
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also consider the Bank to be inclusive and open to all (88%) and

would recommend it as an employer to those around them (72%).

In the purely local KB survey, KB Puls, and despite a decline of 1
p.p., engagement remained high, at 78%. Employees confirmed
that they are motivated in their work (82%), trust management
decisions (79%), and in the majority would recommend the Bank
as an employer (77%). Ninety-six per cent of employees also
confirmed that the flexible way of working, the Smart Office,
either has no impact on the quality of their work or even makes
them work better.

Employee health and well-being

Komeréni banka has been systematically attentive to the health
of its employees. For the second year now, KB has been running
a telemedicine service, a 24/7 online medical consultation,
where employees can ask questions about their health and make
appointments with specialists. The service is part of the KB4U
well-being programme, which also is available to employees

on maternity or parental leave and to all of employees’ family
members.

Throughout the year, a number of online professional workshops
and webinars on healthy eating and mindfulness took place.
Through a contribution to the benefit system provided to
employees, KB supported the sports activities of its employees
or the purchase of products for a healthy lifestyle. The Bank
organised a sports day for all employees. KB has continued,

as well, to operate a psychological and legal counselling
programme. Social counselling is now part of the counselling
programme.

KB respects all its employees’ human and social rights. It long
has been accommodating in relation to its employees who find
themselves in difficult life situations. This support is effected

in various ways, and it considers the life situation a given
employee is facing (for example, through flexibly adjusting work
time, reducing working hours, home office, financial support,
and unpaid time off). Every situation is assessed and resolved
individually. Support of employees in difficult life situations

is based on the Collective Agreement and corresponding
implementation rules. Any drawing of financial aid is recorded by
the employer.

Culture of respect

Diversity and inclusion

Diversity and inclusion are integral to KB’s corporate culture

and among the strategic priorities of the entire Société Générale
Group. The Bank perceives diversity and individuality as sources
of strength, whether these are differences in age, ethnic origin,
nationality, gender, sexual orientation, political opinion, religion,
or other minorities. Nevertheless, the Bank does not in any

case request or collect data concerning the self-identification of
employees with these target groups specifically in order that the
same approach will apply to all without exceptions.

The Bank promotes diversity especially in its teams. KB employs
experts from various fields, expatriate colleagues from countries
of the SG Group, students who are just starting their careers at
KB, as well as experienced employees who have been working in
the Bank for many years.

Since 2020, the Bank has been a gold signatory to European
CharterDiversity — a project under the auspices of the European
Commission since 2010. In signing the Diversity Charter, it
became a member of a strong group of companies that actively
open up and contribute to solving societal issues. As part of this
initiative, the Bank is committed to creating a non-discriminatory,
supportive, and inspiring environment in which employees can
best develop and self-realise.

In 2023, the Bank shared and gained experience in diversity and
inclusion through several of its partnerships. It participated in
activities organised by Business for Society, where it is now in
its third year as a member company. KB also became a partner
of the D&l Shapers platform, which brings together known
companies across the Czech Republic. The Bank participated,
too, in the second round of the #FinWomen project under the
auspices of Cover Story, which aims to activate and support
women in the financial services community, particularly in terms
of career growth and development. The Bank has nominated 9
senior women executives from various parts of the KB Group to
the community of 131 inspiring women and to the Hall of Fame.
In coming months, they will be participating in the Forum’s
community-wide #FinWomen development programme. The Bank
is also part of a close grouping of five banks within the Czech
Banking Association whose aim is to cultivate diversity and
inclusion across the entire sector.

KB’s overall strategy as a responsible employer is based on
three pillars: gender balance, equal pay, and support for social
inclusion. Within the framework of gender balance, the Bank
strives for a more balanced representation of men and women in
senior management positions, including at the level of the Board
of Directors. Among the most significant actions in this direction
have been the appointment of Jitka Haubova to the position of
Chief Operations Officer in 2020 and the appointment of five
women to executive directorate positions, which brought to equal
the shares of men and women at this managerial level.

Another pillar is equal pay for men and women, which the Bank
has been working on for a long time. Relative to the market, that
gap is small and KB continues to narrow it. In 2023, it was 1.8%.

In the area of inclusion, the Bank focuses primarily on supporting
the early return of parents from maternity and parental leave. In
case of mutual interest and need, co-operation is set up also
during that leave. After returning from maternity or parental leave,
KB assists these employees with reintegration into the work
process. For example, if the type of operation and nature of the
work so permit, this is achieved through permitting shorter and/
or flexible working hours, the possibility of working from home,
and/or a combination of the two. Parents who return earlier from
parental/maternity leave are provided with a financial contribution
in excess of the legal requirement. The Bank also focuses on
supporting people from socially disadvantaged groups (e.g.
single parents), or university students. As part of this support, it
also co-operates with relevant charitable foundations.

Komeréni banka also remains in contact with retiring employees.
It values their many years of knowledge and experience and, if a
need arises, turns to these former employees with the possibility
of occasional work in order to meet temporarily increased need
for capacity of some professional activities or to train newcomers
and junior colleagues.

Komer¢ni banka, a.s. | Annual Financial Report 2023



KB pays special attention also to colleagues with disabilities. In
2023, the Bank employed 123 people with disabilities. Among
the most common positions they hold at KB are those of Bank
Advisor, Transaction Processing Specialist, Teller, Middle Office
Specialist, Client Services Specialist, or Telesales Specialist.

Raising awareness of diversity and inclusion among employees
and the general public is also part of the Bank’s strategic
approach. The Bank communicates openly and directly on all
topics, publicises its activities and results, and also shares its
experience, whether that be internally or externally, in the form of
mentoring and networking or other sharing platforms.

Prevention and punishment of all forms of

undesirable behaviour

KB has long strived to prevent and counter any behaviour that
would be in conflict with its values or principles contained in its
Code of Ethics, internationally applicable standards of the SG
Group, and local regulations. As part of this effort, KB Group

has implemented into its internal rules the SG Group policy on
prevention and punishment of unwanted behaviour in all its forms,
including psychological and sexual harassment, as well as sexist,
racist, or homophobic behaviour.

In the event that an employee witnesses or experiences any
undesirable behaviour, he or she may report this to his or her
line manager, human resources consultants, or the Compliance
Department. One also can use a secure web application for
whistleblowing that is available across the whole SG Group. In
accordance with global SG Group rules, KB Group provides
whistleblowers with protection against sanctions of any nature,
termination of employment, or discrimination. It also ensures

the anonymity of whistleblowers. Together with others in SG
Group, KB has reinforced processes for notification of improper
behaviour. To this end, it has set up an international group of
experts that is available to employees anywhere in the world. This
group consists of employees in human resources and business
departments, including from KB, who are specially trained to
handle alerts of unwanted behaviour. The members of this group
adhere to strict principles of impartiality and confidentiality.

All these initiatives aim to apply a zero-tolerance policy and

to ensure that no employees are exposed to inappropriate
behaviour.

Human capital development

Talent search and acquisition

Komeréni banka has long been dedicated to finding young

and experienced talent and adapts all its recruitment activities
accordingly. These are also based on KB’s strategy for the new
era of banking, which brings with it technological advances in all
key areas, whether it is the development of banking systems or a
new model of customer service.

With these advances come significant demands for new
competencies and knowledge of employees that will be essential
for the Bank in future. In 2023, the Bank continued to build
communities through Employer Branding as well as strengthening
its employer brand through long-term recruitment campaigns.

| Employee relationships

The Bank sees co-operation with schools and the development
of young talent as a key activity in the area of Employer Branding.
Every year, dozens of trainees from universities and secondary
schools gain experience at KB’s headquarters and branch
network. The Bank also regularly meets university students at job
fairs, open days, workshops, and special events. These focus on
specific economic or technological topics.

We have prepared a Trainee Programme for university students,
a one-year programme wherein they gain practical experience
and participate in real projects at the Bank during their studies.
Seventy per cent of the students stay at KB on an employment
contract after the end of their internships.

Technology meetups on selected topics and participation in
technology conferences across the Czech Republic have been
implemented for the IT community.

The Bank also regularly participates in employee competitions.
In the Sodexo Employer of the Year contest, which assesses
the overall approach of the company to its employees, the Bank
came in second within the Prague region in the category of
employers with more than 5,000 employees.

Employee education and career development

The Bank provides a wide range of training courses and
programmes for KB employees and the KB Group as a whole,
thus creating space for their education while emphasising that
people also take responsibility for their own career growth.

In order to promote awareness about sustainability topics, KB
decided to offer employees an educational, globally recognised
card game called Climate Fresk, which raises awareness of
climate change and its impacts. The necessary number of internal
facilitators has been trained and certified for this purpose. To this
end, the Bank has also started co-operation with the Palacky
University Foundation in Olomouc, whose experts on the subject
can be consulted by the facilitators on technical matters. In
December 2023, the ESG Academy was launched to provide

all Société Générale employees, including those of KB, with
comprehensive ESG and CSR training. The Academy includes six
e-learning modules that will provide employees with an overview
of the environmental crises we currently face, the risks they pose,
and how we can respond to them as employees of Komeréni
banka. Employees completed the first module in December 2023
and additional modules are expected in 2024.

The Bank also offers development opportunities through

internal development programmes, both for young talent (SPIRIT
programme) and for senior talent (KB Sense). The Bank co-
operates with external training companies in designing and
implementing these programmes, including to jointly develop
their content. These development programmes’ purpose is to
promote the concept of a learning organisation. The Bank is also
part of the Red Button EDU community, and we are working with
the Czech Banking Association on a programme that educates
primary and secondary school pupils on cyber security and
financial literacy. Our colleagues from the KB Sense programme,
together with non-profit organisations, have redesigned this
module tailored for children from orphanages.
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Komeréni banka also works with Société Générale on
development programmes. This gives KB employees the
opportunity to develop their skills and abilities in an international
environment.

In 2023, bank advisors in the IND segment have been intensively
preparing for and participating in the New Era of Banking at KB,
which is fundamentally changing the way we serve clients and
the portfolio of products we offer. In order to cope with these new
forms, the Change Management and Training team prepared a
series of necessary trainings for them.

The Bank is developing the principles of the learning organisation.
It supports internal experts in developing colleagues and creates
space for sharing best practice and internal mentoring, for
example within the co-development activity.

KB also supports the principles of the learning organisation
through a community of internal coaches who provide employees
with individual development, coaching, 360° feedback
debriefings, and talent diagnostic debriefings. Also, the top talent
community, KB SENSE, has provided a lot of value to the Bank’s
employees, whether that be through one-on-one mentoring,
introductions to the Bank through podcasts, internal internships,
co-developments, and even the internal KB Without Borders
conference, where one of the objectives was to connect the
world of head office employees with the branch network in an
experiential way.

Total time of studies (sum for all employees)

digital training 64,304.5 h
attendance training 192,668.0 h
mandatory digital + attendance training 61,301.5h
voluntary digital + attendance training 195,671.0 h

Average time of studies per employee in hours

digital training 8.95h
attendance training 31.77 h
mandatory digital + attendance training 8.59 h
voluntary digital + attendance training 31.87h

In the area of diversity, KB organised a Day for Fathers and
Children in co-operation with the Open Men’s League; sent
selected women to ATAIRU’s Talent Program for Leadership
Support; and implemented a workshop How to Combine Career
and Fatherhood and SeS$ivana rodina (“Patchwork Family”)

in co-operation with Dobry tata (“Good Daddy”). This year
Komeréni banka launched a brand new annual inspirational and
development programme for women in the KB Group across
the Czech Republic and Slovakia. #KkBWOMEN is an internal,
informal platform where women can meet, discuss, educate, and
get inspired by one another as well as by the guests who are an
integral part of the whole programme.

In terms of technology competencies, the Bank uses a

combination of internal training sessions led by experts in a given
field or technology and educational platforms. In the area of

onboarding new employees, there are also “incubators” wherein
we focus on onboarding juniors. This is an intensive onboarding
process focused on the first months at KB, during which new
colleagues are trained directly for their positions while focusing
primarily on specific technologies and their use at the Bank.

Performance evaluation and renumeration

Performance evaluation and feedback

Combining an appraisal interview and two-way feedback, the
regular annual performance evaluation is a part of communication
with employees. In addition, in the Agile part of the Bank,
feedback is provided by several evaluators in different roles.

This provides a more objective view of the evaluator in a matrix
structure. The standard evaluation for fulfiiment of objectives and
competence requirements has been supplemented throughout
the company by a process of employee potential assessment, the
outputs of which are further used for succession planning, talent
identification, and/or talent programmes, as well as for setting
development plans for individual employees. Other feedback
tools used included 360° assessments, skill assessments, as well
as personality and talent tests.

Remuneration in KB
The remuneration in KB is based on four principles:

* Principle of internal justice ensures that the same
remuneration is paid for the same work and same performance
under the same transparent circumstances. That remuneration
must not be affected by gender, age, religion, membership
in trade unions or political parties, or other personal
characteristics of an employee that are not directly related to
his or her work performance or competencies. Equal pay is a
basic pillar of KB’s diversity strategy. Its goal is a zero pay gap
in 2025, down from 1.8% in 2023.

* Principle of external competitiveness is ensured through
regular market surveys, taking into account the intended
market position and significant differences in the remuneration
market. These surveys then lead to determination of the
aforementioned basic wages.

e Principle of individual contribution is taken into account
in the wage and bonus. Wages may reasonably differ from
the target level to take into account all aspects such as
individual contribution or potential. A bonus is determined,
inter alia, based upon an assessment of goals achievement
and performance. A long-term incentive programme
(LTI) is designed for employees and strategic talents with
extraordinary value to the Group. It is described below in the
part called Shareholding programmes.

* Principle of risk-taking ensures that remuneration is aligned
with sound and effective risk management and supports such
management. Remuneration does not encourage the taking
of risks going beyond the risk tolerance of the Bank. KB also
takes sustainability risks into account in its remuneration

policy.
The structure of remuneration is based on three basic pillars:

1. Basic wage for work performed (fixed component)
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Wages of all employees are determined in accordance with

the sophistication of their positions, particularly in terms of the
required knowledge, experience and skills, and the resulting
responsibilities. During the regular annual review of KB’s wages,
an equitable approach in the implementation of wage increases is
observed.

2. Flexible performance-dependent remuneration
component

In addition to the basic wage, employees have a variable

remuneration scheme for the quality of meeting corporate, team,

and individual goals. The amount of the variable component

is expressed as a percentage of the annual basic wage and

is different for specific groups of employees. The target and

maximum level of the variable component is set for all positions in

the collective agreement, and for legal reasons it cannot exceed

200% of the basic wage.

Objectives following the variable component of remuneration
The remuneration principles take into account the interest of
shareholders in the value of KB by linking the amount of the
variable component for employees with the economic results of
KB and the fulfilment of strategic priorities, including sustainable
growth. In 2020, a new strategic programme was launched.

Its priorities, described in the Strategy and Results chapter of
this Annual Financial Report, have been implemented in the
employee motivation system for 2023 through the Company
Objectives and Key Results (COKR) measurement system. The
area of sustainable development is also a part of the Strategic
Priorities which includes, too, climate change reduction targets.
For 2023, the goals related to sustainable development measured
through COKR were part of the objectives of the CEO, all Board
members, and the most senior management (in total, 1,563

Bank employees). The weightings of these targets were mostly
between 5% and 50%.

Regulatory risk management principles in remuneration

Taking into account risks is part of the basic remuneration

principles. It includes in particular the following measures:

i. The overall system of flexible performance-dependent
components is set up in a way not to limit the Bank’s ability to
strengthen its capital. Payment of the flexible performance-
dependent component of the remuneration is based on
the Bank’s performance. Therefore, the size of the flexible
performance-dependent component is in no way guaranteed,
even when the individual employee achieves his or her
individual goals. The criteria used in calculating the aggregate
amount of flexible performance-dependent component
to be paid include corrections for both current and future
risk. The same criteria will be used when setting the flexible
performance-dependent remuneration budget in order to take
into account any current and future risks.

ii. Itis notthe Bank’s policy to provide any reward from previous
employment. If necessary, such a component would always
be a variable remuneration according to these Remuneration
Principles.

iii. Inthe case of an employee’s termination of employment,
“golden parachute” bonuses are forbidden.

iv. On condition of full compliance with applicable laws and
contracts, KB will at all times make every effort in its power
to recover all flexible performance-dependent remuneration
that has been paid but the payout of which has been found to
be unjustified. The entire variable remuneration can also be

| Employee relationships

clawed back for employees who have a significant impact on
the risk profile of the Bank (Identified staff). Claw-back may
be exercised for the entire vesting and retention periods. The
claw-back principle applies in particular when an ldentified
employee has contributed significantly to the Bank’s negative
financial performance, in cases of fraud or serious negligence,
thus resulting in significant losses. Claw-back applies for up
to six years from the award of the variable component.

v. Employees with significant influence on the Bank’s risk
profile (hereinafter referred to as Identified staff [IS]) are
identified in accordance with the relevant regulation and their
list is regularly reviewed. The variable remuneration of SG
expatriates identified as IS is assessed in accordance with the
Bank’s rules.

vi. In order to restrict taking on inappropriate risk, the variable
remuneration component for an IS always is performance-
linked and risk-adjusted. Non-financial criteria (such as
employee ethics, complaints, and mistakes) are taken into
account when assessing employee performance. Compliance
with regulatory requirements is also taken into account in the
evaluation. At the same time, some ISs are independently
rated from a Risk and Compliance perspective.

vii. For the IS group, which most strongly affects the Bank’s risk
profile, specific rules are adopted: the KB Deferred Bonus
Scheme. These rules consist in postponing payment of part
of the variable component, the use of non-cash instruments
(phantom shares of KB), and the Remuneration Committee’s
approval regime. In 2023, the deferred bonus scheme was
applied to all members of the Board of Directors and 18 other
KB Group employees, with a deferral period of five years
for CEO of KB, other KB’s Board members and Executive
Director of Investment Banking and four years for other
employees. Retention period of non-cash part of the variable
scheme is set for 12 months.

viii. The decision on remuneration of the members of the Board
of Directors is taken by the Supervisory Board in view of any
findings of control functions (Risk Management, Compliance,
and Internal Audit).

ix. Appraisals of internal control staff (in particular Risk
Management, Compliance, and Internal Audit) are tied
to achieving the goals associated with their functions,
independently of the performance of those areas of activity of
the Bank they control.

x. The principles of remuneration of employees who have a
significant impact on the Bank’s risk profile are reviewed and
evaluated annually by the Internal Audit staff. Through the
Remuneration Committee, KB’s Supervisory Board oversees,
evaluates, and controls compliance with remuneration policies
and procedures whose activities have a material impact on
the Bank’s overall risk profile.

xi. Remuneration policy and practice must be evidenced and
reviewable for at least 5 years.

3. Employee benefits and advantages supporting employees’
loyalty within Komercéni banka Group

The cost-effective structure of benefits reflects the Bank’s
targets to be a responsible employer while providing employees
with choices. The structure and level of benefits are subject to
collective bargaining agreements each year.

For the year 2023 the structure agreed was as follows:
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a) Daily meal vouchers worth CZK 150 without the employee’s
financial participation;

b) CZK 6,720/employee/year for recreation, sports, health, culture,
and personal development provided via the Cafeteria system;

c) CZK 10,000/year for employees within the category of people
with disabilities and CZK 600/year for employees 55 years of
age and older via the Cafeteria system;

d) Contribution to supplementary pension insurance and
supplementary pension savings at 3% of the wage;

e) Premium conditions for retail banking products and services
provided by Komeréni banka to employees;

f) Financial support during long-term illness;

g) Three working days off with wage compensation for

employees who work for Komeréni banka for longer than

6 months;

One birthday day off;

Risk life insurance;

Extraordinary social assistance;

Career sabbatical;

Extending the list of diagnoses eligible for financial assistance

for long-term inability to work,

m) One day off with wage compensation for corporate
volunteering in areas supported by KB and the KB foundation;

n) 24/7 counselling programme for help and consultation in
various life situations, in the legal, psychological and social
fields;

o) Telemedicine service, a 24/7 online medical clinic where
employees can ask questions about their health and make
appointments with specialists. The service is part of KB4U’s
well-being programme. The programme is also available to
employees on maternity or parental leave, as well as to all
family members of employees; and

p) Allowance for parents returning earlier from parental/maternity

leave;

The Bank provides for operation of the VEGEt coworking space,
which is available to all KB Group employees as a meeting place
for presentations, relaxation, and business meetings. The space
includes a purely vegan bistro in accordance with the principles
of sustainability (i.e. waste-free operation and the use of plant
residues for composting). In these premises, seminars with
environmentally oriented topics are held as well. Some of these
environmental aspects can be verified on the spot.

The Bank has also acquired a new fleet of Skoda Enyaq electric
vehicles and introduced car sharing, first at headquarters in
Prague and then in other regional cities. The cars can be used
for business trips and also are at the disposal of employees to be
borrowed for private use.

Share programmes for KB Group employees

All KB employees can participate in the Global Employee Share
Ownership Programme (GESOP). The plan aims, among other
things, to strengthen long-term loyalty to the employer and
motivate employees to participate as shareholders in the Group’s
success. Under this programme, SG Group employees can
subscribe for Société Générale shares at a discounted price with
an employer’s contribution to the purchase of shares.

SG shares have been blocked for 5 years and by subscribing
them, the employee acquires the right to vote at the Ordinary
General Meeting of SG and to receive dividends if it is decided
that these will be paid.

In 2023, 2,385 employees participated in the GESOP, subscribing
for 333,929 shares with a total value of CZK 139,384,596. The
employer’s contribution came to CZK 36,285,480. A total of 28%
of KB Group employees participated.

To increase loyalty and motivation to contribute to long-term
value growth, the Société Générale Group provides some of

its key employees with free shares of SG under the Long-Term
Incentives programme. The rights to the shares in the programme
are subject to blocking for a period of 3 years and subject to
positive results of the Société Générale Group. In 2023, the
programme included 344 of KB Group employees in the total
value of CZK 30,096,651.
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Risk governance
Main principles of risk management in KB Group

Risk management at Komeréni banka is based upon an
integrated concept that takes into account the advanced risk
management standards of the Société Générale Group together
with the statutory and regulatory norms as defined and required
by the Czech National Bank and other regulatory bodies.

Komeréni banka’s corporate governance standards assure that
the risk management function is independent of commercial and
operational functions, as well as from the internal audit function.
This approach is also applied at all subsidiaries.

The credit risk, market risk, and operational risks management
activities are carried out under the Risk Management
organisational structure, which also

¢ includes the production of risk software and data solutions
in close co-ordination with the Information Technology
organisational structure of the Bank, and

e ensures supervision of risk management activities of KB’s
subsidiaries.

Compliance risk management activities, data protection,

and fraud detection and prevention activities are managed
within a dedicated organisational structure under the ultimate
responsibility of the KB Chief Risk and Compliance Officer and
ensure also supervision of these activities in KB’s subsidiaries.

The structural risk management activities (interest rate risk and
liquidity risk, including funding risk and foreign exchange risk

in KB’s Structural book) are managed within the Strategy and
Finance organisational structure. The second line of defence
(LoD2) function covering structural risk (including validation of
reports, limits, and methodology; review of the Risk Appetite
Statement, contingency funding plan, Internal Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment process, etc.) is carried out within the Risk
Management organisational structure.

Legal risk management activities are managed within an
organisational structure that is the responsibility of KB’s Chief
Operating Officer.

Overall risk management strategy

Through its risk management strategy, KB Group continues to
pursue a prudent and balanced approach to all types of risks
assumed. At the same time, it aims to support development of
the Group’s business activities, including sustainable growth of
its lending activities and reinforcing the Group’s market positions.

| Risk management

The objective is to ensure profitable credit and market activities
across the business cycle and, at the same time, to preserve

a sound balance sheet with strong capital and liquidity ratios.

To this end, advanced risk management tools, including
statistical tools, are continuously enhanced and analytical and
risk management skills are maintained at high levels for both risk
management and business staff.

A general target of Komeréni banka’s risk management is to
harmonise risk management processes and tools throughout the
Group.

Developing a culture of risk management

Continuous development of employees’ risk management skills is
assured by regular trainings in the areas of operational risks, anti-
money laundering, ESG, etc. Specifically, employees participating
in the lending process, including in the branch network, attend
KB Risk Academy, a set of trainings in the area of credit risks.
Moreover, selected staff members take part in targeted trainings,
lectures, conferences, and other activities.

Regular performance assessment of all the Bank’s employees,
including of those in top management, includes mandatory
assessment of compliance with the Code of Conduct. The Key
Performance Indicators include at least one risk indicator for
each member of the top management and for a specified group
of employees with material impact on the Bank’s risk profile.
These indicators must have at least 20% weight in the overall
assessment.

Employees in the branch network who participate in the credit
process are also assessed according to risk performance of the
loans granted.

Environmental, social, and governance

Climate change is recognised as a major threat to humanity
having direct consequences for human health, prosperity, and
well-being. We already see that this risk is beginning dynamically
to shape access, price, and conditions for both the private and
public sectors concerning finance, investment, and insurance.
Significant regulatory initiatives from the Czech government, EU
authorities, and banking regulators require universal banks like
KB to take ESG risks better into consideration in relation to their
credit underwriting policies and risk management procedures.

Incorporation of environmental risks into the risk management
principles and procedures is governed in the “ESG by Design”
programme of Société Générale. In 2023, the Bank focused

on assessing climate risks (ability to adapt to the new “green”
economy) at its clients. This assessment is mandatory for those
business clients with overall volume of financing to a group of

Profile of KB

Strategy and results

Corporate governance

Corporate social responsibility

-
c
Q
£
Q
(=
©
c
]
£

x

°

o




economically connected subjects exceeding EUR 5 million.

The assessment of climate risks is subsequently reflected in
overall credit assessment. A client’s capacity for adaptation may
influence its internal rating and a decision by the Bank whether or
not to grant a loan.

KB Group is gradually increasing its ability to collect, measure,

and disclose ESG data to reflect regulatory and other initiatives.
The main goal is to apply a holistic approach to ESG regulation

and to further embed ESG impacts into its core operations and

policies in all relevant areas, such as onboarding of clients and

transaction/financing validation.

The Group has been preparing to meet disclosure obligations
under the EU’s Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive
(CSRD). The Directive requires that large companies publish
information regarding impacts on the business, opportunities,
and risks in the environmental, social, and governance areas. The
new rules should ensure that investors and other stakeholders
have access to harmonised information for assessing the impact
of companies on people and the environment and for investors

to assess financial risks and opportunities arising from climate
change and other sustainability issues.

KB Group will be obliged to report in accordance with the CSRD
in 2025 for the first time (reporting for 2024). KB as a parent
company will report on behalf of the whole KB Group and no
subsidiary will be reporting on a standalone basis. As of now,
KB is reporting non-financial information according to the Non-
Financial Reporting Directive (NFRD).

Implementing changes in the ESG area is closely co-ordinated
with Société Générale and takes place within the SG group’s ESG
by Design programme.

Risk appetite

KB Group risk appetite is outlined in the KB Group Risk Appetite
Statement, which since 2015 has been prepared in compliance
with Financial Stability Board recommendations. It defines at an
aggregated level all risks that KB Group is ready to accept or
intends to avoid and defines a prudent and balanced approach
to them.

The KB Group Risk Appetite Statement is elaborated with the
aim of ensuring consistency among risk-taking capacity, capital
adequacy, and the business and financial targets. The level of
the Group’s risk appetite and its risk management strategy are
fully aligned and within the boundaries of SG Group Strategy &
Risk Appetite.

The Risk Appetite Statement is revised annually or, according to
need, more frequently.

The KB Group Risk Appetite Statement includes an assessment
as to the consistency of credit risk appetite with long-term risk
and financial targets, as well as regular update of quantitative
thresholds and limits for all material risks and their alignment
with semi-annual ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process) results.

KB’s internal audit regularly evaluates the Group’s approach to
assuming risk, and it assess on a regular and ad-hoc basis risk
management procedures, including compliance with regulatory
requirements.

Stress testing

Stress-testing exercises provide a forward-looking simulation
of the Bank’s results and key characteristics in various

adverse scenarios that may occur in the economic or business
environment. Projected macroeconomic variables are translated
into the development of risk parameters and relevant exposures
and/or positions and impacts on profit or loss, own funding
requirements (capital adequacy), and other variables.

During 2023, KB Group performed these main stress-testing
activities: (i) semi-annual Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP), and (ii) annual Internal Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment Process (ILAAP). The aim of such tests is to
assess resilience of the financial institution to adverse market
developments.

As part of stress testing and preparation of the Risk Appetite
Statement, KB Group identifies and evaluates impact from new
risks that the Group faces or expects to face in future. The Group
has identified (i) environmental risks, and (ii) geopolitical and
related risks as the most important new risks.

The Group is gradually addressing the future impacts from
environmental risk in the “ESG by Design” programme.
Geopolitical risks and their related economic impacts are
considered when preparing credit policies, including in ratings of
potentially exposed clients and in IFRS 9 provisioning models.

In all stress tests, KB Group has proven itself solidly resilient
to unfavourable conditions of the economic and business
environment. KB Group has a strong capital base consisting
mostly of the highest-quality common equity Tier 1 capital. KB
Group is able to maintain its capital adequacy ratio above the
Overall Capital Requirement even under conditions of a severe
stress test scenario.

Geopolitical situation

KB Group is continuously monitoring and evaluating impacts
from the war in Ukraine on its activities and on its clients. In most
cases, the impacts are secondary and indirect, due mainly to
reliance of clients on strategic materials.

The Group is convinced that the geopolitical risks are correctly
reflected in ratings of respective clients and it considers clients’
overall situation to be generally stable, with the exception of a
sensitive exposure of CZK 4.1 billion to clients operating gas
pipelines, which KB has placed under specific monitoring.

At the same time, KB Group is monitoring growing tensions
also in other regions and evaluates the potential impacts on its
activities and clients. If necessary, the Group will respond to
the changing situation by adjusting its policies and accounting
estimates, including by adjusting its provisioning models
according to the IFRS 9 standard.
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Credit risk
Credit risk management tools

Credit risk assessment and monitoring

Client credit risk is managed on the basis of comprehensively
assessing clients’ risk profiles from quantitative (financial) and
qualitative viewpoints using advanced scoring and rating models
along with individual approval by competent risk or business
managers. The system of approval authorities is set up to

reflect the risk profiles of the counterparties and the levels of
competencies required for their assessment. No credit exposure
can be originated until internal credit limits for the client and
transaction have been first duly established.

The Bank has a strong monitoring process for clients financed
and exposures granted that allows for triggering corrective
actions in case deterioration is evidenced. The monitoring is
continuously enhanced, and, specifically for non-retail clients, the
Bank uses advanced models based on Al (artificial intelligence)
algorithms.

All KB scoring, rating, and Basel (e.g. Loss Given Default,
Probability of Default, or Credit Conversion Factor) models are
back-tested at least annually and adjusted whenever needed.

The KB Group carries out detailed monitoring of its loan portfolio.
It reports the results regularly to the Bank’s management on a
quarterly basis and to the Supervisory Board on a semi-annual
basis.

Fraud prevention
A) Payment fraud protection

Komeréni banka uses an automated fraud detection system
(FDS) for detecting and preventing payment frauds. The system
is based on rules and models using data from transactions,
devices, and users’ sessions. The system and its rules are being
continuously adjusted according to the market situation.

B) Credit fraud protection

Komeréni banka uses an automated system for detecting credit
frauds and for co-ordinated reactions to credit fraud attacks. The
system is fully integrated into KB’s main applications. Anti-fraud
tools and processes are continuously adjusted according to the
market situation.

Staging

KB Group allocates its receivables arising from financial activities
into three categories (Stages 1, 2, and 3) in accordance with

the IFRS 9 standard. Stages 1 and 2 constitute non-default
(performing) while Stage 3 comprises default (non-performing)
receivables. The staging reflects both quantitative criteria
(payment discipline, financial data) and qualitative criteria (e.g.
in-depth client knowledge).

Model Risk Management

Due to the growing importance of predictive models, Komer&ni
banka established in 2018 an expert team (Model Risk
Management). The team is focused on risks originating from
those models’ usage. This MRM team provides an initial review of
a model’s design, checks its correct usage and implementation,

| Risk management

controls appropriate lifecycle governance, and provides annual
model re-validation). KB’s MRM team is covering all credit risk,
ALM, and compliance models. Models shared within the SG
group are reviewed in co-operation with a central SG MRM team.
Moreover, the team ensures regulatory compliance for regulated
models (IRB, IFRS 9, ALM) for KB Group. With the ongoing
digitalisation of bank services, the team will gradually extend its
scope to control other KB Group model families (e.g. marketing
models).

Real estate valuation

In compliance with Czech and EU regulations, the valuation and
monitoring of real estate collaterals accepted by the KB Group
as security for corporate and retail loan exposures are delegated
to a dedicated independent unit. This unit is a part of the Risk
Management Arm and co-operates with a broad group of
external valuation experts.

KB Group continuously monitors both residential and commercial
real estate markets and regularly revaluates the real estate
collaterals. KB Group utilises appropriate techniques (individual
or statistical) for this purpose in order to react adequately to
market developments. KB Group uses statistical monitoring

of residential real estate market developments and applies

an adjustment for pertinent residential real estate appraised
values if residential real estate market values significantly
decrease in relevant regions and periods. Moreover, KB Group
monitors the development of commercial rents and performs
individual revaluation of pertinent commercial real estate if rents
significantly decrease in relevant regions and commercial real
estate segments. In addition, real estates securing exposures
exceeding EUR 3 million are individually revaluated every 3 years.

Since November 2019, KB Group has been using online statistical
real estate collateral evaluation for a limited part of the low-risk
production of mortgages as one of the steps in digitalising the
mortgage loan granting process.

Recovery activities

In 2023, KB Group observed the first impacts resulting from
effects of the shock development of energy prices, high
inflation, and dynamic increases in interest rates during 2022.
This was visible especially for the individuals who already had
been past due with their debts in the previous periods and for
entrepreneurs. These effects appear gradually, with some time-
lag after their initial effect on the economy.

In particular, KB Group has observed an increase in the time
needed to “cure” clients in the first stage of recovery (up to 90
days after the due date). More moderate growth was observed in
the volume of loans entering this stage of recovery each month.

In the second half of 2023, KB Group observed clearly visible
effects of the economic slowdown especially among small
business clients, who had more often entered longer-lasting
delays with the payment of their credit obligations and also more
often proceeded to the next phase of recovery, i.e. in out-of-court
recovery.

During 2023, KB Group observed slightly higher intensity of

requests for (repayment) relief, but the number of requests for
relief stabilised during the 3rd and 4th quarters. Nevertheless,
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the number and volume of requests for repayment relief was still
considered to be at a normal level.

The Group assumes that delayed effects of the current
macroeconomic situation on the credit portfolio quality may be
seen in future.

Therefore, KB Group continues to boost efficiency of processes
by digitising and automating certain activities in the retail out-of-
court collection so that it would be able to absorb any possible
increased inflow of clients affected by the deteriorating economic
situation.

During 2023, KB Group continued in regular sales of
uncollateralised and collateralised retail non-performing loans
and receivables to selected qualified investors so that the
maximum achievable recovery rate is obtained. KB Group did not
carry out any mass sales of non-performing loans secured by real
estate collateral.

The Group continuously responded to the changing legal
environment, to newly adopted legislation, and to their possible
impacts on the recovery of loans and receivables. Increased
attention continued to be given primarily to the collection of
claims under the Insolvency Act, that being the predominant
method of resolving overdue claims of retail and corporate clients
in the legal collection phase.

KB Group plays an active role in the insolvency process from
the position of a secured creditor, member of the creditors’
committee, or representative of creditors, whether in bankruptcy
proceedings or in reorganisations, both of which are used by
KB Group depending upon a given debtor’s circumstances and
the attitudes of other creditors. In 2023, KB Group observed an
increasing number of client reorganisation solutions in the form
of the entry of a new investor. In providing debt relief, KB Group
focuses especially on monitoring the fulfilment of debt relief
conditions by those clients who are paying off their debts.

Provisioning

Main principles of provisioning

KB Group uses the IFRS 9 standard in the area of allowances for
receivables. Depending on the client segment, materiality, risk
profile, and characteristics of the receivables, allowances are
created either (i) individually (for part of defaulted exposures, or,
exceptionally, for exposures in Stage 2) while taking into account
the present value of expected future cash flows and considering
all available information, including the estimated value of
collateral and the expected duration of the recovery process; or
(i) using expected credit loss statistical models based on the
observed history of defaults and losses and forward-looking
adjustments.

Allowances calculation in accordance with IFRS 9 is consistent
with the risk-weighted assets calculation (IFRS 9 statistical
models are originally derived from the IRBA regulatory models),
the same statistical models being used in both calculations,

and with the regular stress-testing approach (forward-looking
predictions in the IFRS 9 calculations are the same as those used
in the regular stress testing). In 2023, KB Group updated and
recalibrated its IFRS 9 models for the performing portfolio (Stage 1

and Stage 2) and for the retail non-performing portfolio (Stage 3).
This is further detailed in the next chapter.

Credit risk development in 2023

Granting policy

As default rates of the portfolio remained at a low level during
2023, KB Group did not materially change its granting policy.
Nevertheless, the Group responded to the evolution of energy
prices and rising inflation by raising the expenditure and cost of
living minimums entering into the creditworthiness assessment
for individuals. Throughout 2023, KB Group continued to simplify
its processes and accelerate credit granting to all client segments
and while gradually introducing digital processes.

Cost of risk in 2023

KB Group recorded cost of risk at 0 basis points in 2023
compared with 15 basis points (net creation) in 2022. The total
volume of allowances created for amounts due from customers
came to CZK 13.5 billion as of 31 December 2023 versus

CZK 14.9 billion as of 31 December 2022.

Overall, 1.8% of loans (on-balance) were classified in Stage 3
(non-performing) as of 31 December 2023, which compares to
2.3% in 2022. The decreased NPL share in 2023 reflects low
default migration intensity and continued strong recoveries.

During 2023, KB Group updated and recalibrated its IFRS 9
models for the performing portfolio (Stage 1 and Stage 2) and for
the retail non-performing portfolio (Stage 3), while considering:

(@) New macroeconomic forecasts in line with the IFRS 9
forward looking approach (in terms of sensitivity, GDP
and unemployment remain the main predictors in forward
looking models),

(b) Adjustments of methodological rules for PD and LGD
curves, and

(c) Parametric adjustments to staging rules for Stages 1 and 2.

These updates of IFRS 9 models led to release of allowances for
the performing portfolio in the amount of CZK 125 million and to
creation of allowances for the non-performing portfolio totalling

CZK 16 million.

In accordance with the IFRS 9 methodology, the update was
based on the multi-scenario approach, which as of the end of
2023 was founded on three scenarios:

(@) Baseline scenario with a probability of 62%;
(b) Stress scenario with a probability of 28%; and
(c) Optimistic scenario with a probability of 10%.

The baseline scenario anticipates year-on-year increase in GDP
of 0.4% in 2023 and GDP growth of 2% in 2024, with average
unemployment at 2.7% in 2023 and 2.8% in 2024. The stress
scenario expects (4.6%) year-on-year decrease in GDP during
2023 and (1%) decline in 2024, with average unemployment at
5.7% in 2023 and at 5.3% in 2024.

The scenarios were developed internally using the best estimates
and following forecasts published by government, regulatory, and
other authorities.
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In

line with the forward-looking concept, KB Group continued to

apply a specific approach using post-model adjustments for the
following portfolios:

(i)

Exposures in retail segments of individuals and small
business, with a deteriorating credit profile that is not fully
reflected in the clients’ credit ratings as of 31 December 2023
and wherein KB Group expects clients’ ability to repay their
liabilities to be negatively influenced by high inflation, costs,
or interest rates. As of 31 December 2023, the exposure

of this portfolio totalled CZK 70.4 billion. In the segment

of individuals, the rating of these clients was downgraded

by one notch and in the segment of small business by two
notches for the purpose of allowance calculation. In addition,
exposures of the aforementioned clients granted until the end
of 2021 are reclassified into Stage 2 (due to the deteriorated
macroeconomic situation since initial recognition, which can
influence the future credit profile of the exposures). The level
of additional allowances was at CZK 658 million as of 31
December 2023. KB Group is considering to start the gradual
release of these additional allowances once the currently
increased default intensity recorded in consumer finance and
small business declines to levels observed prior to the Covid
period.

(i) The whole performing non-retail portfolio, because KB Group

expects that the ability of clients in this segment to repay
their liabilities will be negatively influenced by high inflation,
costs, or interest rates. The level of additional allowances
was at CZK 1,653 million as of 31 December 2023. KB Group
used the approach via additional allowances for the whole
non-retail segment, as it does not yet observe significant
differences in risk profile among sectors. However, KB
Group is closely monitoring the situation of sectors that

it considers to be potentially sensitive to high inflation or
with a deteriorated outlook for the future. KB Group is
considering to start the gradual release of these additional
allowances in the second half of 2024 if the clients’ financial
statements for 2023 confirm the generally good financial
situation of its clients. Furthermore, KB Group assumes that
it will simultaneously introduce additional allowances for
those selected sectors which KB Group considers to have a
potentially deteriorated outlook for the future.

Risk management

Principal activities in 2023

KB Group focused during 2023 especially on the following
activities in the credit risk area:

(i)
(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Assessing impacts of the current macroeconomic situation
and outlook on the credit quality of its portfolio.

Delivering regulatory requirements (ongoing upgrade of
regulatory IRBA models reflecting EBA Guidelines, regular
update of provisioning models) or gradual incorporation of
ESG principles into its activities.

Implementing the Bank’s digital risk strategy (e.g. ongoing
implementation of upgraded KB Group risk engine, redesign
of origination processes for all segments enabling the digital
client’s journey, strengthening digital fraud prevention, etc.).
Continuing implementation of the optimised risk management
function in KB Group with a focus on aligning and
interconnecting subsidiaries’ risk management processes
with those of the Bank.
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Capital markets risks
Capital markets risks management

Market risk and counterparty risk on market transactions
within KB Group’s financial markets activities are managed

by a dedicated Markets and Structural Risks Department.
This department reports directly to the Bank’s Chief Risk and
Compliance Officer and is fully independent of business units.
It operates within the framework of Société Générale Group’s
Market Risk Division. Methodologies for measuring risks and
control procedures are thus aligned with the best practices of
Société Générale.

Market risk of the trading portfolio

Several types of measures are used for assessing risks in
Komeréni banka'’s trading portfolio:

e Value-at-Risk (VaR) is calculated using historical scenarios
with a 99% confidence level and 1-day time horizon. As of
31 December 2023, the VaR came to CZK (19) million. Reliability
of the VaR model’s results is back-tested while checking the
daily P&L against the VaR. KB’s Board of Directors is regularly
informed about the results of the back-testing.

* The impacts of low-probability events not covered by VaR are
assessed using various stress-testing methods and scenarios.

¢ Volume and sensitivity metrics are used to measure exposure
to all relevant risk factors (e.g. FX, interest rate, basis, flight to
quality, and credit spread risks).

Market risk limits are approved by two members of KB’s
Board of Directors (the Member of the Board in charge of Risk
Management and the Member in charge of Corporate and
Investment Banking) after being validated by SG’s Market Risk
Division.

The Bank uses enhanced valuation techniques for derivatives
while considering whether a given derivative is concluded with or
without collateral agreement and thus reflecting the cost of the
Bank’s liquidity.

Komeréni banka’s exposure to the risk of change in volatility on
its market book is limited to asymmetry effect stemming from the
different collateral arrangements between client transactions and
their hedges.

Counterparty risk on financial markets activities

A market transaction may be concluded with a counterparty

only on validated products and if approved limits exist for that
counterparty. Counterparty limits for financial markets operations
are monitored on a daily basis. Any breach of such limits is
immediately reported to the relevant management level within the
Bank.

The measurement of counterparty risk arising from derivative
products is based on the Credit Value at Risk (CVaR) indicator.
This indicator is calculated using Monte Carlo simulation

while taking into account netting and collateral effect. With

a 99% confidence level, CVaR quantifies the potential future
replacement costs of a transaction with a client in case of such
client’s default.

As of 31 December 2023, the KB Group was exposed to a

credit exposure of CZK 392,504 million on financial derivative
instruments and repo operations, including those with the

central banks (expressed in CVaR). This amount represents the
replacement costs at market rates as of 31 December 2023 for all
outstanding agreements. The netting agreements and parameters
of collateral agreements are taken into account where applicable.
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Financial risks

In addition to credit and non-financial risks, the Group is exposed
to risks related to changes in interest and exchange rates and
liquidity of assets (financial risks). The process of managing
financial risks aims to hold risks undertaken to a minimum while
also facilitating the Group’s organic development. The methods
for identifying, measuring, and managing risks in the areas of
foreign exchange and interest rates are typically based on the
requirement to minimise the impact on earnings. Supervision

of the financial risk management process is by the Assets and
Liabilities Committee (ALCO), which includes, among others,
members of Komeréni banka’s senior management. The ALCO
also oversees the levels of risk taken on and the proposed
hedging transactions that the Bank executes in managing

risk. KB’s Asset and Liability Management (ALM) department
defines methodologies for identifying and measuring these risks,
subject to approval by the ALCO. The ALM department also
measures the risk indicators and reports them regularly to the
ALCO and Board of Directors. The methodology of identification
and measurement of financial risks is reviewed by the Risk
Management Arm, specifically by the Market and Structural Risk
Department. This department is also responsible for managing
the limits for individual risk categories. KB’s Treasury Department
proposes and implements investment and hedging operations
for managing the Bank’s risk profile. Treasury is also in charge
of setting up appropriate economic benchmarks for price
setting, again subject to ALCO approval. Mirroring the regulatory
developments in France and the USA, liquidity risk management
has been centralised into the Treasury Department.

The ALCO, as well as the ALM, Treasury, and Market and
Structural Risk departments, supervise the processes of asset
and liabilities management also in other KB Group entities. All
financial risk management activities fully comply with the rules
of Czech regulatory authorities and with relevant international
banking regulations.

Price setting

The process of product price setting is organised on two levels.
The first involves the economic principle of determining a proper
benchmark in terms of current market conditions and at the level
of Komeréni banka’s portfolios (by the ALCO). The second is to
determine the price for the customer in view of a combination

of marketing objectives and product parameters from the client
perspective (by the Commercial Committee). Treasury provides
tools and supports the Bank’s business network in valuing
transactions, setting client rates, and determining exchange rate
spreads. The price-setting strategy is to offer clients products
bearing competitive interest rates while always taking into
account those costs connected with the price of liquidity and
hedging against interest rate risk. In that manner, margins and
financial stability are preserved even despite possible changes in
market conditions.

| Risk management

Interest rate risk in the banking book

Interest rate risk constitutes the risk of possible financial loss

or negative changes in the Group’s net interest income due to
movements in market interest rates. KB Group has divided its
business activities according to their nature into the banking
book and market book. Transactions executed with clients
through the branch network typically fall within the banking
book while operations with instruments acquired with intention
of further trading belong in the market book. Interest rate risk is
measured and managed separately for the banking and market
books. With regard to interest rate risk in the banking book, the
parent company (i.e. Komeréni banka) and Modra pyramida are
the most significant members of the Group. The Group manages
its banking book interest rate risk using such standard methods
as gap analysis and interest rate sensitivity analysis. The aim

of the Group is to minimise banking book risk and not at all to
speculate on interest rate changes. To this end, the Group has
established prudential limits. Thanks to the strategy aimed at
minimising interest rate risk, the Bank’s exposure to the effects
of rising interest rates is substantially limited, and any potential
future interest rates decreases will not adversely affect the Bank.

KB uses such standard market instruments for hedging against
interest rate risk as interest rate swaps and forward rate
agreements, as well as to invest in securities. All hedging and
investment transactions are immediately entered into the Bank’s
front office system, where they are recorded and priced.

As from 2018, the Group classifies financial assets pursuant
to the IFRS 9 Financial Instruments into the following business
models:

e for the banking book — Hold to Collect contractual cash flows
(HTC portfolio) and Hold to Collect and Sell (HTCS portfolio)
contractual cash flows,

¢ and for the trading book — Held for Trading.

The choice of portfolio for holding an investment in the banking
book is defined by accounting requirements and the associated
internal rules (for classification of securities, the Bank considers
the business model and the nature of the cash flows).

Revaluation of the HTCS portfolio to fair value impacts upon
regulatory capital through changes in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The volume of regulatory capital could be impacted
mainly by a worsening in the credit quality of bonds, whereas an
impact from movements of market interest rates is substantially
limited due to the bonds’ interest payments being hedged.
Selection of the HTC or HTCS portfolio allows for hedging an
investment against interest rate risk. In 2023, the Group decided
to divest part of its HTCS portfolio in order to improve stability
and predictability of the capital adequacy ratio over time.

Interest rate derivatives (for hedging risk in the banking book)
are recognised pursuant to valid accounting rules (including IAS
39) so as to achieve the most precise accounting recognition.
Changes in the economic environment and in the product

mix of the balance sheet had no impact on the Bank’s hedge
accounting. During 2023, all hedging derivatives of the Bank
met the conditions defined by accounting standards, and their
complete effectiveness was validated during regular testing.

o
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KB has prepared a detailed strategy for managing interest
rate risks that includes descriptions of permitted derivatives,
instructions on using them, and methods for their accounting
valuation.

Foreign exchange risk in the banking book of
KB Group

Foreign exchange risk is defined as the risk of potential loss to
the Group due to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The
Group’s foreign exchange risk is measured and managed on a
daily basis, and its position is controlled by a system of limits.
The strategy is to minimise the impact of foreign exchange risk
in the banking book, which means essentially to achieve neutral
foreign exchange positions. For the purposes of hedging these,
the Bank uses such standard instruments as FX spot and FX
forward operations.

Within the Group, foreign exchange risk is concentrated
especially in Komeréni banka itself. The maximum open foreign
exchange position of the Group’s banking book in 2023 was less
than 0.26% of the Group’s capital, and thus it was essentially
negligible. Part of foreign exchange risk management also
involves KB’s ability to respond quickly to market developments
so as to prevent the conclusion of economically disadvantageous
transactions. Komeréni banka uses an automatic system for
continuously monitoring the development of market rates, and it
changes those rates used in client transactions once the market
movement reaches a predetermined threshold.

Komeréni banka, a.s.
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Operational risk

The overall strategy for operational risk management is
determined by the Operational Risk Committee, which also
adopts appropriate steps in case of any negative development
in the operational risk area and approves principal changes

in the insurance programme utilised for mitigating impacts of
operational risk events.

KB has been applying the Advanced Measurement Approach
(AMA) to operational risk management and capital requirement
calculation since 2008. Capital requirement calculation is
performed using a central model of Société Générale. In addition
to the standard tools utilised within the AMA approach, such as
collecting data on actual operational risk losses, risk control self-
assessment, key risk indicators, and scenario analysis, KB also
has implemented a system of permanent supervision composed
of daily and formalised controls. The headquarters departments
use the SG Group tool GPS (Group Permanent Supervision) to
manage and report on these formalised controls. The concept

of “second-level controls” based on SG Group principles is
present in KB and in 2023 was further developed. Improvement
aimed at an independent review of control setup and appropriate
performance of formalised and operational controls. The Bank
continuously enhances the effectiveness of individual operational
risk management processes, including the collection of
information about internal events.

In 2023, Komeréni banka Group recorded 206 operational risk
events in a final amount of CZK 78.0 million. In a year-on-year
comparison, this represents a 3% decrease in the number of
losses and a 60% reduction in terms of loss volumes. Regarding
net loss volumes, fraud and other criminal acts constitute the
most significant long-term risk category.

To strengthen KB’s holistic approach to risk management, the
Operational Risk Department was transferred under the Risk
Management Arm already in 2019 and thus the department is
currently being supervised directly by the Chief Risk Officer,

a member of KB’s Board of Directors. Co-operation within KB
Group companies in the area of operational risk management
has been ensured through the regular exchange of information
and participation of KB representatives on Operational Risk
Committees organised by major KB Group companies. Within
KB Group, the AMA approach is already used in four KB Group
companies. In addition to the Bank itself, these include Modra
pyramida, as well as two non-banking entities, SGEF and ESSOX.

KB, in co-operation with its parent company and in accordance
with SG Group principles, continuously streamlines operational
risk management procedures and strengthens the control
environment. As part of the Group’s strategic risk management
initiatives, the Risk Control Self-Assessment methodology was
further developed in 2023 to place more emphasis on a “process”
approach to risk assessment. In order to reflect recent regulatory
challenges at SG Group level and to mitigate the most significant
risks, new formalised controls were implemented while the setup
of certain formalised controls was updated to strengthen a
consistent approach to implementing control activities across SG
Group.

| Risk management

A significant part of the operational risk management activities

in the past year was devoted to KB’s transformation activities
and, in particular, to launch of the New Era of Banking by KB.
With this launch, which aims to simplify and streamline the
product offering, digitalise and optimise front- and back-office
processes, base itself primarily on digital interaction with the
client, and utilise modern technological solutions, KB entered a
new era of its existence. Operational risks related to the Bank’s
transformation activities, including the New Era of Banking by KB,
are analysed and taken into account already in the development
of new solutions. The identified risks are monitored and evaluated
on an ongoing basis.

KB devotes considerable effort and resources to fighting fraud.
In order to strengthen the Bank’s ability to detect and prevent
fraudulent behaviour in the current environment, already in 2021,
fraud prevention units in charge of preventing and detecting
payment, credit, and internal frauds were joined into a unified
department that is being supervised directly by the Chief Risk
Officer.

In line with the growth in cashless transactions, KB spotted
already in 2022 an increase in fraudulent payment transactions
and in attempts to misuse clients’ trust with the aim of
fraudulently acquiring the credentials and access codes for their
internet or mobile banking or to persuade clients to execute
payment transactions to accounts controlled by fraudsters.
Compared to 2022, there was a 30% reduction in the volume of
recorded fraudulent payments during 2023, but this still reflects
a visible upward trend compared to previous years. Effective
system measures ensured that the vast majority of these
fraudulent attempts was identified. Komeréni banka persistently
monitors existing fraudulent scenarios and continuously
accommodates its control mechanisms to these. That contributes
significantly to reducing total client losses due to fraudsters.
Because the most effective protection against these fraudulent
attacks is prudence together with knowledge of potential risks
and basics of safe behaviour on the internet, Komeréni banka
regularly warns and informs its clients about recent security
threats.

Business continuity

Business continuity management consists in developing
Komeréni banka’s structures, procedures, and resources
intended to cope with extraordinary situations in order to reduce
the potential damaging impacts these may have on the Bank;
protect the entity’s employees, clients, assets, and activities;
and enable it to continue providing basic services and thus

to protect KB’s reputation, brand, products, processes, and
know-how while limiting the impact on its financial position. KB
has developed business continuity plans for all main vital and
critical processes. These plans are regularly assessed, updated,
and tested. The system is subject to regular reviews by internal
auditors as well as regulatory authorities. KB is a part of the
Czech Republic’s recognised critical infrastructure within the
financial market and currency sector.

Impact of the Russian aggression in Ukraine
Recognising security risks associated with the ongoing Russian

aggression towards Ukraine, the Bank strengthened its security
measures, especially in the area of IT and information security.
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Cyber and information security

Cyber and information security within Komeréni banka is
managed under the Chief Digital Officer, a member of the Board
of Directors. The key governing and influencing body in relation
to cyber and information security within the Bank is the Security
Center of Expertise. It defines the overall cyber and information
security governance, disseminates this into and across the entire
organisation, assesses associated security risks, and controls
achievement of defined security levels. The whole approach
towards organising cyber and information security is built upon a
key, fundamental principle that every asset owner is responsible
for the security of the owned asset and every employee is
responsible for his or her own secure behaviour.

Security aspects of servicing and development work in KB
must be addressed with very acute focus so that execution of
all security aspects and their outcomes well protect the Bank’s
business, banking secrecy, client data, and all interactions

with clients against foreseeable threats originating from the
continually evolving digital environment. Security aspects are
considered as fundamental features within all new developments
and all business interactions. Komeréni banka’s approach to
protecting its digital environment is based on an ISO/IEC 27000
methodology. KB strives to achieve well harmonised end-to-
end defence coverage and to ensure that the key pillars of
information security — confidentiality, integrity, availability, and
non-repudiation — are properly addressed and maintained.

The most severe cyber risks originate from the external
environment and include the likes of fraud risks, risks of attacks
on KB’s clients, risks of penetrating the Bank’s information
systems, risks of electronic services availability loss, risks

of illegitimate data exfiltration. The Bank also does not
underestimate threats that originate from inside of the bank
organisation, such as internal fraud, misuse of access rights,

or potential leakage of the Bank’s confidential information. To
mitigate these risks, Komeréni banka employs a broad set of
preventive and detective measures that create a comprehensive,
layered set of the Bank’s security defences. The Bank continually
monitors the external and internal environments, behaviour

of users, and the setup of internal assets. It assesses risks
associated with implemented changes in order to assure that
identified high risks will be quickly mitigated. Risk mitigations are
also initiated as the outcome of periodic risk reviews involving

all IT assets. Komer¢ni banka continually implements regulatory
requirements directed to maintaining a prudent security setup
that contributes to the application of high preventive and control
standards. The adherence to internal policies and external
requirements is double-checked by the internal audit department,
which conducts approximately five missions yearly on different
cyber and information security topics.

The Bank operated during 2023 under continued difficult cyber
risk conditions. It remained a target for adverse cyber actors,
primarily for actors responding to geopolitical developments

or political statements related to Russia’s invasion of Ukraine.
Komeréni banka was among targets of a DDoS campaign against
the Czech banking sector launched at the end of August 2023.
During the first wave of the DDoS attack, KB’s clients could not
log on to KB’s Mojebanka internet banking service and KB web
pages were unavailable for a couple of hours. The nature of this
attack did not prevent KB from managing information such that

data confidentiality and integrity were not impacted. Additional
DDoS wave attempts that were repeated during the autumn and
beginning of winter in 2023 did not cause any major impacts

on services provided to KB’s clients, and those attempts were
contained by improved defensive methods.

The number of serious, publicly announced vulnerabilities that
may threaten the security of KB’s digital environment remained at
high levels. The Bank continued in responding swiftly to these by
immediate application of recommended fixes or patches.

In parallel, the Bank continually faced a heightened number

of phishing and vishing attempts. These attempts caused no
significant interruption of services or detriment to the internal
environment. As true for the Bank, so, too, were its clients targets
of sophisticated cyberfraud attempts. In response, the Bank
implemented a number of countermeasures — ranging from
informational campaigns to improved technical arrangements
and additional anti-fraud controls — to address attacks that were
experienced from various vectors.

During 2023, the Bank continued in its transformation and began
offering a new suite of digital banking products known as KB+.
These products capitalise on embedded security inasmuch as
reflecting security policies and standards requirements is an
integral aspect of the agile@scale development methodology
consistently applied in creating new KB+ applications and
improvements. Development teams’ adherence to security
policies and standards is validated by dedicated security
resources allocated to individual development Tribes

via comprehensive security assessments that mirror the
requirements included in accepted policies. Findings and gaps
are recorded within the information security risk management
framework, then prioritised for mitigations by development Tribes
with the help of IT risk dashboards and strong management
oversight.

KB’s digital environment is continuously monitored from

a security perspective by the security operations centre.
Consistent execution of key secure practices is controlled by a
set of automated controls or periodical manual controls (first-
level controls). Already a standard best practice, Komeréni
banka continued to employ benchmark monitoring of its external
perimeter security posture by an external service provided by
the company BitSight. This effort succeeded in sustaining KB’s
“advanced” ranking that was achieved already in 2020.

Security governance in 2023 continued to pursue a wing-to-
wing group security continual improvement programme driven
by Société Générale and approved by ECB. Improvements

were carried out in the area of foundation security (i.e. endpoint
detection and response [EDR]) protection on Windows servers
and a framework for addressing obsolescence); detection &
reaction (i.e. alignment of practice within SG Group, a common
baseline of security information and event management [SIEM]
alerting, and measured response to most critical alerts);
application security (i.e. secure by design requirements applied in
initial setup, with initial security gates deployed into development
processes); data security (i.e. application of stringent controls

of data protection on top confidential information); application

of the rules on SaaS services that become part of the KB digital
environment; Schrems Il controls introduction; data leakage
prevention (DLP) practice improvements; identity and access
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management (i.e. continual spreading of controls over privileged
accounts to additional sets of applications, local administrative
rights reduction); cyber resilience (i.e. continued hardening,

now of the more-orbital part of KB’s digital environment); and
cyberculture (i.e. improved awareness programmes reflecting
cyberthreat developments).

During 2023, the Bank tested its preparedness for responding to
cyber events. It executed a tabletop crisis exercise organised in
co-operation with the National Cyber and Information Security
Agency (NUKIB). KB carried out a red teaming exercise that
simulated an advanced cyberattack aiming to interrupt a vital
servicing process or to exfiltrate confidential information from
KB. Outcomes of tests like these generate inputs to KB’s
cyberresilience programme that focuses on identifying gaps in
KB’s defences and then closing these across KB'’s entire digital
environment, thus complementing the Group’s sound approach
to security governance.

Komeréni banka also continued in developing a response
scenario to potential data destruction in a business continuity
management case. The Bank progressed in design of the
recovery environment, in determination of vital processes details
(i.e. what needs to be recovered and what needs to be validated
upon recovery), and in outlining development in this area for the
next 2 years, by which time recovery shall start to be practiced
within regular business continuity management and in alignment
with operational resilience practice established by EU legislation,
specifically the Digital Operational Resilience Act (DORA). On this
topic, KB started to address EU DORA requirements by initial gap
analysis, formation of response teams, and alignment of how this
topic is addressed within SG Group.

The secure behaviour of employees was promoted via continual
delivery of KB'’s information security awareness programme.
This includes annual information security training complemented
by internal communication on actual security topics. The Bank
continues to deliver training in secure development techniques
to KB’s developers. The employees were kept alert via regular
simulated phishing attacks (at least three times per year) and
vishing campaigns.

Continued vigilant attention was given to client security. Secure
two-factor authentication via the KB Key application (KB KIi¢) is
a dominant authentication method. More than 1 million of KB’s
clients are actively using KB KIli¢ and strong authentication is
mandatory for access to fully digital KB+ products. Komer&ni
banka actively promotes the use of Bank identity and contributes
to increasing the quality of its security, usage, and support.
Komeréni banka supports clients in addressing security aspects
of digital banking through its continually updated, dedicated
security website (https://www.kb.cz/en/security). The site
communicates key secure behaviour practices and features that
should help clients to stay safe. It includes recommendations

on how to protect client devices and information about current
threats and active fraud schemes. KB’s anti-fraud detection
system helped to save the money of a number of clients by
detecting and blocking suspicious payments that were made by
impacted clients but on the basis of fraudulent requests.

Komeréni banka continually monitors a defined set of key risk

indicators (KRI), such as number of security exceptions, number
and criticality of open vulnerabilities, and number of security

| Risk management

incidents. None of the monitored KRIs deviated from long-term
levels in 2023. The Bank reported 3 security incidents in 2023
as defined by the Cyber Security Act (Act No. 181/2014 Coll.). All
these reports were associated with the aforementioned DDoS
attacks against the KB environment that targeted the services of
Mojebanka digital banking and services of KB web pages.
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Compliance risk

Compliance risk arises from possible breaches of regulatory
rules, standards, principles of ethical conduct, and KB’s internal
regulations based on general ethical and corporate social
responsibility principles that are obligatory for all employees. Any
materialisation of this risk means the possibility of bringing KB
into conflict with regulatory authorities, institutions, or its clients.
KB could face financial penalties, reimbursement for damages
and costs for corrective measures, as well as loss of reputation
and goodwill with clients and the general public.

To manage compliance risk, KB has established a set of rules
and processes within the control and management system. KB
is scrupulously attentive to their observance. The Compliance
Department is an important part of KB’s management and control
system. It has clearly defined functions and powers to identify
these risks. Risk management rules and processes are vested in
KB’s internal regulations. Those internal regulations are regularly
communicated to all employees, and compliance with them is
regularly controlled. Senior employees are responsible for the
continuous education of their colleagues to ensure compliance
with the rules.

KB conducts a series of activities for the purposes of compliance
risk management. The first step is systematically to monitor
outputs of the relevant regulatory bodies as well as to follow new
regulations. The next activity is continuing to co-ordinate the
implementation of the regulations within KB by creating internal
policies and procedures. Finally, there is a follow-up that involves
inspection and consulting.

KB has developed a broad basis of internal regulations within
risk management focused primarily on preventing the violation
of regulatory and ethical rules and minimising the associated
risks. The main areas relevant for KB include in particular
preventing money laundering and financing of terrorism, rules
for preventing corruption and accepting gifts, managing conflicts
of interest, rules for providing financial market services, rules
for handling insider information, distribution and advertising
of products, payment operations, protecting banking secrecy,
consumer protection, whistleblower protection, client data
protection, competition, and rules regulating advertisement.

Within these areas, KB provides training to relevant employees
and informs them about new regulatory developments.

The purpose of the training is to ensure understanding and
compliance with regulatory requirements while maintaining
general awareness of the main principles and rules of conduct
that both KB and its employees must observe. KB provides
advice and support in the aforementioned areas across all KB
Group companies.

In the context of compliance risk management, KB strictly insists
on zero tolerance for fraudulent and dishonest conduct of any
kind, as well as for any infringement of the pertinent regulatory
and ethical rules, whether consciously or through negligence.
Special attention is given also to reputation risks that must be
taken into account within the context of KB’s activities.

A number of mechanisms have been put into place to minimise

the risks of regulatory non-compliance by KB and its employees.
There is continuous monitoring of compliance with the rules

and subsequent controls. The results of particular controls are
regularly reviewed. KB records the findings and conclusions
from inspections carried out by regulatory institutions and
internal audit. Special attention is paid to corrective measures.
Furthermore, individual regulatory discrepancies identified
through normal banking operations are recorded and carefully
evaluated. The process of improvement is constantly being
reported to KB’s Board of Directors.

Compliance incidents are governed according to a formalised
process adopted on the basis of SG Group rules. All employees
are encouraged to avoid such incidents. In case of any
compliance failure, however, the resolution process is in
accordance with the regulatory duties and also serves as a
basis for continuous improvement. The process of compliance
incidents management comprises six key steps:

. Incident detection

. Compliance incident qualification

. Investigation of compliance incident

. Analysis of review of compliance incident in committee
. Compliance incident reporting

. Framework management

OO WN =

All compliance incidents are registered and archived. Any critical
concerns in the compliance area are reported both periodically
(via the Compliance Committee or Operational Risk Committee)
or ad hoc, whereby the Head of Compliance directly supervised
by the Chief Risk and Compliance Officer has direct access to
meetings of the Board of Directors, the highest governance body
of the Bank, or via the Chief Risk and Compliance Officer, who is
a member of Board of Directors.

The Compliance Committee approves all basic internal
policies relating to compliance risk, as well as proposals and
recommendations in the area of compliance risk, including
ethical conduct rules and anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering measures. The Committee shares information on
current compliance risks, discusses new legal and regulatory
developments (including pending legislation) along with

their operational and business implications, material failures
(incidents) and regulatory non-compliance, as well as the results
of regulatory investigations. Since 4 September 2023, this
Committee has become one of the direct committees of the
Bank’s Board of Directors.

Rules of conduct

KB is aware that the professional behaviour and conduct

of its employees are basic preconditions for the successful
development of the Bank and Group. Such behaviour and
conduct are based on building open relationships with the

clients and deepening trust between KB, its employees, and

its clients and partners. KB Group has created rules for ethical
behaviour and conduct of its employees that are based on
general obligations as defined both by regulatory provisions and
by standards of professional conduct applicable to the banking
industry. These obligations consist of particular rules preventing
conflicts of interest and corruption, rules for accepting gifts,

rules preventing abuse of position, and rules against misuse of
confidential information. The principles of ethical conduct and the
necessity for upholding these rules are effective for all employees
and are defined in KB’s internal policies. A Société Générale
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and KB training programme raises the awareness of ethical
conduct among KB employees. It is designed for all employees
of the Group and focuses on principles of conduct and values
for individuals and the Group as a whole. From 2022, oversight
and assessment of issues related to ethical conduct, including
identified compliance incidents, is conducted on a regular basis
by the Appointment Committee of the Supervisory Board.

On a local level, KB has internal policies such as its Code of
Ethics, Practical Interpretation of the Ethical Code, and other
internal policies (non-public and intended only for KB employees)
encompassing, among others, such areas as anti-discrimination
rules, conflict of interest, whistleblowing, anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, confidentiality of information, banking secrecy,
anti-competitive practices, anti-money laundering, and insider
dealing, as well as compliance with local, EU, and international
regulations regarding above all environment, health, and safety.”

KB has zero tolerance for any kind of fraudulent behaviour,
corruption and bribery, antitrust/anti-competitive business
practices, as well as discrimination or harassment in any form.
KB is fully in line with the SG Code governing the fight against
corruption and influence peddling.?

On the SG group level, KB is bound by SG’s Code of Conduct,?
which encompasses all those areas wherein SG has obligations.
It refers, among other things, to the prevention of discrimination,
confidentiality of information, conflict of interest, insider trading,
and whistleblowing. In addition, Société Générale has a specific
code dealing with tax issues.? These publicly available principles
guide the work of the Group across the globe. Therefore, they
are applied and promoted also in KB, whose website contains
information regarding corporate culture applicable to KB and
external partners.®

All employees, including those who work part-time, receive
training on the rules of conduct at the beginning of their work
relationship, after which they are trained every 2 years. In
addition, there are dedicated KB or group training courses (from
SG) that are tailored for exposed staff and conducted more
frequently or on an ad hoc basis. Only employees on maternity
leave or in long-term absence receive no new training.

Since 2020, new employees are required to sign off a document
confirming that they have read and understood the latest version
of the Code of Conduct. In addition, all applicants are informed
at an early application stage about the existence of the Code of
Conduct and SG Code governing the fight against corruption and
influence peddling, and they are asked to act according to the
rules encompassed in these two documents.

" Further information is available at https://www.kb.cz/en/about-bank/we-do-
business-sustainably/economic-sustainability

2 https://www.kb.cz/getmedia/5ca79c56-5683-47b5-85aa-e4af43e66ec8/code-
governing-the-fight-against-corruption-and-influence-peddling-uk-(1).pdf

3 https://www.kb.cz/getmedia/50272b65-a151-4a76-9cb0-1409c8cfe08b/code_of_
conduct_eng.pdf

4 https://www.kb.cz/getmedia/7632c13e-f17b-4383-a0b7-05c84489cbca/tax_code_
of_conduct_of_societe_generale_group_uk.pdf

9 www.kb.cz/en/suppliers and to https://www.kb.cz/en/about-bank
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Effective implementation of the Code of Conduct is assured

by responsibilities, accountabilities, and reporting lines
systematically defined in the internal policies of KB and its
subsidiaries. The relevant contacts are available on the website
(www.kb.cz/en/about-the-bank/contacts). All employees are
encouraged to follow the rules in the Code of Conduct and SG
Code, which are linked to the remuneration principles. Internal
policy covers breaches of compliance risk by enabling the Bank
to issue warnings or a dismissal.

Efficiency of the conduct rules is continuously assessed by the
system of internal controls (First Level Controls, Second Level
Controls), regular evaluation of key risk indicators, promotion and
assessment of the whistleblowing system, regular risk mapping
of the most exposed risk areas (including anti-bribery and
corruption, conflict of interest), and training programmes followed
by tests.

The compliance system is verified on a regular basis by internal
audit, SG supervision, and the Czech National Bank. The Czech
National Bank is the supervisory authority for banks in the
Czech Republic. This supervision comprises on-site and off-site
inspections.

Generally, KB does not disclose breaches, except for systemic
breaches or serious breaches which must be disclosed according
to mandatory disclosure requirements. KB reports on breaches
to SG via an intragroup reporting tool. Qualified breaches are
always reported to the CNB or other relevant authority. Following
investigations, the actual breaches would be published by such
authority on their web sites. No such breach in the area of rules of
conduct occurred in 2023.

Anti-corruption measures

The adoption and upholding of clear rules against corruption

and KB'’s zero tolerance towards any kind of corruption constitute
basic standards and a foundation for responsible business.
These are prerequisites for maintaining and strengthening the
position of the Group and its place in the competitive market.
KB’s anti-corruption measures target KB itself and its business
activities, employees of KB, as well as third parties, including
clients, suppliers, and financial service providers. The rules and
principles adopted to fight corruption and bribery are anchored in
the internal policies and are elements of mandatory training for all
employees.

KB has implemented rules for how to indicate bribery and
corruption risks related to a client. The assessment includes
geographical indicators (based on the level of corruption in a
country involved), features of the transaction, and relevant news
flow. An increased level of risk may trigger need for an enhanced
due diligence process.

To comply with the rules on combating corruption, suppliers and
others of KB’s business partners also are bound by obligatory
contractual clauses. KB has a procedure for establishing a
business relationship with a new business partner. KB always
requires the execution of due diligence by checking adverse
information relating to a natural person or legal entity, such as
information on conducting administrative or criminal proceedings
relating to money laundering or financing of terrorism, corruption,
fraud, tax evasion, sanctions, or negative experience of KB.
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There is a scoring model for the risk rating of the new business
partner determining low, medium-low, medium-high, and high
risk. Risk factors are evaluated on the basis of geography (with
separate ratings for bribery and corruption and for money-
laundering risks), industry, reputation (negative news, corruption,
bribery, fraud), sanctions, and politically exposed persons (PEP)
screening data. Business partners with red flags on such factors
are rated as high risk. High-risk business partners must be
approved by KB and SG compliance departments. In the case

of a PTI GN (Third Party Intermediaries with Government Nexus)
supplier, there is a requirement in place regarding its validation by
SG Head office. The validation of the TPl GN supplier has to be
performed in the case of a new relationship and in the case of the
regular review as well.

Upon establishing a new relationship with an intermediary
(financial service provider), KB always conducts due diligence
according to the regulatory requirements in relation to financial
crime. The risk rating model for financial service providers is
similar to that for clients, including the requirement for two-
level approvals. The contract contains anti-corruption clauses
compliant with internal policy.

To date, KB has no knowledge of any external investigation of
breaches of anti-corruption or anti-bribery rules in relation to it.

The Compliance Department is responsible for establishing the
rules against corruption. As a result of SG Group emphasis in
this area, KB has implemented numerous measures, such as

by amending its internal policy on anti-corruption, establishing
stricter rules for offering and accepting gifts and invitations

to employees, launching a database tool for recording such

gifts and invitations, and setting up monitoring and control of
adherence to the rules. In addition, all respective managers

have received training from the Compliance Department for those
persons most exposed to corruption risk.

The Compliance Department is also responsible for establishing
the rules on the prevention of bribery. These rules comply

with SG’s group-wide policies and its anti-bribery code. The
respective rulebook is updated on a continuous basis and covers
mainly areas regarding whistleblowing, gifts, business meals,
external events, procedures for third-party assessments, rules
for sports donations, rules for charity donations, mergers and
acquisitions, and lobbying.

Once every three years KB carries out an activity called Anti-
bribery and Corruption (ABC) Risk Assessment. Within this
activity Compliance department identifies areas across KB’s
departments where there is a risk of corruption, bribery or of
other improper behaviour. Once identified, an assessment is
made as to whether appropriate anti-corruption measures are
in place to mitigate the risk. This ABC Risk Assessment is also
carried out by all KB Group entities.

In 2023, KB strengthened its anti-corruption and anti-bribery
protection organisation by establishing a permanent working
group with a KB Group-wide remit to assess contractual
documentation, co-operation or public negative information with
a focus on corruption among clients, suppliers and third parties,
based on publicly known information or internal investigations. It
conducted in-depth investigations of 97 entities during the year.

The Task Force has established escalation rules for any findings
of increased risk of corruption.

There were no substantiated cases of corruption and bribery
in the last five fiscal years. There are no ongoing external
investigations by local or international authorities.

Policy influence

KB and its employees strictly follow the rules for asserting the
Bank’s interests with public authorities (lobbying). Employees
of KB who will carry out advocacy activities must comply with
the rules and provisions relating to the fight against corruption
and influence peddling, as described in the SG Code governing
the fight against corruption and influence peddling and the
anti-bribery rules, as well as KB’s internal Advocacy policy.

In addition, they must undergo mandatory training specific

to the fight against corruption relating to the identification of
staff exposed to corruption, and they may report any situation
that could constitute a violation of internal, legal, or regulatory
standards via whistleblowing.

KB employees may represent the views and standpoints of KB

in professional associations and other bodies of which KB is a
member (e.g. the Czech Banking Association). A KB employee
can enter into a negotiation with a public/state representative,

but in such case he or she must act in his or her capacity as a
representative of a professional association. In principle, the views
of KB employees are taken as those of the association and not of
the Bank and therefore are not regarded to constitute lobbying.

Contributions to political campaigns or organisations or other
groups whose role is to influence political campaigns or public
policy and legislation are prohibited by internal policies. KB
strictly follows a course of political neutrality and refrains from
supporting any political organisations or activities through
donations or subsidies, even where local law so permits.

The only contributions — in the form of standard membership
fees — were made in 2023 to industry or trade associations (such
as the Czech Banking Association and Czech Capital Market
Association) in the amount of CZK 10.87 million.

Proactive identification and reporting of potential
risks, whistleblowing

A system for proactive identification and effective reporting of
potential risks (whistleblowing) is regarded as one of the main
tools for managing compliance risks within KB.

The right to blow the whistle provides an opportunity for everyone
to notify (‘speak up’) without fear of retaliation or sanctions when
they believe there has been a breach of internal policy, laws,

or regulations that a received instruction, a transaction under
consideration, or more generally a particular situation of which
they become aware does not comply with the rules governing

the conduct of the Group’s activities or the ethical standards
expected or that they believe may be in breach of laws and
regulations.

A whistleblower can be any employee, external and temporary
staff, and, as part of the duty of care, any service provider with
whom an established commercial relationship is maintained
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(suppliers or subcontractors) or with which such relationship
is even not yet established or will not ever be, and literally
even anybody such as, for example, shareholders, investors,
regulators, supervisors, or any member of the public.

Whistleblowers may exercise their whistleblowing right
through their supervisors or the Compliance Department in
any possible way. It is also possible to use a dedicated e-mail
box (whistleblowing@kb.cz) or directly contact competent
persons under Act No. 171/2023 Coll., on the Protection of
Whistleblowers."

A whistleblowing alert also may be submitted to Société Générale
via a secured, anonymous whistleblowing web tool.?

Focused training of employees

KB has a training system for the employees. Training courses
are allocated to employees according to their work duties,
putting emphasis on mandatory training courses applicable to all
employees (all staff) and those applicable to specific positions
(targeted population).

All employees are obliged to complete the training courses
regarding workplace safety, fire safety, compliance and Ethical
Code, risk management culture, safety minimum, reputation
risk, e-starting, internal policies, anti-money laundering, and tax
transparency (including FATCA).

Employees selected according to their work positions must
complete special certifications and training courses on special
regulation or training courses for certain positions, such as
managers and team leaders. Workers participating in sales of
selected products, such as consumer loans, insurance policies,
pension policies, or investment instruments, must achieve
professional qualifications as prescribed by regulation.

All employees receive training at the beginning of their work
relationship and then it is regularly renewed every other year. In
addition, there are dedicated training courses that are tailored for
exposed staff and conducted more frequently. Only employees
on maternity leave or in long-term absence receive no new
training.

The completion of mandatory training courses is monitored. In
case mandatory training is not completed, the employees and
their managers are automatically notified by the system on a
monthly basis. The administrator of the training is notified on a
quarterly basis.

Product development and offer

KB is continuously developing a number of new products with
the objective of satisfying the needs of clients from various
segments. Their parameters, processes, and related risks are
analysed in advance and approved by the responsible units,
including oversight units (the Risk Management, Legal, and
Compliance departments). This ensures compliance with
laws and regulations. When offering products to clients in the

"https://www.kb.cz/en/about-bank/we-do-business-sustainably
2 https://report.whistleb.com/en/societegenerale
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distribution network, the suitability of a given product for a
specific client is evaluated, and the client’s needs are taken into
consideration. KB follows the principle of responsible lending and
provides the clients with all information regarding its products in
a clear and transparent manner.

All new products and significant changes of current products
must be evaluated by a dedicated New Product Committee which
assesses also all risks relevant to the product or its change,
including potential risks for the clients.

Advertisement, offering, and sale of financial products

Sales of all products comply with the applicable regulations,
including their advertisement and way of offering.

Remuneration of staff in retail as well as corporate banking
always takes into consideration also qualitative compliance
criteria, which are based on the regulatory requirements, such as
the EBA guidelines on remuneration. The distribution network is
bound by the rules of responsible banking and obligation to act
in the best interest of the customer when offering a product (with
additional requirements stipulated for selected products, such as
insurance policies and investment instruments). KB’s motivational
system ensures that customer satisfaction is taken into account
as part of performance assessment and when assessing the
variable remuneration payout, and infringement of a compliance
rule may result in its decrease by 10% to 100%.

All advertisements and communication with the clients are
approved in advance by the Compliance Department with regard
to consumer protection rules and other rules concerning financial
products.

Environmental and social risks

Komeréni banka has implemented a system for identifying and
managing environmental and social risks (ESRM) in the provision
of financing to the Bank’s clients from the viewpoint of potential
damage or negative effects on environment, health and safety,
human rights, and basic freedoms. These factors may lead to a
potential non-compliance with KB’s rules and commitments, with
obligations from applicable regulations or with environmental and
social commitments of Société Générale Group. They may also
impact negatively on KB’s reputation or even give rise to a credit
risk exposure, including from physical damage to a client’s assets
due to such environmental or social factors as climate change or
industrial accidents.

The aim of the ESRM system is to make sure that the Bank does
not co-operate with companies that are involved in excluded
activities (by including such companies in the list of excluded
companies common to the entire Société Générale Group, the
SG Exclusion List) and that the Bank does not finance such
companies or such activities. The Bank will thoroughly assess ES
risks when serving clients operating in sensitive sectors. The ES
risk assessment process is closely linked to the know-your-client
(KYC) process. For existing clients, ES risk assessment is carried
out regularly in parallel with the renewal of credit lines.

Jitka Haubovéa, a member of the Board of Directors, is in charge

of overseeing the processes of ESG risks management and
the overall sustainability approach in KB. Within KB Group, in
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addition to at KB, the ESRM rulebooks are fully applicable at
Factoring KB and SGEF. ESSOX completed implementation

of the ESRM rulebook in 2023. In each subsidiary, there is an
environmental and social risk co-ordinator in charge of ESRM
implementation and supervision over compliance with the
Group’s ESRM regulations. Their approaches are co-ordinated
with ESRM experts of the Bank.

Implementation of this system is a condition for long-term
successful development of KB’s business and it relates also

to SG Group’s commitments. In 2007, SG Group committed to
adopting the Equator Principles, a voluntary framework of rules
for evaluating environmental and social risks when financing
projects. SG Group is a founding member of UNEP-FI (the United
Nations Environmental Programme Financial Initiative)

and of the Equator Principles. In 2019, SG became a signatory

to the so-called Principles of Responsible Banking, thereby
committing to consider principles of sustainable banking in

all its activities, including adoption of its own goals for supporting
the Paris Climate Agreement.

In 2021, SG, as a founding member of the UNEP-FI Net-Zero
Banking Alliance, committed to aligning its portfolios with
trajectories to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050 with the
ambitious goal of limiting global warming to 1.5 degrees Celsius.
SG Group, including KB, is thus progressively targeting portfolios
with the highest levels of CO, emissions and the greatest
potential impact.

SG Group has developed the Environmental and Social (E&S)
General Guidelines, which define the basic framework of its
ESRM system for the responsible conduct of banking and
financial activities. Within this framework, both cross-cutting E&S
policies have been developed to address topics common to all
sectors, as well as sector-specific E&S policies (Sector Policies),
whereby the Group focuses more specifically on those sectors
within which it operates and that it considers sensitive in terms of
E&S risks.

KB fully respects the commercial restrictions on the provision

of banking services and products to companies involved in coal
mining activities (coal mines, coal-fired power plants, and related
services); trading in certain types of arms, ammunition, and
military material; asbestos mining; and oil and gas extraction in
Arctic regions, from sands, or shale. The Bank does not finance
exports of arms and military equipment to high-risk countries
and countries with undemocratic and authoritarian governments.
These restrictions also apply to individual private or state
entities or business groups whose activities are considered
non-transparent within the arms industry. Sectoral policies apply
as well to agriculture, forestry and timber, and, from 2023, to

the tobacco industry. The sector policies are available on KB’s
website" (as well as that of SG?).

In co-operation with SG Group, KB commenced in 2021
implementation of EBA guidelines on loan origination and on EBA
standards on Pillar 3 for physical and transition climate risks. KB
extended climate transition risk assessment to all industries in
2023 when assessing the credit risk of transactions according to

" https://www.kb.cz/en/about-bank/we-do-business-sustainably

2 https://www.societegenerale.com/en/publications-documents?theme=rse&categor
y=politiques-sectorielles

a specifically defined Corporate Climate Vulnerability Indicator
for the client. This tool evaluates clients’ financial capacities for
transition of their business activities potentially influenced by
changing regulations, market demand, externalities, and new
technologies.

In accordance with the EU Financial Services Sustainability
Related Disclosures Regulation (SFDR),® KB publishes specific
information on its approach to integrating sustainability risks
and taking into account adverse sustainability impacts, and this
information was updated and supplemented in 2023. Also in the
area of investment services (MIFID II),Y new requirements related
to sustainability have been taken into account.

As part of SG’s group-wide project ESG by Design, attention

was also given to streamlining tools for detecting and automating
the evaluation of environmental and sustainability risks in the
forms of excluding inadmissible activities, as well as evaluating
negative information and including it into the approval process for
accepting clients, their control, and their transactions.

Crime prevention, measures against money laundering
(AML), financing of terrorism, and circumvention of
international sanctions

KB exerts maximum efforts to prevent the abuse of its services
for any purposes relating to money laundering and the financing
of terrorism or circumvention of international sanctions. It applies
rules, methods, and verification procedures in compliance

with the corresponding legal regulations, norms, and rules of

the SG financial group. In 2023, the Compliance Unit focused

on adjusting the internal control environment in the area of
preventing money laundering and financing of terrorism in
connection with implementing correction of deficiencies identified
by the CNB during the 2021 and 2022 audits and with the
adoption of Act No. 1/2023 Coll., on restrictive measures against
certain serious acts in international relations (the Sanctions Act),
meanwhile creating conditions for updating internal processes
and rules in line with Société Générale Group programmes. KB
has also adapted the reporting process within the framework on
whistleblowing from an AML perspective.

KB continues to share management and control information
with the employees in the forms of, for example, operational
reports and training classes and/or e-learning courses. KB

has an established system for monitoring all transactions and
business relationships. Publicly available policies or procedures
cover mainly know-your-customer standards, such as customer
identification, due diligence, financing of terrorism, and politically
exposed persons.®

In 2023, KB was affected by 3 major events:

e The continuing Russian aggression against Ukraine

3 Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 on sustainability related disclosures in the financial
srvices sector (SFDR).

4 Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May
2014 on markets in financial instruments and amending Directives 2002/92/EC and
2011/61/EU.

9 https://www.kb.cz/en/about-the-bank/documents
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Russia’s aggression against Ukraine has had a crucial impact

on the client acceptance processes. KB has created special
processes, special products, and terms for provision and
drawdown. Currently, KB is following the valid rules of the Ministry
of Interior and checks are underway for asylum seekers admitted
in 2022 with their current links to the Czech Republic. Further
impact has accompanied the issuance of several additional
sanctions packages, the introduction of a Czech Republic
sanctions list, new sanctions lists, and the initiation of new
mandatory checks by KB and correspondent banks. These new
processes have resulted in the Bank’s increasing capacity in the
Compliance team.

e |mplementation of a new detection tool

KB is working in co-operation with SG to implement a new
detection tool from an AML perspective and which can also use
artificial intelligence. This new tool will allow AML analysts to
work more efficiently with client information in a single place,
investigate clients by segment, and set up personalised scenarios
on clients according to segment and risk.

* Increased number of risky clients due to a change in the risk
model for calculating client riskiness

At the end of 2022, KB deployed a modification of its client risk
model, taking into account 12 client segments, KYC data in
accordance with the AML decree, and transaction data on its
clients. At the same time as the model was being adjusted, the
country and subject of business codes were set to change.

From 2022, KB introduced the obligation to screen clients for
negative information. It uses an automated process of screening
against negative information across the globe with a view to
AML, sanctions, and reputational risk. In 2024, KB will also start
screening entities for ESG risks.

KB has publicly transparent procedures in place to ensure the
effective establishment and implementation of a company culture
that opposes money laundering and financing of terrorism.”

These documents refer to the information requested from

clients regarding customer due diligence. Formal policies

and procedures include customer verification based on

reliable, independent source documents, data, or information;
identification of beneficial owner; and conducting ongoing due
diligence on business relationships. In line with regulations, KB
conducts screenings against applicable lists of sanctions and
embargoes issued by competent authorities having jurisdiction
over the relevant financial institutions and SG Group as a whole
on a daily basis as well as lists of politically exposed persons
(PEP) at the beginning of a relationship, then quarterly on the
whole client portfolio. KB prohibits opening accounts for clients
without prior screening against the lists of sanctions, PEP, and
exclusions (black list). In the case of PEP, each client is requested
during an onboarding process to provide a declaration as to the
source of funds, which is then recorded in a special database.
Subsequently, clients are screened on a regular basis. The power

" https://www.kb.cz/getmedia/234f2f42-e979-4fbd-99e2-097d983fd6d 1/Summary-
of-AML-policies-and-procedures-or-AML-and-KYC-data.pdf;
https://www.kb.cz/getmedia/9056dd59-d3c7-4d7a-b61d-e37290257d76/kb-
identification-and-verification-of-clients.pdf

| Risk management

to approve PEP is delegated to the head of Financial Crime
Compliance and the head of the relevant business unit.

In all business relationships with its clients and other commercial
partners, KB diligently applies the “know-your-client” (KYC),
“know-your-supplier” (KYS), and “know-your-financial service
provider” (KYP) rules as defined by both local laws and regulations
and internal policy. KYC rules are applied according to client
types, including natural person, professional, and legal entity
(and specifically corporations, banks, asset managers, retail

and limited mutual funds, other financial institutions, non-profit
organisations, and governments). Based on the client type and
existence of defined riskiness criteria updated as per the new AML
Act, including country-based risk, identification risk, reputational
risk, and dynamic product and transaction data (e.g. date of the
entity’s establishment, date of its onboarding, identification of

the ultimate beneficial owner, legal form of the entity, non-face-
to-face onboarding, entity size, negative news, corruption risk,
sanctions incident or sanction hit, PEP identification, suspicious
activity report, transactions with high-risk or medium high-risk
countries, suspicious behaviour of a client, source of wealth,
source of funds), each client is expected to submit a pertinent

set of documents when opening an account. Individuals are
required to submit, in particular, documents proving identity

and address, tax returns and tax declarations (FATCA & CRS). In
addition to the requirement to submit the same documents as do
natural persons, entrepreneurs are required to submit statements
of activities and business licences and to complete a sanctions
questionnaire. Legal entities must always submit documents
proving their existence, the identity of the executive directors,
copy of identity card for management/control structures and
ownership, including an extract from the evidence of ultimate
beneficial owners, as well as documents showing the income

and business activity of the client, tax return or annual report,
sanction questionnaire, and a declaration of business activities. If
explicit or very specific information on client activities is required,
additional documents (e.g. anti-money laundering rules, licenses,
company statutes, etc.) are required during client on-boarding or
periodic KYC validation and accuracy checks. The new procedure
for establishing business relationships with payment service
providers was developed in co-operation with Société Générale
during 2022, but it came into force at KB in 2023.

There are two possibilities for how to proceed with non-face-
to-face identification while ensuring the same standard of KYC:
by online application or by courier. Both require the client to
submit two documents proving identity and additional documents
relevant for a legal entity. Online onboarding is offered only for
Czech citizens. The information requirements and requested
documentation are available at https://www.kb.cz/en/become-a-
client.

During 2023, the Compliance Department analysed 14,679
business cases or requests for business relationships beyond the
standard assessment. It made a recommendation to terminate
140 client relationships and denied contractual client relationships
to 585 applicants.

Records are kept for 10 years from the end of a relationship with
the client. An annual independent assessment of monitoring
procedures is conducted.
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All employees, including senior management, are requested on
an annual basis to complete training courses and/or e-learning
with final tests in the areas of anti-money laundering and
countering the financing of terrorism, know-your-customer, anti-
bribery, and anti-corruption. The intranet-based training includes
case studies and computer-based training with self-assessment.
Face-to-face training by the Compliance Department is
mandatory for selected employees.

Tools used for monitoring transactions in relation to money
laundering include the following:

a) Siron AML, an application used on a daily basis that
automatically detects non-standard/risk transactions of
clients in the AML/Countering Financing Terrorism area
(generating AML alerts). Altogether, 37 indicators/scenarios of
risk behaviour/type of transactions are set up.

c

The AML application is a system providing mutual
communication between the AML unit and responsible
employees (i.e. evaluation and recording of feedback,
reporting suspicious transactions, etc.).

In 2023, the AML unit:

e Reviewed 38,298 AML alerts generated by the automated
transaction monitoring system. A rising trend in the number of
alerts is due to the increasing number of client transactions.
Slight decrease compared to the previous year was affected
by the adoption of scenario revisions in 2Q 2022, optimisation
of thresholds, including consideration of the current situation
(payout to former Sberbank clients, Russian aggression
against Ukraine); (2022: 44,896, 2021: 60,577, 2020: 48,439,
2019: 775);

¢ Reviewed 1,359 complaints for investigation from other
KB departments, other financial institutions, and/or law
enforcement authorities (2022: 955, 2021: 539, 2020: 414). The
rising trend is due to the massive increase in internet fraud and
account misuse.

* Reported 615 suspicious transactions to the Financial Analysis
Unit (FAU) (2022: 627, 2021: 593, 2020: 444, 2019: 248);

e Processed 1,213 enquiries from the FAU (2022: 1,201, 2021:
1,288, 2020: 1,135, 2019: 1,469);

¢ In 413 cases (382 of which were initiated by banks, 31 by the
FAU) there followed orders for suspension or blocking of the
account and/or client (2022: 424, 2021: 225, 2020: 687, 2019:
165);

¢ In 398 cases, termination of existing contractual relationships
was initiated (2022: 414, 2021: 337, 2020: 351, 2019: 532);

¢ Reviewed 8,544 payments rejected for manual processing
due to AML/CFT or special monitoring. The increase is due to
tightening international standards in the area of anti-money
laundering and preventing the financing of terrorism (2022:
4,353, 2021: 1,549).

c) AMLCOM is an application for screening of correspondent
banking transactions and which KB has been using since
February 2020. Evaluation of alerts falls within the competence
of the Compliance Department.

From KB entities, 1,526 alerts were evaluated in 2023 (2022: 898,

2021: 1,393, 2020: 1,373), 152 alerts were subject to enhanced
due diligence (2022: 81, 2021: 59, 2020: 46). KB reported 182

©

transactions to the Financial Analysis Unit (in 24 reports) wherein
it acted as a correspondent bank.

KB has developed sophisticated measures against circumvention
of international sanctions, including to check on a daily basis
KB’s entire client portfolio against sanctions lists, to check all
foreign transactions for potential violations of sanctions, as well
as to check the products and services, and especially those
involving foreign trade and export.

In 2023, KB evaluated 17,803 alerts (2022: 3,954, 2021: 14,743,
2020: 59,094) for potential risk of sanctions violations. The

vast majority of these alerts were assessed as posing no risk.
Although no significant breaches of sanctions were identified,
several business relationships with clients had to be terminated
due to Russian sanctions and outgoing payment relations with
Belarus and Russia were terminated.

In 2023, KB conducted in-depth analysis of 9,066 foreign
transactions (2022: 13,079, 2021: 7,511, 2020: 5,980) to eliminate
the risk of violating international sanctions (in particular EU

and USD-related sanctions). Of these transactions, 4,108

were screened by SG Paris and 273 were screened by SG’s
correspondent bank in New York. As a result of these checks, a
total of 450 transactions were blocked and 16 transactions were
frozen (for 5 clients) due to the new sanctions restrictions.

All these transactions are checked online in real time. They
require mainly (but not solely) thorough knowledge of the given
clients’ activities, the rationale for the transactions, and the
relationships with counterparties.

Client data protection

Compliance with the rules for the protection of personal data and
data covered by banking secrecy, as well as the handling and
maximum security of such data, has long been one of KB’s top
priorities. The importance of the topic of data protection in 2023
was underscored by the fact that the GDPR regulation celebrated
5 years of its effectiveness, during which time it has become a
respected part of the regulatory framework.

To this end, KB has a long-established set of relevant
organisational and technical measures consisting in an
appropriate regulatory base, a comprehensive information
security system, application security, an access control system,
a control mechanism and, last but not least, the provision of staff
education. The established set of internal policies is the basis for
ensuring a high level of protection for the personal data of KB’s
clients, employees, and suppliers. Information on the processing
of personal data is transparently described in several documents
listed on KB’s website," including a basic document entitled
Information on the Processing of Personal Data. It contains a
summary overview of the processing of personal data at KB,
including the rights associated with it. Other documents relating to
the protection of personal data are available at the same location.

In relation to its suppliers, KB has a system in place to ensure

the protection of personal data and data subject to banking
secrecy, from selection of the supplier, through the contractual

" https://www.kb.cz/en/protection-of-personal-data
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documentation containing the relevant provisions, to the control
mechanism over fulfilment of the obligations of individual
suppliers. In 2023, in response to evolving case law (in particular
the European Court of Justice decision in the case Schrems ),
the management of relations with suppliers was adapted to more
refined interpretations, mainly concerning the transfer of personal
data to non-EU countries.

Supervision of compliance with the data protection rules
continues to be systematically implemented at KB and in its
subsidiaries, which are responsible to the same Data Protection
Officer (DPO). The DPO independently carries out ongoing
monitoring of compliance with the data protection principles,
draws attention to possible non-compliance with the GDPR,
and recommends possible corrective measures. The DPO is
responsible for consultation and communication with the Office
for Personal Data Protection (OPDP).

As part of the ongoing agenda of evaluating breaches of personal
data security under the GDPR, there were for KB in 2023
identified 66 confirmed cases, 1 of which one was assessed as
high risk and was reported to the OPDP. The remaining cases
were assessed as low-risk events.

Within the framework of the ongoing agenda of exercising data
subjects’ rights under the GDPR, 90 rights were recorded for KB
in 2023. In all cases, requests to exercise rights were individually
assessed, evaluated, and responded to appropriately.

As regards the interaction with the supervisory authority, which
is the Office for Personal Data Protection (OPDP) for the area in
question, one of the aforementioned personal data breaches was
reported. In addition, during 2023, a control started at the end

of 2022 continued, resulting in the imposition of a fine for minor
deficiencies in the sending of commercial communications. In
2023, KB further responded to two requests received from the
OPDP where KB provided the requested co-operation.

Supplier relationships

In relationships with its suppliers, Komeréni banka is committed
to honouring all legal regulations as well as to the protection of
the environment, social and human rights, and the principles

of sustainable development. KB has implemented the common
sourcing principles of Société Générale, which it perceives also
as a prudent risk management approach.

The sourcing rules include, among others, rules for assessing
risks and obtaining adequate information before making a
decision on concluding or maintaining a business relationship
with a supplier — so-called know-your-supplier (KYS) rules.

These rules enable the Group to identify those suppliers exposed to
a risk of bribery or corruption and to manage such risks, to prevent
co-operation with suppliers in breach of applicable regulations in
the areas of taxes, anti-money laundering and financing of terrorism,
and corruption or who might be involved in an illegal activity. The
Bank verifies, in accordance with applicable conditions, statutory
representatives of the suppliers, their beneficial owners, and
politically exposed persons linked to the suppliers.

| Risk management

The KYS principles are included in KB’s internal rulebook. The
KYS policy also stipulates limits for the value of purchases. In
2023, the rules (limits) within the Société Générale Group were
further tightened and contracts with a duration of more than 5
years are now included in the assessment. At the same time, a
new indicator has been added to the supplier evaluation criteria,
concerning the evaluation of negative information detected about
the supplier. The rules apply to the suppliers of non-financial
services as well as to suppliers of goods and other products.
Several units within KB and Group are involved in KYS activities.

Before concluding a new business relationship with a supplier,
KB checks that the supplier’s consideration does not generate
a risk of corruption. It identifies the supplier and its statutory
representatives and verifies that these persons are not
recorded in the lists of information held in order to prevent
money laundering and financing of terrorism. The suppliers are
also checked against registers such as the EU Sanctions List,
sanctions and embargoes of the USA, and lists of the United
Nations Security Council. The KYS rules include also processes
for establishing relationships with suppliers from sectors sensitive
from the perspective of sustainability (e.g. the energy sector).
KB Group will not enter into a business relationship unless all
required information is provided and all conditions are met.

More stringent requirements are applied to a supplier with
higher level of risk, identified according to pre-determined
indicators (e.g. PEP, link to a high-risk country). These stringent
requirements must be satisfied before entering into the business
relationship as well as during the regular review of suppliers and
daily screening of the list of suppliers.

According to the risk assessment of suppliers, KB determines the
frequency of the reviews and it may require conducting enhanced
due diligence. Enhanced due diligence must be conducted in
particular when riskiness of the supplier has been assessed

as medium-high or high, or if the supplier has a representation
agreement and a connection to government, or if there is a PEP.
In enhanced due diligence, KB researches via public sources the
ethical framework of the supplier (measures against corruption,
code of conduct, etc.), possibly to include screening of the
supplier’s reputation, its statutory representatives and other
executives, identification of beneficial owners and their records
on the lists of sanctions, PEPs, or negative information.

In case that a KB Group employee notices a risk indicator during
the due diligence process or at any time when pursuing a business
relationship, he or she must inform the Compliance Department.

A non-exhaustive list of risk indicators is a part of KB’s internal
instruction. The signature authorisation for concluding a business
relationship as well as escalation procedures are based on results
of the supplier’s risk assessment.

Every contract with a supplier must include clauses on international
sanctions and against corruption and it may include also clauses
related to corporate social responsibility or other clauses required
by law or KB’s rules. Old contracts which do not include relevant
clauses must be adapted upon the next renewal. KB informs all
suppliers before signing a contract on applicability of the SG Code
of Conduct and SG Code governing the fight against corruption
and influence peddling. All contracts with a link to information and
information technologies contain IT security clauses.
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No payment to a supplier may be executed without relevant
substantiation and the consideration provided to any supplier
must be commensurate with market prices. KYS documentation
is archived for at least 5 years from the date of the business
relationship’s termination.

Efficacy of the KYS process is measured against a set of Key
Performance Indicators, including specific indicators for purchases
with more stringent KYS requirements. First Level Controls (FLC)
are set to make sure that the KYS process is always correctly
followed. The FLCs are independently reviewed by Second Level
Controls. Remedial steps must be implemented each time a
shortcoming or a deficiency is identified in the KYS process.

Protecting economic competition

KB had previously introduced an internal directive covering
protection of competition based upon both general obligations as
established by regulatory provisions and on the standards of SG
Group. This regulation describes the regulatory framework, risk
areas concerning the banking sector, and behaviour of individual
employees in negotiating with third parties and with the regulator
so that the employees are sufficiently informed regarding risks
and methods for avoiding them. Selected employees also are
subject to internal training in this area. Employees negotiating on
the Bank’s behalf at the level of the Czech Banking Association
also undertake to uphold the rules of the Czech Banking
Association in this area.

KB did not incur any fines or settlements related to anti-
competitive business practices in the past four fiscal years, nor
is it currently involved in any ongoing investigations related to
anti-competitive practices.

Governing law

As an issuer of publicly traded securities, during 2023 Komer¢éni
banka was governed in its activities particularly by the following
laws:

e Act No. 21/1992 Coll., the Banking Act;

e Act No. 256/2004 Coll., on Capital Market Undertakings;

e Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Business Corporations and
Co-operatives;

e Act No. 257/2016 Coll., on Consumer Credit;

e Act No. 370/2017 Coll., the Payment Systems Act;

e Act No. 170/2018 Coll., on Distribution of Insurance and
Reinsurance;

e Act No. 253/2008 Coll., on Selected Measures against the
Legitimisation of Proceeds from Criminal Activity and the
Financing of Terrorism (AML Act);

e Act No. 69/2006 Coll., on Implementation of International
Sanctions;

e Act No. 300/2016 Coll., on the Central Register of Accounts;

e Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting;

e Act No. 37/2021 Coll., on the Registration of Beneficial
Owners;

e Act No. 110/2019 Coll., on Personal Data Processing;

e Act No. 143/2001 Coll., on Protection of Economic
Competition;

e Act No. 136/2011 Coll., on the Circulation of Banknotes and
Coins;

e Act No. 190/2004 Coll., on Bonds;

®

e Act No. 240/2013 Coll., on Investment Companies and
Investment Funds;

e Act No. 89/2012 Coll., the Civil Code;

e Act No. 277/2013 Coll., on Foreign Exchange Activities;

e Act No. 634/1992 Coll., on Consumer Protection;

e Act No. 171/2023 Coll., on the Protection of Whistleblowers;

e General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 (GDPR);

e Regulation (EU) No. 596/2014, on Market Abuse;

e Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 on Prudential Requirements
for Credit Institutions and Investment Firms and Related
Implementing Regulations of the European Commission;

e Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2017/565
supplementing Directive 2014/65/EU (MIFID Il) as regards
the organisational requirements and operating conditions of
investment firms and the definition of terms for the purposes of
that Directive (MiFID Il Delegated Regulation);

e Regulation (EU) No. 648/2012 on OTC Derivatives, Central

Counterparties and Trade Repositories (EMIR);

Regulation (EU) No 909/2014 on Improving Securities

Settlement in the European Union and on Central Securities

Depositories (CSRD);

¢ Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 on Sustainability Related
Disclosures in the Financial Services Sector (SFDR);

e Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1288
supplementing Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of the European
Parliament and of the Council with regard to regulatory
technical standards specifying the details of the content and
presentation of the information in relation to the principle of
do no significant harm, specifying the content, methodologies
and presentation of information in relation to sustainability
indicators and adverse sustainability impacts, and the content
and presentation of the information in relation to the promotion
of environmental or social characteristics and sustainable
investment objectives in precontractual documents, on
websites and in periodic reports; and

e EU Regulation 2015/2365 on Transparency of Secured
Financing and Reuse Transactions (SFTR).

These regulations entail the main legal basis for the Bank’s
operations. In addition to what is stated above, the Bank’s
activities must also comply with a number of other regulations,
government decrees, implementing regulations, guidelines and
other documents issued by European bodies.

Penalties incurred
KB Group companies incurred the following penalties:

KB was found responsible for an offence under Act 480/2004 and
fined CZK 45,000 by the Czech Data Protection Office (UOOU).
This was due to excessively dissemination of commercial
communications identified by the related inspection of the UOOU.

The following remediation measures were discussed with the
regulator (UOOU) and implemented by KB even before closing
the inspection:

* A more restrictive approach regarding the targeting of
marketing campaigns.

* The system for entering a request to stop the sending of
marketing communications has been streamlined and
simplified.
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Legal risk

Managing legal risk consists in minimising uncertainty associated
with enforcement and interpretation of legal acts, contracts,
regulations, and laws. To manage legal risks, KB Group applies

a variety of techniques, procedures, and tools, including regular
monitoring of proposed and adopted legislation, close co-
operation among the legal teams within KB Group, a system

of continuous education of and specialisation among lawyers,
detailed documentation, evaluation of outputs, and a set of
corresponding control mechanisms.

In addition to standard legal functions within such various areas
as contracts, banking, and corporate law, the main tasks of KB’s
lawyers during 2023 involved support of KB’s main strategic
goals, including deployment of the new digital bank (KB+
application); continuous alignment of processes in the area of
corporate governance and legal services within KB Group; as well
as support for preparation of the mortgage factory, establishment
of the KB Poradenstvi concept, and further development of
banking identity services. Legal staff also continued with
digitising and simplifying meetings of statutory bodies for KB and
other KB Group companies.

Significant legal disputes

With respect to its overall financial situation, Komeréni banka
considers as significant all litigations involving principal amounts
exceeding CZK 10 million and any bankruptcy proceeding

in which the Bank is a creditor with a claim exceeding

CZK 50 million.

As of 31 December 2023, KB Group was a bankruptcy creditor
with a claim exceeding CZK 50 million in 22 bankruptcy
proceedings. The total of claims filed in relation to these
proceedings was CZK 3.8 billion. As of 31 December 2023, KB
Group was a party to a total of 2 significant legal proceedings
as a defendant. The principal that was the subject of these legal
proceedings totalled CZK 398.4 million.

Information concerning the provisions created for litigations

in which the Group is a defendant is stated in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements according to IFRS, Note 37 -
“Commitments and contingent liabilities”.

Internal audit

The internal audit function in KB Group is organisationally
supervised by the Chief Executive Officer of KB and regularly
reports about its activities to the Audit Committee of the Bank.

Evaluating the functionality and effectiveness of risk
management, management and control processes, and
corporate governance is the main task of KB Internal Audit. This
work contributes to improving operational efficiency of the entire
organisation.

Internal Audit is integrated into the global Internal Audit division
within the SG Group. In addition to audits at KB, this division
covers KB Group companies and SG Group companies in the
Central European region.

| Risk management

Internal Audit’s strategic objectives focus on covering the Group’s
biggest risks and most important activities, including compliance
with all regulatory requirements. Internal Audit assignments are
performed according to an annual audit plan, prepared primarily
based on risk assessment, and focus on priority areas.

In 2023, a total of 41 audit missions were carried out, of which 14
missions were carried out exclusively at KB Group subsidiaries.
Twenty-seven of the missions carried out at the Bank covered
both the business network and head office units. A total of 188
audit mission findings were implemented in KB Group in 2023, of
which 58 were of a higher severity. At the end of 2023, there were
2 findings within KB Group that had not been implemented after
more than 18 months and which therefore were not closed. The
Bank maintains a low number of long-term findings.

An assessment of the remuneration system was carried out at
KB, focusing primarily on compliance with the requirements of
CRD V. No significant deficiencies were identified.

In its regular report to the Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee, and the Supervisory Board, KB Internal Audit
assessed the Bank’s internal control system as effective.

The plan for 2024 was drawn up using methodologies shared
within the SG Group and based on the results of the risk
assessment, the 5-year audit cycle, and regulatory requirements.

Statutory audit

As a public-interest entity, the Bank is obliged and committed
to comply with European and local regulation governing the
selection process and mandatory rotation of statutory auditors.
The initial engagement period for a statutory auditor should not
exceed 10 years. Re-appointment for a maximum of 10 more
years is possible only based on a tendering process with close
involvement of the entity’s audit committee. Moreover, the key
audit partner has to be rotated after 7 years.

The Bank has been audited by its current statutory auditor for
9 years, 2023 being the last year of its mandate. The key audit
partner has been managing the engagement since 2022.
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| Capital and liquidity

Regulatory framework

Komeréni banka is subject to supervision by the Czech National
Bank (CNB), and since November 2014 the Société Générale
Group has been supervised by the European Central Bank. The
regulatory requirements in the European Union are established
through Regulation No. 575/2013 on prudential requirements for
credit institutions and investment firms (the Capital Requirements
Regulation, or “CRR”), and by Directive 2013/36/EU on access to
the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of
credit institutions and investment firms (the Capital Requirements
Directive, or “CRD”).

According to the valid capital rules, an additional Pillar 2 buffer
of 2.9% over the minimum required capital ratio of 8.0% was
applied to the Bank in 2023. This brought the required TSCR (i.e.
total SREP) capital ratio to 10.9%. A combined capital buffer in
the final amount of 6.5% was applied on top of the TSCR capital
ratio. That consisted of the capital conservation buffer of 2.5%,
the buffer for Other Systemically Important Institution (O-SlI) of
2.0%, and a required countercyclical capital buffer of 2.0% for
exposures in the Czech Republic (the countercyclical capital
buffer was gradually decreased by the CNB from the level of
2.5% in April 2023 to 2.25% from 1 July 2023 and then to 2.0%
from 1 October 2023). The required overall capital ratio (OCR)
thus reached approximately 17.4% as from 1 October 2023

(an increase of 0.8 percentage points in comparison with the
previous year).

Komeré&ni banka’s OCR is reduced to about 17.1% as of 1 January
2024, diminishing by 0.3 percentage points compared to 2023.
That is a result of a reduction in the additional capital requirement
of Pillar 2 by 0.3 percentage points.

The Bank and Group meet the overall capital ratio requirement
with significant reserve, because their respective capital ratios
stand sufficiently above the minimum required level.

In addition to the aforementioned capital requirements, the Bank
is also required to comply with a minimum requirement for own
funds and eligible liabilities (MREL). The MREL requirement

is defined as a sum of the amount of loss absorption and
recapitalisation. In addition to the MREL, expressed as a
percentage of risk-weighted assets, the Group must also fulfil the
combined capital buffer in accordance with the CNB’s general
approach. Pursuant to the CNB’s decision dated 24 July 2023,
the Bank is required, from 1 January 2024, to maintain its own
funds and eligible liabilities on a sub-consolidated basis of

at least 21.2% of the total risk exposure amount (i.e. the risk-
weighted exposure amount) and 5.91% of the total exposure
amount. As part of meeting the interim targets in previous years
and meeting the final target valid from 1 January 2024, the

Bank gradually took on eligible liabilities (senior non-preferred

debt) in total volume of EUR 1,500 million during 2022 and of

EUR 900 million in 2023 (i.e. in aggregate nominal volume of

EUR 2,400 million). These eligible liabilities were drawn from the
Bank’s parent company (Société Générale S.A.) in accordance
with the preferred resolution strategy for the Société Générale
Group. During the past year, the Bank fulfilled all regulatory MREL
requirements and the amount of eligible liabilities taken on in
previous years is sufficient to meet the MREL requirements valid
from 1 January 2024.

Capital and risk-weighted assets

Total shareholders’ equity comprises the following main items:
share capital, reserve funds, and retained earnings. As of

31 December 2023, total equity rose year to date by 2.9% to
CZK 128.3 billion, with the positive contribution from the net profit
generated during the year offset by the volume of the annual
dividend paid in May 2023. Values of retained earnings as well as
income from shares of associated undertakings were restated as
of the end of 2022 as a result of Komer¢ni pojistovna’s adopting
the IFRS 17 standard. The value of non-controlling interests
reached CZK 3.2 billion. As of 31 December 2023, KB held in
treasury 1,193,360 of its own shares constituting 0.63% of the
registered capital. These shares had been acquired in previous
years at the cost of CZK 726 million. The Bank did not acquire

its own shares during 2023. The acquisition of its own shares
had been authorised by the General Meeting, particularly for the
purposes of managing KB’s capital adequacy.

On 29 November 2023, KB took on new subordinated debt from
its parent company Société Générale S.A. of EUR 100 million
with a maturity of 10 years and an option to repay after 5 years.
The interest rate of this loan is stipulated at 3M EURIBOR plus
2.82%, using the actual/360 day count convention. Thus, the total
nominal volume of subordinated debt reached EUR 200 million
as of the end of 2023. As of 31 December 2023, this Tier 2
subordinated debt summed to CZK 5.0 billion, which was 0.9%
of risk-weighted assets. The subordinated loan is denominated
in EUR in order to better align the currency structure of

KB’s regulatory capital with that of its assets. The loan was
accepted from Société Générale after the Bank assessed other
opportunities available on the market and concluded that the
loan from SG provides the most effective option for the Bank. The
Bank may, in coming years, continue gradually to increase the
volume of Tier 2 instruments, which, according to the regulation
and CNB decision, may cover up to 2.65 percentage points of
Komeréni banka’s risk-weighted assets in order to optimise the
structure of its regulatory capital as of 1 January 2024. Actual
decisions on potential further Tier 2 reinforcement will reflect the
required level of regulatory capital as well as prevailing market
conditions.
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Consolidated regulatory capital for the capital adequacy
calculation stood at CZK 105.9 billion as of 31 December 2023,
which is 4.1% higher compared to 31 December 2022. Total
capital adequacy stood at 18.8%. Core Tier 1 (CET1) capital
totalled CZK 99.7 billion (having increased by 1.1% since the end
of 2022 after regulatory adjustment for the foreseeable dividend)
and the Core Tier 1 ratio was 17.7%. Tier 2 capital summed to
CZK 6.2 billion, which was 1.1% of risk-weighted assets.

KB uses the following approaches for calculating capital
requirements related to individual types of risk:

Capital requirement calculation approaches for KB Group
Companies

Capital requirement calculation approach

KB Group entity Credit risk Market risk Operational risk
KB* AMA
BASTION

Protes | AIRB TSA
KB Penzijni
spole¢nost STA
Modra pyramida
SGEF AMA
ESSOX STA
Other entities TSA

AIRB: Advanced Internal Rating-Based Approach.

AMA: Advanced Measurement Approach.

STA/TSA: Standardised Approach.

* KB Slovakia uses the STA approach for calculating the requirement for credit risk.

The volume of the Group’s risk-weighted assets (RWA) reached
CZK 563.9 billion as of 31 December 2023 (compared to

CZK 523.0 billion at the end of 2022). RWA for credit risk
(including Credit Valuation Adjustment) constituted 81%,
operational risk 8%, and market risk 11% of the total RWA. The
increase in RWA during 2023 was driven by growth in corporate
exposures and increase in RWA for market risks (with general
interest rate risk as the main contributor).

A difficult macroeconomic environment continued during

2023 due to declining GDP, high inflation, and high interest
rates. Nevertheless, because of the portfolio’s resilience, this
development had no fundamental impact on RWA development
in 2023.

The average credit risk weight as of 31 December 2023 was
27.7%, a decrease by 260 basis points from 30.3% as of 31
December 2022. Decrease of risk weight was driven by the
portfolio’s growing exposure to sovereigns with low risk weight.
Minor deterioration of risk weight was observed only in the small
and medium enterprises portfolio (the risk weight grew from
49.8% as of 31 December 2022 to 53.0% as of 31 December
2023).

| Risk management

Information on consolidated capital, risk-weighted assets for
calculation of capital adequacy, and capital requirements
(in CZK million)

Reconciliation of accounting and regulatory capital
(consolidated)

(CZK million) 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022* 31 Dec 2021

Items from Statement of
Financial Position —

Total shareholders’ equity 128,284 123,435 126,782
Share capital 19,005 19,005 19,005
Share premium 149 149 149
Other equity 584 563 546
Accumulated Other
comprehensive income 2 669 2,387
Retained earnings from
previous periods 85,219 77,775 84,210
Reserve funds 5,213 5,212 5,211
Own shares (726) (726) (726)
Net profit for the period 15,612 17,556 12,727
Minority interests 3,226 3,232 3,273

Total adjustments to CET1 (28,566) (24,819) (25,710)
Gains/(losses) on hedging
instruments (cash flow
hedging) (208) (596) (1,248)
Additional value adjustment (117) (107) (140)
Goodwill (3,752) (3,752) (3,752)
Other intangible assets, net
of tax (5,416) (5,694) (4,562)
Insufficient coverage of
expected credit losses (lack
of provisions) 0 0 0
Unusable profit (15,709) (11,411) (12,727)
Minority interests (3,226) (3,232) (3,273)
Insufficient coverage for
non-performing exposures (138) 27) (8)
Other transitional
adjustments to CET 1 0 0 0

Tier 2 capital 6,154 3,122 2,137
Subordinated debt received 5,005 2,440 2,490
Subordinated debt provided (446) (446) (446)
Surplus coverage of
expected credit losses
(Excess of provisions) 1,595 1,128 93

Total capital 105,872 101,738 103,209

Tier 1 capital 99,718 98,616 101,072

Core Tier 1 (CET1) capital 99,718 98,616 101,072

* The value of total shareholders’ equity as of 31 December 2022 in this table is
before restatement in relation to implementation of IFRS 17 in Komeréni pojistovna.
See also Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements according to IFRS, note
3.6.1.
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Consolidated risk-weighted assets Capital requirements (consolidated)

(CZK million) 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021 (CZK million) 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

Total risk-weighted assets 563,886 522,975 484,372 Total capital requirements 45,111 41,838 38,750
for credit risk 452,312 430,842 400,209 for credit risk pursuant to

for credit risk pursuant to

the Standardised Approach

the Standardised Approach in IRB 6,422 5,967 5,583
in IRB 80,274 Exposures to central
for credit risk pursuant to governments or central
the IRB Approach 372,038 banks 1 1 1
for settlement risk _ Exposures to regional
P ition. forei governments or local
or position, foreign ) authorities 0 0 0
exchange, and commodity .
risks 61,726 Exposures to public sector
entities 1 2 2
for operational risk 46,566 " . .
for credit valuation Exposures to international
development banks 0 0 0
adjustment 3,282 velop . .
Exposure to international
organisations 0 0 0
Exposures to institutions 52 43 22
Exposures to corporates 4,449 4,392 4,101
Retail exposures 1,091 1,029 1,035
Exposures secured by real
estate 0 0 0
Exposures in default 127 176 149
Exposure associated with
particularly high risks 0 0 0
Exposure to covered bonds 0 0 0
ltems representing
securitisation positions 0 0 0
Exposures to institutions
and businesses with short-
term credit rating 0 0 0
Exposures in the form of
units of shares or shares
in collective investment
undertakings 0 0 0
Equity exposure 564 215 149
Other items 137 109 124
for credit risk pursuant to
the IRB Approach 29,763 28,500 26,434
Exposures to central
governments or central
banks 72 65 118
Exposures to institutions 1,415 1,593 1,510
Exposures to corporates 19,576 18,191 15,666
Retail exposures 7,122 7,237 7,708
Equity exposures 42 32 25
Items representing
securitisation positions 0 0 0
Other assets that are non-
credit obligation 1,536 1,382 1,407
for position risk 4,938 3,437 2,774
for large exposures
exceeding the limits 0 0 0
to currency risk 0 0 0
to settlement risk 0 0 0
to commodity risk 0 0 0
to operation risk 3,725 3,465 3,519
for credit valuation
adjustment 263 469 440
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Information in accordance with Decree 163/2014 Coll. Risk-weighted assets (on an individual basis)

on an individual basis (CZK million) 31 Dec 2023 | 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

Reconciliation of accounting and regulatory capital Total risk-weighted assets 510,313 474,477 431,973
(on an individual basis) for credit risk 403,933 387,608 353,143 g
- for credit risk pursuant to 5
Items from Statement of in IRB 41,612 42,596 37,889 E
Financial Position - Total -
. for credit risk pursuant to
shareholders’ equity 115,103 112,584 115,418 the IRB ApproF;ch 362,321 345,012 315,254
Share capital 19,005 19,005 19,005 for settlement risk _ _ _
Share premium 134 134 134 for position, foreign
Other equity 525 507 491 exchange, and commodity
Accumulated Other risks 61 ,726 42,963 34,679
comprehensive income 106 801 2,494 for operational risk 41,372 38,040 38,655
Reserve funds 4,189 4,189 4,189 for credit valuation ”
Retained earnings from adjustment 3,282 5,866 5,496 =
previous periods 77,296 71,102 77,478 g
Own shares (726) (726) (726) 5
Net profit for the period 14,574 17,572 12,353 %
Total adjustments to CET1 (21,098) (17,141) (18,235) &
Gains/(losses) on hedging
instruments (cash flow
hedging) (213) (604) (1,264)
Additional value adjustment (117) (107) (140)
Other intangible assets, net
of tax (4,980) (4,995) (4,100)
Insufficient coverage of 8
expected credit losses (lack §
of provisions) (78) 0 0 o
Unusable profit (15,710) (11,412) (12,726) qgj
Insufficient coverage for non- s
performing exposures 0 (23) (5) =
[&]
Other transitional
adjustments to CET 1 0 0 0
Tier 2 capital 6,064 3,004 2,236
Subordinated debt received 5,005 2,440 2,490
Subordinated debt provided (446) (446) (446)

Surplus coverage of
expected credit losses

(Excess of provisions) 1,505 1,010 192
Total capital 100,069 98,447 99,419
Tier 1 capital 94,005 95,443 97,182
Core Tier 1 (CET1) capital 94,005 95,443 97,182
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Capital requirements (individual)

(CZK million) 31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

Total capital requirements 40,825 37,958 34,558
for credit risk pursuant to the
Standardised Approach in IRB 3,329 3,408 3,031

Exposures to central
governments or central banks 1 1 1

Exposures to regional
governments or local

authorities 0 0 0
Exposures to public sector

entities 1 1 2
Exposures to international

development banks 0 0 0
Exposure to international

organisations 0 0 0
Exposures to institutions 41 14 15
Exposures to corporates 1,975 2,145 1,860
Retail exposures 0 0 0
Exposures secured by

real estate 0 0 0
Exposures in default 0 24 26
Exposure associated with

particularly high risks 0 0 0
Exposure to covered bonds 0 0 0
Items representing

securitisation positions 0 0 0

Exposures to institutions and
businesses with short-term
credit rating 0 0 0

Exposures in the form of

units of shares or shares

in collective investment

undertakings 0 0 0
Equity exposures 1,311 1,223 1,127
Other items 0 0 0

for credit risk pursuant to
the IRB Approach

Exposures to central
governments or central banks 72 65 118

28,986 27,601 25,221

Exposures to institutions 1,946 2,061 1,882

Exposures to corporates 20,142 18,711 16,103

Retail exposures 5,597 5,679 6,027

Equity exposure 13 13 9

ltems representing

securitisation positions 0 0 0

Other assets that are

non-credit obligation 1,216 1,072 1,082
for position risk 4,938 3,437 2,774
for large exposures exceeding
the limits 0 0 0
to currency risk 0 0 0
to settlement risk 0 0 0
to commodity risk 0 0 0
to operation risk 3,310 3,043 3,092
for credit valuation adjustment 262 469 440

Capital ratios and ratios in % (on an individual basis)

31 Dec 31 Dec
(%) 31 Dec 2023 2022 2021
Capital ratio for common equity
Tier 1 18.42 20.12 22.50
Capital ratio for Tier 1 capital 18.42 20.12 22.50
Capital ratio for total capital 19.61 20.75 23.02
Return on average assets (ROAA) 1.06 1.34 1.03
Return on average equity Tier 1
(ROAE) 15.10 17.58 12.73
Assets per employee
(in CZK thousand) 218,704 183,116 172,212
Administrative costs per employee
(in CZK thousand) 1,743 1,543 1,466
Profit or loss after tax per employee
(in CZK thousand) 2,215 2,618 1,820

Note: The calculation methodology according to Decree 163/2014 Coll. differs from
the methodology specified in the section Definitions of the mentioned alternative
performance measures.

Capital management

The Bank manages its capital adequacy to ensure its sufficient
level in the environment of changing regulatory requirements
while allowing for organic business growth and for potentially
adverse macroeconomic developments. Under the applicable
regulation of capital adequacy, in addition to the usual reporting
of the capital adequacy ratio (so-called Pillar 1), regulatory
demands comprise also fulfilling conditions for evaluating
required economic capital, stress testing, and capital planning
(so-called Pillar 2, or the internal capital adequacy assessment
process, ICAAP). To determine the required economic capital, the
Bank has substantially selected methods close to the regulatory
procedures applied for Pillar 1. That has resulted in there being
very similar levels of necessary economic and regulatory capital.

Given the fact that capital requirements are continuing to
develop, the Bank is continuously assessing the impact of their
changes in the process of capital planning. As the national
regulatory authority, the CNB oversees KB’s compliance with
capital adequacy requirements on standalone and consolidated
bases. During 2023, the Bank met all regulatory requirements.
On a regular basis, KB also compiles and reports to the CNB
mandatory information regarding its ICAAP.

Stress testing

As an essential part of its risk management under Pillar 2, KB
regularly simulates hypothetical macroeconomic scenarios
involving potential adverse external macroeconomic conditions.
On this basis, the Bank estimates impacts upon its financial result
and the risk profile of its business in a medium-term horizon.

It subsequently generates expectations for the development

of risk-weighted assets (i.e. capital requirements) and financial
results. The results of stress testing are among the inputs
considered in determining the Bank’s dividend policy. In the
liquidity risk area, client behaviour and its effect on the deposit
base are modelled on the basis of stress scenarios such that any
possible outflow of liquidity would be very securely covered. The
results of stress testing in 2023 confirmed that KB is resistant to
impacts from potential unexpected adverse developments in the
Czech economy.
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Liquidity and funding

KB Group’s strong liquidity position is founded upon the various
types of customer deposits that it holds and the fact that the
Group does not substantially use secondary financing. Thanks to
the stability of its large deposit base, the Group had no need to
modify the structure of its balance sheet in response to external
economic developments by reducing certain types of exposures
or seeking to obtain other types of funding. KB Group’s strong
creditworthiness is supported by its stable financial results, as
well as the level of capital adequacy it has achieved. As a result,
as of 31 December 2023, it had an excellent net loan-to-deposit
ratio of 83%." KB also meets by a large margin the 3% required
minimum leverage ratio that has been binding since mid-2021.
This indicator confirms Komeréni banka’s solid position and its
adequate room for further business growth.

Funding of KB Group

Client deposits in the volume of CZK 1,006 billion? comprise a
crucial part (approximately 66%) of the Group’s total liabilities
and shareholders’ equity. Current accounts made up the largest
proportion of client deposits within the Group (65%). In addition
to its broad and stable base of client deposits, KB Group has
other possible funding sources, including cross currency swaps
and debt securities issues and loans taken. Historically, mainly
cross-currency swaps were used as the main source of EUR
funds when swapping CZK for EUR. This was a consequence

of CZK liquidity excess resulting from the large CZK deposit
base. To enhance currency diversification of its funding sources,
the Bank issued in 2021 its inaugural issue of mortgage covered
bonds denominated in euro in the volume of EUR 500 million.
The bond was rated AAA by Fitch Ratings and was admitted

for trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange. Komer¢ni banka did not increase in 2023 the volume
of issued debt securities. As of the end of 2023, the total nominal
amount of mortgage bonds and other debt securities placed
outside KB Group reached the equivalent of CZK 12.4 billion.

To meet regulatory requirements for MREL (as described in

the “Regulatory framework” above), the Bank entered into a
series of intragroup senior non-preferred loan contracts with its
parent in the total volume of EUR 900 million during 2023 (i.e.

the aggregate sum of these non-preferred loans totalled EUR
2,400 million). Parameters of these contracts were optimised also
from the perspective of the EUR funding needs of the Bank, thus
providing long-term resources for the EUR-denominated balance
sheet. In such context, the Bank decreased use of both cross-
currency swaps and covered bonds.

In terms of the overall balance sheet and funding requirements,
the Bank remains primarily funded by client deposits, with
additional financing sourced from the secondary market through
financial debt. In line with the strategy to minimise interest rate
risk, the Bank anticipates no significant financial impacts from
fluctuations in market interest rates or refinancing spreads.

" Excluding repo operations with clients.

2 Excluding volatile repo operations with clients. The total volume of ‘Amounts due to
customers’ reached CZK 1,127 billion.

| Risk management

Liquidity management

Liquidity risk management focuses primarily on the ability of the
Bank and entire Group to meet their payment obligations at all
times. This includes maintaining adequate cash volumes as well
as balances on nostro accounts and the mandatory minimum
reserves account while not unnecessarily adding to the Bank’s
costs or restraining its business activities. Liquidity is maintained
by rigorous cash flow management. A liquidity snapshot broken
down by currency (CZK and foreign) is monitored based on static
indicators measuring the incoming and outgoing cash flows
within particular time horizons and also based on dynamic stress
scenarios focusing on potential adverse development of the
economic environment as well as the deterioration of individual
positions.

Behaviour of the client deposit base and clients’ use of financing
are modelled (including off-balance sheet transactions) in

its liquidity ratios in order to maintain a very high certainty

of covering possible outflows of funds. Sufficient liquidity is
managed using a system of limits. To achieve these, KB uses
on- and off-balance sheet transactions on the interbank market.
The Group is prudent in its strategy and uses medium- and long-
term instruments which allow it to stabilise both volumes and
associated costs while at the same time reflecting changes in
costs when setting prices.

The Group maintains high liquidity at all times. It covered all

its liabilities during 2023 from its internal sources without any
problems, and the use of additional secondary funding remained
limited. As of 31 December 2023, the Group was not drawing
liquidity from central banks. The Group’s liquidity cushion is a
combination of investments in government bonds and reverse
repo operations with the CNB.

As required by the regulator, the Bank monitors and steers the
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and the Net Stable Funding Ratio
(NSFR). Both these regulatory indicators were regularly measured
and reported to the CNB and within the SG Group reporting
framework. Ongoingly, both LCR and NSFR were safely above the
regulatory requirements of 100%.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the European Union
as of 31 December 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Income and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December 2023

Restated
(CZKm) Note 2023 2022
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Interest income 5 119,128 93,146
Interest expense 5 (93,533) (64,514)
Net interest income 25,595 28,632
Net fee and commission income 6 6,414 6,121
Net profit/(loss) on financial operations 7 3,832 3,666
Dividend income 8 0 2
Other income 9 358 211 @
Net operating income 36,199 38,632 é
Personnel expenses 10 (8,335) (7,734) §
General and administrative expenses 11 (5,593) (5,257) E
Depreciation, amortisation, and impairment of operating assets 12 (3,393) (3,023) §
Total operating expenses (17,321) (16,014) Z
Operating profit 18,878 22,618 5
Impairment losses 13 (120) (1,109) 3
Net gain from loans and advances transferred and written off 13 106 (72)
Cost of risk (14) (1,181)
Income from share in associated undertakings 330 216
Net profit/(loss) on subsidiaries and associates /
Profit/(loss) attributable to exclusion of companies from consolidation 0 73 g
Gain on a bargain purchase 0 0 2
Net profits on other assets 14 (87) 111 %
Profit before income tax 19,107 21,837 2
Income tax 15 (3,288) (3,998) E
Net profit for the period 16 15,819 17,839 §
Profit attributable to the Non-controlling owners 207 217
Profit attributable to the Group’s equity holders 15,612 17,622
Earnings per share (in CZK) 17 82.67 93.31
Diluted earnings per share (in CZK) 17 82.67 93.31
Note: Net interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate method, except that in the case of hedging derivatives, the contractual interest rate of
the corresponding derivative is used. "
Note: The item Income from share in associated undertakings has been restated due to the application of IFRS 17 (refer to Note 3.6.1). s
s
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements. ;’?
<
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2023

Restated
2023 2022

(74, 4))] Note
Net profit for the period 16 15,819 17,839
Items that will not be reclassified to the Statement of Income
Remeasurement of retirement benefits plan, net of tax 39 2 8
Revaluation of equity securities at FVOCI*, net of tax 40 9 1
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the Statement of Income
Cash flow hedging
— Net fair value gain/(loss), net of tax 41 442 190
- Transfer to net profit/(loss), net of tax 41 (830) (842)
Hedge of a foreign net investment (21) 18
Foreign exchange difference on translation of a foreign net investment 29 (18)
Revaluation of debt securities at FVOCI**, net of tax 42 277) (1,080)
Share of the other comprehensive income of associates, net of tax 24 26 (36)
Other income from associated undertakings 0 0
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (638) (1,759)
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 15,181 16,080
Comprehensive income attributable to the Non-controlling owners 210 213
Comprehensive income attributable to the Group’s equity holders 14,971 15,867

* Revaluation of equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive income option.

** Revaluation of debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Note: The items, Net profit for the period, and, Share of the other comprehensive income of associates, net of tax, in 2022 have been restated due to the application of IFRS 17

(refer to Note 3.6.1).

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of 31 December 2023

Restated
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

2

£
(74, G))] Note ﬁ
ASSETS 3
Cash and current balances with central banks 18 12,835 14,190 §
Financial assets held for trading at fair value through profit or loss 19 48,464 57,269 '-E
Other assets held for trading at fair value through profit or loss 19 0 0 §
Non-trading financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20 0 132 §
Positive fair value of hedging financial derivatives 43 8,598 21,582 8
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 21 16,783 30,171
Financial assets at amortised cost 22 1,397,423 1,154,138
Revaluation differences on portfolios hedge items (815) (2,550)
Current tax assets 643 83 ‘g
Deferred tax assets 33 223 202 §
Prepayments, accrued income, and other assets 23 6,279 5,797 %
Investments in associates 24 3,047 2,652 §
Intangible assets 25 10,192 9,030 £
Tangible assets 26 8,034 8,762 %
Goodwill 27 3,752 3,752 (%
Assets held for sale 28 844 94
Total assets 1,516,302 1,305,304

Note: The item, Investments in associates, has been restated due to the application of IFRS 17 (refer to Note 3.6.1).

Restated
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022

((74.G))] Note

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Amounts due to central banks 0 0
Financial liabilities held for trading at fair value through profit or loss 29 60,206 66,949
Negative fair value of hedging financial derivatives 43 31,241 56,746
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 30 1,247,773 1,050,337
Revaluation differences on portfolios hedge items (34,944) (52,689)
Current tax liabilities 225 1,529
Deferred tax liabilities 33 782 1,080
Accruals and other liabilities 31 17,321 16,831
Provisions 32 854 1,151
Subordinated and senior non-preferred debt 34 64,560 38,694
Total liabilities 1,388,018 1,180,628
Share capital 35 19,005 19,005
Share premium, funds, retained earnings, revaluation, and net profit for the period 106,053 102,439
Non-controlling interest 3,226 3,232
Total equity 128,284 124,676
Total liabilities and equity 1,516,302 1,305,304

Note: The items, Retained earnings, and, net profit for the period, have been restated due to the application of IFRS 17 (refer to Note 3.6.1).

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2023

Trans-
Remea- lation of Total
surement Revalu- foreign net equity,

Capital of ation of invest- Revaluation including

funds and Share retirement equity Cash ment and of debt Share- Non- non-

Share Own retained based benefits securities flow related securities  holders controlling controlling

(74, G))] capital shares earnings* payment plan at FVOCl hedging hedging at FVOCI equity interest interest

Balance as of
31 Dec 2021 19,005 (677) 102,148 546 (224) 4 1,248 (12) 1,371 123,509 3,273 126,782

Changes in
accounting
policies 0 0 781 0 0 0 0 0 0 781 0 781

Balance as of
1 January 2022 19,005 (677) 102,929 546 (224) 4 1,248 (12) 1,371 124,290 3,273 127,563

Treasury shares,
other 0 0 142 17 0 0 0 0 0 159 1 160

Payment of
dividends** 0 0 (18,872 0 0 0 0 0 0 (18,872) (255) (19,127)

Transactions
with owners 0 0 (18,730) 17 0 0 0 0 0 (18,713) (254) (18,967)

Profit for the
period 0 0 17,622 0 0 0 0 0 0 17,622 217 17,839

Other

comprehensive

income for the

period, net of

tax*** 0 0 (36) 0 8 1 (652) 4 (1,080) (1,755) 4) (1,759)

Comprehensive
income for the
period 0 0 17,586 0 8 1 (652) 4 (1,080) 15,867 213 16,080

Balance as of
31 Dec 2022
restated 19,005 (577) 101,785 563 (216) 5 596 (8) 291 121,444 3,232 124,676

Treasury shares,
other 0 0 105 21 0 0 0 0 0 126 1 127

Payment of
dividends** 0 0 (11,483) 0 0 0 0 0

Transactions
with owners 0 0 (11,378) 21 0 0 0 0 0 (11,357) (216) (11,573)

Profit for the
period 0 0 15,612 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,612 207 15,819

Other

comprehensive

income for the

period, net of

tax*™* 0 0 26 0 2 9 (388) 5 277) (641) 3 (638)

Comprehensive
income for the

o

(11,483) (217)  (11,700)

period 0 0 15,638 0 2 9) (388) 5 (277) 14,971 210 15,181
Balance as of
31 Dec 2023 19,005 (577) 106,045 584 (214) (4) 208 (3) 14 125,058 3,226 128,284

* Capital funds and retained earnings consist of other funds created from profit in the amount of CZK 5,213 million (2022: CZK 5,213 million), net profit for the period in the
amount of CZK 15,612 million (2022: CZK 17,622 million), and retained earnings in the amount of CZK 85,220 million (2022: CZK 78,950 million).

** Further information about payment of dividends is presented in Note 16.

** Amounts in the column ‘Capital funds and retained earnings’ represent share in other comprehensive income of associates due to the consolidation of an associated
company using the equity method.

Note: The items, Profit for the period, and, Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax, in 2022 in the column Capital funds and retained earnings have been restated

due to the application of IFRS 17, the initial application of which is recorded under Changes in accounting policies (refer to Note 3.6.1).

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

2
Restated é
(CZKm) 2023 2022 ﬁ
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘f’—!
Profit before income tax 19,107 21,837 %
Non-cash and other adjustments '-E
Movement of allowances/provisions (including impact of loans and advances transferred and §
written off) 250 1,312 s
Depreciation and amortisation expense on tangible and intangible fixed assets 3,393 3,023 §
Net profits on other assets 87 (111)
Revaluation of derivatives (8,704) 7,357
Accrued interest, amortisation of discount and premium (492) (3,204)
Profit/(loss) on subsidiaries and associates (330) (291) 2
Foreign exchange differences 617 1,293 %
Other changes (570) (501) 5
Operating profit before change in operating assets and liabilities 13,358 30,715 o
Changes in assets and liabilities from operating activities after non-cash adjustments §
Amounts due from banks (received/paid) (178,504) 25,610 %
Loans and advances to customers (50,797) (58,220) g
Debt securities at amortised cost (9,469) (27,319) @
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 18,381 231
Financial assets held for trading at fair value through profit or loss 9,702) (1,180)
Other assets held for trading at fair value through profit or loss 0 0
Non-trading financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 135 0
Other assets (567) (201) %
Amounts due to banks (received/paid) 20,100 141 %
Amounts due to customers 177,164 (5,899) g
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 14,290 5,390 §
Other liabilities 624 4,708 E
Net cash flow from operating assets and liabilities (18,345) (56,739) @
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax (4,987) (26,024)
Income tax paid (5,325) (2,725)
Net cash flow from operating activities (10,312) (28,749)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Dividends received (including associated undertakings) 3 5
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (4,130) (8,777) o
Sale of tangible and intangible assets 1 790 <_‘95
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries and associates (40) (812) g
Sale/decrease of investments in subsidiaries and associates 0 0 =
Net cash flow from investment activities (4,166) (3,794) §
<
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Restated

(74, G))] 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid to shareholders (11,290) (18,969)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest 217) (255)
Securities issued 0 0
Securities redeemed 0 (1,099)
Lease liabilities (457) (418)
Subordinated and senior non-preferred debt 24,725 36,309
Net cash flow from financing activities 12,761 15,568
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,717) (16,975)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,136 27,349
Foreign exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 173 (238)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer to Note 36) 8,592 10,136
Interest received 119,878 91,643
Interest paid (94,775) (66,215)

Note: The items, Profit before income tax, and, Profit/(loss) on subsidiaries and associates, have been restated due to the application of IFRS 17 (refer to Note 3.6.1).

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

These Consolidated Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 February 2024.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors:

i

Jan Juchelka m. p. Jitka Haubova m. p.

Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer and Senior Executive Director, Chief Operations Officer
Komeréni banka, a.s. Komeréni banka, a.s.

@ Komer¢ni banka, a.s. | Annual Financial Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 December 2023

Table of contents

©Co~NoOOOhwWN =

Principal activities

Events for the year ended 31 December 2023

Principal accounting policies

Segment reporting

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

Net profit/(loss) on financial operations

Dividend income

Other income

Personnel expenses

General and administrative expenses

Depreciation, amortisation, and impairment of operating assets

Cost of risk

Net profits on other assets

Income tax

Distribution of net profit

Earnings per share

Cash and current balances with central banks

Financial assets and other assets held for trading at fair value through profit or loss
Non-trading financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at amortised cost

Prepayments, accrued income, and other assets

Investments in associates and non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
Intangible assets

Tangible assets

Goodwill

Assets held for sale

Financial liabilities held for trading at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Accruals and other liabilities

Provisions

Deferred tax

Subordinated and senior non-preferred debt

Share capital

Composition of cash and cash equivalents as reported in the Statement of Cash Flows
Commitments and contingent liabilities

Related parties

Movements in the remeasurement of retirement benefits plan in the equity
Movements in the revaluation of equity securities at FVOCI in the equity
Movements in the revaluation of hedging instruments in the equity
Movements in the revaluation of debt securities at FVOCI in the equity
Risk management and financial instruments

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Assets in custody and assets under management

Post balance sheet events

| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of 31 December 2023

118
119
120
143
143
144
144
144
144
145
146
146
147
148
148
149
150
150
150
150
151
151
157
157
161
162
163
163
164
164
166
167
167
168
169
171
171
174
177
177
178
178
179
204
204
204

)
9
c
5]
E
2
«
=
(7]
8
o
=
5]
=
ic
o
5]
2
©
=
=
@
=
o
o

Separate Financial Statements

Securities issued by KB

Report on relations

Affidavits



1 Principal activities

The Financial Group of Komeréni banka, a.s. (henceforth the “Group”) consists of Komeréni banka, a.s. (the “Bank”) along with
18 subsidiaries and 5 associated undertakings. The parent company of the Group is the Bank, which is incorporated in the Czech
Republic as a joint-stock company. The principal activities of the Bank are financial services as follow:

I Providing loans, advances, and guarantees in Czech crowns and foreign currencies;
Il Acceptance and placement of deposits in Czech crowns and foreign currencies;
M. Providing current and term deposit accounts in Czech crowns and foreign currencies;

IV. Providing banking services through an extensive branch network in the Czech Republic;
V. Treasury operations in the interbank market;

VI. Servicing foreign trade transactions; and

VII. Investment banking.

The Bank generates the preponderant proportion of the Group’s income and represents substantially all of the assets and liabilities of
the Group.

The address of the Bank’s registered office is Na Pfikopé 33/969, 114 07 Prague 1.
In addition to its operations in the Czech Republic, the Group has operations in Slovakia through its foreign branch
(Komeréni banka, a.s., pobocka zahrani¢nej banky) and its subsidiaries ESSOX FINANCE, s.r.o. and ENVIROS, s.r.0., as well as in

Belgium through its subsidiary BASTION EUROPEAN INVESTMENTS S.A.

The Bank’s ordinary shares are publicly traded on the Prague Stock Exchange. Société Générale S.A. is the Bank’s majority
shareholder, holding 60.35% (2022: 60.35%) of the Bank’s issued share capital, and is the ultimate parent company.

The main activities of the Bank’s subsidiary companies as of 31 December 2023:

Company’s name Direct holding (%) Group holding (%) Principal activity Registered office
KB penzijni spole¢nost, a.s. 100.00 100.00 Retirement pension Prague
Modra pyramida stavebni spofitelna, a.s. 100.00 100.00 Building society Prague
Protos, uzavreny investi¢ni fond, a.s. 83.65 100.00 Investments Prague
Factoring KB, a.s. 100.00 100.00 Factoring Prague
BASTION EUROPEAN INVESTMENTS S.A. 99.98 99.98 Financial services Brussels
KB Real Estate, s.r.o. 100.00 100.00 Support services Prague
STD2, s.r.o. 100.00 100.00 Support services Prague
VN 42, s.r.0. 100.00 100.00 Support services Prague
KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o. 100.00 100.00 Support services Prague
Intermediation of loans,
KB Poradenstvi, s.r.o. 100.00 100.00 insurance, and savings Prague
KB Advisory, s. r. 0.* 0.00 100.00 Support services Prague
My Smart Living, s.r.o., v likvidaci* 0.00 100.00 Support services Prague

Development and
implementation of

Finbricks, s.r.0.* 0.00 100.00 payment solutions Prague
Crowdfunding real estate

upvest s.r.o.* 0.00 96.00 investments Brno

ENVIROS GLOBAL LIMITED* 0.00 100.00 Holding London

SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o. 50.10 50.10 Industry financing Prague

ESSOX s.r.o. 50.93 50.93 Consumer loans, leasing Ceské Budgjovice

ESSOX FINANCE, s.r.o. 0.00 50.93 Consumer loans, leasing Bratislava

* The company is not consolidated due to its insignificant impact on the financial statements.
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The main activities of the Bank’s associated undertakings as of 31 December 2023:

Company’s name Direct holding (%) Group holding (%) Principal activity Registered office

Komeréni pojistovna, a.s. 49.00 49.00 Insurance Prague
Data collection for credit

CBCB - Czech Banking Credit Bureau, a.s. 20.00 20.00 risk assessments Prague

Worldline Czech Republic s.r.o0.* 1.00 1.00 Financial services Prague
Data analysis for

MonkeyData s.r.0.* 0.00 33.171 e-commerce Ostrava
Providing of payment

Platebni instituce Roger a.s.* 0.00 24.83 services Brno

* This is a share in the company’s equity. The Group has 40% of the voting rights and a share in the profit of 0.1%.
**The company is not consolidated due to its insignificant impact on the financial statements.

2 Events for the year ended 31 December 2023
Dividends declared during 2023

At the General Meeting held on 20 April 2023, the shareholders approved a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 of
CZK 60.42 per share before tax. The dividend was declared in the aggregate amount of CZK 11,483 million, and the remaining balance
of the net profit was allocated to retained earnings. The dividends were paid out in Czech crowns.

Moreover, the Group paid out CZK 56 million in dividends to non-controlling owners of ESSOX s.r.0. (2022: CZK 101 million) and
CZK 161 million to non-controlling owners of SG Equipment Finance Czech Repubilic s.r.0. (2022: CZK 154 million).

Changes in the Bank’s financial group

In April, July, October, November and in December, KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o. increased equity of Finbricks, s.r.o. by CZK 10.5 million
through financial contribution into other capital funds. Finbricks, s.r.o. is presently not consolidated due to its insignificant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

In May, the Bank decreased shareholders’ equity of BASTION EUROPEAN INVESTMENTS S.A. by EUR 1.4 million (equivalent to
CZK 39 million).

In June, a new fully owned subsidiary of the Bank, KB Poradenstvi, s.r.0., was established with a registered capital of CZK 100
thousand. During October, the Bank increased the equity capital in the company by CZK 900 thousand in the form of a financial
contribution to other capital funds.

In June, KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o. increased its share in MonkeyData s.r.o. from the previous 24.989% to 28.256%. In September,
KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o. increased its share to the current 33.171%. MonkeyData s.r.o. is presently not consolidated due to its
insignificant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In July, My Smart Living, s.r.o., reduced other capital funds to the benefit of KB SmartSolutions, s.r.o. in the amount of CZK 700
thousand. On 1 November 2023, the company entered liquidation. My Smart Living, s.r.o. v likvidaci is presently not consolidated due
to its insignificant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In September, the Bank’s investment in subsidiary VN 42, s.r.0., valued at CZK 364 million, was reclassified as ‘Assets held for sale’ due
to expected sale of this company.

In December, the Bank increased the equity of Modra pyramida stavebni spofitelna, a.s. by CZK 1,100 million through a financial
contribution into other capital funds.

In December, ENVIROS, s.r.o. (CZ) increased the equity capital in its subsidiary ENVIROS, s.r.0. (SK) by EUR 45 thousand in the form
of a financial contribution to other capital funds. ENVIROS group is presently not consolidated due to its insignificant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

During 2023, the Bank increased its equity in the company KB SmartSolutions, s.r.0. by CZK 31 million in the form of a financial
contribution to other capital funds.
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3 Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies followed in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements are set out below.
3.1 Statement of compliance with IFRS Accounting Standards

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared pursuant to and comply with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted
by the European Union (hereafter only “IFRS”), on the basis of Regulation (EC) No. 1606/2002 on the application of international
accounting standards, and effective for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2023.

The Consolidated Financial Statements presented for the year ended 31 December 2023 are prepared on the basis of current best
estimates. The management of the Group believes that these present a true and fair view of the Group’s financial results and financial
position using all relevant and available information as of the financial statements date.

3.2 Underlying assumptions of the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.2.1 Accrual basis
The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on an accrual accounting basis (i.e. the effects of transactions and other events
are recognised when they occur and are reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period to which they relate).

An exception is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, which is prepared on a cash basis (i.e. it presents cash inflows and
outflows during the reporting period without regard to the period to which each transaction relates).

3.2.2 Going concern

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on the assumption that the Group is a going concern and will continue in
operation for the foreseeable future. The Group has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or materially curtail the scale of its
operations.

3.2.3 Reporting period
The Group reports for a 12-month period which is identical to the calendar year.

3.3 Basis of preparation

3.3.1 Presentation currency
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Czech crowns (hereafter only “CZK”), which constitute the Group’s
presentation currency. The balances shown are stated in CZK million unless indicated otherwise.

3.3.2 Historical cost

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for items measured at fair value
comprising financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, hedging derivatives, and hedged items in fair value hedge accounting.

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their (i) fair value less cost to sell, or (ii) carrying amount just prior to reclassification
into ‘Assets held for sale’.

3.3.3 Material accounting judgements and estimates

In applying the accounting policies for the purpose of preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS,

it is necessary for the Group’s management to use professional judgement and make estimates and assumptions. These impact
upon reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the financial statements date,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates and judgements are based on the
information available as of the financial statements date and they relate especially to the determination of:

e Fair values in the Statement of Financial Position of financial instruments not quoted in an active market which are classified as
financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
or hedging derivatives (refer to Note 3.5.5);

The value of intangible assets, except goodwill (refer to Note 3.5.10);

The amount of impairment of assets (refer to Notes 3.5.10 and 3.5.11);

Provisions recognised under liabilities (refer to Note 3.5.12);

The initial value of goodwill for each business combination (refer to Note 3.5.11);

The amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together
with future tax planning strategies (refer to Note 3.5.8);

e Assessment of the substance of participation interest in Group entities (refer to Note 3.3.4);
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e The amount of impairment and provisions for credit risk related to financial assets measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantees granted as measured using models or internal
assumptions based on historical, current, and prospective data (refer to Note 3.5.5);

e Business model and SPPI assessment of financial assets (refer to Note 3.5.5); and
Lease term for leases of an indefinite time period.

Information about the key judgements and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty as of
the financial statements date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying values of assets and liabilities
are disclosed in individual notes as appropriate.

Geopolitical situation

The geopolitical situation subjects the current economic environment to ongoing heightened volatility and uncertainty, thus requiring
particularly complex judgements and estimates in certain areas. The geopolitical situation has significant implications in the area

of credit risk management, as described in Note 43(A). Possible impacts in other risk management areas were also assessed and,
where necessary, appropriate procedures and measures implemented. As a consequence of the international sanctions imposed
and also due to market changes, the Group minimised its rouble-denominated balance sheet in 2022 by sale of rouble assets and
subsequently by closure of all client accounts denominated in roubles. Furthermore, the Bank decided to discontinue outgoing
transactions to Russia and Belarus. The geopolitical situation caused a significant increase in workload in the areas of (i) KYC
(know-your-client), mainly due to the increasing acceptance rate of refugees as well as the application of sanctions restrictions to
clients residing in Russia; (ii) S&E (Sanction and Embargo) monitoring as a result of sanctions restrictions related to EU sanctions
packages; and (i) AML (measures against money laundering) due to a strong motivation for Russian assets to be transferred into the
EU zone while circumventing the sanctions. Due to the current situation, the risk of cyber attacks has increased for the Group and its
clients. To address these risks for the Group, efforts were continued to implement risk-mitigating measures while targeting continual
improvements in both preventative and detective areas, such as ex ante monitoring of clients or countries.

3.3.4 Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Bank and of its subsidiaries whose financial
statements are significant relative to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, particularly regarding Group consolidated total
assets and gross operating income. A subsidiary is an entity in which the Bank has control, i.e. the Bank is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
When assessing control, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances while taking into account particularly voting rights,
potential voting rights, and contractual arrangements. This assessment may require the use of accounting judgements. Subsidiaries
are consolidated using the full method of consolidation from the date when the Bank obtains control to the date when the Bank ceases
to exercise control over such entity.

The financial statements of the consolidated subsidiaries used to prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared as

of the Bank’s financial statements date and using consistent accounting policies. The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries and
branches are translated into the Bank’s presentation currency at the rate of exchange as of the Bank’s financial statements date, and
their items of income and expense are translated at the monthly average exchange rates for the respective month of a given transaction.
Exchange differences arising on translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity. The consolidation principles are
unchanged as against the previous year. All intragroup transactions, balances, income, and expenses were eliminated in full.

Investments in associates are presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements using the equity method if their financial statements
are significant relative to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, particularly regarding Group consolidated total assets and
gross operating income, or if they are strategic investments. An associate is an entity in which the Bank has significant influence, i.e.
directly or indirectly owns 20% to 50% of voting rights but it does not exercise control. Equity accounting involves recognising in the
Consolidated Statement of Income and in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income the Group’s share of the associates’
profit or loss for the period and comprehensive income for the period. The Group’s interest in an associate is initially recognised at cost
in the Statement of Financial Position and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the investor’s share in the investee’s
net assets.
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3.4 Application of new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards

3.4.1 Standards and interpretations newly applied by the Group in the current period
The following standards, interpretations, and amendments were newly applied by the Group as from 1 January 2023. Unless otherwise
described below, their application has no significant impact in the current period (and/or prior period).

Standard Impact/Comments

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts —new  The new standard establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of

standard, issued in May 2017 insurance contracts. It supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.
Amendments to IFRS 17, issued To make differences in profitability among insurance contracts visible, IFRS 17 requires entities to divide
in June 2020 each portfolio of insurance contracts into a minimum of three groups: (i) loss-making (onerous) contracts at

initial recognition, (ii) contracts that at initial recognition have no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently, and (iii) remaining contracts.

The groups of insurance contracts are measured at current values using updated estimates and assumptions
about cash flows, discount rates, and risks relating to insurance contracts. Entities recognise profit allocated to
periods when the insurance services are provided. For a loss-making group of contracts, the loss is recognised
immediately.

In the Statement of Income, the insurance service result (comprising insurance revenue and insurance service
expenses) is presented separately from the insurance financ